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PART | — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. BUSINESS

HISTORY

Vitarich Corporation (“Corporation” or “Vitarich” or “Company”) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 31, 1962 to engage primarily in manufacturing, preparing,
processing, mixing and dealing with feeds, foodstuffs, grains, and commodities of every description for poultry,
livestock and all kinds of animal feeding. Its shares of stock were registered with the Philippine Stock Exchange on
February 8, 1995. Vitarich’s authorized capital stock is P1,330,000,000.00 divided into 3.5 billion shares at
P0.38/share par value.

Over the years, Vitarich grew to become one of the Philippines’ leading integrators. It operates on plants nationwide
which produce hog, poultry, and other specialty feed requirements. It is an integrated poultry producer who oversees
every aspect of the poultry production. It is involved in breeding, hatching, growing, to sales and marketing of its
animals.

The Corporation’s registered principal place of business is at Marilao-San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa I, Marilao, Bulacan. It
also operates in Luzon (Bicol and Isabela), Visayas (lloilo, Cebu and Bacolod), and Mindanao (Davao, General Santos
City and Cagayan de Oro).

SUBSIDIARY
BARBATOS VENTURES CORPORATION

On October 27, 2021, Vitarich’s Board of Directors approved the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding
(“MOU”) between Vitarich and Luzon Agriventure Inc. (“LAVI”) for the acquisition of shares owned and held by LAVI
in Barbatos Ventures Corporation (“BVC”), a private domestic corporation engaged in, among other activities, poultry
production as well as in the processing, raising, and breeding of chickens and similar stocks. After the execution of
the MOU on October 28, 2021, due diligence was conducted via external audit by MG Madrid & Company as of
September 30, 2021, upon which BVC’s valuation was based. Based on said due diligence, BVC’s actual results of
operations in October and November and the projections for December 2021 will result in a neutral Net Asset
Valuation. As such, LAVI agreed to absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably assign and transfer all its rights, title,
and interest in BVC for a consideration of P1.00 in favor of Vitarich. On December 16, 2021, the Corporation’s Board
of Directors approved the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding capital stock of BVC from LAVI for a consideration of
P1.00. Beginning January 1, 2022, BVC operated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vitarich. Issuance and transfer of
BVC shares of stock were also duly completed in January 2022.

BUSINESS OF ISSUER

Business Segments and Product Distribution

For management purposes, the Company is organized and managed separately according to the nature of products
and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and
serves different markets.

The industry segments where the Company operates are:

a. The Foods segment is engaged in the growing, production, and distribution of chicken broilers, either as live
or dressed chickens. Its products are distributed to hotels, restaurants, institutional clients, wet markets, and
supermarkets. Its dressed chicken products are distributed and sold under the Cook’s brand and under the
Fresh, Freshly Frozen, and Flavor Origins variants.



b. The Feeds segment caters to the feed requirement of the poultry growers and livestock raisers industry. The
Company manufactures and distributes animal feeds, animal health and nutritional products, and feed
supplements under several lines such as Premium, Advantage Plus, Premium Plus, and Professional. Each line
has several brands. In 2021, it launched the Vitarich Poultry Advantage variant, with three sub-variants under
it.

c. The Farms segment is involved in the production, sales, and distribution of day-old chicks.

The Corporate and Others segment includes general and corporate income and expense items of the Company which
are not specifically identifiable to a particular segment.

The relative contributions of each principal product to consolidated revenue for the years ended December 31, 2023,
December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, are:

PHP millions
2023 2022 Change 2021 Change
Feeds 5,128 5,199 -1% 4,695 11%
Foods 6,943 6,241 11% 4,231 47%
Farms 424 528 -20% 778 -32%
12,495 | 11,968 4% 9,704 23%

Competition

Although the Corporation is focused on the chicken and feeds industry, it faces competition from several sources by
virtue of its integrated operations. The Corporation continuously improves its objectives and strategic plans to
effectively compete with other integrators not only for consumers of its products but also for production resources
such as contract growers and contract breeders. The Corporation competes based on product performance.

Principal competitors of the Company are San Miguel Corporation (B-Meg), UNAHCO, Cargill, New Hope, CJ Feeds, CP
Feeds, Philmico, Uno Feeds, Excell, ADM, Sunjin, Vienovo and Inoza Feeds for the feed business. Key players in
poultry business are San Miguel Corporation (Magnolia), Bounty, Foster, Danway, CP, Sustamina, Gamma Foods,
Chicken Essential and Leong hup.

Sources of Raw Materials

The raw material components of feeds represent the most significant cost components of the Company’s operations.
Major raw materials of the Company’s feed business are corn, wheat, and soybean meal. The Company purchases
these materials directly from either local or foreign traders. Imported materials originate from Australia, North and
South America, India, and Pakistan. The Company is not dependent on, nor has any major existing supply contracts
with, any single or limited number of its suppliers for the purchase of essential raw materials.

Customers

Vitarich has various customers from all product lines and is not dependent on any single or few customers. The loss of
one or two of its customers does not have any adverse material effect on its operations. No customer of the
Corporation accounts for 20% of its sales. The Corporation has existing sales contracts with business partners and
customers in normal and regular business transactions.



Trademarks, Royalty, and Patents

As of 2023, the Company continued to use the following trademarks, devices, and logos, which were previously
registered with the Intellectual Property Office of the Philippines (“IPOPhil”) on the dates opposite to its names:

Trademark

Filing Date

Registration Date

Vitarich Premium Plus

Thursday, November 23, 2017

Sunday, September 2, 2018

Vitarich Advantage Plus

Thursday, November 23, 2017

Sunday, September 2, 2018

Vitarich Professional

Friday, March 2, 2018

Sunday, June 2, 2019

Advantage sa Mabilisang Paglaki, Plus sa Mabilisang Kita

Monday, June 25, 2018

Thursday, November 21, 2019

The Breakthrough Innovation in Professional Hog Raising

Monday, June 25, 2018

Sunday, June 2, 2019

With Premium Quality comes Premium Performance

Monday, June 25,2018

Thursday, May 23, 2019

Gromax

Wednesday, February 17, 2021

Saturday, March 5, 2022

Vitarich Poultry Advantage

Wednesday, August 25, 2021

Thursday, December 9, 2021

Electcee

Monday, August 30, 2021

Thursday, December 9, 2021

Gromaxicillin

Monday, August 30, 2021

Sunday, November 7, 2021

Vitarich Premium Plus Tuesday, April 25, 2023 Pending Registration

Vitarich Professional Friday, June 9, 2023 Pending Registration

Rich in History, Rich in Excellence Friday, January 22, 2021 Friday, May 21, 2021

Building Partnerships. Growing Business Friday, January 22, 2021 Friday, May 21, 2021

Alagang Vitarich Alagang Panalo Tuesday, January 19, 2021 Friday, May 21, 2021

Vitarich Corporation Friday, January 15, 2021 Friday, May 21, 2021

Vitarich LPP Lifetime Profitable Partnership Saturday, June 6, 2020 Friday, April 9, 2021

Forging Livelihood, Nourishing Lives Thursday, October 17, 2019 Saturday, March 14, 2020

Leadership with Integrity, Excellence, Care for Others Thursday, October 17, 2019 Saturday, March 14, 2020

Freshly Frozen Wednesday, July 22, 2020 Sunday, October 3, 2021

Cook's Friday, January 15, 2021 Friday, May 21, 2021

Cook's Premium Whole Chicken The Healthylicious Option | Wednesday, February 17,2021 | Sunday, August 22, 2021

Cook's Flavor Origins Thursday, August 11, 2022 Monday, January 23, 2023

Cook's Premium Whole Chicken The Healthylicious Option | Tuesday, November 14, 2023 Pending Registratio

The Company continues to use the above-mentioned marks and had filed the required Declaration of Actual Use with
the IPOPhil as the same falls due per trademark/mark. Company does not hold any other patent, trademark,
franchise, concession, or royalty agreement.

Certifications

The Company’s Quality Management Systems (“QMS”) enable it to establish procedures that cover all key processes
in the business, including monitoring processes to ensure their effectiveness, maintaining adequate records, checking
output for defects with appropriate corrective actions, and regularly reviewing individual processes and the quality
system itself for effectiveness, thus facilitating continual improvement.

In 2007, the Company’s commitment to consistent product quality and safety was further strengthened when the
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) certified the Company-owned feed mill facilities in the Visayas
and Mindanao with ISO 22000:2005 Food Safety and Management Systems (FSMS) for quality and feed safety
management systems. Vitarich has adopted and implemented preventive approaches to product safety that address
physical, chemical, and biological hazards in various aspects of feed manufacturing, along with process and product
inspections. The Company continuously complies with and maintains the requirements of these standards for its lloilo
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and Davao Feed Mill plants. In 2021, its lloilo and Davao Feed Mill plants received their respective 1ISO 22000:2018
Food Safety Management System Certifications, which remain current, implemented, and effective to date.

The food sales business of Vitarich was also recertified in March 2022 for implementing an effective quality
management system for the delivery of safe and quality food products using the Codex Alimentarius Commission
General Principles on Food Hygiene and the Guidelines on HACCP, or Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points.
Recently, in March 2024, Vitarich underwent an HACCP Surveillance Audit and retains its HACCP Certification for the
verification and delivery of raw and frozen chicken, including giblets. The HACCP certification of Vitarich remains
current, complete, and effective. The HACCP Certificate was issued by NQA Philippines, Inc., a certifying body
accredited by UKAS, the United Kingdom Accreditation Service. This certification is in line with Vitarich’s mission to
continuously adopt new business development programs and technological advancements to enhance the quality of
products and services provided to its stakeholders. Vitarich Corporation holds an FDA License to Operate as a Food
Trader, issued in October 2023, with an effective date remaining until October 11, 2028.

Government Regulations and Approval

As an agri-business, the Corporation operates within a highly regulated environment governed by government
standards.

Adherence to environmental laws not only fosters positive relationships within communities and industries but also
assures employees and the surrounding community of their health and safety. This commitment safeguards the
Corporation from potential violations and penalties.

In addition to environmental compliance, the Company prioritizes ensuring the delivery of safe and high-quality
products to consumers. This involves seeking government approval for its core products and services, as well as
securing registration for its feed mill, accreditation for its chemical laboratory, and certification for its meat plant and
cold storage facilities, in accordance with the standards set by the Bureau of Animal Industry (“BAI”) and the National
Meat Inspection Services (“NMIS”). Furthermore, the Corporation diligently acquires all necessary permits from the
Environmental Management Bureau (“EMB”) under the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (“DENR”)
for its feed mill plants, dressing plants, and rendering plants.

The Company has successfully obtained all required permits, licenses, and government approvals to manufacture and
distribute its products. It remains vigilant regarding any potential legislative changes that may impact its operations
or financial standing, yet currently, there are no known recent or impending regulations that could significantly affect
its business or financial condition.

Research and Development

The Company’s research and development efforts are centrally organized under the Research and Development
Department to focus on the following core activities:

e Product Quality and Innovations
e Research and Development
e Advanced Animal Nutrition

A Research and Development Manager directs these activities, which include the following:

e Advanced Animal nutrition

Diagnostic Laboratory Services

Feeds and Feeds Quality Control

Poultry Genetic Research

New Product Development

e Technical Extension Services for contract breeders, growers, and sales clients



The inauguration of the Corporation’s renovated Research Center in 2001 upgraded its chemical laboratory capability
and further improved the analysis procedure. The acquisition of modern laboratory equipment shortened the
duration for analyzing products.

The Chemical Laboratory handles most of the laboratory services needed for feed processing, from raw material
analyses to finished products tests. The Diagnostic Laboratory handles all the laboratory support related to feed and
food safety as well as the surveillance, prevention, and diagnosis of diseases to ensure health maintenance of
livestock.

To ensure that its edge in the reliability and accuracy of its analysis is kept, it continuously upgrades its equipment,
e.g., the LECO protein analyzer, which is based on combustion, a faster way of analyzing crude protein in feedstuff;
the LECO Bomb Calorimeter, which is used to measure Gross Energy in Feedstuff; and the Atomic Absorption
Analyzer for macro and trace minerals, including heavy metals. The acquisition of the ICP (Inductively Coupled
Plasma) allows the Company to analyze complex minerals and heavy metals simultaneously. The Gas Chromatograph
is capable of accurately determining fatty acid as well as Volatile Fatty Acids and Hormones. The NIR (Near InfraRed
System) is capable of performing proximate analysis, including amino acids, in a very short amount of time. The
Company also upgraded its Fat Extractor, Kjel Dahl Protein Analyzer, and the Ankom Fiber Analyzer Unit. Active
Water and Moisture Analyzer units are used for the stability testing of the finished product as well as the
maintenance of quality for raw materials. UV-Vis equipment is used for mineral and enzyme analysis. Additional
serological tests, including for Avian Influenza virus and ELISA-based Swine serology, were instituted to serve the
growing expectations of the consumers.

For research and development activity, the Corporation spent P8.8 million in 2023, P10.6 million in 2022, and P6.0
million in 2021.

Cost and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws

Vitarich complies with all environmental laws and regulations implemented by the EMB-DENR and invests
appropriately to ensure its compliance. To ensure that its facilities stay compliant with existing environmental laws,
the Company implemented the following activities:

1.Annual stack Emission Testing of boilers to ensure that all the gases being emitted during the operation of boilers
and power generators are within the Standards of the Clean Air Act of the Philippines. For the Davao plant, a 3rd-
party tester (Berksman) has been tapped for emissions testing of the 2 boiler units for Plant 1, the 2 boiler units for
Plant 2, and the single-unit power generator for Plant 2. The most recent test was conducted on December 4-9, 2023
at a cost of Two Hundred Eighty-Five Thousand Six Hundred Pesos (P285,600.00). The Vitarich Davao plant passed all
the parameters and earned a satisfactory rating. The result will be submitted to EMB as compliance to conditions for
maintaining the Permit to Operate Air Pollution Sources and Control Installations (“POA”).

For lloilo, the Permit to Operate (“PTQ”) for the boiler was issued on November 22, 2022, with five years of
validity until April 8, 2027. Annual Boiler Stack Emission Testing was done last May 12, 2023 and testing fee
was Fifty Thousand pesos (P50,000.00). Ambient air monitoring test was also done last July 7, 2023 with a
testing fee of Thirty Five Thousand pesos (P35,000.00). Both results passed the EMB-DENR standards.
Subsequent annual Boiler Servicing and Emissions Testing will be carried out subject to inspection and
approval by the DOLE and EMB-DENR.

2. Regular Monitoring of the final discharge of wastewater from the Corporation’s plants, ensuring that water
discharge from the operations is within the regulatory standards set by the Clean Water Act. The lloilo Plant’s
Wastewater Discharge Permit was issued on February 21, 2024 after passing all the test parameters for Wastewater
Discharges and after submission of all relevant documents. The cost of the Laboratory Analysis fee amounted to
Seven Thousand Five Hundred Pesos (P7,500.00) and the fee for the permit for processing Waste Water Discharge
was Two Thousand One Hundred Twenty Three & 05/100 Pesos (P2,123.05). For the Davao plant, the Waste Water
Discharge permit was issued in January 2021 with validity coverage of 5 years. The cost of acquiring the permit was
Fourteen Thousand Forty Pesos (P14,040.00).



3. In view of the warehouse expansion projects, for its lloilo warehouse, the Company sought an Environmental
Compliance Certificate (ECC-EPRMP) from the EMB of the DENR Region 6 on August 15, 2018. Processing cost was
Ten Thousand Pesos (P10,000.00). Meanwhile, the Davao plants were issued an ECC for Expansion (incorporating the
2 existing ECCs of the Davao Feed Mill and the DSFC Feed Mill). The New ECC (#ECC-OL-R11-2020-0069) issued on
January 20, 2020 is still in effect and covers compliance with the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Waste Management
Act, and all other regulatory compliance legislation. Processing cost incurred was around Ten Thousand pesos
(P10,000.00). Furthermore, the Corporation’s Dressing Plant in Marilao, Bulacan, was issued an amended ECC on
November 8, 2021. The cost for the amendment of the ECC was Fifty-Two Thousand Thirty pesos (P52,030.00).

4. Regular Repair and Maintenance of all facilities, including attached pollution control facilities, ensure good
operating conditions and thereby prevent or control pollution coming from the plants.

5. Continuous Improvement of pollution control devices and/or equipment to meet regulatory standards.

6. Annual renewal of permits from DENR-EMB is secured. Cost varies for each plant ranging from One Thousand
Pesos (P1,000.00) to Ten Thousand Pesos (P10,000.00).

7. The Company acquired an additional permit to transport hazardous material (used oil) for the Davao plant at a cost
of One Thousand Forty Pesos (P1,040.00). VDAP Certificate for the production of veterinary products cost Six
Thousand Pesos (P6,000.00) and will be renewed in August 2024.

8. The Company had taken steps in 2023 to comply with RA 11898 or the Extended Producer Responsibility Act of
2022 and incurred costs amounting to at least Two Hundred Eighty Five Thousand One Hundred Twenty Pesos
(P100,000.00). It sought accreditation with Philippine Alliance for Recycling and Materials Sustainability. It had
already accredited a waste diverter in Davao in is now in the process of engaging a DENR-accredited third-party
auditor.

Manpower Complement

As of December 31, 2023, total headcount was 1,245 employees, including 672 regulars and 573 contractual
employees from reputable service provider. As of March 7, 2024, total headcount stood at 1,313 employees —
including 673 regular and 640 contractual workers.

The Federation of Free Workers - Vitarich Corporation Employees / Workers Union Chapter (FFW — VEWU) is the duly
authorized collective bargaining agent that represents all rank-and-file employees of the Corporation.

Pension Costs/Retirement Benefits

The Company maintains a partially funded, non-contributory post-employment defined benefit plan covering all of
its regular full-time employees. The defined benefit plan is being administered by a trustee bank which is responsible
for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy. The Company’s retirement
benefits are based on years of service and one and one-fourth (1-1/4) month’s salary for every year of continuous
service.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and changes in the life expectancy of qualified employees. The plan is not
exposed to significant concentrations of risk on the plan assets.

Actuarial valuations are made periodically to update the retirement liability and the amount of contributions. The
latest actuarial valuation of the plan is as of December 31, 2023.



Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial instruments consists of cash, trade and other receivables (excluding advances to officers and
employees), receivable from an insurance company, security deposits, trade and other payables (excluding statutory
payables), loans payable, lease liabilities and cash bond deposits.

It is the Company’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks arising from the
Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The BOD and its Audit, Risk
Oversight, and Related Party Transactions Committee reviews and approves policies for managing these risks as
summarized below.

Credit Risk

The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a counterparty to fulfill its financial commitments to
the Group under the prevailing contractual terms. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to credit
risk consist primarily of trade receivables and other financial assets at amortized cost. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets represent its maximum credit exposure.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to settle its obligations as they fall due.

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds through analyzing the maturity of its financial liabilities and cash
flows from operations. The Company monitors its cash position by a system of cash forecasting, wherein all expected
collections, check disbursements and other payments are determined on a timely basis to arrive at the projected cash

position to cover its obligations.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. The Company
addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from operations.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow interest rate risk) or its fair
value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s loans payable to local banks are subject to fixed interest rates and are exposed to fair value interest
rate risk. The re-pricing of these instruments is done on regular intervals. The Company regularly monitors interest
rate movements and on the basis of current and projected economic and monetary data, decides on the best
alternative to take. The Company likewise continuously negotiates with creditors to get a mutually beneficial interest
rate, which would benefit both the creditor and the Company. No sensitivity analysis is needed as management has
assessed that future interest rate changes are not expected to significantly affect the Company’s consolidated net
income.

Foreign Currency Risk

To a certain extent, the Company has an exposure to foreign currency risks as some of its raw materials purchases are
sourced outside the Philippines and are therefore denominated in foreign currencies. However, the Company has
not yet experienced significant losses due to the effect of foreign currency fluctuations because purchases
denominated in foreign currency are kept at a minimum.

Financial and Other Risks Relating to Livestock

The Company is exposed to various risks affecting the food industry such as food spoilage and contamination, thus, it
is regulated by environmental, health and food safety organizations. The Company has processes and systems in
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place to monitor food safety risks in all stages of manufacturing and processing to mitigate these risks. In addition,
the livestock industry is exposed to risks associated with supply and price volatility of its inventories and livestock.

To mitigate this risk, the Company regularly monitors the supply and price of commodities and enters into supply
agreements at a reasonable price.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Corporation operates and/or leases numerous production facilities, which include feed mills, dressing plants, and
hatcheries. As of December 31, 2023, these facilities include:

Condition Remarks
Feed Mill
Luzon Good Toll
Visayas Good Owned
Mindanao Good Owned
Dressing Plant
Luzon Good Owned
Visayas Good Toll
Mindanao Good Owned
Hatchery
Luzon Good Toll
Visayas Good Toll
Mindanao Good Toll

The Corporation will only consider a project that is critical to its continued operations and that will likewise generate
substantial cost savings and higher returns on investment.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In 2014, Vitarich filed a case against Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation (“Charter Ping An”) before the Regional
Trial Court (“RTC”) of Malolos City, Bulacan, to claim insurance proceeds of Three Hundred Sixteen Million Five
Hundred Sixty One Thousand, One Hundred Fifty Eight and 81/100 Pesos (P316,561,158.81) as indemnity for the
damages and losses suffered by the Corporation due to typhoon Ondoy in 2009. The case was docketed as Civil Case
No. 662-M-2014 and was raffled to Branch 15 of the RTC of Malolos City. Vitarich was partially paid the amount of
Fifty-Eight million pesos (P58M) in 2016 when the court granted Vitarich’s Motion for Summary Judgment concerning
the amount admitted by Charter Ping An.

On May 31, 2023, the court granted Vitarich’s claim and ordered Charter Ping An to pay Vitarich, among others, the
amount of Two Hundred Forty Seven Million Six Hundred Twenty Thousand Five Hundred Fifty Five Pesos
(P247,620,555.00), representing the actual loss of the insurance claim. On June 7, 2023, Charter Ping An appealed the
case to the Court of Appeals Manila. On June 14, 2023, the RTC of Bulacan issued an Order directing the records of
the case to be forwarded to the Court of Appeals, Manila City. Vitarich will file a Motion for Execution Pending Appeal
before the Court of Appeals.

Management and its legal counsel believe that the ongoing litigation on the remaining claims will not result in any
significant adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS



There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the calendar year covered by this report other
than those made during the Annual General Meeting of the Stockholders held on June 30, 2023. The results of the
AGM were disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange via the PSE Edge portal on June 30, 2023 and posted on the
Company’s website. A copy of the draft of the Minutes of the meeting is also posted on the Company’s website.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

The Company’s common equity is principally traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The high and low sales
prices for every quarter ended are:

2022 2023
High Low High Low
1st Quarter 0.61 0.61 0.64 0.61
2nd Quarter 0.6 0.59 0.63 0.6
3rd Quarter 0.57 0.51 0.57 0.54
4th Quarter 0.6 0.59 0.52 0.5

The closing price of the Corporation’s common shares as of the last trading date, December 31, 2023, was P0.60 per
share.

As of March 20, 2023, the latest trading date prior to the completion of this annual report, the price per share of the
common stock was P0.51/share.

No securities have been issued in connection with an acquisition, business combination, or other re-organization
within the last two fiscal years.



Holders

The Corporation has only one class of shares, i.e., common shares. The total number of stockholders as of December
31, 2023 was 4,113 with the total number of shares outstanding on that date of three billion fifty-four million three
hundred and thirty-four thousand and fourteen shares (3,054,334,014).

Dec 2023 Dec 2022
Number of Issued & Outstanding Shares 3,054,334,014 3,054,334,014
Number of Stockholders 4,103 4,113
Number of Shareholders owning at least one board lot each 3,102 3,111

The Company’s foreign equity ownership as of December 31, 2023, is:

No. of Shares % Ownership

Shares owned by Filipinos 2,955,903,884 97%
Shares owned by Foreigners 115,737,442 3%
Total 3,054,334,014 100%

The top 20 stockholders of the Corporation as of December 31, 2023:

Name of Stockholders Numberof Shares Percent_antal
Qutstanding Shares
Rank

1 PCDNOMIMEE CORPORATION (FILIPING) 2,936,638,752 86.15%
2  PCDMNOMINEE CORPORATIOMN (NOM-FILIFING) 47,593,630 3.20%
3 YAZAR CORPORATION 1,402,520 0.05%
4 JOSEM.SARMIENTO 1,205,320 0.0495
3 MALUZS. ROXAS 1,305,320 0.049
6 MAVICTORIAM. SARMIENTO 1,305,320 0.049
7 GLICERIA M. SARMIENTO 620,000 0.029%
8 MNELIACRUZ 927,850 0.029%
S ROGELIOM.SARMIENTO 280,000 0.01%
10 ANTOMIND 5. RAAGAS 270,000 0.01%
11 BETINAAMNGELIMNAL SARMIENTO 228,510 0.01%
12 NORBERTOT.HOFELEMA 220,778 0.019%
13 GLADYY.LAD 215,000 0.01%
14 BERMNADSECURITIES, INC. 203,000 0.01%
15  DANIEL ). ADVINCULA 200,000 0.01%
16 ORLAMDO P. CARVAJAL 185,000 0.01%
17 TERESITAY.SARMIENTO 164,000 0.01%
18 LOREMZO 5. SARMIENTO 141,134 0.00%
1% BIENVEMIDO LIM 140,000 0.009%
20 GEORGE CHUA 111,000 0.00%
COthers 11,155,880 0.37%
Total Shares Issued and Qutstanding 3,054,334,014 100%
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Dividends
The Corporation has not declared dividends since 1996.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

The Corporation has not sold unregistered or exempt securities within the past three (3) years. Neither has it issued
securities within the past three (3) years.

Description of Shares

The securities of the Company consist entirely of common stock with a par value of P0.38 per share. All shares are
equally eligible to receive dividends and repayment of capital and each share is entitled to one vote at the
shareholders’ meeting of the Company.

Item 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year 2023 compared to Fiscal Year 2022

The Company reported revenues of £12.5 billion in 2023, an increase of 4% year-over-year, with the following
highlights:

e Foods segment was the largest contributor to revenues at 56%, growing 11% from last year to £#6.9 billion.
There was continued momentum in the business with a 14% volume expansion led by demand in Luzon and
the Visayas. Pricing, however, was under pressure amid oversupply of chicken in the market.

e Feeds segment comprised 41% of revenues, which was down 1% versus the prior year to £5.1 billion. Pricing
climbed 16% while sales volume decreased 15%. This performance was due to multiple factors, including the
following: the continued gradual increase in selling prices which the Company implemented since 2022 in
response to high input cost inflation; the lower demand for hog feeds due to the continued spread of African
swine fever; and the depressed selling prices of chicken which dampened the demand for broiler feeds
among the commercial farms.

e Farms segment accounted for 3% of revenues, reflecting a 20% decrease to £424.4 million as a result of
overall market conditions. A fair value changes on biological assets amounting to a loss of #47.8 million was
recognized as part of revenues based on lower estimated selling price of chicken in the market.

Gross profit was #904.5 million, a 19% decline from the previous year, as cost of goods rose 6% to £#11.6 billion on
higher production costs. Gross margin decreased to 7% from 9%.

Net income was £13.3 million with earnings per share of #0.004 compared with #89.6 million and £0.029 in 2022
largely due to the decline in gross profit combined with higher operating expenses mainly from increased labor costs.

The Company is implementing efforts to strengthen a more resilient business model to deliver its long-term business
and financial goals. These initiatives include stronger marketing and brand support, capability investment, and
increased visibility in modern trade channels which are expected to drive top-line growth and gross margin
expansion.

Fiscal Year 2022 compared to Fiscal Year 2021
The Company achieved historic revenues of P12.0 billion, in 2022, an increase of 23% year-over-year, marking the first

time in the company’s 60-year history that annual revenues exceeded P10 billion. All business segments were
profitable with strong momentum in the Foods segment.
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Rocco Sarmiento, President and CEO, said, “2022 brought many challenges to families and businesses particularly as
inflation intensified and food prices rose by double digits. Despite this difficult environment, our team at VITA worked
tirelessly and delivered solid revenue growth and improved net income.”

Cost of goods accelerated 23% to P10.9 billion following higher sales volumes and input costs. Key raw materials
including wheat, soybean, and corn, which comprised about 70% of feed costs, soared an average of 25%. In addition,
price increases in fuel, energy, and labor exerted further pressure on handling costs and the return of some post-
pandemic operating costs, such as travel costs.

Gross profit grew 24% to P1.1 billion and operating profit increased 21% to P223.2 million. The impact of cost
inflation was partially offset by volume growth, pricing changes, and efficiencies.

Net income reached P129.0 million with earnings per share of P0.042, up 44% over the prior year.

Looking ahead, the company expects another year of strong revenue growth as well as better margins in 2023,
encouraged by an expansion in its sales channels and the positive reception of the recently launched value-added
products. At the same time, it remains alert in assessing the risks of persistent higher input costs and supply chain
disruptions.

Segment highlights
e Revenues from the Foods segment amounted to P6.2 billion, an all-time high on 48% growth, as the more robust
recovery in food services and restaurants lifted demand and the company’s value-added products that were unveiled in
November provided some additional support. Volume was up 22% led by demand in Luzon and Mindanao while
average prices increased 19%, reflecting significant cost inflation. The Foods segment comprised 52% of overall
revenues.

During the year, the segment widened its operations in various areas nationwide—in Luzon: Isabela and Bicol;
in Visayas: Samar and Leyte; in Mindanao: Zamboanga City, Bukidnon, Marawi, Sultan Kudarat, and
Saranggani. It also launched Cook’s Flavor Origins in November as part of its growth strategy at the retail
level. Product offering includes differentiated items such as French Roast, Mediterranean Roast, and South
African Roast.

e Feeds revenues grew 11% to P5.2 billion driven by pricing which increased 18% compared to the year-ago
period versus input costs of 23%. As expected, price actions had an unfavorable impact on volume which
declined 6%. The Feeds segment comprised 44% of revenues.

The segment made significant progress towards operational milestones by increasing the number of
distributors, megadealers, and retail feed outlets across Capiz, Aklan, and Central Negros over the course of
the year. It also began its multiyear campaign that will establish the brand as “The Specialist in Animal
Nutrition.” Another highlight of the year is the introduction of further initiatives that address sustainability
opportunities. This included the transition to reusable woven feed sacks from laminated bags in order to
manage its product design and lifecycle.

e Farms revenues were down 32% to P529.0 million due to the shortage of day-old chicks. A fair value
adjustments on biological assets amounting to P12.1 million was recognized as part of revenues and P1.1
million as part of cost of goods. The Farms segment comprised 4% of revenues.

Fiscal Year 2021 compared to Fiscal Year 2020
Vitarich Hits Record High Revenues of P9.7 billion in 2021

The Company reports an all-time revenue record of P9.7 billion, up 23% year-over-year driven by growth in all three
business segments.
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“2021 not only delivered new revenue records across segments, but also pointed to higher long-term volume
growth,” said Rocco Sarmiento, President and CEO. “Our strategy to expand our capabilities has been validated by
market trends toward rising consumption of meat products and convenience food. This formed the basis of our
recent capital investments in the business, and as a result, we have good revenue visibility going into 2022.”

Cost of goods increased 21% to P8.9 billion in relation to higher sales volume and prices of raw materials such as
wheat, soybean, and corn which rose by an average of 12% compared to the prior year. The cost inflation was due to
several factors, including logistics challenges due to COVID-19, reimposed series of quarantine measures in the third
quarter, as well as supply disruptions for soybeans in the fourth quarter due to high demand from China, increasing
domestic use in the U.S., and lower output from Brazil and Argentina.

Gross profit was P856.3 million, up 50% from a year ago, while operating income more than doubled to P184.0
million.

Operating expenses were maintained at 7% of revenues even as administrative and selling and distribution costs
increased to ensure current and future market competitiveness and to support marketing activities for the recently
launched Freshly Frozen line.

Net income was P89.4 million and earnings per share was P0.029, higher by nearly 10 times from P9.3 million and
P0.003 in 2020, respectively.

Capital expenditure totaled P117.7 million, primarily for the construction of a new warehouse in Davao and for
additional machinery and equipment in Bulacan, lloilo, and Davao to meet strong volume demand and to upgrade
bagging lines for automation.

Segment Highlights

e Revenues from the Feeds segment, which accounted for 48% of total sales, were up 14% to P4.7 billion with
volumes reaching the highest levels ever for tie-up and commercial customers, such as distributors and direct
farms. Sales volume climbed 12% while average selling prices inched up modestly by 3%. Earlier in the fourth
guarter, Vitarich Poultry Advantage was launched to address the needs of backyard and general poultry farmers.
The new product line attracted an initial user base of over 100 retailers and farms.

Annual feed mill capacity increased 3% to 300,200 MT in 2021 from 290,800 MT in 2020, while production grew
8% to 226,900 MT from 209,700 MT. As of December 31, 2021, utilization rate rose to 76% from 72%.

The Feeds segment produces and markets animal feeds, health and nutritional products, and supplements to
various distributors, dealers, and end users nationwide.

e Revenues from the Foods segment, which accounted for 44% of revenues, accelerated by 36% to P4.2 billion due
to a 21% increase in sales volume and 12% increase in average selling prices. During the year, the segment further
developed Cook’s portfolio by customizing Cook’s Premium Chicken products for hotels, restaurants, and
institutional (HRI) clients that now account for 55% of Foods’s revenue contribution up from 33% a year ago. In
addition, it also strengthened the branded retail business through Cook’s Freshly Frozen, which saw total volume
soar by 608%.

Annual dressing plant capacity increased 5% to 79,000 MT in 2021 from 75,500 MT in 2020, while production
expanded 21% to 35,700 MT from 29,500 MT. As of yearend 2021, the utilization rate reached 75% from 70%,

excluding dressing plant facilities owned by third parties.

The Foods segment sells chicken broilers, either as live or dressed, to HRI customers, supermarkets, and wet
markets.
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e Revenues from the Farms segment, which accounted for the remaining 8%, registered a 19% increase to P778.0
million. Fair value adjustments on biological assets amounting to P55.1 million was recognized as part of revenues
and P78.0 million as part of cost of goods.

The Farms segment is involved in the production, sales and distribution of day-old chicks.
Outlook

The Company continues to execute on the factors it can control, including new products, improved customer
satisfaction scores, enhanced processes, and engaged stakeholder relationships.

Looking ahead, management expects revenues to stay robust, but the ongoing challenges will temper the full impact
of sales growth on Company earnings. Supply chain headwinds will persist and pressure the costs of raw materials
and transportation. In view of these elevated input costs, we will continuously reconfigure our purchasing approach
and explore new grain and protein sources to reduce dependency on corn, wheat, and soybean meal. We are positive
that higher volumes, cost efficiency, and responsible price increases will help us meet our performance objectives
while ensuring that our products remain affordable.

PHP millions, except per share data

4Q 4Q 4Q

2021 2020 Change 2019 Change 2021 2020 Change 2019 Change
Revenues | 9,704.28 | 7,881.92 23% 8.918.47 9% 2,393.96 | 2,189.76 9% 2,958.85 -19%
Operating
income 183.99 79.01 133% 158.58 16% (78.32) 31.45 -349% 171.59 -146%
Net
income 89.44 9.29 863% 128.82 -31% (91.02) 5.68 -1701% 234.42 -139%
EPS 0.029 0.003 863% 0.042 -31% (0.030) 0.002 -1701% 0.077 -139%
EBITDA 249.66 222.49 12% 385.53 -35% (71.03) 58.27 -222% 327.60 -122%

Fiscal Year 2020 compared to Fiscal Year 2019

Consolidated sales of goods decreased by 9% to P7.7 billion in 2020 from P8.4 billion in 2019 mainly because of unfavorable
chicken prices in the market brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and the spread of African Swine Fever (ASF).

The Company recognized a fair value adjustment on biological assets of P199.5 million in 2020 from P479.6 million in 2019.

Sales of goods per business segment:

e  Foods sales dropped by 23% to P3.1 billion in 2020 from P4.0 billion in 2019 due to unfavorable selling prices of chicken
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic starting April 2020 and towards the end of the year.

®  Feeds revenues increased by 4% to P4.1 billion in 2020 from P3.9 billion in 2019, despite the pandemic and ASF, due to
strong sales in Visayas and Mindanao as well as higher sales from the Feeds Tie-up program in Luzon and some regions
of Mindanao.

e Farms segment sales edged down by 2% to P455.0 million in 2020 from P466.1 million in 2019 as the poultry industry
was badly affected by the unfavorable chicken prices related to the pandemic.

Cost of Goods Sold decreased 8% to P7.1 billion in 2020 from P7.7 billion in 2019 versus lower sales volume and lower raw
material costs. There was a fair value adjustment on biological assets of P184.4 million in 2020 from P471.4 million in 2019.

Gross profit for 2020 amounted to P571.8 million, lower by 20%, or P145 million, from P717.5 million in 2019. Lower gross
profits were mainly due to unfavorable selling prices for chicken brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and the closure of HRI
accounts.
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Operating expenses decreased by 9% to P536.8 million in 2020 from P588.3 million in 2019 thanks to operational efficiency and
cost reduction measures. Other operating income of P44 million in 2020 increased by 50% versus 2019 primarily due to rendered
tolling services.

Other charges, which includes interest expenses, decreased by 67% to P57.8 million in 2020 from P176.6 million in 2019 due to
lower tax settlements, interest expenses, and provisions for impairment losses on receivables. Other income recognized went
down by 97% to P4.2 million in 2020 from P160.7 million in 2019 because of lower gains on fair value changes of investment
properties.

Tax expenses increased by 16% to P16.1 million in 2020 from P13.9 million in 2019.

The Company posted Net Income of P9.3 million, despite being adversely affected by the pandemic and the spread of African
Swine Fever in Luzon. This was down P119.5 million or 93% compared to 2019 Net Income of P128.8 million. First quarter
performance provided ample buffer for net losses in the second and third quarters.

Fiscal Year 2019 compared to Fiscal Year 2018

Consolidated sales increased by 2% to P8.4 billion in 2019 from P8.3 billion in 2018, mainly because of favorable
chicken prices in the market during the second half of the year.

Sales by business segment are:

e Foods revenues increased to P4.0 billion in 2019 by 5% from P3.8 billion in 2018 on favorable selling prices of
chicken towards the second half of the year.

e Feeds top line sales stayed flat at P3.9 billion in 2019 and 2018. Several hog farm customers were affected by
African Swine Fever during the last quarter of the year, yet the Company was still able to sustain its whole
year sales.

e Farms segment sales fell by 18% to P466.1 million in 2019 from P570.1 million in 2018 as the poultry industry
was badly hit by unfavorable chicken prices during the first half of the year.

Cost of Goods Sold increased by 1% to P7.7 billion in 2019 from P7.6 billion in 2018 due to higher costs of raw
materials and day-old-chicks.

Gross profits for 2019 amounted to P717.5 million hiking up 17% or P106 million from P611.8 million in 2018.
Increased gross profits were mainly due to improved efficiencies in the poultry and feed operations plus favorable
chicken prices in the market during the second half of the year.

Operating expenses increased by 1% to P588.3 million in 2019 from P584.9 million in 2018 due to higher
administrative, selling and distribution expenses. Other operating income of P29.4 million in 2019 came down by 4%
versus 2018 primarily due to lower rental income.

Other charges increased by 190% to P220 million in 2019 from P76 million in 2018 due to higher tax settlements,
interest expenses, provisions for impairment losses on receivables, and one-time consultancy expenses. Other
income recognized was higher by 130% to P204 million in 2019 from P89 million in 2018 because of higher gains on
fair value changes of investment properties, gains on reversal of long-outstanding payables, and the recovery of
written-off accounts.

Tax expenses went up by 158% to P13.9 million in 2019 from P5.4 million in 2018.

For 2019, the Company posted Net Income of P128.8 million in 2019 which was 98% (P63.7 million) higher than 2018
of P65.2 million.
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Financial Condition

As at December 31, 2023, total assets were 5.2 billion, increasing #1.6 million from December 31, 2022. Current
assets declined 4% to 2.7 billion following the reduced advances to suppliers related to the importation of raw
materials. Non-current assets increased 5% to £2.5 billion primarily due to new machinery and equipment at the
Marilao dressing plant, additional transportation equipment, and the completion of the Davao warehouse.

Total liabilities were £3.3 billion, down #26.7 million from December 31, 2022. Current liabilities decreased 1% to
£3.0 billion as the Company managed to limit importation of raw materials which lowered short-term loans payable.
Non-current liabilities grew 3% to #289.1 million driven by additional retirement obligations recognized based on the
latest actuarial valuation and an additional credit line for planned vehicle acquisitions.

Stockholders’ equity stood at 1.9 billion.

Net cash provided by operating activities was #371.8 million in 2023, net cash used in investing activities was $#111.5
million, and net cash used in financing activities was #231.4 million.

The Corporation’s top five (5) key performance indicators are described as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Revenue (P Million):
Sale of goods 12,544 11,958 9,649
Fair value adjustment on biological assets (48) 11 (23)
Cost Contribution (P Million):
11,591 10,900 8,752
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit Rate (%) 7% 9% 9%
Operating Margin (P Million) 22 194 184

1) Sales Volumes, Price, and Revenue Growth

Consolidated revenue composed of feeds, day-old chicks, and chicken and animal health products sales including fair
value adjustment on biological assets, amounted to P12.5 billion, 4% higher than the previous year of P12.0 billion,
driven by increased sales volume of chicken and increase in feeds pricing.

2) Cost Contribution

This measures the cost efficiency of the products and trends of raw materials prices, particularly importations, which
involve foreign exchange exposure. Costs are analyzed on a regular basis to assist strategic management decision
making regarding cost reduction and efficiency measures.

3) Gross Profit Rate

Reviews are conducted on a regular basis to check if targets are being met based on the forecasted gross profit rate
and to ensure proper and immediate action can be taken.

4) Operating Margin
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Operating margin is profit after operating expenses are deducted. Reviews of operating expenses are performed on a
regular basis. These are analyzed and compared against the budget, previous month, and previous years to ensure
that cost reduction measures are being met and implemented.

5) Plant Capacity Utilization

This determines total usage of the plant capacity. The higher the plant utilization, the better the productivity, which
translates to better margins.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), or
other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting
period.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There is no known trend, or any demand, commitments, events, or uncertainties that will result in or that are
reasonably likely to result in the Corporation’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.

There are no known and/or anticipated events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that are
material to the Corporation, including any defaults or acceleration of an obligation.

Item 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of the Corporation for the year-ended December 31, 2023, including
the applicable schedules listed in the accompanying index to financial statements and supplementary schedules are
filed as part of this form 17-A. The Parent Audited Financial Statements for the year-ended December 31, 2023 is
likewise attached.

Item 8. INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS

External Audit Fees and Services

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The work of Reyes Tacandong & Co. consisted of an audit of the financial statements of the Company to enable them
to express an opinion on the fair presentation, in all material respects, of the Company’s statement of financial
position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. For the year 2023, audit fees amounted to P3.45 million,
exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses.

All Other Fees

For the year 2023, Vitarich engaged the services of Reyes Tacandong & Co. to do tax compliance review. The
consideration for such services is P 1.1 million, exclusive of vat and out-of-pocket expenses.

There were no other services obtained from the external auditor other than those mentioned above.
Prior to the engagement of the external auditor, the Audit, Risk Oversight and Related Party Transactions Committee
reviewed and confirmed the terms of engagement and the scope of services of the external auditor as endorsed by

the management of the Company. Its approval policies and procedures for external auditors are:

1. Statutory audit of the Company’s annual financial statements
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a. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee ensures that the services of the external
auditor conform with the provision of the company’s manual of corporate governance specifically
articles 2.3.4.1,2.3.4.3and 2.3.4.4

b. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee makes an assessment of the quality of the
prior year audit work services, scope, and deliverables and makes a determination of the
reasonableness of the audit fee based on the proposed audit plan for the current year.

2. For services other than annual F/S audit:

a. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee evaluates the necessity of the proposed
services presented by management taking into consideration the following:

i.  The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk management arrangements,
systems and procedures, and management’s degree of compliance
ii.  The effect and impact of new tax and accounting regulations and standards
iii.  Cost benefit of the proposed undertaking

b. The Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Committee approves and ensures that other services

provided by the external auditor shall not conflict with the functions of the external auditor for the
annual audit of its financial statements.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

For 2023, the Company’s independent public accountant was Reyes Tacandong & Co. The audit of the financial
statements of the Company was handled and certified by the engagement partner, Ms. Michelle R. Mendoza-Cruz.
The firm complied with the Revised SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3 (b) (iv) re: seven (7) years rotation requirement for the
external auditor.

Pursuant to SRC Rule 68.1 (Qualification and Reports of Independent Auditors), the Company engaged Reyes
Tacandong & Co. for the audit of the Company’s financial statements effective calendar year 2023. The engagement
of Reyes, Tacandong & Co. and the engagement partner was approved by the Board of Directors and the stockholders
of the Company.

There was no event in the last two fiscal years where the previous and current external auditors or previous and
current engagement partners had any disagreements regarding any matter relating to accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing scope or procedure. There were no disagreements with the
external auditor of the Company on any matter of accounting and financial disclosure.

PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Pursuant to the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation dated March 25, 2021, its Board of Directors has nine
(9) members, two (2) of whom are independent directors.

The directors of the Company are elected at the annual meeting of the stockholders to hold office for one (1) year
until the next succeeding annual meeting of the stockholders and until the respective successors have been elected
and qualified. Any vacancy shall be filled in accordance with the provisions of the Revised Corporation Code of the
Philippines.

Officers are elected by the newly elected Board of Directors at the organizational meeting held right after the annual
meeting of the stockholders. The Board also elects during its organizational meeting the chairman and members of
the Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Transactions Committee as well as the chairman and members of the
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Nominations, Remunerations, and Corporate Governance Committee. The officers shall be subject to removal at any
time by the Board of Directors, but all officers, unless removed, shall hold office for a term of one (1) year until their
successors are appointed. If any vacancy shall occur among the officers of the Corporation, such vacancy shall be
filled by the Board of Directors.

Directors and Officers

The following are the directors and officers of the Corporation for the term of one (1) year from June 30, 2023 or until
their successors shall have been elected and qualified:

Jose Vicente C. Bengzon lli, Filipino, 66 years old
Director/Chairman of the Board

Mr. Bengzon has been Vitarich’s Chairman of the Board of Directors since 2012. He has been the President & CEO of
Torres Trading Company, Inc. since January 2021 and an Independent Director of Upson International Corp. since
2022. He has been the Vice Chairman & Chairman of the Executive Committee of Commtrend Construction Corp.
since 2014; Director and Treasurer of Inception Technology Philippines Corp. since 2019; and Senior Adviser to the
Board of Malayan Bank since 2018. He was Director & Chairman of the Risk Management Committee of Rizal
Microbank from 2010 to 2020. He was a Consultant at SGV from 1982-1985 and Financial Planning and Projects
Manager for Reuters America from 1988 to 1990. From 1991 to 1996, he was with Dole Philippines and served in
various capacities as Assistant to the Country Manager, Manager in the Financial Planning Group, and Financial
Analyst. He was also an Entrepreneur of Westborough Food Corporation from 1993 to 2001. Mr. Bengzon was
Director of the Philippine Quality Awards Foundation from 1998 to 2011; on the Board of Trustees at the Philippine
Quality and Productivity Movement, Davao Chapter, from 1998 to 1999; on the Board of Trustees of the Davao City
Chamber of Commerce and Industry from 1999 to 2000; President of the Productivity Development Council in
Mindanao from 1999 to 2000; and President of Abarti Artworks Corporation from 2001 to 2004. In 2005, Mr. Bengzon
was the Chief Privatization Officer of the Department of Finance and Director of Panaro Minerals Phils. and the
Philippine Al Amanah Islamic Bank. He was President of the Duma Group of Companies from 2006 to 2011; President
of UPCC Holdings Corp until 2020; acting Chairman at the Philippine National Construction Corp. from 2012 to 2013
and its Board Member from 2005 to 2011; Director of Manila North Tollways Corp. from 2012 to 2013; Director of the
South Luzon Tollways Corp. from 2011 to 2012; an Independent Director of Bermaz Auto Phil's Inc. (2017); and
Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee of Century Peak Mining Corp. from 2016 to 2018. He is a Certified Public
Accountant and a graduate of De La Salle University having obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce and
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics in 1980 therefrom. He earned his Master of Business Administration at the J. L.
Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University in 1988.

Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento, Filipino, 47 years old
Director/President & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sarmiento is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitarich Corporation. He brings with him almost two
decades of hands-on experience with the company. He is responsible for the overall success of the organization with
primary responsibilities in setting corporate objectives and strategy, driving growth, and managing company
operations towards achievement of goals.

He began his career with the company in 2005 as the Acting General Manager of Gromax and, eventually, as its
General Manager. He later became its President in 2010. This was followed by his role as Vitarich’s Sales and
Marketing Director and his eventual promotion to Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer in 2012. He is
likewise the Treasurer of Precisione International Research and Diagnostic Laboratory, Inc., a position he has held
since 2008.

Mr. Sarmiento is an active member of the Rotary Club of Manila, Upsilon Sigma Phi, and the Young President’s
Organization (YPO Philippines Chapter). He has been a panelist in various business forums including the Philippine
Summit of The Asset and the Economic Forum of BusinessWorld. His team was recognized as the Executive
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Leadership Team of the Year and a Circle of Excellence Awardee at the Asia CEO Awards 2022. Mr. Sarmiento holds a
bachelor’s degree in tourism from the University of the Philippines, Diliman.

Stephanie Nicole M. Sarmiento-Garcia, Filipino, 44 years old
Director/Executive Vice-President, Chief Sustainability Officer (CS0)/Corporate Management Services
Director/Treasurer

Ms. Garcia is the Executive Vice President - Chief Sustainability Officer and Corporate Management Services Director
of Vitarich Corporation. She carries with her almost two decades of solid hands-on experience in the integrated feeds
and foods businesses of the company. In addition to her integral role in the corporation, Ms. Garcia also oversees the
external activities of Vitarich Corporation and manages its various partnerships with key stakeholders and the
government. She is likewise the President of Precisione International Research & Diagnostic Laboratory, Inc. Due to
her deep knowledge in the poultry and feeds business, she is recognized by the Philippine Department of Agriculture
as a technical resource person and is often invited to share her expertise with the government and private sector
groups. She is one of the leaders of Pilipinas Kontra Gutom - a national and multi-sectoral anti-hunger movement,
which aims to bring public and private organizations together on various programs with a common goal: 1 million
fewer hunger Filipinos by 2022. Ms. Garcia served as the President of the Philippine Association of Feed Millers, Inc.
(PAFMI) from February 2020 to February 2021. Prior to Vitarich, she was a Store Manager at Le Pain Quotidien, an
international chain of café-style restaurants, specializing in bakery items. Earlier on, she held a front desk position at
the Ritz Carlton Hotel in San Francisco. She holds a degree in International Hospitality Management from the Glion
Institute of Higher Education (formerly known as Glion Hotels School), a private, university-level Swiss hotel
management school in Switzerland. Ms. Garcia joined Vitarich in October 2003.

Rogelio M. Sarmiento, Filipino, 75 years old
Director

Mr. Sarmiento served the Corporation in different capacities as director (1982 to 1991; 2003 until April 29, 2021;
October 15, 2021 to present), President and Chief Executive Officer (2003 to June 24, 2016), and Chairman of the
Board of Directors (2003 to June 29, 2012). He was elected on October 15, 2021 as a director to fill in the vacancy
that resulted from the untimely demise of Mr. Jose M. Sarmiento. He was also the President of L.S. Sarmiento & Co.,
Inc., Sarmiento Industries, Inc., Fortuna Mariculture Corporation, and Sarphil Corporation from 1968 to 1981. He
obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration degree from the University of San Francisco and his
Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Santa Clara in the United States of America. He was
President of the Philippine Association of Feed Millers Inc. from 1990 to 1992 and Vice-President of the Philippine
Chamber of Commerce from 1988 to 1989. Formerly a member of the Interim Batasang Pambansa, he concurrently
served as Minister of State for Transportation and Communications. He also served as Deputy Director General of the
National Economic and Development Authority. He was a member of the House of Representatives representing the
First District of the Province of Davao del Norte from 1992 to 2001.

Benjamin I. Sarmiento, Jr., Filipino, 54 years old
Director

Mr. Sarmiento was elected as Vitarich’s Director in 1998. He is a graduate of the University of San Francisco with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Sarmiento Pacific Holdings and Equities
(formerly Pacific Equities, Inc.) from 1989 to the present. He is also a Director of the following companies: M3
Ventures International, Inc. since 1991, and Ultra-Seer, Inc., Hillsdale Marketing Inc., Specialized Products & Services,
Inc., Escotek, Inc., and Diversified Industrial Technology, Inc. since 2002. He is the Chief Executive Officer of
Sarmiento Pacific Agribusiness.

Lorenzo Vito M. Sarmiento, lll, Filipino, 49 years old
Director

Mr. Sarmiento was elected as director on June 29, 2012. He is also the President of Lockbox Storage, Inc. He was Co-
founder and Chief Operating Officer of Advanced Environmental Soil Solutions, Inc. He was President of Davito
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Holdings Corporation, President of Speed Space Systems, Chairman of Emphasys Process Corporation, Investor and
co-founder at South Super Sports, Team Manager under contract with the Philippine Football Federation, and
Creative Director of Speed HKG. He graduated in 1999 from the University of San Francisco with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Business Administration with emphasis on Marketing and International Business. He took up special
courses in International Studies at the Richmond College in London, England, and Network Engineering at Herald
College, San Francisco, USA.

Atty. Juan Arturo lluminado C. De Castro, J.S.D., LL.M., Filipino, 43 years old
Director

Atty. De Castro is a practicing lawyer with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines College of
Law, and is the first Filipino to obtain both a Doctorate in the Science of Law (J.5.D.) and a Master of Laws (LL.M.)
degree at the University of California Berkeley School of Law in the USA in 2011. He authored the book on Philippine
Energy Law (2012), which provides guidance for investing in the country’s electric power industry. He has extensive
experience in corporate rehabilitation, or Chapter 11, Bankruptcy, in the Philippines. He is also the managing partner
of the De Castro & Cagampang-De Castro Law Firm, a boutique law firm in Makati. Their law practice includes civil
and criminal litigation before various courts, appellate practice, real estate transactions, and cases before the
Sandiganbayan, among others. He is currently also an Assistant Professorial Lecturer at the De La Salle University
College of Law and a consultant at the Cybercrime Investigation and Coordinating Center (CICC).

Pierre Carlo C. Curay, Filipino, 45 years old
Independent Director

Mr. Curay was first elected as Independent Director on June 24, 2022. He has never been affiliated with the
Corporation prior to his nomination and election as Independent Director. He has been an entrepreneur for 23 years
to date and has 17 years of experience in Logistics and Supply Chain Management, in addition to being a technology
professional. He is a Co-Founder and has been the CEO of Insight and Supply Chain Solutions (InsightSCS) since March
2019, a technology logistics start-up. He is also the Director of XVC Logistics, a transport and freight forwarding
company serving multinational companies for their Philippine logistics needs. He concurrently serves different
organizations in various capacities — Former President and currently Vice President of the Supply Chain Management
Association of the Philippines; Co-Chair for Supply Chain Management of the Committee on Transport and Logistics of
the Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry (since February 2022); Technical Consultant for the Regulatory
Reform Support Program for National Development of the University of the Philippines Public Administration and
Extension Services Foundation, Inc. (since March 2020); Pioneer Mentor of ASEAN Mentorship for Entrepreneurs
Network (since November 2017); and Mentor for the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) and the Department of
Agriculture (DA) at GoNegosyo (since June 2016). Mr. Curay earned his Bachelor of Science degree in Management
Information Systems, Information Technology from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1999. He also attended the
Training Programs on Logistics Management for the Philippines and established the Logistics Qualifications System of
the Association of Overseas Technical Scholarships in Japan (2010-2012) and the Entrepreneurship Acceleration
Program at The Wharton School (2019).

Vicente Julian A. Sarza, Filipino, 71 years old
Independent Director

Mr. Sarza was first elected as Independent Director of the Corporation in 2016. He also serves as Independent
Director of HC Consumer Finance Phils, Inc. (Home Credit) and the AIB Money Market Mutual Fund, Inc. He was a
director and Chief Operating Officer of Mabuhay Capital until his retirement therefrom in 2020. However, he remains
a consultant of Mabuhay Capital. Prior to joining Mabuhay Capital, Mr. Sarza was Senior Vice President, Head of
institutional banking at Asia United Bank (AUB), a publicly listed company, which operates as a universal bank. Before
moving to AUB, Mr. Sarza was a Principal, Head of Advisory Services, in KPMG Philippines. He was responsible for the
significant expansion of market share and significant increase in recognition of KPMG Advisory as an advisory services
firm in key industries, such as financial institutions, energy, water, infrastructure, insurance and in government and
multilateral institutions. Over the years, Mr. Sarza's extensive experience included successful engagements as
Director to Chief Privatization Officer, rank of Undersecretary in the Privatization and Management Office (an agency
of the Department of Finance). Mr. Sarza was also a Director and Chairman of the Technical Committee on
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Privatization and Office for Special Concerns for the Department of Finance (Republic of the Philippines). Mr. Sarza
had various roles in the successful privatization of Maynilad, International School Manila, Philippine
Telecommunications Investment Corp., Energy Development Corp., and lloilo Airport. Mr. Sarza spent more than 25
years in banking, his stints spanning corporate, middle market, and consumer banking with added responsibilities in
his last 8 years through involvement in senior functions such as Mancom, Asset and Liabilities Management, and
Credit Committee duties, among others. Prior to the Department of Finance, Mr. Sarza spent a total of 14 years at
United Coconut Planters Bank (UCPB) and UCPB Savings Banks as Manager to First Vice President-Head of the
Commercial Credit Division and President and COO, respectively. Mr. Sarza holds an A.B. degree in Economics from
the Ateneo De Manila University.

Executive Officers

Atty. Aison Benedict C. Velasco, Filipino, 46 years old
Corporate Secretary

Atty. Velasco was first appointed as Corporate Secretary of the Corporation last April 26, 2019. He is presently a
Partner of the Angara Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz Law Office (ACCRALAW), the firm he joined in 2003. He
obtained his bachelor's degree from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1999 and his Juris Doctor law degree from
the same university in 2003 graduating with Second Honors. Presently, he acts as Corporate Secretary of several
companies, including AB Mauri Philippines, Inc., ELC Beauty, Inc., Smartmatic Philippines, Inc., UBS Securities
Philippines, Inc., UBS Investments Philippines, Inc., Grey Philippines, Inc., Shin Clark Power Holdings, Inc., Shin Clark
Power Corporation, Makesense, Inc., Commonssense Philippines, Inc. and other Philippine companies.

Atty. Mary Christine C. Dabu-Pepito, CCO, TCS, Filipino, 38 years old
Assistant Corporate Secretary/Compliance Officer/Corporate Information Officer

Atty. Dabu-Pepito was first appointed as the Corporation’s Assistant Corporate Secretary/Compliance
Officer/Corporate Information Officer on March 21, 2016. She obtained her Bachelor of Arts degree in Broadcast
Communication from the University of the Philippines-Diliman and graduated Cum Laude in 2006. She took up her
Bachelor of Laws degree at the San Beda University-Manila in 2011 and was admitted to the Bar on March 28, 2012.
She is a Partner at Dabu & Associates Law Office. Her areas of practice are litigation and corporate law. This includes
civil, family, criminal, commercial, administrative, employment, and labor law litigation as well as corporate and
commercial services, and corporate housekeeping. She is also one of the Corporation’s legal counsels. She is an
alumna of the 5th cohort of the Applied Sustainability Management in Asia Pacific (ASMAP 5) held on October 2019.
Organized by the Center for Social Responsibility of the University of Asia and the Pacific, ASMAP is an executive
training program for linking sustainability and business performance. She is a Certified Compliance Officer and
Certified Tax Compliance Specialist having completed and passed the qualifying examinations of the Certification
Course for Compliance Officers and Certification Course for Tax Compliance Specialist administered by the Center for
Global Best Practices on April 5, 2022 and September 22, 2023, respectively.

Other Executive Officers

Reynaldo D. Ortega, Filipino, 54 years old
Senior Vice President and General Manager Poultry, Feeds, and Foods Sales Division

Dr. Ortega is a Doctor of Veterinary Science and Medicine who obtained his degree at the Central Luzon State
University in 1992. He also earned his degree in Bachelor of Science in Animal Husbandry in the same University in
1990. He completed his master’s degree at the University of Asia and the Pacific in the Agribusiness Executive
Program in 2018. Dr. Ortega started as Production Supervisor at Purefoods Corporation in Sto. Tomas, Batangas, and
was later assigned as Veterinary Supervisor at Purefood's JMT office in Ortigas, Pasig. He joined Vitarich in 1994 as an
Extension Veterinarian and, since then has handled various positions as Veterinary Services Group Head, Contract
Growing Operations Head, Technical Head, and Poultry and Livestock Division Head, until his present appointment in
March 2018. His training includes Poultry Tunnel Ventilation Systems, Poultry Management in Cage Systems,
Immunology and Virology, and Artificial Insemination in Broiler Breeders. He attended various symposiums about
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Poultry production, processing, and marketing in the USA, Europe and Asia.

Alicia G. Danque, Filipino, 50 years old
Senior Vice President — Chief Supply Chain Officer/Alternate Corporate Information Officer

Hired in 1995, Ms. Danque handled various positions in the Company as Corporate Planning Manager, Chief of Staff,
and Assistant Vice President for Animal Health Care. She was appointed Vice President & Supply Chain Director on
January 1, 2020 to provide the overall direction for the supply chain and further improve productivity and efficiency
and reduce costs while securing high quality materials. On October 1, 2022, she was appointed to her present role.
Under her leadership and stewardship are procurement of raw materials and services, feed integrated planning, feed
milling, warehousing, logistics operations, and commercial feed sales. Ms. Danque is presently serving as a member
of the Board of Directors of the Philippine Association of Feed Millers, Inc. (PAFMI) and Auditor and head of its
Membership Committee. She is a graduate of Mapua University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial
Engineering and took postgraduate courses at the Philippine Women’s University and University of Asia and the
Pacific.

Ms. Ma. Diana Mascardo Cuna, 65 years old
Senior Vice President — Chief Human Resource Officer (SVP-CHRO)

Ms. Cuna was appointed to her current position on December 6, 2022. She is responsible for developing and
executing human resources strategy in support of the overall business plan and strategic direction of the
organization, specifically in the areas of succession planning, talent management, change management,
organizational and performance management, learning and development, talent acquisition and compensation. As
the CHRO she provides strategic leadership by articulating HR needs and plans to the leadership council.

Ms. Cuna was a management consultant in the areas of Human Resources and Corporate Risk Management, having
been a practicing professional for almost four decades. Prior to her appointment as SVP-CHRO, Ms. Cuna has been
the Corporation’s Executive Advisor/Human Resources and Organization Development (HR OD) since 2015.

Prior to Vitarich, Ms. Cuna provided HR consultancy to various local and international private companies such as San
Miguel Corporation, First Pacific / Maynilad Water Services, Inc., Ayala Land, Petron, Asian Institute of Management,
Luen-Thai International (China/HK/Philippines), as well as local government institutions such as the Bureau of
Customs, Commission on Elections, Civil Service Commission, NEDA, and the Department of Trade and Industry. She
was the VP and HR/Communications Director for San Miguel Corporation, HR expert for USAID programs and for
European Union (EU) Commission programs from 2003 to 2015. She earned both her Master’s degree in Counseling
and Bachelor of Science degree in Biology/FLCD from the University of the Philippines, earned units in Doctor’s of
Philosophy in Educational Psychology from the University of the Philippines and completed her Organization
Behaviour program from INSEAD (Singapore).

Elaine C. Nantes, Filipino, 60 years old
Vice President & Corporate Quality and Technical Services Director

Ms. Nantes has more than 30 years of managerial experience in the food industry particularly in the aspects of Food
Processing, Production, Engineering, Quality, and Food Safety Management. She was previously employed as Value-
Added Operations Manager, Food Safety, Plant Manager, and Project Manager and has managed business
relationships in a third-party tolling plant operation set-up. She was known as “the Food Safety Guru” of San Miguel
Pure Foods, Co. She was responsible for establishing and championing quality and food safety, making sure
guidelines, requirements, and known regulatory and voluntary food safety standards were followed by the company-
owned manufacturing facilities and its third party-owned food plants. She was also responsible for ensuring that
quality systems for the safety and suitability of food products will be established, implemented, controlled, and
updated. Under her management, 43 food facilities were GMP and HACCP certified with over 80 food products
receiving HACCP certification: 6 food plants with ISO 22000 and ISO 9001 certifications. She is the prime mover in
decreasing the cost of non-conformities through quality and productivity initiatives while employed and serving as a
consultant to her clients in the food industry. In 2005, she served as the Chairperson for the National Meat Advisory
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Council of the Department of Agriculture National Meat Inspection Service (Philippines). She was awarded by her
alma mater, the University of Santos Tomas, the Albertus Magnus Award of the College of Science for alumna who
excelled in their chosen field of expertise: Microbiology.

Emmanuel S. Manalang, Filipino, 59 years old
Vice President & Nutrition and Research & Development Manager

Dr. Emmanuel S. Manalang was appointed Vice President & Nutrition and Research & Development Manager on
August 1, 2019. He is a graduate of Veterinary Medicine from the University of the Philippines in 1985. He started his
career in Animal Nutrition working for ER Squibb and Sons Philippines as a Vitamin Mineral Specialist. He developed
his skills by enriching his experience working with Ciba Geigy Philippines, and Ajinomoto, Amino Acid Department as
a Technical Manager. He has been an Animal Nutritionist/Nutrition consultant for many commercial feed mills and
farm operations nationwide since 1989. Dr. Manalang has a vast experience in the field of Swine and Poultry
Nutrition, Aqua Nutrition and Pet Nutrition. He is also engaged in exotic bird breeding and management.

Carmencita S. Policarpio, Filipino, 60 years old
Vice President & Director, Corporate Technical Services Directorate (Facilities & Project Management)

Ms. Policarpio is a Licensed Chemical Engineer and has been in the manufacturing industry for more than 30 years.
On Sept. 25, 2021, Engr. Policarpio was conferred & included in the roster of ASEAN Engineering Register (AER) as
ASEAN Engineer. This is under the AER Commission of the ASEAN Federation of Engineering Organizations (AFEQ)
among ASEAN countries. On the following year, March 27, 2022, she also received the highest level in the Chemical
Engineering Profession as Internationally Recognized Chemical Engineer under PIChE (Philippine Institute of Chemical
Engineers) Chemical Engineer Registry.

She has extensive work experience in developing and implementing effective quality control processes, quality
management, laboratory, and production/plant management. She has been with the Corporation since 10 October
2016 and as such, has been assigned in the Corporation’s feed mill plants, poultry dressing operations, commercial
laboratory management, and Facility/Project management. She has attended several trainings and conventions in
Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia. Throughout her leadership, the corporation’s feed mill plants
experienced significant advancements in food safety. They successfully implemented and transitioned to ISO
22000:2018 Food Safety Management System, which was granted by Certification International, Philippines. This
accomplishment ensures a higher level of food safety for consumers. Moreover, the corporation received the HACCP
(Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point) certification from NQA, a globally recognized Testing, Inspection, and
Certification (TIC) provider, accredited by UKAS (United Kingdom Accreditation Service). This certification was
awarded to their poultry dressing plant. Furthermore, the company obtained Halal Registration Certificate and Halal
Dressing Plant Accreditation, showcasing their dedication to maintaining a secure and safe food production process
for its poultry dressing plant, further demonstrating their commitment to maintaining a safe and secure food
production process. Engr. Policarpio is presently serving as Auditor & Technical Committee Head of the Philippine
Institute of Chemical Engineers - CAMANAVA Chapter. Prior to joining the Corporation, she worked as Plant Manager
of Secret Recipes Foods Corp. (Subsidiary of Robinson's Group of Companies), Assistant Manufacturing Manager of
Plastic Container Packaging Corp, a food packaging company, and QA Manager then promoted to Plant Manager of
Vassar Industries Inc. (Food Packaging company).

On July 1, 2023, Engr. Policarpio successfully finished her master’s degree in food safety management from the
School of Food Science and Technology at the Philippine Women’s University. She graduated with outstanding
academic performance, receiving an Excellent grade for her Food Safety Management Case Study Defense. This
achievement showcases her dedication and expertise in the field of food safety.
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Dilbert D. Tan, Filipino, 43 years old
Vice President and Finance Operations Director

Mr. Tan was first appointed on July 11, 2022. He is responsible for the management of the corporation’s
financial processes and risks. Mr. Tan has almost 20 years of career experience, mostly in the banking and
financial services industry as well as technology software and services. He led operations and support services
for corporate loans, trade finance, fund transfer, treasury operations, and asset management for JP Morgan
Chase Manila Corporate Center (May 2019 to July 2022), East West Banking Corporation (August 2016 to
December 2018), and Deutsche Knowledge Services (January 2006 to September 2008). He has spearheaded
system migration and business process transformation initiatives to upgrade efficiency, quality, and controls. He
developed and implemented financial risk management policies for risk assessment, measurement, monitoring,
and mitigation. In FIS (formerly SunGard Financial Systems) [November 2009 to August 2016], he managed
corporate liquidity client services, market intelligence, and demand generation. Mr. Tan is a graduate of Ateneo
de Manila University with a Bachelor of Science degree Major in Management and Minor in Finance.

Xerxes Noel O. Ordanez, Filipino, 40 years old
Corporate Audit Manager

Mr. Ordanez serves as the Corporate Audit Manager of Vitarich since January 24, 2023. He has over 16 years of audit
and finance experience with exposure to hospitality, healthcare, manufacturing, sugar milling, banking, water
utilities, and shared services industries. He has covered reviews of major business process such as IT General
Controls, Revenue & Collection, Procure-to-Pay, Payroll, Construction Project Management and Operations &
Maintenance.

He completed his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Accountancy in 2006 at the University of the
Philippines-Diliman and passed the CPA licensure exam in the same year. He completed his MBA degree in the same
university in 2018. He holds various audit-related certifications as Certified Internal Auditor (CIA), Certified
Information Systems Auditor (CISA), and Certified in Risk and Information Systems and Controls (CRISC).

He started his career in SGV & Co as an IT Auditor under IT Audit and Advisory Services. Prior to joining Vitarich
Corporation, he worked for a major water utility company for 13 years heading the Internal Audit Department and,
subsequently, heading the Controllership & Analysis Department.

Carina Lourdes M. Fabian, Filipino, 51 years old
Vice President — Special Projects Director

Ms. Fabian was first appointed on January 2, 2024. She is a customer development professional with more than 2
decades of experience in growing multinational & family-owned corporations. Prior to her appointment with the
Company, she was National Sales Manager — Non-Traditional Channel at Century Pacific Food, Inc. for 5 years. Her
vast experience includes her employment stint with Pure Foods Corporation, San Miguel Corporation, and Digitel
Mobile Philippines, Inc., among other companies. She is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
at University of the Philippines, Diliman.

Marie Angelie Bautista-Macatual, Filipino, 45 years old (Resigned effective February 28, 2024)
Vice President — Marketing and Business Development Director

Ms. Macatual was appointed on February 20, 2023. She has more than 20 years of extensive experience in
Marketing, Commercial Excellence, Project Management, Business Development and Cross-functional Leadership in
both B2B/B2C and regional/global environments. She has specializations in End-to-End Consumer & Product
Marketing, Brand Building, Cross-Market Research/ Data Analysis & Strategy Development - her previous roles
include Regional Marketing Director/ Business Development Head (Globe Telecom), Strategic Marketing &
Technology Director (Cargill ANH), Global Consultant for Strategic Marketing, Insights & Innovation (International
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Marketing Consultancy), and Global Marketing Director for Strategy & Innovations / APAC Segment Marketing
Director (Koninklijke Philips N.V.) Ms. Macatual is a graduate of the University of the Philippines, Diliman, with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Communications.

Significant Employees

The Corporation treats the contributions and services rendered of each employee as significant no matter how small
the contributions or the work performed are.

Family Relationships

Director Rogelio M. Sarmiento is the father of Directors Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento and Stephanie Nicole S. Garcia.

Directors Benjamin |. Sarmiento Jr. and Lorenzo Vito M. Sarmiento IIl are the cousins of Directors Ricardo Manuel M.
Sarmiento and Stephanie Nicole S. Garcia.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company has no knowledge of any event during the past five (5) years up to the latest filing date, where any of
its directors or executive officers had been or are currently involved in any criminal or bankruptcy proceedings or
subject of any order or judgment of any court or quasi-judicial agency, whether local or foreign, effecting his/her
involvement in business, securities, commodities or banking activities.

Item 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Standard Arrangement

The members of the Board of Directors are entitled to a per diem of P10,000.00 for regular meetings whereas the
members of the Audit, Risk Oversight, and Related Party Transactions Committee, and Nominations, Remunerations
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee are entitled to a per diem of P5,000.00 for every meeting
participation.

Arrangements with Directors & Officers

The Company does not extend or grant warrants or options to its executive officers and directors. Thus, it has no
obligation to disclose information pertaining to warrants and options. The market value of the shares of stock, if any,
received by the Company’s executives and officers approximate the compensation that they should have received
had the payment been made in other form of consideration at the grant date.

Executive Compensation

The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

2023 2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits B54,914,416 P55,480,527 P35,561,950
Retirement benefits 5,238,557 5,010,571 5,872,830
Other employee benefits 19,521,032 17,133,565 10,784,789

P79,674,005 P77,624,663 P52,219,569
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The aggregate compensation including other remunerations during the last two fiscal years, as well as those
estimated to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year to the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer and Officers is as follows:

(in millions of Pesos)

Bonus
NAME & PRINCIPAL POSITION YEAR | SALARY &
Others
. 2023
1. RICARDO MANUEL M. SARMIENTO — CEO/President
2. STEPHANIE NICOLE S. GARCIA- EVP, CSO/CMS Director 2023
/Treasurer
3. REYNALDO D. ORTEGA — SVP & GM Poultry, Feeds & Foods 2023
Sales Division
4. ALICIA G. DANQUE — SVP & Chief Supply Chain Officer/ 2023
Alternate Corporate Information Officer
5. DILBERT D. TAN - VP & Finance Operations Director 2023
TOTAL (Estimated) 2024 22.07 -
2023 23.58 -
2022 19.91 -
ALL OTHER OFFICERS & DIRECTORS AS A COMPANY UNNAMED 2024 3.09 -
(Estimated)
2023 2.60 -
2022 3.17 -

The following are the five highest compensated officers of the Company:

Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento — CEO/President
Stephanie Nicole S. Garcia — EVP & CSO/CMS Director/ Treasurer

vk wnN e

Dilbert D. Tan - VP & Finance Operations Director

Reynaldo D. Ortega — SVP & GM, Poultry, Feeds, & Foods Sales Division
Alicia G. Danque — SVP — Chief Supply Chain Officer/ Alternate Corporate Information Officer

Item 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

The following are the owners of record and beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Corporation’s voting securities

as of December 31, 2023 are as follows:
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Security Ownership of Management

The number of common shares beneficially owned by directors and executive officers as of December 31, 2023 is as

follows:
Title of Class Name of Beneficial Owner Amm.J n.t& Nature D_f Citizenship Percent of Class
Beneficial Ownership
Common Jose Vicente C. Bengzon Il 10,000 Filipino 0.00%
Common Ricardo Manuel M. Sarmiento 99,240,550 Filipino 1.81%
Common Stephanie Micole 5. Garcia 104,355 Filipino 0.00%
Common Rogelio M. Sarmiento 6,386,320 Filipino 0.21%
Common Benjamin |. Sarmiento Jr. 155 Filipino 0.00%
Common Lorenzo Vito M. Sarmiento [ 200 Filipino 0.00%
Common Vicente Julian A. Sarza 1 Filipino 0.00%
Common Fierre Carlo C. Curay 1 Filipino 0.00%
Common Juan Arturo lluminado C. de Castro 15,565,034 Filipino 0.65%
Common Atty. Aison Benedict C. Velasco 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Atty. Mary Christine Dabu-Pepito 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Reynaldo D. Ortega 1,215,574 Filipino 0.04%
Common Emmanuel 5. Manalang 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Alicia G. Danque 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Elaine C. Nantes 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Carmencita 5. Policarpio 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Dilbert D. Tan 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Ma. Diana M. Cuna 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Marie Angelie Bautista-Macatual 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common Xerxes Noel 0. Ordanez 0 Filipino 0.00%

Item 12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group, in its regular conduct of business, has transactions with its related parties. The following tables summarize the transactions
with the related parties and outstanding balance arising from these transactions.

28




Nature of

Related Parties

Note Transaction

Amount of Transactions

Outstanding Balance

2023 2022 2023

2022

Trade and other
receivables 6
Entities under common

control Sales
Collections

P623,194,605 PR509,194,217
(698,063,967) (553,596,333) PR143,528,241

R218,397,603

Trade and other payables 14
Entities under common

=)

control Purchases P745,005,211 1,097,925,538
Payments (745,431,091) (1,183,299,952) P3,907,536 P4,333,416
Advances to officers 6 Advances - net of
collections P4,199,062 P6,589,468 P23,202,566 P19,003,504

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group sells animal feeds, raw materials, feed supplements and dressed chicken to related parties,

which are due within 90 days and are noninterest-bearing. Outstanding balances of trade and other
receivables from related parties are unsecured and to be settled in cash. No allowance for ECL on trade and

other receivables from related parties was recognized as at December 31, 2023, and 2022 (see Note 6).

Trade and Other Payables

The Group buys raw materials and breeder flocks from related parties. These are noninterest-bearing,

generally on a 90-day credit term, unsecured and to be settled in cash (see Note 14).

Advances to Officers

The Group grants unsecured, noninterest-bearing advances to its officers which are normally collected
within one year through salary deduction. The allowance for ECL on advances to officers as at December

31, 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in Note 6.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The compensation of key management personnel are as follows:

2023 2022 2021

Short-term employee benefits P54,914,416 P55,480,527 P35,561,950
Retirement benefits 5,238,557 5,010,571 5,872,830
Other employee benefits 19,521,032 17,133,565 10,784,789
P79,674,005 P77,624,663 P52,219,569

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of its common shares under a voting trust or similar
agreement as there has been no voting trust agreement which has been filed with the Company and the Securities
and Exchange Commission, as required under the Corporation Code.

Description of any arrangement which may result in a change in control of the Corporation

There are no arrangements that will affect or change ownership.
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PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Item 13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company complies and adheres to its Amended Manual on Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors met at
least once a month to oversee the Company’s operations and to assist in further improving operational efficiencies.
The Board of Directors and the management, from time to time, make the necessary amendments to its policies and
strategies to ensure business continuity while employing the best practices in corporate governance. The members of
the Board of Directors disclose any potential or actual conflict of interest they may have in a transaction presented
for approval of the Board. They likewise inhibit from the discussions and voting of the said transaction. The Company
continues to improve its corporate governance practices. For the year 2023, the Company appointed its Corporate
Audit Manager, Mr. Xerxes Noel O. Ordanez, to take on the duties and functions of a Chief Audit Executive. Mr.
Ordanez conducted audits on the Company’s operations and processes to aid the management and the Board of
Directors improve the Company’s operations and processes while strengthening internal controls to minimize and
manage risks. Quarterly reports were made to apprise the Board of any audit findings and the measures done to
address any gap that may have been seen during the audit conducted. In addition, in order to strengthen its
compliance with tax laws and regulations and minimize, if not eliminate, legal risks, as disclosed above, the Company
engaged RTCo. to review the Company’s tax compliance for the calendar year 2023. In line with UN Sustainable
Development Goal 8 (Decent Work and Economic Growth), the Company strengthened its engagements with its
employees, business partners, and customers.
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PART V — EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Item 14. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

(a)

Exhibits

The exhibits, as indicated in the Index to Exhibits, are neither applicable to the Company nor require an answer.

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following are the items reported under SEC Form 17-C for the year 2023:

Date of Report
Pl B )
Pl R |
AE AT
AREI 0410
2023 04,19
POF3 05,12
P023.05.72
2023.06.01
2023 06.30
P0F3.06.30

Remarks
Appointmant of M, Xames Moed 0. Cedanez as Corporaie sudit Managar
Appaintmant of Ravas Tacandang & Ca. as External Auditor
Appaintmant of Ms_ Mane Angedie Bavtisia-Macaiual as Vice Premdent - Marketing and Busnass Deswlopment Diracior
Prass Release VITA sets histonc raverua racord of P12 bdion
Hotce of Arrual Gereral Mesting 3023
Prazs Refease: Vikandn 10 2023 netincome up 65%
Armecded Ralioe of Annual General Mesting 2023
Lizl af Stackhokders erfited o vale as of record date
iaterial FRelkaled Parly Trarss ol on with LA
Re=suks ol AGM and Crpanzatanal Mesling 2023
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESFONSIBILITY
FOR COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Vitarich Corporation and Subsidiaries (the Group) Is responsibie for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached therein for the years
ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, in accardance with the prescribed financial reporting framework
ndicated therein, and for such nterpal control as: management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

In preparing the firancial statéments; management is resparisible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
#5 8 going concern, distlosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
ef accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Graup or to cease operations, or has no realistic
aliernative but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

The Beard of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial staternents including the schedules
attached therein and submits the same to the steckholders

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appainted by the stockholders, has audited the consalidated
financial statemants of the Group in accordance with Phillppine Standards an Auditing, and In its repart to the
stockholders; has expressed (ks opinion on the falrness of presentation upon completion of such audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Witarich Corporation and Subshdiaries
Marilao - 5an Jose Road, 5t4. Rosa

Marilac;, Bulzcan

Cpinion

We have audited the accompanylng consolidated financial® statements of Vitarich Corporation and
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the mn;phdaae:l staterment of financial position as at
December 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
af changes in. equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and nates to
consolidated financal statements, including 3 summary of material accounting policy Information.

In gur opinion, the corsolidated financial statements present fairly, In all materlal respecis, the
ronsolidated financial position of the Group as at Becember 31, 2023, and its consalidated financial
perfarmance: and It consofidated cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with'
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PERS).

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with Phifippine Standards on Auditing {PSAJ. Our respansibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities jar the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of pur report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics fer Professional Accountants In the Philippines {Gudi of E'Hqin;]
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audlt of the. cpﬂm"ﬂaf&d ﬂmn:iull
statements in the Philippines, 2nd we have fulfilled our other ethic nsibilities in accorda
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We b-ellwe that l:ﬁa Lt Eﬂ&eﬁc& hﬁﬁhﬁniﬁ
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.. g

=

Key Audit Matters




REYES T&E;‘\NDDNG & Co.

PRVHEIPLES. WISE BOLLTICNS
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We obtained an understanding of the Group's assessment an the recoverablifty of the recelvable and
the estimation of the related ECL, We reviewed the status of the legal proceedings and abtained
management's estimates of the amount-and timing of the future cash inflows arising from the
recoverability of the claims. We evaluated management's assessment based on the results of our
correspondences with the Group's external legal counsel and reviewed the appropriateness of
diselosures in the notes to consolidated financial statements.

Fair Valuatian of Biological Assets

The Group's biological assets, which are measured at falr value |ess costs 1o sell, amounted to
#1394 million as at December 31, 2023, The Group recognized loss on the fair value changes of
binlogical assets amounting to P47.8 million in 2023 {see Note 8]

The assessment of the fair valuation of biological asset is significant to our audit because of the
complexity of the undedying methodoiogles and processes in determining fair value. We focused qur
audit on the management's determination of the fair value because the process involves significant
management judgment and estimates when selecting the appropriate valuation techniques and Inputs
used.

We obtained an understanding of the methodologies and ‘processes developed by management. in
measuring falr value of the biological assets, We reviewed the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the Group's biological assets by testing the key
assumnptions for the falr valus measurement such as future selling prices and growing costs, hatchability
and moratity rates and estmated volume of production, among others, on a sample basis. We also
reviewed the appropriateness of management's disclosures in the notes 1o consolidated financial
stakemienLs.

valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment 3t Revalued Amounts

As at December 31, 2023, the Group's property, plant and equipment {excluding transportation
equipment and construction in-progress) which are accounted for using the fuation f
amounted to B1,949.5 million {see Note 11). The fair value measurement is slgnificant ta our.

the property, plant and equipment carried at revaluad amaounts account for 37.3% of the
assets a5 at December 31, 2023, :

We facused our audit on the management's determination of the revalued amou '
and equipment because the process involves significant management judgment i
appropriate valustion technlques and Inputs used to determine revalued amounts:

We have assessed the independence and competancy of the appraiser engaged by the
alsa reviewed the reasonableness of the assimptions used to estimate the revaly
proparty, plant and equipment on a sample basis by i1) testing land's valu ﬁ;ﬁ; -
similar properties in the vicimity, (2] testing reproduction costs ‘against eurr ,

{3) werilying valuation inputs such as published market data, as applica !
reasonably appropriate, '

TRER O IMTT Al AL EVERUE
CRRGE LA ERS SEHVICE
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Cther Informotion

Management |s responsible for the other information, The other informatian compsises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for
the year ended December 31, 2023, but does not include the consclidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon, The SEC Form 20-15 |Definitive information Statement], SEC Farm 17-4 and
Anntal Report for the year ended December 31, 2023 are expected to'be made availabie to-us after the
date of this auditors” repor

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other infdrmation and we will
ot Bxpross any form of assurance conclusian thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our respansibllity is to read the
ather infarmation identified above when it beeomes avajlable and, n doing so, consider whether the
ather information s materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledgs
phtained in the audit or otherwlse appears to be materially misstated.

Cther Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as-at and for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021 were audited by another auditor whase report dated April 1, 2023 sxprassed an unmaodified
opinion on those consolidated financial statemyents.

As part of our audit of the consolidated financlal stalements as at and far the year ended December 31,

2023, we also audited the adjustments described in Note 4 that were applied to restate the
cansolidated financial statements a5 at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, In our
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. w-u were niot engaaed’ o
audit, review, ar apply any procedure 1o the Group's consolidated financial statements a5 at anﬂ fnr the
years ended December 31, 2022 apd 2021 other than with respect 1o the adiuslmentsand a:u:lrdrng‘:f
we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the consolidated financlal statements
as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2001 taken as a whale,

Stotements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presenmbn of |
statements In accordance with PFHS and for such nternal mntml i:rr

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consalidated financial statements, management is responsible.
abifity to continue as a going cancam, disclosing. as applicable, matters relitﬁ&
using the golng concern basis of accounting unless management either intends.
to ceasa pperations, or has no realistic alternative bul.ta do'so,

Those charged with governance are respansible for overseging the Group's fin
FITHEAL OF b [ s, REVENUE
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Consolidated Financial Stotements

Our objectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financlal statements
as @ whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors
report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement
when It sxists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
oF In the aggregate, these could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisians of users
taken on the hasis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of 2n audit In accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment anel maintain professional
skepticism throughout the andit. We also!

s jdentify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the consalidated financial statements,
\Wwhether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obitaln audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 3 basis for our opinton. The risk
of nat detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fram
arrar, as fravd may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mizreprésentations, or the
owverride of internal cantrol,

» Obtaln an understanding of internal contral refevant to the audit n order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinian on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

=  Eyaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. |

=  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going cancern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related tc Events
ar conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as:  conc f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to. draw ath “our
report 1o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusians are based on the aud
the date of our auditors' repart. However, future events or conditions ma
to continue &5 & going concer. T

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated fi

ineluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial stat
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr tle

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit svidence regarding the financial
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
e are responsible for the direction, supervisian and performan
solely responsibie for our audit cplnion,
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, tI'TE P{'"“ﬁ
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with these charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of maost significance In the audit of the consolidated finapcial statements of the current period aﬂl:_l
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosture about the mattér or when, in extremely rare Circumstances, we
detarmine that a matter should nat be communicated in our report because the adverse consequeEnces

of doing ‘so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communicaticn,

The engsgement partner on the ‘audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Michalle R. Mendoza-Cruz,

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

M!CHEI.LE H%‘im%
Partner

CPA Certificate Mo, ST380
Tax Identification Mo, 201-892-183-000
AOA Accreditation No. 4782; Vald until Apeil 13, 32024 .
BER Accreditation Mo, 0B-005104-012-2023

Walid urtit lanuary 24, 3026
PTR bo. 10072413

hisued landagy 2, 2028, Makati Clty

March 21, 2024
Makatl City, Metro Manila




VITARICH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

(With Comparative Figures as at December 31, 2022)

December 31
2022
[as restated -
Note 2023 Note 4)
BSSETS
Current Assels
Cash 5 P398,265,061 #369,416,726
Trade and other receivables & 949,557,779 B82,943,523
Inventories 7 934 £34,088 863,367 449
Hinlogical assets - vestock | 125,354,759 116,118,755
Advances 1o suppliers 123 918,753 466,876,004
Other curFent asseLy g 223,862,219 156,311,704
Total Current Assets 2,750,032,659 2,855,034,161
Honcurrent Assets
Recelvable from an nsurance company 10 70,203,810 70,203,810
Property, plant and equipmeant; 11
At revaived amounts 1,949,466,138 1,842,877 062
At cost 45,592,722 126,644,633
Investment properties 12 301,346,351 F3R.473,942
Right-of-use assets 4 B2,437,724 55_,521615
other noncurrentassets 13 23,416,664 33115321
Tatal Nareurrent Assets 2AT2 463400 365 EA1 284
P5,222,406,068  F5,230,575,445
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Currant Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14
Current portion of:
Loans payable 15
Leace lzbilities’ 24
Cash bord deposits 6
Toral Current Liabilitles
Nencurrent Llabliitles
Leans payakle - net of current portion 15
Lease [Ebilithes - net of current parthon 24
Met retirament lability 3
Net deferred tax liabilities s
Tetal Moncurrent Liabllities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Capital stock 1r
Additional paid-In capital
Fetained earnings
Oither comprehensive (ncome
Total Equity
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR E‘ID-ED DECEMBER 31, 2023
{with Comparative Figures for 2022 and 2021}

Years Ended December 31

2022
|As restated -
Note 2023 Noted) 2021
REVENUES
Net szle of goods 1R W12,543,698,175 F11,957.515851 F9,649,161,808
Falr value changes on biologicel assets B (47,773,579) 10,536,438 [22/854,221)
12,495,914,596  11,968.452,789 g 525,307,587
COST OF GOODS S0LD i3 (11,591.440,968) (10,899,643,424) (8.752485,623)
GROSS PROFIT 504,473,628 1,068,008 865 E73.821.964
OPERATING EXPENSES 20 (693,811,266)  {EB3.361,808)  (711.084.451)
OTHER INCOME [CHARGES)
Interest axpense 15 (75,823,288 (40,001,976} (43,052, 250)
Met gain on fair value changes of investment
properties 12 64,113,985 28,167,200 1,268,133
CGther operating income 22 11,473,363 B 792042 11,096,405
Interest income 5 1,536,781 2,308,453 1 293,345
Othier charges - net 22 (5,382,506} [#1,340,082) {32,738,155]
[8,081,665) [41,984,357) {42,131,763]"
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 6,580,697 143,462,700 m‘g,‘;su

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCORME TAX 25

Current 22,130,289
Deferrad (28,854,508)
[6,724,219)
MNET INCOME 13,304,916
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Not to be reclassified o profit or loss!
Revaluation increment on property, plant and < o
eguipment - net of deferred income tax 11 25,194,607
Remesstrement gain (loss) on net retirement )
frabifity - et of deferred mcome Lax 3 {10,192,829)
15,001,778
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 928,306,694
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 #0.004

See gecomponying Notes to Idrrm%-‘lﬂ' Financkal !wcmu




VITARICH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES il

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2023
[With Comparative Flgures for 2022 and 2021)

Years Ended December 31
022
[As restated -
Nite 2023 Note 4) 2021

CAPITAL STOCK 17 PL160,646925 F1,150,646,925 F1,160,646.975
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 1,470,853 1,470,859 1,470,859
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balince at beginning of year, a5 proviausly

reported 275,775,940 135,021,722 41-15?:5“2_
Prior period adjustments 4 [2,358,405) 36,867,910 36,867,910
Balance at beginning of yeas, as restated 273417535 171,889,632 78,025,452
Het income 13,304,916 #9,634 614 E9.441 614
Transter from revaluation surphes 1o retained

parnings < net of deferred income tax 17 16,780,410 11,693 289 4,422,560
Balante a1 and of yaar 303,502,861 273,417,535 171, BB9 632
CTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GAIN [LOSS) ON

NET RETIREMENT LIABILITY - net of

deferred income tax
Balance at beghnning of year 3,056,055 {27,285,015) [10,535,618)
Aemeasurement gain (ioss] - net of y AL gty

deferred income fax 23 {10,192, 824 4
Balance atend of year (6,236,774}

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT - net af
deterrad Income tax

Balance at beginning of year, as previou aly

reported 414,078,150
Priar period adjustments 1 19,465,860
Balanoe ot beginning of year, as restated 433,544,010
Revalustion incremient on property, plant and j

aquipiment - not of deferred Income tax 11 25,194,607
Transier from revaluation surplus to retained i

earnings - nist of defarrad Incone tax 17 {16,780,410)
Batance at end of year 441 958,207

435,721,433

B1,901,342,078

Lee acoompanying Notes to Consolideted Fnarcal Staterments.
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VITARICH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
{With Comparative Figures for 2022 and 2021)

Years Ended Docember 31

2022
|As restated -
Noti 2023 Note 4) 2021
ASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES i
::m:nma befors Income tas 6,580,637 F143,462,700 $120,605,750
Adjustments for: :
g:pmrrrl tign and amostization 11 147,740,279 132,971,153 ID'G'WE'EE-;
interestoxpanse 15 75,623,288 4(), 001,976 23,051,249
MNek gala on fair value changes of ineestment
pripq-mn;_ 12 {64,113,985) {78,167,200) (1,268,133}
Fabr walue changes on Liological assets E 47,779,579 (10,936,43E) 22,834,221
Hetiremont sxpense 23 12,111,540 22,335,339 16,353,091
Pronision for expected creditioss f 3,539,062 1,704,635 10,157,719
Interest Income f 5 {1,536,731) (2,398 459] (1,253,145}
Loss [gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipmient and investment properies P (523,275) 1,037,744 1,060,988
Operating Income before working caplial changes 237,411,404 300,012 450 208,168,502
Decrease [increasa) in: ;
Trade and other recetvables |70,553,318) (2%,645,867) (56,066,045}
inventarlés and blalogical assets - livestock (122,322,222) (293,063,6599) l'lgfr_,ﬂ-l_:l.,?xﬂ_}_
Addvanicas 10 suppliers and other current assets 275,406,736 (274,079 556) {E_El_.ﬁ-_?ﬁ,i_l 11}
Other noncureent assets related to operations 5,300,636 {15,705,660) (51,295,126}
Increase in; ) 3l
Trade and other payables 65,145,789 287 956,500 63 253..194
iCash bond deposits. 4,204,293 8,247,570 ?.sﬁ-lm
Met cash generated from jused for] opertions 394 503 318 {9,299,172)
Income takes pakd (22,130, 289) [51.3;3%?(1}1
Aetirement benedits paid 23 {2,184 831) {9 174, 31-0}:
interest raceived 1,536,781 08,859
et cash provided by (used in) operating activities F371,814,979
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Vears Ended Decamber 3 1
2023
[ restated - .
Mote 2023 Note 4} 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
Additians 1o property, plant and eguipment 11 (P113415213) (R257.212,366) (RIL7,645,700)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment and investment properties 3,597,483 200,000 1,025,000
Additions to Investment properties 12 {1,712,208) = -
Met cash used In investing activities [111,520948)  {257,012.366]  {116.621, oo
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
payments of boans 15 (1,877,235,724) [1,819,489,528) (315,594,041)
Availments of inans payable 15 1,740,233 658  1,349,558,151 540,581,912
interest paid 18’ (68,308,882)  (35735576)  (20,665518)
Fayments of lesse abililiss 24 (26,125,747) [28:303,544) (19,236,261}
Mot cash provided by (used (n) financing setiitles (231,436,695} 466,030,503 185,196,005
MNET INCREASE IN CASH 28,848,335 139,400,207 52,711,152
CASH AT BEGIMNNING OF YEAR 369,416,726 230,015,919 177,304,767
CASH AT END OF YEAR B398 265 061 E369.416,7 26 F230,015.919
Hﬂi’IEAEH FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Aecopnition of ROU ssels and lease Habiites 4 #45,903,022 E34,331,743 #213,208,300

Lop umnn'l,pnnﬂug MNotes to Consofidated Finoacin! Slotements.




VITARICH CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR EMCED DECEFMBER 31, J0X3
(With Comparatlva lnfarration for 2022 and 2021}

1

General information

porparate Information

Vitarich Carporation {the Parent Company) was incorpgrated and registered weth Lhe Philipgine
Serurities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 31, 1962 t ongage primarily in manufacturing
prefanng, processing, miking and dealing with feads, foodstufts, grains, and commodities of every
description for poultry, livestock ang all kinds of animal feeding. The Parent Compary's shares of
stock wene disted with Lhe Philippine Stcck Exchange on Febroary & 1995

The consolldated Financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Cempany and
Barbatas Ventures Corporation [BVC), a wholly-owned subsidiary engaged n the poultry dressing
Business a5 at Decoenbar 31, 2023 and 2022 (oollectively referred harain as “the Group™). BYE was
aoguired by the Parent Company effective landary 1, 2022 [see Note 33,

The registered principal place of business of the Parert Company is at Marilao-5an Inse Road,
Sta. Rosa |, Marilag, Bulacan. The Parent Company has operating offices in Luzan, (ol and Davao,
and maintains stellite offices in southern Philippines.

Approval of the Consalldatad Financial Statements

The conselidated financial statements of the Group 25 at December 51, 2623 and 2023 and For the
years ended December 31, ¢02%Y, 2022 and 2021 were approved angd authorized for issue by the
Baargd of Dlrectors (BOD] on March 21, 2024, a5 reviewed and recommended far appraval by the
Audit Commitbee on March 14, 73324,

Sunymary of Material Accounting Policy Informatian

Basls of Preparation

The canzalidated finanelal stateeqents have been prepared in aceordince with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philipgine Accounting
Standards {PAS] and Fhilippice Inlorpretation feom Intemational Finaneial Reporting Inlerpratations
Commitpee [IFKIC] lssued by the Philippine Financial and $ustalnability Reperting Standards Counil
and adapted by the SEC, including SEC pronayncements,

The contolidated Financizl statements arc presented in Philipping Peso [Pesal the Group's
functignal and presentation currency, Al values are rounded to the nearest Pess, unless othe mwise
indlcated

The tonsalidated financial statements of Lhe Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for property, plant and equipment {excluding transpertaticn enuiproen and construction in-
progress] which ara carried at revalued emopunts, investment praperties which are carrled at lair
walue, biological assets which are carrted at fair walue less costs o sell, agricultural produce which
are rarried at fair value loss casts 14 sell at geint of hareest, lease liohilitics which are carrieq at the
present valte of future lease payments, and retlrement abilicy which is camied at the presenl value
of the defined benefit chligation. Histarical cost 15 generally besed on the fair value af the
cansiferathon given In excharnge for an asset or fair value of comsidaration raceived in axchange for
ncurring liabilivy.
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Falr value 5 the price that would be recetved to zell an asset or pald to transfer a liabihity In an
arderly tranzaction between market particlpants at the measurcanent date. The fE@ir value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transacticn ta sell the asset ar transfer the
hability takes place either:

& inthe princhpal market for the asset ar lkability: or
& Inthe ahsence of a principal market, in the most advantzgenus market for the asset ar llabilivy,

The principal or the mast advantagegus market imust be accessible by 1he Group,

Tine fair value of an asset or a labkillty @ mepsuned usng the assurmptione that market participants
would use when pncing the agset ar liabiliy, awzuming that market paricipantz act in their
gcanomilc best inkerest,

A Faer walue measurement of @ nonfinancial asset takes Into accounl a rmarket participant's abitity to
generate ecgnomic benefits by using the azset inits highast and best use ar by selliag it 10 another
market participank thal weold use tha azset in its hiphest and best Lse,

When meazuring the fair value of an asset or 3 labidity, the Group wses market observable data to
the extent possible. If the Fair value of an as<el or 4 liability is not directly oheervable, it is estimated
by ¥he Group [werking closely with external qualified valvers) wsing valuation techniguas that
maximize the use of relevant observable Inputs and minimize the use of uncbservable inputs te.g. by
usg of the market comparable approach that reflects recent transactlon prices for slmilar items,
discuunted cash flow analysis, or option pricing modsls refined to reflect the issuers specific
tirtumsrances|, Inputs used are consislént with the characteristics of the asset or HabHfty Ehat
rarket pertliclpants would take into account.

Further infarmation about assumptions made [n measurng fale values are included in the follgwing:

Note 3 - Significant Judgments, Accounting Estirmates and Assump:lons
More & - Biolopical Asse1s « Livestock

Mobe 11 - PFroperty, Plant and Equipment

Mote 12 - Investment Properties

Mote 31 —Fair Value Moeasurcment

Fair walugt are categorized into different levels n a fair value higrarchy based on the depree to
which the inputs to the measurement are abserable and the sipnificance of the inputs to the fair
value measurentent n (15 anliraty:

o Lewve| 1 falr value measurerments are those derfved from quoted prices (unadjucted! in active
rriarkets far ldentical assets ar liakll|ties,

*  Level 2 fair value mersurements are thase derived from inputs cther than quaoted prices
included within Lewel 1 thal are observable for the asset ar liahility, either directly [ie, a% prices)
af indlrectly [1e, derlved from prices).

v Level 3 falrwalue mepzure ments are those dedved from valuation techrigues that inelude inpuats
for the asset or hability that are not based on abservakle market data (unokservable Inpuots).

Transfers between levels of the falr walue hierarchy arée recopnized by the Sroup at the end of the
reporting period dunng which the change accurred,



Adaprlen of Armendments to FERS

The acrounting palicies adanted are consistant with Lhose of the previgus financial year, except for
the adoption of the fallowing refevant amendments to PFRS which the Group adopted effective far
annual perlods beginning unor after January 1, 24023

*» Amendments tao PAS 1, Presepdorion of Faonciol Stoterments, and  PERS  Fractice
Statemant 2, Mpking Mareriafity fJudgments - Disclosere initiatyve - Accounting Falcles — The
amendments require an entity to distlose Its mataiial accountirg policies, instead of its
ignificant accaunting poliies and provide guidance an how an entity applies the concept of
rnateriaiity in making declsions sbout acoounting polizy disclosures I assesslag the materialing
of accounting policy information, entities need to considar bowh the sice of the transactions,
eiher events ar canditions and s nature. The amendments clarify [1) that accountlng pollcy
nformatipn may be material because of its natyre, even if the related amownts are irnmaterial,
(4] that accounting pelicy information & materlal if users of an entily's financial statements
Wabld need it 1o understard other material Infarnation in the financial statements, and (3) if an
entity discloses Immatenal acoounting policy iafarmatlon, such infonmation should not obsrure
raterlal acesunting palicy infarmation. In addition, PFRS Practice Starement 2 is amended by
adding guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the appllcation of e ‘four-step
materjglity process’ to accaunting policy infermatiorn.

« amendenencs th PAS 8, Accounring Folioes, Chonges in Adcounting Estimates and Errors -
Definitipr of Accounting Estirates — The amendments clanfy the distinction betwersn changes in
acoountlng estimare: and changes in eccounting pollcles, and the earraction of errars. Under the
hew definition, accournting estimates are “monetary amounts in finanpcial statements that are
subject to measuretment uncertainty”. An entity develops an accounting estimate if an
2CLounbing policy requires an iterm i the finanoal stacements to be measyred i a way thatr
involves measurement uncertalnty. The amendments clarify that a change In accounting
estimna e that results frem new infommatinn or new dege logiments is kot a correction af an emer,
angd that the effect= of a change in an lnput or 3 messurement technigee wsed o develop an
accounting estimate are changed dn accounting estimates if they do not result fram the
correctian of prior period errors. 4 changs in an accountlng estmale may affect anly the profit
or lass in the current pericd, or the profi or 1688 of both the current and future penigds,

The adoption af the amendments to PPRS did not materially alfect the consclidated Enangial
staterments of the Graup. Additicnal disclosures were included in the nates to consalidated financial
statements, as appllcable,

Amendments to PFRS Already Issued But Not ¥et Effective

LUnder pravailing circumstances, the relevant amendments ta PFRS alrgady issued but which are not
wel effective as at December 31, 2023 and have not been applied in preparing the consolldated
financial statements are not expected to hawve any material effect on the consalidated financial
statements of the Group. Additional disclpsures will be included in the conselidated financlal
staterments, as applicakle.




Anancial Assets and Liabllitles

Date of Recagnition, The Group recognizes 3 financial asser or a Financial liabllity in the cansolidated
statemertts of financial position: when it becames a party to the contractual pravisiens af a financial
instrument. In the Gise of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and
dergfogniticn, as applicable, is done using settlernent date accounting.

initial Recognitinon ard Measurement, Flnancial instruments are recopnized Inltially at fals value,
wihich |5 the falr walue of the considerativn eiven [in case of an asset] or received (in case of a
liabllty], The inltial measuremrent of financial instruments, 2xcept tor those desigrated at Fair value
through profit or lazs {FYPL), insludes transactn costs,

Clossification. The Group classifies its financial azsets at initial recognition under the following
categonies: (a] financial assats at EYPL, {b) financlal assets at atnortized cost and {c} financial asseds
at fair valug through ather comprehensive ineame [FWICN). Financial liabilities, on the other hapg,
are tlazslfled az either Gnancial lakilities at MWPL er finenmcial liabflities at amortized cost.
The classification af a financial instrument largely depends eoh the Graup™s Basitess model and its
contractuadl cash flow charasteristics.

as at Derember 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group does not have firancial assets @t FYQC and Fipandal
assets and Labllities au FYPL.

Fiamcial Assets af Amartired Cost. Financial assets thall be measurad at amartlzed cost if bath of
the follawing conditions are met:

« the financial asset is held within a business model whise abjective is 1o hald financisl assats in
arder bo collect contracrual cash flows; and

»  the contraciual 1ermes of tae financial asset giva fse, on specified dates, to cash Aows Lthat are
salely payments of principal and [nterest on the princlpal amaunt oatsanding.

AMler initial recognitian, financial assets At amaortized cost 2re subsequently measured at amonized
cost using the gitective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amartized cast Is
cAlewlated by taking inle aocount any discount ar premium an acquisition and fees ihat are aa
Integral pare of the effactive irf=rest ratg, Gains and losses are recopmized in profit or loss when the
financial assets are derecopnized or Impaired or throweh tho amarttzation process. Financial assets
at amortlzed cost are ircleded under current assets if realizability or collectabliity is within 12
manths after the reporing pered, Qtherwise, thase are cassified as noncurcent a5sets.

Az at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group's cash, trade and other receivables [excluding
advances 1o afficers and employess], recefvable from an msuranse cemparny and securily deposits
{presented under “Othor WNoncurrest Afsets™ account) are classified cnder this category
(5e¢ Notas S & 10and 13).

Fiagngiad Labilipes of Amartized Cost. Finansial liabilities are categerized as Bnancial liabilities at
aimortized coxt when the substance af the contractual arrangerment resylts in the Group having an
obligation either to deliver cash or anocher financial assel to L halder, or 12 sellle the obligation
cther than by the sxchange of a [ixed amount of cash ar another financial assat for a freed number
cf its awn equity instrumen’s.
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These financial liabilittes are inltlally recegnized at fBir value less any directly aterlbutable transactian
costs. After nltial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amartized
cost vting Lhe effective interast method, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into accownt any
discount or premiurn on the issue and (ees that are an integral part af the effective Interest rate.
Gains and Iosses are recopnized in profit or loss when the lokles are dececagnized er through the
amorkizalion procass.

A5 at [recember 31, 2023 and 1022, the Group's trade and other payables {excluding sratutory
payables), loans payable, cash bond deposits and lease liabilities are classified wnder 1his category
(ses Mntes 14, 15, 16 6nd 74).

Reclazzi{lcation

The Graup reclassifies its financial assets when, and anly when, it changes Its busitwss madel far
managing those kharclal asests. The reclassificatlon is applied prospoctively from the First day of the
flrst s2paring period fellowing the change In the business model [reclassification date)

For a flnanclal asset reclassified gut of the financlal asscts at amertized cost category to flnenclal
assa1s at FVIPL, any gaic or [258 ansmg from the diffarence between the greviods amcrlized cost of
the financial aszet and fatr value is recognized in profit or loss. Fora flnancial atset reclassitied gut of
the finaneral assats at amort|zed cost category to financial assets at FVOC|, any gain o loss arising
ram a difference between tho previous amortized cost of the financial asset 2nd fair value is
recognized n OCl

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amoertized Cost

The Group recerds an allowance for expected credit 1045 (ECL) bazed on the difference beiween the
ventractual cash Alows due o accordance with the contract and =l| the cash flows that the Group
expecks 10 recelve, The differsrce is then discounted at an approximation ta the asset’s ariginal
effective interest rate.

Far trade receivablgs, the Group has applied the simplified approach and has calculated ECL based
an the hfctime ECL. The Gronp has estehbllshed a provision matrix that is based on s histonical credit
lass experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific 1o the debtors and the evonocmic
Envranneent,

For other financial assets measured at amartized cost, the ECL is basad on Uw 12-manth ECL, which
pertalns te the pertien of lifetime ECL that resull from default ovents on a financial instrument that
ara passible within 12 mgnths afrer the reporbing date. Howewer, when there has Been 4 significant
increase in credit rsk slnce Inlbiai recognition, the allgwance will be based an the lifetime ECL,
Wwhen deteserining whathar the crediy risk of a flnanclal aset has increased significantly Siage initiol
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial nstrument as at the
raperting date with the rlek of 3 defaulkt gocurring on the flnanclal instrurrant as at the date of initial
recognitlon and consider reasopable and supportoble nfaematian, that is available withowt undue
tost or effort, that is indicative of significant inareases in credit risk singe initial recogritian.



Derecoghition of Financial Assets and Liablitles

Financiol dssats. A financlal azget faf where applicable, a part of a financial assel ar part of a group
of simillar financlal assels} is derecognized when:

= the right ta receive cash flows frem the assat has explred:

= the Group retams the right ea receive cash flows frorn the financlal assat, But has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without materal delay 1o a third pary unger 3 “pass-through”
arrangement, or

* the Group has transferred Its righe w receive cash fows from the finzngial asset and eithser
|a] has transferred substontially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (b has neither
transferred net retained substantially all the risks and rewards af the asset, but has transferred
control ot the asset,

When the Growrp has transfervad its right bo receive cash flows From & financigl asset or has entered
into @ pass-thraugh arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substanlially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred cantral of the financial asset,
the finandial asset iz recopnized o the wctant oF the Groug's continuing invelvemant in the financial
asset. Continuing involeement that takes the form of a guarantee aver the transferred finangial
assel I measured at the lower of the orglnal carrving amount of the fnancial asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that che Groop cowld be requirgd o repay,

Finoncig! Llabilittes. A financial liabllity & derecopnized when the phligation under the habilty is
discharged, cancelled or has explied, Yhen an existing Anancial labillty 15 replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the torme of an existing lisbility are substa ntially
trodified, such an exchange or modificatlon is treated as a derecopnition of the onginal liaslity and
the recognition of a new iabllily, and the difference in the respechve carrylng amounts is recognized
In the congalidaed statements of comprehensive Income,

A madification is canslclered substantial if the present value of the cash Aows under the new tarms,
Imcluthng net fees paid or received and discountad using the original effective interast rate, s
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the eriginal
liahility,

The fair value of the modified NMinancal iability is determined based on it expected cash flows,
discounted uslng Lhe interest rate at which the Group could raise debt with similar terms zng
contditions in the market. The difference between the carrying amount of the crlginal fanility and
fafr value nf the new liability is recognizedin the consolidated statements of comprebensive incame.

Orn the other hand, if the difference goss not meet the 10% threshold, the orlglnal debe is not
extingulshed but meraly modilied. In such rase, the carying amaunt 1s adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or recéivard in Lhe restrocturing.
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Inventerles consist of Feeds, raw materials and feed supplemonts, supplics and annal heallh

produyces, finlshed goods and hatching eggs. Cost i determined wsing the mmeving average metheod,
Inveniaries are measured at the lower of cost ard net realizable value [MNEY,

Feeds. Feeds Include costs of raw wmmaterials and costs of direct labor and manufacturing owverhead.

Aaw Mareriols, Feed Supplerents, Supplies ond Animal Heclth Prodvcts.  For these inventaries, all
cosks directly attributable (o acquisition such as the purchase price, impart duties and ather taxes
that are not subsequent by recaverable from tawing authanties are Tncluded as part of costs,

Fimished Soads, Findshed goods, which include fresh and frazen chicken cut-ups, include coscs of
direct materlals, labor and owerhead.

Hotching Eggs. Hatching epgs are Inltally meatured at the fair value less estimatad casts bo sell at
the point of harvest,

The MRV of feeds, feed supplerments, ammal health praducts, finished goods and hatching eggs is
oased on the estienated selhng price in the ordinary course of business less the cost of markeling
and distributicn, while the NRY of raw materials and supplics s the cerrent replacement cost.

When Invertarles are sald, the cammying ameunt oF thoge inventanes |5 recogmized 35 30 expense in
profit or loss.

Binlogical Assets - Livestock

This consists of biologhtal assets such as day-old chicks after undergoing the hatching process, ciicks
whrth are grown as chicken broilars, and parent stock. These are measurad on inltlal recegnition
and at tiw end of each reporting period at falr value bess costs w0 sell. The Group's Fair valuation
takas into consideratizn [nputs based on the hatchability rate of epgs, mortality of chicks helog
grown B5 chicken brollers and parent stock, estimated future cash flows to be Incurred [n hatehing
Lhe epes and grawing the chicks and parent stock, amang ok hers.

BaIn oF 1085 arisiag onoinitial recopnition and any changss [n the falr value [255 cosks 1o sell of
lwestack are recorded as adjustanent to “Net %ale of Goods” in the consolideted skatzments af
Lomprefen e ineoine,

Advances ta Supplfers

Advancas o suppliers are amaunts paid in advance for the purchase of goods and senvlces, These
ara earrigd in the consglidated statements of financlal positlon at face ameunt and are récognized
a5 expense in proft or loss or to the carrespanding asset acoount when the services or poods for
which the advancas were made are received by and delivered to the Group with reference b
percentage of completion, if any,

Advance: o suppliers are classified as current 3ssets sincg the corresponding goods or services are
expected to be delivered or performed for no moee than 12 months after the financial reporting

period.



Qther Current Assate

Othier current assets cansist of creditable withho!ding taxes (CWT3], advances to contract prowers
and breeders, prepayments and input volue-added taxes (VAT

CWTs. CWT: reprexent the amounts withheld at source by the Group's customors In retatlon b its
incorne. These are recognized upon collectlon 3nd are unilized a3 ax credils apainst income tax due
as allowed by the Philipplre taxation laws and regulations.

Advances to Coriroct Growers ond Breeders, Advances bo conlract growers and breeduers perain to
furchases of anlmal haalth products and feeds that are already paid in advance. These are expected
to be recewved by and delivered to the Group for no mere than 12 menths alter Lhe financial
reporting percd.

Frepayents, Prepayments regresent expenses nol yet incurred but already paid in cash.
Prapayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cazh paid
aubzequently, these are charged to expense as these are consumed in operations or explre with the
passage of Eme. Prepayments that are expected to be Incurred na mare than 12 menths afer the
reporting date are flascified as current assets, Otheraise, these are clazsified as nonourrent assets,

feput VAT, Revenue, expenses and assets are recognlzed oot of the amiount of WAT except in cases
whara WAT incurred on a purchase of agsats or senvices is not recoverable from the tasatlon
autharity, inwlnch case, WAT is recoznized as part of the cost of scqulsitlon of the assot ar a3 pars of
the expenze item, as applizabis, or recelvable and pavables that are stated with the ameount of VAT
incluged.

Property, Plant and Equlpagepk

Property, plant and equipment (eacept for transpartation equepment and constiucticn ir-oregness)
are slated at revalued amounts @s determined by an independent appraiser. Transpartation
equipment and constructlon In-progress are skated at cost less acrumolated depeedation and
Mgl rnent in value, iFany.

The initial cast of property, plant and cquipment cansists of the purchase price, including fmporn
duties and cther cosls directly atributable to bring the asset to its waorking condition and lecation
far its intended use. Cost also lneludes the cosl of replocing parts of such property, plant and
equiprment when the recognltion criterla are met and the present value of the estimated cost of
gismantling and rermcving the asset and restoring the site where the assel is located.

Expendituras incurrad after the proparty, plant and equipment hawe Been put into operatlon, such
25 repairs, malntenance and cverhaul cests, are narmally ¢hagged to aperations in the year the costs
dre incurred. In siyations whare it can be clearly demeonstrated that the expend[tures have resurlted
iman increase in the fulore econamie benafitc expected to be ohtained from the use af an bem of
property, plant and equipment beyond its orginally asscssed standard of performance, the
eapanditures are capitalized 35 additlonal costs of property, plant and equiprment.
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Subtequent to initial recopgnition at cost, property. plant and cquipment (escept far land,
transportation equipmernt and construction n-progress| are carried al revalued amounls dess any
subsequent accumulated degreciation, amortization: and any accumulated impairment losses. Langd
is carfied at revalued amount less accumulated impairment osses, f any. Falr market value is
determined by reference to market-hased svidence, which is the amount for which the asuets could
b= ewchanged betwaen a knowledgaable willlng buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm's
lenghiv bransaction as at the waluatinn dace. Any revaluetfon surplus is credited to “Reyaluation
Sumplus® accaunt presented under “Cther Comprebersive Income® section af the conzolidated
statements of financia! position. Any decrease in the revaluation surplus of the same assat s
charged ba OCI ta the extent of any credit balance exlsting i the ravaluation surplus in respoect of
that asset and the remaimng dechhe, if any, is recognized in the consolidated statements of
cRpMpArehensie ingome,

Annvally, an amgunt from the *Revaluation Surplus™ acceunt is transferred to "Retained Eamings”
under the "Egquity” sectlon |n the cansalidated statements of financial positicn for the depreclation
relating ta the revaluation surplus, net of celated taxes, Upon dispasal, any revaluation surplus
redating 1o the particular assel sald 15 tramsferrsd to “Retained Earnings”. Revaloations are
performed eyvery ang Lo o years ta ensure that the carrying amaurt does not differ materlally
freeen thal which would be determined using fair valuc ot the cnd of the reparting peried.

Depreciation and amortizatian are calcolated on a stralght-line basis aver the fllowing extimated
useful lives of the assets;

Asset Type Mutnber of Years

Plact, machinary and equipment 1110 20 yedrs )

Buildings 20 years

Leasehald and land improvements 2 13 G years ar lgase term, whachever 1< shirler
Offioe furniture, fiatures and equlpment 3 00 100 yeaars

Transportation aqulpmenl 4 ta S vears

The estimared useful lives and depreciation artd amertization method are reviewed periadizally
ensura thet the perlods and methed of depreciatina and amortizatlon are consistent witl the
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of proparty, plant and eguiproent.

Fully deprecated assets are retalned in the aconunt until they are ne lenger mowse and no Turther
charge for depreciation and amertization is made I respect to those assels.

Construction in-progress is stated at cost, Thiz includes cost of constructlon and ather direct costs.
Construction in-progress is not depreclated wntil such time that the relevant assets are completed
and avallable for operational use,

An item gf property, plant and equlpment 5 derecaznized upon disposal or when ng fubyre
coonomle beneflis are expeciad from itz use or dispesal, Any gain gr lgss arising on deracogrution of
lhe assel [calculated as the difference batween the net dispasal proceeds and tho carming amount
af tha asset) is included In profit or [oss In the yeat the assel is derecognized.
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[vestment Progartigs

Investmend properties are properties held either o earn rental incgme or for capital appreciation or
both, but not for sale in the ardinary course of business or for ad mmlstrative purposecs.

The Group uses Fir walue madel for the aconunting of its Investrnent properties. Linder this method,
investment praperties are Inkiglly measured &t cost but are subsequemly remeatured a1 [air value
at each reperting date, which reflacts market conditions at the reporting date. Cost comprises the
purchiase price and any directly attributable rosts in developing and Improving the propertles, Cost
also includes the cost of replacing part of an existlng nvestment propedty at che Time 1hat cost is
incurrgd If the recognllion criteria are met. The fair value of investment praoperties is detarminad
using Sales Camparison approach by an independent real estate eppralser Galks or losses arising
from changes in the falr values of investment propeeties are itcluded in profit or loss io the perdod in
which they arise, induding the carrespanding tax effect. Far the purposes of these mnsolidated
financial stataraents, in order to aveid doukle counting, the fair value reparted [n the consolidated
financial statements is reduced by the camying amount of any deerued income resufting fram the
spraading of lease ncentlves and minimum lease payments, as applicable.

Transfars are made 3 investment property wien, and anly wrhen, Lthere is a change in yse,
eyldenced by the endlng of cwner-occupation, commencement af an cperating lease to another
party ar ending af the constructian ar development, Transfers are made from Investmeant praperty
when, and only when, there I3 a change in use, evidencad by the commencement af owner
aciupat:an o cormmeance ment of dave lppment with a view to sell.

InvRstMent propertles are derecophized when either those have been dispazed of or when the
investman property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future econemic benefit s
expected fram iis disposal, Any galh or 1053 on the retliement or dispasaf of an invastmenl property
I5 recagnlzed dn the consolidawed statements of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
disposal.

Rantal Income and operating expenses from investment properties are raported as park of
“Other Income” and “Operating Expenses,™ respectively, i the consolidated statemenis of

CRMArehensive [noome.

Other Noncurrant Assels
Qther noncurrent assets consist of project development casts, secwrity deposits classifled as
financial assets and eoonputer software.

Froject Development Costs. These represent costs directy atiribytable to the devalgpment of the
Parent Company’s aqua feeds and agua culture projects. The capitalized developrent costs pertain
ta the amount of cash paid ar the fair value of the other cansideratians given to acquire an asset at
the tleme of 15 acquisikion ar praduckion.

Compoter Softwore. Computer softeare 3 measured at ¢ost of acquisitian less amy accumgelated
amartlanen and impairment losses, if ary. Compoeter schware is amnrtized on a straight-line basis
over the economic useful life af threg years and assessed for dmpalronent whenever bere s an
indication that the camputer software inay be impaired. Amartizatian periad and amortization
method for computer software are reviewed at each reporting date. Any change in the expeclad
useful life or the expected pattern of consumptlon of future eoonemic benefits embadied in 1he
Bs5et |5 recopnized prospeclively.
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Impaiment of Ronfinanela| Azents

The carying ampunts of the Group's nontinancial aszsts are reviswed at each reporting date to
delerming whether theee is any indication of Impairment. If any tuch indication exists, then the
asset’s net recaverable amount 5 estimatead,

Any impaircnent luss is recognized if the canyfng amount of an astet or [1e Cashepenaraling unit
[CGU) exceeds its net recoverable amount, & CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that
genarates cash fAows that are largely independent from other assets of the Group. lmpairment
ers5es are recognized in prafit ar loss incthe perlod incurred,

The net recoverable dmount of an assat is the preater of [t5 value in use or its falr value l2ss costs Lo
fell. Value in use i the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived fram an azset
while fairvalue less cost to 52l 15 the amount obtalnabla from the sale of an asset inan amy's lenath
trancaction between knowledgeable and willing parties less cests of dispesal. 10 assessing value in
us, the estirmated futuns cash figws are discounted to thelr present values osing a pre-tax discount
rase thar reflacts current market assessmenes of the time value of money angd the risks speclfic to
the asset.

Impeirment Ipsses recegnlzed M prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indlcatlong than the loss has decreased or no longer exIsts. An npalrment 10s 15 revarsed iF theme
has been a change in the estimates wsed to detarmine the recoverable amount. An impairment |pss
is reversed anly 1o the extent that the atset's @rrying amaunt doas not excead the carming amaunt
that would fave been determined, net of depreciatlon ar amortlizatlon, if na impairment Ipss has
been recagnized.

Leases

& contract {5, or Containg, a lease when it conveys the Aght to cantiel the use of an dentfieg assat
for a period of time in exchange for consideratson. To assess whether a contracl oonveys the right ta
contral the use of an Identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether, thraughout
the penicd of use, the cuslomers hac bath of the following:

» The right to obtain substantially all of the econcmle benefits from use of the identified asset;
and
»  The right to direct the wse of the identified asset.

If the Graup has the flght 1o control the wse of an identified assar for only a partion of the tepm of
the contract, the sontrast ¢ontains a lease for that partion of tha term.

The Growp &lso asscsses whethet @ contract contains @ lease far each potentiel separale dvaswc
COM prent,

The Group as Lessee

The Graup recognizes right-of-ese RO asset and lease ability for all leases, except for leases with
lease tarms of 12 manths gr less jshort-term eases) and leazes for which the underlying acger is of
law value, In which case the lease peyments associated with those leases are recognited as an
expense un 3 straipht-line basis.



-12-

ROU Assets. At commencement dabe, the Groep measures the KOU agsets &t cost. The Lost
COMPRSes:

« The amount af the mitlal measurament of lease liabilities:

& Ay [gase payments made at o before the commencament date less any [ease incentives
redivad

o Ay [metlal direct costs Incurrad by the Group; and

*  An estimation of costs to be incumed Dy the Group In dismanthng and rermoying the und eelylng
asset, when applicable.

Aller the cormmmencement daie, the ADU assets are carried at cost less any accumulaked
amaortizatinn and accumulated impairmant losses, and adjurseed for any remeasoremaent af the
related leasa [labilities. The ROU assets are amortized aver the shorter af the Irace terms ar the
useful lives of tha underlying assets ranging a5 follows:

Al Ty e Number of Years
Bulfding ? to 5 years
Transpartation equipmernt 5 years

LEESE Lidbiities. AL commencement date, the Group measures lease liabilities at the present value
of future lease payments using the iterest rate Wnplict In the lease, T that rale can be seadily
determined. Ctherwise, the Group uses b3 Imeremental bamswing rata.

Lease payments included in she measvrament of lease llabalitics comprise the Fallowing:

«  [ixed payments, including n-substance fixed payments;

« Variable lease payments that depend on an Index ar a rate, intially measured using the index ar
rote 23 at the cormmencement date;

« Amcunts expected to be pavable under a residual value guarantee; and

s The ewxgicise prioe under a purchase option that the Group is reasonabby certaln to exercise,
lease payrnents in an optional rengwal period Fthe Group is reasonable certain 1o exercise an
extensign gptign, and penalties for early termmination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
cemain net 1o terminate early,

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cast, Interest on the lease liabilities and
any warlable lease payraente net intluded in the measurement of lease liphilities are recognized in
prafit or logs unless these are capitalized as costs of ancther asset. vanable lease payments not
inCluded ir the messuremant of Che leaswe Habilities are racoenized in profit or loss when the gvant
or conditicn thad tripgers Lhiose payments Qoours.

If there |5 & change in the lease term or il thers is 3 change in the assessment of an aption to
purchase the underlying asset, the leaze liahilities are remeasured uslng o revieed discount race
considering the revised lease payments on the pacls of Lhe revisad lease term or reflecting the
change In amoums payable under the ourchase aplion. The lease liabilities are alsq remeasured
vsing the revised [ease payments if thers is a change ik the aonounts espected (o be payable under a
residuzl value guarantee ar 2 change I future leate paviments resalting from a change in an indax ar
a raka used ko determine those payments.
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The Group as a Lesseor

Leases where the Graup retains substantially all the risks and rewards of Qwenershlp of the ascot are
clasgified ag operating lepses, intial diract casts incumred in regotiating an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the Ieased asset and recognized over the lerse term an the same basis as
rental income.

Equ ity

Copltad Stock. Capital stock s measured at par value far all shares issued.

Additivo Poid-in Copite! TAMIC). APIC is the proceeds andsor falr value of conslderatlons recaaad in
excess af par value of the subsoribed capital stock. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable
to the ssuance of new shares are recognired as deduction From equity, net of any tax, Othorwlse,
these are recognized as expeoge in profit ar loss,

Retained fornings. Retained earnings represents the cumulative balance of nat income ar lass, nat
af any diviiend declaratlen and prior perod adjustments.

GQCL  DCl romprises of zems aof income and expense that are not recopnized in profil or loss in
accordance with PFRI. OC) af the Parent Cormpany pertains o revaluation surplus an praperty, plant
and aquipment and Jccurmnulated remeasurament gring and losses on net retivement Nehility,

Revenue Recognition
The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution af animal feeds, animal health and

nutritional products, and feeds supplements. The Group s also engaged i the proguction ef day-oid
chicks and in the growing, producticn and distrlbution of chicken broilers, sither as live ar dressed
chickans

Réveriue [rom contract with customers is recognized when the performance abligation in the
contract has heen satigied, aither 2L a pelacin tirme or owar time. Revenue is recognized aver time if
ane af the follpwing ¢riteria s met: {a) the custgmer simultanecusly recenes and consumos the
bunelits as the Group perfarms its abligatlons; (B the Group's performance créales or enhances an
Asset that the customer controls a8 the asset is creuted or enhanced; or (g) the Group's parformance
does not Create a0 asiet with an alternative use 1o the Graup and the Group has an enforceak)s
tight te payment for performance completad to date, Gtherelse, revanue is recaghized at @ point in
time.

The Group Al assessas its revenue arrangements to datarming if it is 3ctmg a5 & panapal or as an
agent. The Group hes assesced that it acts as a principal in gll of ks revenoe souarees,

favenue from the Croup's sale of goods is recognized at paint in tire when control of the zoods s
transfosred to the custamers, which is normally upon delivery,

The following specific recognition cifterla must also be met befure other revenue items putside the
scope oF PFRS 15 are vecoqnized:

fental eome, Renlal income on leased property I recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Interest Incame, Kevenwe 13 recognited as interest accrues, taking inta consideraticn the effective
vield an the asset.

Qther fncome. Ather inoome i3 recognlzad when earned,



-14-

Cost and Expense Reccpnition
Cost and expenses are decreases in economic beneflts during the accounting pencd In the form of

autflows or coplebons of assets ar incurrence of liabilitie s that result in decrasses in egquity, cthar
1han those relating te distributions (o eguity participants.

Cost of Goods Sald. Cost of goods sold are recognized as expense when the related goads are
delivgrad,

Opergtwg Expeises, Dperating expenss: constitute cost of administering the business and cost
incurred to sl and market its groducts. These are gxpensed as incurned.

nterest Cxpense. Thesa are recogolzed o profit or loss wsing the effecthve interest method,

Cther Charges, Other charges are recopnlzed when incurred.

Employes Banefits

Short-term Berefits. The Group recognizes a liahility net of amounts alveady paid and an expense for
senvices rendered by employees dunng the dcesunting period. A lfability is also racagnized For the
amaunt cxpocted Ba be paid under shart-term cash bonus gr profit sharing plans if the Group has 8
present legal gr constructive gbligation to pay tals amount as a result of past serviee provlded by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimacad reliably.

Shorttarm ernployed benefit liabflities are measored on an undiscounted basis and are expended ac
the related service is provided.

Retirement Bepefis. The Group has a partially funded, non-oontributory defined beneflt plan
covering all qualified emplaoyees. The retirement hanefits cost is determined uslhg the propected
unit credit method which reflects services rendered By employees bo the date of valuatian and
INCOrPorates assumptions Cconet ming omployess’ projected salaries.

The Group retognizes senice oasts, camaorising of current servlce Costs, past serace costs and net
interest expense nrincoms in proflt or loss, Nek laterest % calculaled by applying the discount rate
to the net retirement Liability or assat,

Past zerylZe oasts are recognized in profit or [pss an the earier of the date of the plan amendment
prcurtailment, and she dete that the Group recognizes restrusturing-related asts,

Rermeasurements pertaning w actvarial gains and losses and return an plan assats are recognized
irmmediataly in OCl In the pariod in which they adse. Remeasurements are not seclassifled Lo prafic
or ks in spbsequent perlogs,

Plan assets are assets that are held in trust and managed by a trustes bank, Plan assets ere not
available 1o the creditors of the Group, ner @n they be paid directly to the Group, The Fair value of
the plan asssts is based onthe rmarkst price inforrmatlon, Whon no market price is awallable, the fair
value of plan gsgets bs ostimated by discaunting expected buture @sh fows using a dispount rate
that refiects both the risk assaciatag with the plan assets and the maturlty or cxpoected disposal date
of those assats [or, If they hawe no matonity, the expecied period antil the sattlement of the related
ebligationg). If the fair value of thae plan assets is higher than the present value of the retirement
liability, the measurement aof the resulting deflned benefit assoel is lrmted o the asser ceiling which
is the present vafue of econamic benefils availsble in the form af refunds frem the plan ar
reducticns In future cantributions to the plan.
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The net retirement asset (llability] 1= the aggregate of the present walug af the defined benefit
abllpation and the far value of plan agsets against which the obligations are to be setted dircebhy,
adjusted for any effect of azset criling. The present value of the retlrement abligation is determined
by giscounting the estirnated fuluve cash outflows using fnterest rate an gevernment bonds that
have terms b0 mazurily appraximating the terms of the related retlremant [y,

Actuarial valvations are made with sufficlent regularlty o that the amounts recagnized in the
consalidated financial statements do met differ matedally from the amounts that would be
detoralped at the reparting date.

Ineame Tates

Current Tox. Current tax assets and Liablllties are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
fram or paid to the [ax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute Lhe amount ara thosa
that hawe b éenacted ar substantively practed at the seporting dake.

Deferred Tox. Deferred tax is provided on all temparary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of azsets ond liabilllies and their camying amounts for finzncial reparting purpeses.

Deferred tax |labilitles are racognized for all taxable temporary differenoes, Deforred tax assats are
tecognizad for all deductible ternporary differences and carcyforward bepefits of unused net
GRerating logs carrydvef {NOLCD) and minimum corparate Income s [MST] Lo the cxtent that it is
probable that taxable ingome will ke available against which the deductible temparary differences
and carryfgrward of rnused MOLCO and MO can be utilized,

The carrying urnuunt of deferred tax assets |5 reviewead st each raporling date and reduced to the
extent that it is ng langer probahle that sufficient twcable income will be availabla to allow all or part
¢f the defecred taw assel Lo be otilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassassed au each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that It has hecgme probable that future taxahle
inceme will allow the deferved tax assets 1o be recovered.

Redarred tay pssets and liabilities are measored at the tax ratss that are applicable o tha waar when
the azset iy realized or the liahility is settled, based on tax rakas and lax laws that have been enacred
ar substantively enacked at the reporting dale.

The meageremant of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflacts the tax consequences that wauld
falloswe from the mannear in which the Group expects, at the and of the reparting pariod, 12 recover
or settle the farrying amount of ite assets and labilities. For purposas of measuring deferred tax
ligbilities and deferred tax ausets for investmant proparties that are measured using the Bir value
micdel, the carrying amaunts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutied, that is, when the investment property s depreclable and is held
within the business madel whase ohjective is consume substantially all of the economic banefits
embaodied in the investanent properly over Lime, rather than through sale.

Mot changes in deferrae tax assets or deferned tax lebilities are recognized a3 a component of tax
expense i opratit or loss, except to the extent Lthat k relates to iterms recognized in other
CoOMprehansive income of dircctly in equity. In this caze, the tax i5 alko reccgnized in other
comprehenclve Inoome or dirackly inequity, respectivehy,

Defarred bax asséts and deferred tax labilties are offset if a legally cnferceakle right esists to affsat
curent 2y assets ageinst current tan llakllities and defarred taxes relate to the same tasable entity
and the sarnc iax authoney,



Sapent Raporting
The Group's operating businesses are orearized and manzged separately according 1o the nature of

the products provided, with each segment roporting a stratape Business wnit that offers differant
progducts and markets, Financial inforrmation an the Group's business segments 5 presented in
Mote 32 te the consolidated financial staternants.

Provisions

Frovisions are recognlzed wihen the Group has a presenl legal or constructive whligation as a rasult
of o past event, it 8 probable that an cutflow of resaurces embadying economic benefits will be
required to settle the aobligation and a rellable estinale can & made of the amount of the
abligation. Prowisians are measured at the estimated expenditure reguired o settle the present
abligation, based oh the mest reliable avidence available at the end of the reporting pericd,
meluding risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligatlen. If the effect al the time
value of maney is material, provislons are determined by discounting the sxpacted fubure cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current marke: assessments of the time value of money and, where
apprepriate, the risks specfic to the lahility, Where dicounilne & wsed, the Imcrease in the
provizion dus bo the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense. Provisians are reviewed at
the end of gach reporting perdiod and adjusted 1o reflact the current best estimate,

Bazkc and Ol t Share

Basi earnings per share i» computed by Jividing the net Incame for the perlod attnbutable e
common equity haofders of the Porent Company by the weightad averaee number of issued,
subscribed and oucstanding cemmon shares during the period, with refroactive adjustment for amy
stack dividends declared.

Diluted 2arnlngs per share i computed in the same manner, adjusted for the effects of any
potentially dilutive corvertible secyritles,

Fvants AHer the Reporting Period
Any past-year-end evant that provides additlonal informaticn about the Group's financial pasizion at

the end of the reporlng pericd [adjusling event] is reflectad in the consolidated fAnanclal
statements, Postyear-and évents that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the rotes to
cansolidated financial statements when meaberial,

Slgniflcant Judgments, Acoounting Estinates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group™s consolidated Rnancial statements requires management 1o meke
judgments, actaunting estimates and assumptions that affect the ameoonls of assels, liabilities,
income and expenses reported In the consolidated financtal statements. These are basgd gn
management’s evafuatlan of relevant facts and cirgumstances as of the dete of the consehdated
linancial statements.,

While the Group believe: that the agsumptions are reasonable and approprlate, signibicant
differenges in the actual experience or slgniflcant changes in the assumptions may materially affect
the estimated amouwnts, Actual resuis could differ fram such estimates,
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The accouniting rstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Changes
in acrounting estimates areé recognized in the perigd in which the estimate |s voviged H the thange
affects ohly Lhat perdod arin the period of the change and future pericods if the revizipn affects bath
current and future periads,

Judgments

In the preeess af applying the Groug's accounting pelicies, management has made the following
Judgrnents, apart from those involving estimatons, whith have the raost significact effect on the
amounts recognized in the consalidated financial statements.

Qetermining e Opercting Segments. The Group's delormination af the operating s=pments it
baved on the infermation about the compornents that management uses k raake decisions about
operating matters, Qparating segments use intemal reports that are regulanly revigwed by the
Group's chief operating declsion maker, which is defined 1o be the Parant Company’s BOD, inarder
to allocate resources b the segment and assess its performanca.

The Group reports separate information about an operating segment that eels any of the
following quankltative chrasholds;

& itz reported revenue, including bBoth safes b0 evternal customers and intersegment sales or
ransfers, is 10% ar more of the comblned revenus, internal and external, of all eporating
EEE_I'nE_."I'Itﬁ._:

» the absolute amcunt of Its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, in absolute
amount, al {i] the oombined reparted profit of all speracing seements that did not report a loss
and [1i] the combined reported loss of all operating sepments that reported g loss; and

* Lhe assets of the segment are 10% o more of the cambined assets of a1l operating segrments.

The Grogup has three reportable aperating segments which are [ts foods, feeds and farms segmeants,
and ane geopraphical segment as the Group's operatiens are lacared in the Philippines. The Group
eperates and derivas all its revense from damestic aperations.

Ciresiiying the Property, Planl ord Equipment end (nvestnent Broperties, The Group determines
whether a property qualifies as an investment property or an item of property, plant and
cqulpment. In making its juggment, tha Group considars whether the property s held primarily to
eam rantals or capltal appréciation ar both, ar used for operations and administrative purposes by
the Grougn.

The carrying amaun's of property, plant and equipment and investinent propertics as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in Motes 11 and 12, respoctinely,

Determindmg tre Highest aod Best Use af fnvesonent Properties. The Group determines the lighast
and hast yse of ks inveslment properties when measuring fale value, In making its jutdgment, the
Group takes inte uccount the use of the [nvestmnent gropervies that is physically possible, legalky
permissible and financialty feasille,

The carrying amounts of inveskent preperties azs at December 31, 2022 and 2022 are disclozed in
tlote 12
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taetermining the Lease Commeflitments — The Group oo 0 Lessor. Leases where the Group reteing
substanlially all the risks and rewards of gwnership of the asset are classified as operathog l2a5es,
Initial direct casts incurred Iy negetlating an aperaing lease are added to the camying amdunt of
the leased asset and racosniced over the leass term on the same basis a5 rental income. Contingen;
rants, if amy, are recognized as revenue in the period in which these are egrnod

Rental income earnad in 2023, 2022 and 2021 are disclosed i Note 24,

Determining the Lease Torm ghd Tacremental Borrowing Rate. The lease term is 2 significant
component In the measurement of Bath the RO assets and tease llablitles. judgment is excrolsed
in determining whether thera Is reasonable certalnty that am aptlom o extand the lease or purchaze
the underlyving asset, IF any, will be exercised, or an aptlon to terminate the lease will not be
exercisad, when ascertaining the periods b0 be included in the lease term, In determlming tha laase
terrn, all facts and circumstances that create an economlcal incenlive 1o pxercise @n extension
cptinn, or not 10 exerdse a termination option, are cansidered at the lease commencement date.
Factors conslderad may include the importance of the asset to the Group's operatlons, cormparison
af torms and conditions to prevalling market rates, incurrence of significant penalties, esistence of
significant leasehold improvements, and the costs and disnuption to replace the asset, The Group
repssesses whether b 15 reasonably certain to exercise an extension aptlon, of nol exercise a
terminatian opticn, if there is a signiflcant event or significant change in circumstances.

Where the interast rate Implicit In £ l@ase @nnot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing
rate |¢ ettimated Le discount fujure lgase payments to measure the presani wvalue cf the lease
liabilities at ihe lRase pommencement date. Such a rate is based on what the Group estimates il
wodd have 10 pay & third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtaln an assel of & similar value
to the RO assets, with similar terms, security and ecenamle environment. The Group uses its
general borrowing rate ad)usted for the leate terms, securities of an iter with the wndedylng natuee
af the leased assats and ewpuctations of residual valug, armong others,

The carrying amaunts of ROL ascats and lease liabilitics as at December 31, 2023 and 2922 are
disclpsed in Note 24,

Assesping Erovlsions ond Curtingencies. The Group evaluates legal and adeinlstrative proceedings
o which it is frvolved based on analysis of potentlal regules, Mandgemnent and its legal counsels do
not believe that any current proceedlnps will have material adverse effects on its coasolidated
financlal positlon and results of eperations. 1t is possite, howewver, that futlre results of operalions
could be materially affected by changes in estfmates or In the offectiveness of sirategies relating 1o
these procesdings,

Accoubting Estimarss and Assumptions

The tollowing are the key assumptions concerning the futuere, and ather key sourpas of estimation
unperiainty at the end of reperting peried that have @ significart nisk of causing o matenal
adjustrment to the carnying ampunts of asseis and liabilities withen the next Financial year

Aszessing the FCL on Trpge Recefvobies, The Group ionilially uses a prowision matrix based on the
historlcel default rates Ffor lrade receivables. The provision matrly specifes provicion rales
depending an the number of days that 4 pecelvable 5 past due. The Group then calibrates the
provisien matrix 1o ad|ust histasical credit loss experdence with forward-looking informatian on the
basis of currenl cbservablc data to reflect the effects of current and forecasied eooncmic
conhditlons, asapplicable.
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The Graup adjuste historical default rates if ferocasted aconamic conditions such as gross domestic
preeduct are expectad to dateriorate which ean lgad to increaszed number of defayls in the industry,
The Group regularly roviowe the methodology end assumptions vsed for estimating ECL to reduce
any differances hawwwen astimates and actual cradit [0ss experienoe,

The determination af the correlatlon batwean hislorical default rates and forecasted economair
canditions iz & signfficant @slimate,  Accardingly, the provision for ECL of trade recaivables is
sansitive 1o changes in assumptions about forecasted ecancinic condilions.

The amount of provisign far ECL and the carrying amoeune of the Group's trade receivables as at and
tor 1he years ended Degembor 31, 2023 and 2022 are disclpsad in Naote 6,

Eximraling the SCL of the Receivable from am insurgnce Campany  The Group is currently invo ved in
legal procesdings ta pursug the collection of ILs rernaining insurance claims far typhoon damages
frorn an insurance tampany, The determination af whether the insurance claims receivable is still
redlizable requires cansultations with legal counsel and managetnant’ s estimate of the allowanca for
ECL based on the prabability-welghtad estimate of the present value of all cash shortfalls guer the
axpected sattlement of the claims.

Management and ks [egal counsal believe that the angoing litigatlon an che rermaining ¢lalmns will
noL result to any significant adverse impact on the Group's Anancial condition and results of
operatinns. Thus, no provigion for ECL was reconnized in 2023, 2022 and 2021,

The carrying amcunt of réceivable framm an insurance company and the allowance for ECL recognized
as at Decernbar 31, 2023 and 2012 ane deselosed in Mowe £0.

Asszesing the f00 o ORred Fintoooio! Assets of Amortized Cost fexcluding Trode Receivokfes eng
Recaivanle o e inturonce Company]. The Group dedermlaes the allowance for BCL based on the
probatilivy-weighted estirmate of the present value of all cash shartfalls over the ekpocted life of
financial ssets at amortled cost. ECL is provided for cred|t [ossos that resuit fram possible default
events within the neat 12 manths unless there has been a signiticant increase in credit rlok sinee
initial recognition, in which case ECL are provided based on lifetime ECL,

When determining if there has been a significant [ncrease in credit risk, the Group considess
reasonable and suppartable infermation thal i available withaur undue cost or effort and that is
rafevamt for the particular flnancial instrurnent being assessed such as, bul nol limited to, the
following factors:

«  actual or expected external and internal credit rating dewngrode;

«  existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, fimancial or conorme cendibions;

+ achual gr expected signtflcant adverse changes in the operating results of the borcower: or

» significant changes In credit spread, rmAtes or iemms such as more strimgent cowenants and
Incrazcted amount of ¢ollataral or guarantecs.

The Group also considers financigl assels that are more than 1202 days past due to be the latest point
arwhich [ifetime ECL should be recognized unless it can demanstrate that this does not represent &
slgnficant risk in credit risk such a5 when non-payment was an administrative oversight; rather tham
resulting Frorm financial difficulty of the borrower.

The amount of proavislan Far ECL rmecognized in 2023, 2022 and 2021 are disckased in Nate 5.
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Estimeting the Foir Value of giotogicol Assets, The fair values of the Group's higlopical assels are
baied on the mozk religble estimate of market pricas at the end of the reporting period. The fair
values of day-old chlcks, prowing broiters and parent stock were deterrmined using the incame
approacl which considers the net tash fows expected to be generated from the sale of dey-okd
thicks, zale of fully-grown broders a8 dreseed chickens and net cash flows expected to be Zenorated
fram parent skock, These are measured as Leved 1in the fair value heerarchy,

The cash flow projectlons indude spenific estimates of Lhe hatching period, the harchahility and
maonality rates, and volume of haryest, In addition, the significant unobservable inputs also inclode
the estimated future sales arice of day-old chicks, dressed chickens and parent stock, as well as the
astirnated casts to be incurred in the hatching, growing and dressing pracesses, as applicable,

Generally, the estimated fair value would increase (decrease] if the estimated future sales price,
cash inflows, hatchability rates or volume af production were higher {lower], Meamvhile, the
gstimated fair valua would increase |decrease] I the gstbimalad £osls 1o ke ingurred in the hatching,
growing and dressing pracesses or estimated morlality rates were lower (higher].

The gain ar Igss on faic value chamges of Eiolagical assets recopnlzed under "Revanuas” in the
fonsolidated sLatements af comprehansive incoime (n 2023, 2022 and 2021 are presented In Note 3,

Lsiirating the Revoived amounts of Property, Plent npd Eguipment fexcleding Troassortetion
Equipment and CIF)  Yhe Group measures it property, plant and equiprment lexgluding
transportation equipment and CIP] at revalued amaounts with changes in @i value bemg recogalzed
in ACI.

In determinihg the revalued amounts of propedty, planl and cquipment lexcluding transportaticn
equlpment and CIP), the Group hired independent firme af appraisers s at Decerber 37, 7023 and
2032, In order o arrive at 4 reasonable valation, the appraisers persondlly inspected the
propertigs, requested information from reputable scurces and considered the foliowing: {a) Ltalaty
anad markat value of the land; (B) cost of reproduection of the raplaceable propecty; fo] currenl prices
for similar-use property m the seesrd-hand market; (d) age, conditich, past maintenance, and
present and  prospective  serviceability in comparlson with mew assets of similar kind;
(e} accurnulatad depreciatian; (f) lease ratog; and () recent trends and develapment | the industny
CONCErmea.

The carrying amounts of praparty, plant and equipment at revalued amounts as at December 31,
2023 and 2022 are disclased inNote 11,

Sehimoling the Usaful Lives of Property. Plent ond Sguipmant. The Group reviews andually the
estimated usedud Nves of proparty, plant and equipmcnt basad on expected asset's utilization,
miarketl dernands and future technological development. It is possible that the factars oaentioned
may chzn@e in the future, whith coulg ¢ause @ changs In estimated usefel lves. A meduction in
eshimated useful lives could cause @ sgnificint increase in depreciation and amortization of
property, plant and 2guipment,

Therg werz no changes in the ettimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment in 2023, 2033
and 2021, The earrying amounts of propery, plant and eguipment as at Necember 31, 2023 and
2027 are disclosed in Note 11,
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Eslipniting Fhe Fenr Vielde of Investment Propertice,  The Group’s investment properties arg
measurad al fair values. The Group works closely with external qualfied apprasers who perfonms
the valuation using appropnate Yalualion technigues, The Group estimates axpected foture ash
flows, yields, and discount rates

The wvaluaticn echnlques and Inpats used in the fair value measuremeant of investment properties,
a% well as the carmying amounts of investinent properties as al December 31, 2023 and 2022 are

dizclgzed in Mate 12,

AssEssing the impoicekent of Noafraonciel Assets, The Group assesses impdlmont on nenfinanclal
assets whensver evants or changes In clrcumstanees ndicane thae the arrying amount ot an asset
may net he recgueralle, In assescing whether there is any indlcation thak an aszet may be impained,
the Group considers the exrernal and intermal sources of Informatlon  External fowrces of
Information include but are not limited to unexpected sipniflcant dedline in market valua and any
other signffirant changes with an adveree affuct o the Group, whesher it had taken plase durlng
pericd or wlll take place in the near futare in the market, economilc or lepal environmeant in whic
thiz entity operates or in the market t which the asset is dadicated. Internal sources of infamatian
include avidence of obsolescence wr physical damage on an asset, significant changes with an
advarse effect an the Group whether it had taken place during the perlod, or are expecled ko take
plata in the near Futurz, to the extent te which, or in a manner in which, an asset is ysed or is
expectad to be used, and ary other evidenca that indicates that the economic performance of an
as5et 15, ar will be, warse than expected,

Whenaver the carrying amount of an 3t exceeds itc racoverable amount, an impaiment loss |s
recagnited. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair valoe less cost to sell and valus in
us2, The fair value less cast to 52l is the amount ehtainable (rom the sale of an asset in an arm's
length transaction while value inuse is lhe presant value of estimared future cazh Miows expected o
arisg from the canlinaing use of an asset and from Its chsposal at the and of it useful 1ife. The
vitimated cash flows are projected uslhg giowth rabes based on histarical experience and burs|ness
plans and are discounted using pretax discaunt rates that reflect the cumrent assasstrent of the tirne
yalue of maney and the risks specific to the asset,

Recoverzble amourts are estimated for Inglndual assets or, if it 5 not possible, for the cash-
gengrating unlt to which the 1328t belongs.

Mo pravision for impairment loss on nonfinancial assets was recopnized in 2023, 2022 and 2021

The carrying amaunts af nonfinancial assets which consisrs of advanoes to officers and employees,
ether cumrent assets, property, plant and equipment, nvestment properties, other noncurrent
asaets |oxcluding security depesits) and RO assets and are disclosed in MWetes B, 3, 11, 12, 13 and
2.

Esltmoting the Aetirgrment Liobility. The deteminatton of the Growp's abligaticn and cost for
pernsion and other retirement beneflts is dependent on selection of certain assumptians ged by
actuaries In calculatlng such amounts. Those assumptions are described in MNote 23 o the
consliduted financial statements and include among athers, discount rate and salary increase rate.
White the Group believes that the assumplions are reasonable and approprate, sigmficant
differences |n actual ewperience ar significan: changes In assumptlons matarially affart ner
relirernent liability.
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Tha farnying amaunts of net retirerment liakility as sk December 31, 2023 and 2022 are disclosed In
hobe 273,

Assessing he Realzobility of Ceferred Tax Assets. The Group's assessment an the recognitlon of
deferred tax assets on deductlble Lemporary differences and carryforward benefits of unosed
NOLLC is based on the prajocted rasable income in the following periods. Based on 1ha prajectiaon,
net all Futurs deduetible termperary differences will be realized, therefore, anly @ portion of deferred
1ax assels wayg recopniged,

As at December 31, 023 and 2022, the @rrying amounts of recognlzed deferred tax asz=ts and the
amount of unrecognized deterred tax astets which management has assessed mey nat be realized In
the [uture, are disclosed in NOLe 25,

Prior Perlod Adjustmants

The consolidated fingncial sletaaents as at and for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been
restated 1o reflect the reclassification 1o property, piant and equipment of the Parent Company's
investrient propetties which are being operaled by BYC, as a result of the consolidarion of ByC's
tparations k3 the Parent Company effective January 1, 2022 (see Nate 33]. Accordingly, the
edjustmants also included reclssitications from gain on change in fair value of lnuestmant
propertles in prafit or dess to revaluation surplus inOC), as wel] as the corresponding recognitian of
depreciation charges of propery, plant and equipment in profit or loss, and othar restaternants o
defermred taxes as presentad in the related motes lo consolidated financial statements.

The net alfects of the priar period ad]ustrments and reclassifications on the Group's eonsolidated
financial statements as at Decermber 31, 2022 which accowrnted far less than one percent of total
equlty are a8 folfoes [Tnomillions):

Retalned
AspalE Llabilkies Efuity Earnings g
Az paeviaushe reparier RE 2482 B3, A%2.7 #1,356,0 REF3.E RaIRL
Frioy period adjustrise its and
reclasalfizaticrs 1373) e 4 17.] {2.4] 14.6
A A e F5 221349 |2 e BlB7%.. A2T3d Bl y
Cash
Thls accaurst consists of:
_ 2023 2022
Casnan hand RE,G63,1E7 £4,752, 2068
Cash in banks ] 391,601,574 AG4,564 A58

R398,263,061 Fi65,416,726

Fash in Banks garn Interest at prevailing bank deposit rates and are immediately availabla for use in
the furrent operations.



-1

Imtarest income earned from cash in hanks amcunted to #0 1 milllon s 2022, 2022 and 2021.
Tetal interest income recognized un Lhe consolidated staweenents of comprehensive income perzin
b the fiol lowlng:

Note ) 2023 2022 021
Cash in banks Al1E E45 108 260 #14p,284
Trade receiyvghlas ] 1,320,538 &89, 595 1,146,861
m1,5356,751 Wil GO 454 pl1.2934,14 5 .
E. Trade and Dther Receivables
This actount consists of
More 2ms 2022
Trade receivables fram:
Third partics FEZ0,200, 061 FEFD.515,851
Reldated parties 18 143,528,241 218,307 603
Montrade recenahles 83,973,350 109,003 431
Advances 1o oflcers and emplovees 26 23,202 566 10,003, 504
O her receivables 24,5935 %68 24,262,385
1,106,591 156 1,005,298, 774
Allowance for ECL . [155,583,407) [17),355,251)

P43 857,774 RE#1,043,523

Trade recensabias anlsing rainly from she sale of feads, foods and lvestack are genarally callectible
writhin 30 to 90 days. These recelvablos bear interast ranging frem 1.00% to 2.00% dn 2023, 2022 and
2021 Intengst from owerdue trade regeivables zmounted to 1.4 milhan, #2.3 million and
B1.1 millian in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectlvely (500 Nota &),

Nontrade recenables comprise malndy of receivables arising fram the Group's incidental incoma,
These are unzecured, nonirtersst-boasing and are uspally settled within 30 to 90 days.

adwances to officers and employees include salary and other loans grantad bo employees which are
generally noninterest-kearing | nature and sallectible throuzh salary deductions, This alse Imeludes
cash advances iar business purposes that are =ubject to liquidatian,

Lther receivables mainly consisr of shart-term rental deposits and receivables from government
AEBACIEs.
hcyenents in the allowance far ECL actount are shown belaw!

Advancgs to

DHreers and
. g Trade Hontiede  Employess Citheers Tatal
Bala-ice oy at lasoary 1, 2025 PORD2E, 150 FER156,26E M3 2A0ETY 13,919,258 m)T1.355,251
Promaslan far ECL L H 3,930,562 - - - 3,539062
Reclassifaation [3.404 275) [12,514.339) !il'iEE‘_ﬁEDj (135032) (15, 310406}

Ralange a5 35 DEEEIT'II:EIFI 31, 2028 MBS, 162,329 BTL,3d1 93] A1,303.917 W13, 775,227 WiG5 GAY ALY
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Advances ta

Lfflzers ard
Hote Trade Manbreda Ertigliy i Telv=ia Tutnal
Ba'ance s 2t lamany 1, 2032 854 335 5.7  PE3, 156, zB= F3, 260,572 RIZF10259 FlE9,p50.610
Premialan far ECL 0 w615 - - - 1704 635
Bxanoe o 3t Egpgriber 3@2;_ WEGA2E.151  BEB 156 Z6E F1200,072  BT1,9740,2%9 E171,355,2%1

In 2023, manapement reclasified allowonoe for ECL af receivables aggregating ®1%.3 millian to
allowance for impdirment |osses of advances to suppliers and other current assets, as @ result of the
reclassificatian of the related gross recelvables to advances Lo supplicrs amounting to F10.9 mitlion
and advances w0 contract growers and breedars amounting to P4 million (see NHote 7).

Inwenbaries

This account conslsts af:

2023 2022

AL WRA -
Fasds m333 652,047 R2G5.341,476

AL cost

Raw maberlals and feeds supplemeants 324,370,311 435 228,997
Supplies and arimal health products 132 404 593 90,366,151
Finished goods 74,855,681 23,525,061
Hatthing eges 55,353,509 43.231,754
RO24 534, 08B REG3, 367,449

Irwénlories are valued ab lowar of cost and MAY &5 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, The cast of
feeds carried at MRY amounted to #3346 millian and #266.2 millian as at Becember 31, 2023 and
f022, respeclively. Inwentories charged to oost of goods sold amowunted to #9.358%5.3 million,
#5,325.0 millian and &7,627.6 million In 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively [see Mote 19}

Allowance farinventory obsolesconce amounted to P09 million as at December 31, 2022 and 2022,

Biologlcal Assets - Livestook

The Group’s livesiock consists of the following:

03 22z
Zaw-old chicss and growing Ergelers PE9,.607 544 H110 095, 735
Farentstock 39,762,415 5,02%,01%
W119,39q 759 Hllﬁ,ll-é-,?ﬁﬁ

Movements of the Group's Ivestock are as fallows:
Moe F{ S 2028
Balance at beginning o vear F1l5,118.755 RSZ,A4F. T
Ingregse due 1o production 6,240,523, 100 5.163,2498,.1
Decrease due tosales, harvest and martality 6,288, 8565,517] 18, 130, 5453 627]
Gain dlass] an felr value changes 14 (47,774,574 10,936,43E
Balance at end of year 123,394,755 #115,118 755
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9. Other Currant Assets

This aocount cantisls of;

2023 2022
CWTs ®11F12{0. 263 NED.E1a, 5AY
Mdvanoes to centract growers THO27,12) 47,545,420
Prepayments 60,357 861 49,606,412
Inpuk ¥AT 19,4B5 251 15,103,433
Advances 1o contract breeders 10,054 368 8.%87.452
273,584 884 203,060, 230
Allcwanze far impalement Josses (55,122,665) [4G,748,581)

RE23BEZ, 229 RISG, 311,704

Mawvements in the allowance for impairment losses of advances to contract growers and conlract
breeders as at December 21, 2023 and 2022 are 3s follows:

Mite 2023 2023
Balance at beginning of year Rd6, 748,582 R45,T4E 582
Feclasslflcation B 8,374 083 —
Balarroe ot end of year RSG5, 122 BES R45, 798 582

10, Racaivable from an Insurance Company

The Parent Company has an ouistanding insurance clalm for typheon darmages From Charter Fing An
Insurance Corporation (Charte: PIng Ahl Pursuant to the Insurance Code, the Parent Company is
enlitler! Lo interest on 8 clairm at 3 rate twice the celling prescribed by the Monetary Board
beginning ddarch 12, 2010, or 90 days fromm the date the Paren: Compary filed tha clalm,

On august 17, Z015, the Parent Company recerved RSS9 million as partial settlement,
on hay 31, 2023, the Regional Trial Court {ATC] of Bolacan gramted the claim of the Parent
Company and ardered Chartar Fing An to pay the insurance claim, o which Charter Ping 2n filad a
Motice of Appeal with the Court of Appeals (C4) inbanlla City, On June 14, 2023, the RTC of Bulegan
Issued an Crder directing the records of the case to be foerwarded to the Court of appeals, Manlla
City. The Parent Company wilt file a Motien for Exsacatinn Pendlng Appoal bafare tha CA.

Management and its legal counsel belleyve that the ongeing litigation an the remaming claims wiil
not result [n any sipnificant adwerse impact on the Group's financidl condition and results of

aperatiens.

The cotnpasition of the receivable as at Necembar 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follaws:

Cust Pl141,064 543
&l lowange for ECL _ (71,160,773
F70,203,E10

The Parent Company continues to legally pursue the remaining batance of the Insurance tiasn as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, Mo provisions nor write-aff of allgwance Tor ECL of Lhe receivable
were recogniced in 2023, 2822 and 2021.
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11. Property, Plant and Equiprnont

At Revaiued Amounts

Tre compositicn and meovements of the Group's property, plant and 2gqulprmont carnicd at revalued

Amaunts are as ollows:

) ] w23
Llapeha{d pnd  OF%m Ryt
Plant, Mach nery Lured Flilumes mref
Lirid dme EQuiemmt Huldlwz  Impmarcams LqulpTam Teknl
Cacc
Brippie m beprning cl pea MO Da 030 P, N0l 35, 00D LEFER A H Lt R FEREL] P, AERTOE PRk w4149
Rzdlions - 15459, S TA0 ‘WHL2ES T.ILT 7 E2.191,2317
raasglicgbions frpo S P - QL ALD 11k, S, B LELL,ZIN AT ASA LM, 681, BTN
Jbpcak - 17 24.0L1) - - {130 AT} 1AL
Eyualuplinn ZEIILIGO LR ETETE [5.6E7, P44 [t,2d1,%05) " 10, 94T, B4
Mo alend cf wear LEFECE AT ] l.ﬂ_'.,iu,:l.tnl- FErTTIN e [TEITEC 1050, AT L GA7, 3,051
Ao Dol | By O i Cl L o and
Amatawdipn
Ealiee ab Ly i plpque - o7 3T E5] BE L TER 33579552 354149, b5 SEL5TE, 182
Qipprac sikal ind anenibealicn a1 1t dnr 14,0,k FELTR R BA%, TAY 1.8, TRLEI5
O wp2sili - |27 24,311} - L - (131, M11] [ 254, B1F)
Dalantr ot end nfyrar R TN T R T FT W S SR | S T N TN
arnng AawHind PA12.548 1L MEa ke LR A | L I P U F] I ET6.5d0 WL S5 ARE.138
I T
O] Iy reanaleqi - oem Noce &1
Leehoide-d Ol Farndion,
FunL, Wadingy lLand Fijjyras g
Hma hawed  aned Equprcn Buldng _ mipmossneru .. EquizmaiL_ 1 kal
capl
Belance 2r bhepl i v of =ed, 4
pury cundy repnrked 1e24, 15,827 E3E,L1:,028 FLT3ALL, 750 PI5E2s00] M ERZIDE RO BRSO
I pevied Fesclab LM2duanl 12 e B | 250 471,247 111.361 520 23,1187:7 - T, 5 314
Balnze acbogatnlwg aleea:, du
sk ylmd 534537 B23582 135 316304, +10 A b5 M0 QARDD dwy 1 AIN TN
addxGnd - LI oL BN, T8 1,287.003 L1,EMDA I B51.97
Add § Gns oo eogquislikon o B
b ulary 43 - BALL55E - 11,245, 26 1,695, BE e, 653 SR
Az paHicadoe s Ircm CIF L b LIERES CFTHRE] =1 e ] - 6,260 45
Blapeaals - 1436,233) - - 37,53 %, g1, 404
Adpsimeark: . - - - §1,3F 1, 2046 o1,241,200]
Reval i TILALAAL] 11279315 |+, 929 E35) LA L GED {1, 190367 114, B30 06
Oulutizr sk dnd alyen- 4, 156050 1ML 350w 325,300,085 33,-13,33 LR o] 2ATS 54 149
dgrummebried Qezees wlen and T
Al s ean
Hplpnre m pegn-ing 2 vear - 48k 556,372 71,3217 R AR 1LE LERE. TS A4°150E, 719
Cepraciainon e Ainwiledl i - AL 538,950 14,BEG 472 Ba9]ols Ligq],v»9 L5 A1E a7
AgdHions tom acLisdon ol a
dutamliry =1 - 1,080, 150 - 2BEEK3, 23] 314, 7ES 33 91], F41
Facamlzakan . - - (r5.Es0 §AT5.EE01
Dopnea - -E-,B'.S,jﬂl - - JAL T8 13,920 i)
gowee w end o verr - 357,337,BE1 E4,24a, 25 51 nIE 63 a5 379,345 PRSI
Carplog AEelinL -E s LT L1 W43 KA H.e::'-,:.'r,;:l:: mi.m [ EL LG AT M) [MZ A7) A5GE

Revaluation increment an property, plant and equipment amountod to #33.6 mulllon, #125.8 mitlion
and BI04 malllon in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectivaly.

Had the sbowe praperty, plant and equiprent been measurad rsing the cost madal, the carmving

amaouncs wWienld have beeh s follows:

2023 2022

Land P3I55 351 190 R3I55 331,190
Flant, machineny and equlprment 645 213, 120 580,747,224
Buildings 308,661,367 265,293,465
Leasehold and land improvements 35218977 45,031,71E
Cfice Turn lbure, fiskures and equipment 11,763,016 17415683
F1,350,1E8.530  #1204.E13.284




i i
The Growg's propety, planl ang equipment [eacept for transportation equiprment and consbroction ins
progress) wera appralsed by an ndependent flem of appraisers as at Cecember 31, 2023 ang 2322,

Details of the valuation techniques used in measuring fair values aof property, plant and eguipment
classifled undar Levels 2 and 2 ol the falr valoe hicrarehy are as follones.

A3"pE
Clavy of *roaerby Waldatlon Teckminuae  Sign firant Irpts b lind | plak ¥
Land Eales comparisan Arisg PRl Squarg engler [sgmp  M2,9E5 - PI10,500  ®1,54H - REQTD
aparcach Valimz adju st enls % -3 9% - 39%
Plane, Machinety and ecuiprent . Depreoated ArpERg Mot oogk E3IE.2 milpn E3ws.A millgn
ngEL3 et Lok Seifailling elanamli lide 1 - 25 yrs 3 - 25 years
meLhed
Seceuanted cazhJlaw Caacaurtrale 11.01% 11.75%
Lt Flappraach Far mantthy rank B4 milllan- R1.2 rlilinn -
M. 0 mdlon B2.2 millan
Buildings Capredated FE[laceran st BLTE, Toallne FLPGT wilion
replacertiel cual M imaining economi: e T-2% years 7 ihyeara
methed
LIF appraarh Nlgga,Ink rane 11.M% 11 75%
Frex Picafithly rent P2 milllon - 1.2 milliam -
F1.2 millegn 813 midllay
Lrm<Abalr ane Diearecigkad ReplacemEnt codt R20.3 mlllkon #2121 Tilllon
Boad e e e s repldt=men: castl Rema ming ecooomuc ||F;: X - 3vygars rEL Y H
methad
QCF appraack Diseuant rate 1101% 110457
Pgr mpathly rant POl miliam RI.Lrlllizn
LrHIpe furnsyra, fiures 2ac Deprec-alad fieplacemant casd 122 millilan ¥11.omillinm
agulpir et replacomeAt cost Kemain ng Acar omic bie I -a yAors F - ypagns

mathgd

The descrlption of the valuation technigues and inputs used in the fair value measurement are as

fullows:

Saigs Comparizan Approach

Lales compansen approach invelves the comparisan gf the Group's land to these that are more ar
less located within the vicinily of the appraised properties and arc subjoct of recent sales and
offerings. fd|ustments were made to arrive at the markat value by consideringe the location, size,
shape, uthsty, dasivaboliy and vime elerment.

The inputs to fair valuatinn are as follows:

»  Prize per fgrn - estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the [catlan,
areq, shape and time alemant,

»  Volue odiustments - adjustments are made to Bring the comparative valoez in approximation to
the property taking irtlo account the location, size and architectural features amang others.
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Depreciofed Replocermneant Cogt Methan

Deprecated replacement cost malhod is used to estimate valuation of plant, machireny and
Bquipment, bBuldings, leaszhold and land improvements znd office furndture, flutures and
aquipment by compuoting for the replacement cost of the atsels and applying appropriate
adjustmants far physical deterlarateon and functional and econamic obsolescence.

Gencraliy, significant increases [decreases] b depreciated replacement cost in fsolation would resolt
in a significantly higher [lower) fair value measurement.

Discowted Cosh Flaw Aporoaoh

Undar 1he DCF approach, a property’s fair value |5 cotimated wsing explicit assumptions ragarding
the benafitzs and liabitities of owncichip aver the asset's estimated useful e including an ext or
terminal walue. As an agccepiad method within the income approach to valuation, the DEF approach
nvolves the projection of a ceries of cash flows on a real proparyy interest. An appropriate,
markat-derived discount rate s applled Lo projecied cash Aow series o establish the prasent valuc
af the income stream atsocialed with the investment property.

Pericdlc casa flaws af investment prope itles are typically estimated as gross income less vacancy
and operating expenses. The serles of pericdic net aperating incame, along with an estimate of Lhe
terminal value antlcipated at the end of the projectlon perlod, s then diseouniod.

The [tequency of inflows and cutflows are conteact and market-derived. The DEF approach assumes
that cash outflows Docur i the same period 1hat expenses are recerded.

Generally, signifizant increases (decreages) in monthly rental rate per huilding, leasehold and land
improgvements and machinery and equipmant in isolatlon would rasult In a significantly higher
{lower) fair value measurement. Signiflcant incredsec {decragses) in discount rate in fizolatinn wold
result inoa signifcantly lower (higher} fair value measuramant.

The revonciliation of the balances of progerty, plar and eguipment classified according to level in
the fair value hierarchy is as follows:

2023

Slgaiticam Lignlticant

Oherval e Inprcs Uroh:ermable
. [Leuel Zp Inputs |Lewel 3 ToRal
Balaros at beginning of waar a0 155 050 PORETIZGIZ PLAYZEFT G2
Met revaluation irceement 28 202 260 530,599 33,907, B0y
Ml acadlteons - 1HHS3F?, 140 188,937,140
Capreciatior and amertlzatlan - nel of dis gasals - {11%.341,773] 115,341,773}
Balance ar end of year F537,448,110 R1,017,010H29  B1545 406,138

20432 (Ao rBstatec - see Mota 4,

Slenificant Signlficant

Obsarvabla Inpurs L habmva bl
Mote [Level 2} npure {Level 5) Total
Ba 'arw= 4t kaginning nf pear K7 75,341 587 EHST,114% 544 8. R3:,457 551
ez rwaluation ircremert 12E,B14.402 b ] 4 125,138,210
Mer ad3ile g - 187 560471 189 360 876
Additions From 2oqulsitiz ot o whswary i3 - B, A3%, 713 089 013
Dapreclatiar and amoitizatios . ] - [105,418,38&! (2007, =24, 388)
Ralance at end of year WEI TLE S Fa38,.721,912 F1.B432,&77952

Thiere arc na transiers betwearn the desels of fair value hierarchy in 2023, 2022 and 2021,



At Cost

The following transportadlon equipment and constractinn in-progress [(CIF] are cared 3t cost:

1023
Tras: partares

Equirrent CIP Tatal
Cingt
Balgnza at begingng oF year RS, 017 934 N121,735,649 171,754,573
Additions S24,480 30,599, 50 31,223,045
Aeclassifizatines - 1109 661,638) [1r3,561,63E]
Dizpoisal 13,515,234 - |3.515.i]4!
Balance at end of yoar 45,127,170 43,670,517 B ROL AT
hrn:l.irnurll:-ud Copraciation ’
Ba arce at begimlng ol vear 45,113 M0 - 45,113,110
Mrepreclatian 2.548, 700 - 2548, o0
I spoaEal (1453, 73dp - {24%53,134]
Bal*4ce at gnE 97 ygar 44 208 965 u i, J0H 985
CImllngﬂwm BRI 8105 Hdd 61,517 frd5, 092, T2

o 2023
Trasisporkaisen

Equlpirent CIp Total
st
Rakance at begsnning of yaar P43, 160,960 F38,600,957 REG, ERO,51 T
Addrtizns 416,961 7451 BE2 17518618
Additions fram acgizitlon of a suazidiary 430,050 - 430, M0
LdjLstmerss . 12,351,522 12551 224
Reclazsiicatigns - :E,.IE-E,-:I-'EI&:I 1%, 2606 494]
Balarce aTard o year A0 017924 14, F46,E4T 171,754,577
Accumarlated Depraciation .
Balanne as aegirn Ag af year 4 2 red - 40,870 1R
Oepres atign 4 552,52 - 4,03 05
dulditivrs from arguisinon of @ suEsldiary PR SET - WHEET
@nﬁ* ak Erld_nf wedr 45,113 943 - 45,113,940

K153 T3R50 F12E E40 633

CAr fyiriz amount

3,003,953

CIP represents cost of raw materigls, general construction works and installation costs incurred in
the constructicn of the Group's offices, cabling installation, piplng, bagping system installation and
ather dewelapments. Cempleted constructlon coste amounting ta B109.7 million, P83 milllgn and
F15.0 millign in 2023, 202% and 2021, raspectivaly, wers reclassified to appropriate property, plant
and equipment accounts. As at Decernber 31, 2023 and 2022, there are ne significant contractyal

commltments entared into by the Group,

In 2023, 2022 and 231, the Group =0l proparty, plant and equipment and [nvestimant properties
For @ cesh consideration resulting t0 a galn {less| on disposal amounting te ROS millon,
[®1.0 millien) and (@1.1 milliar), respectively (fes Nole 22).

As at December 31, 203 and 2022, (ully depreciated property, plant and equlpment teae are still

belng used by the Group amounted to F283.5% nulllon and B239.3 million, respectively.



Depreciatian  ard  amorbzaton  expense
comprehengive incorme ara a5 follows:

-30-

retagnized in

the copnesolidated statements of

ALkt A
|As rastated -
Metd 2023 see Mate 4] 2an
Froperty, plant and equipmenit:
At rava uzted amounts Fl11g,758,5E5 R105, 415 357 HEO I 223
AE cost 2,54E, 755 4.033.82 4,922,084
RO asgets X 22,954,014 14,723,732 17,075,047
Camputer software 13 33950021 5,795,513 . 3A.67E,10d
M147,740, 275 R132,471,153 R106 0B 621
Deprecialion and amortization expanse ware charged 1o the follow!ng:
2022
[A= restated -
Mk 2023 eeNota g 2021
Cost 0f gaods zold 15 105,338,133 K35 994 34 R7E, 16, 730
Lpcriating expenzes; 20
Selling and Cistrizution 26,754,216 21042518 17,509, 446
Administrative expenses 15,657,920 15,330,001 16,680,015
42,402,136 36,972,519 33,0R0,89°
Rid7,740,279 R132,971153 R106,0066%1

12.

Invastrment Properties

This cansists af the Graup’s parcels of land arising Irom the fareclosure of properties as settlemant
ef its customers” liabilities to tho Group, and properties which are keld atther to 8arm rental income
or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of businass ar for
adminizirative pUrposes.

Investment properties are measurad using che falr value model, The campesitisn and movements

n this acooun; are summarized belaw:

2023

_L.ar!d Buildirg Torat

Balancs at baginning of year, 4% cost A17E,.403,468 F1E 5E7 5EE F193,571,053

Additions 1,712,208 - 1,712,209

Disposals {2,853, 74%] - [2,4953,7E5)

Dalange af end of year, ok tost 177,161,292 15,567,585 192,729,477
CurnyBative gin (‘053] on changes in

fair value 109,431,054 [914,190} 103,616,574

Galange at end of yuar, at fair valze K 56,592 956 F14,753,995 F301,346,351
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2022 L
Woke Lend Euilding Tofal
Balancea at beginnlng <f year a3
prew:ous’y reparted, 3% cost &2271.20%,502 R£34.241 190 F3Er 047051
Frior perind raclassificationg 11 +Ad41,171, 7 [419,273,6118) [PECA45,314)
Balanze et beginning of yeur a3 acjusted 181,034,167 15,557,545 196,601,747
Dlsposal 12,620,694} - [2,630,634]
Balance at end of yaar, arcos 174,402,468 15,567,585 193,332,053
Cumu/atlve grin [lggs] or changas in
Fgar valye 45 122,474 613 535! 44,507 389
Halance at end gf voar, ak tair value Ell3-15,942 Fid =48 000 E23R,473,942

The Graug's investrnent propertles were appraised by an independent flrm of apprafsers as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, Gain on change in fair valoe amounted to #64.1 millian, BE25.2 mfllon
and #1.2 mulllan in 2023, 2027 and 2021, respestivaly,

The Group recognized sevenue (rom easing operations amounting b #5.3 million, B7.8 million and
#11.1 milleon i 2023, 2022 and 2021, respactively (see Note 22). Direct costs redated to the |ease of
imvgstment properties amcounted te B1O milllion, #1.1 million and #1.3 milllon in 2023, 2022 and
2021, rezpectively.

Details of the valuarlon Lechniquas used in measurlng far value: of classified under Level 2 of the
fal- value hierarchy are as follows:

RAnge
Clasa of rcporty walyagion Tarkainaes Llgraicant Inpiits Iy pTore]
Lard Sales coamparlsan dpproadh Frice par iquarg rnd e {=qin| a4 - BLT Eod RS0 - P14, 200
vl adjusLrers 5 - TN M- E0%

Soles comparisan approach involves the comparison of the Group’s [and to thosa that are mare or
Ieas lpcat=d within the wicinity of the appraised properiies and are sohject of recent sales and
offerings. Adlustrnents were made to arrlve at the market valuz by consilering the Iocation, size,
shape, ufility, gesirability and time elament.

The signlficant inputs 1o fair valuatian are as follows

®  FPrice per sgm - estimated value prevailing In the real estate market dependiog an the lacatlan,
area, shapo and Lirme alement,

& Ve gdivsteents - adjustments are made to bring the tomparative values in apprax mation wo
the investment property teklng inta account the location, size and archltectural Features amang
cthers,

Megrwhile, pullding was vaived using DLF approach (Level 2] and utilized discount rate and monzhly
rantal rates as significant inputs, Under the DCF approach, 3 propeny’s falr valoe is estimated Using
axplicit assumptions regarding the bensfitz and Nabihtes of awnerzhip over the asset's estimaled
ugelul lile including an axit or temnal value, A< an accepted method within Lhe incorme appraach g
waluation, the DCF approach Inuolves the projection of @ serlos of cash flows oo a real properhy
interest, An approprigte, market-derived discount rate is spplied to projected cash flow series ta
establish the prasent value of the Income sirearmn assoclated with the [nvestme nk property.
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Perigdic cash flgws of investment propertles are typicalhy estimated as gross incarne lass vasancy
and oparating expenses. The serias af periedic net sperating income, along with an estimate of the
terminal valee antisigated at the end of the prejection pericd, is then discounted.

The frequency of inflows and outflows are contract and market-derived, The DCF approach assumas
that cash outflows occur [n the same period that expenses are recorded.

Generally, slgniflcant Increases |decreases| in tha discount rate in isalation would reselt in 3
significantly lower (higher} falr valye measurement, Sigalficant increases (decreases) in rental rate
in Esplation wauld resultin a stgnificantly heghor {lawer] fair value measure ment,

. Gther Noncurrent Assets

This account consisls of:

Nate i) o w2

Pruject develapment costs F31,368,595 #31,358,385
Lecunty deposita 24 12 928 688 1R 229, 324
Compuler Lollware 10,487,976 13,885,097
54, 785,059 63 483 T1E
Allawance for impairment losses (31,368,395} 131, 36K 395}

R23,416,664 #32,215 321

Project development costs represent cxpenses [fcurred on the Group's agua feeds and aqua cultyre
projects. Those were alraady fully provided with valuaticn allowance as at December 31, 2022 and
2022 <ince based on management’s evaleation, these costs may no langer be recoverable.

Computer software is armortized pvarthe economic life of three (3] years, Movoments in computer
soflwarea are as lallows:

MNute A2 2022
Cost
Balance ak beginning of year F33,365, 131 #3435 344,648
Additions ] - 20,483
Balanwe at end of yaar 431,355,131 __-;43-,.355,131
Accumulated Amortization )
Balance at beginning af year 29,479,134 23,683 621
Amartizatlon - 11 3,398,021 5, r95 513
Balange at end of yoar 32,877,155 234791314

Carrying Amount 3 FL0,4E7 976 ®13 555,997
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14. Trade and Other Payvablcs

Thiz gecount contists of;

Hote 2023 227
Trade payvables
Third parties R1,622 253 ¥59  RI GET 742,437
Related parties 26 3,907 36 4,333,414
Apcrued expenses:
Selling and administretive 189, 328 480 175537109
Crutside services 25,803,169 162155967
Cthers 14,E30,005 49,313,293
Montrade payables 148 419 428 G588, 799
Statutory payahles 27,719,615 20,241,561
Lustarners’ depociis . . 14,240,358 45620028

P2,066,852,350 Fz,001, 706,551

Trade payables consist of llabilithes arising frem purchases of Inventories in the normal caurse of
business. These are haninterest-bearing and are gencrally settlad within 30 1o 90 days,

Accrued expanses matnly pertain to selling and admendstrative expenses, outside services, salaias
and wages, freight and handling, gutslde services, taxes and licenses, commissich and supplies,
arung prhers. These are normally sectled within one vear.

Nonirade payables are liabillties arising from purchases of goods ether than mvertaries and various
services ghing rlse to expentes such as trucking fees, utilities, security services and inspection fees,
arnang others. These are narmeally settled within one vear.

Statutory payables coaslst of llabilities to povemment agencies, Thess are normally settlad withrn a
miznth,

Customers’ deposits molude smounts advanced by the customers to the Sraup.

15 Loans Payahble

The Group’s outstanding loans payable to kcal banks amounted o ®2898.1 mllan and
FL025.1 millian as at Decgmber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectlvely The Group's short-term and
lang-termm lpans are not subject to any debt covenants.

2021 023
Lhort-ienm loans EBA5. 476,425 R85 657 064
current portion of lanz-term loans 24,821 429 24,831,439
Current poetlan of laans payable E74,707 355 B35 478 495
Mencurrent portioa of [oan: pavable <3, 8X1,427 43,642,856

REYE,119,285 ©1,035121,35]
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rk-tizr a]Ex]
In 2023 and 2022, 1he Group obtajned unsecured, Pese-dencminated short-term loans from local
banks ta finance its waorking capital requirerments, The Group's thart-tenm loans mature within 90
days and bear annual interegst rabes ranging (rom 6.00% to 6.50%. Gutstanding balance amounted to
#343.5 mllliery and FES0.F million as at Cecemhbar 31, 2023 and 2022, raspectively,

Lipng-ter P
The fallowirg are the Group's long-term loans payable;

a. REE.S milllon promissory nole
Qn Qutober 31, 2018, the Parent Connpanyg eptered Inko an alghi-year [oan agreament with China
Bank Savings, Ing. {"C85%) amountlng Lo ®36.9 rmillion, poyable in 28 guarterly installmenis
starting January 31, 2020 and bearing an inberest mte of 7.A75% ger annum, repriced annuelly
Hepriced |mteresk rate i€ 7. 750% in 2023 and 2508 in 2022, Gutslanding balance amounted to
F24.2 millign and #32.2 million 3s at Decermber 31, 2023 and 2022, resprctive by

b. REE.Q million promissany note
Or December &, 2018, the *arent Carmpany entered into another eight-year loan agreement with
A% amounting o #3E6.9 million, payable in 28 quarterly instaliments, starting hiaech &, 2020 and
beaning ary interest rate of £.125% per annurm, reprlced annually. Repriced interest rate is 7,7 50%
in A02% and §.12%% In 2022, Qutstanding balance ameunted (o #24 8 million and #3172 milllan as
at December 31, 2023 and 2022, resgactivaly,

Total avaliments of ans paydble amounted to B1,740.2 milllon and B2,249 & nealllon in 20232 and
022, ruspectively. Total payments of |pans payable amounted 1w R1E77.2 million and
A1.819.5 millian in 2023 and 2022, yaspactively [see Nate 28]

Interest expen=e on loans payable amownted to BSE.3 million, R35.7 million, znd §20.7 millign in
2023, 2022 and 2021, respectivaby, Tutal interest expense recognized in the consolidaved statemants
of compre hensive income consists of the following;

Nate 023 202 e |
Loans pavehle F&8303,832 RIS, TI5STe  RR0.665.516
Aciretic of tocrest an 24
lease liabilties 7,514, 406 4,266 00 2,385,774

R75,823,288  #A000E 976 R23051240

1&.

Cash Band Deposits

Cash botd depesits amaunting to #6005 million and B56.% millian a5 at December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively, mainly pertaing ta surety band deposiss from contract growers, contracl
brecdors, and aleseen,

Thess are generally romewed on an annual basic and cash band deposits will be refunded upen
termination of Lhe contract.
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17. Equity

LCapital 5tock

dg af December 31, 2033 and 2027, the Parent Company has lssued and oukstanding commnan shares

af 3054,334014 common shares at B02E par value equivalent te B1.: Eillion, ODetall: of the
authorized, issued and outstarding commen shares as st Oecember 21 aee at fal lows:

) § 2023 20272
Authored 3 500, 000,000 2,500,000,000
Issued and cutzkanding 3054 334014 3,.054,334,014
Capital svock R1,150645925 R1 160,646,825
The dezalls aned mowerrrents of the oommen shares [isked wikth PSE follows:
Anthorfzed Mo af
Date of SEC Approval Shares Shares lsgued
Diigher X, 1972 5,000,000 5, OHE QG0
Fay 2, 1973 10,000 A0 10,0400, CHRO
Oetaber 31, 1974 ERL AR T.0ad1000
December 5, 1977 45,000,040 45, C, 00
December 5, 1482 3,003,000 33,000,000
August 11, 1986 200, 000, CrHE 200,000,000
February &, 1934 200000, 00 2003.000,000
Dctaber 15, 2053 3 500,000, 0630 2.AE6497,501
necember 22, 2017 3,500,000, 000 267,836,113
3,044,054, 018

The Farent Company has 4,103 and 4,113 stockholders as at Decomber 31, 2023 and 20122,

respectively,

Crher Comprehensive Inocame

The companents and movanents of ather comprehensive Income are presented balaw:

2022 )
Accumulated
Fevalvation  Remaasurement
Surplus f5eln [Loss) _ Takal
Malance at Beginning of year #433 544,010 F3 956,055 R337,500,065
tevaluatien increment - net of {1 25,154,607 - 25, 194, 60F
Aemeasurement [ass - met of tax - [10,192 8149} (10,192,529
Transfer of reva’uabon sucpheg realized
“hraugh degreialivn 10 retined
___Earnings - net of tax |16, 7E0.410) - {16, TE0.410]
Balance al end of vear ma41,95E, 207 (Bg,23E,774] P35 721433
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2022 _
Aocumulated
Ravaluatlecn  Rermeasurement
o Surplus GEln {Logg) Tulal
Balance at beginning ef yea: R2sE04,817 (R27.88% 015 RI2C,275 807
Revaluat on increment - net »f [ax 07,372,482 . U7 17208k
Yemezsurernent gam - nel of ta: - 31,847,000 31 Bl 07
Transfer of revaluation surplus realized
through degredatlon o retalned
carnings - net of Lax 111,333,239} - (11,895 253
Balance at end of year k433 534,016 B5 456,055 B4 27 S0 0655
15. Revenues
This arcount conslsts of:
Note ] I 2012 <021

‘et sales from:

Foods PG543, Q70,558 B3,241, 3354 413 R4, 341571 (HE

reeds 51280518942  5,193,185.802 4,094,077, 204

Farrog aFZ171LET% 516895636 7223156
1Z,543,694,175 11,057,515851 3,649,367 808
Fair wBlue chasgés ur biclcgizal asses & (47, 773,574] 10,336,433 [22,EE4 221}

F12 405914, 506 B11 068 152,235 #9,526,207,597

1%. Cost of Gaods Sold
This acoount consists of the fallawing:
208%
(e resteted -

Motp 2023 <ee Mome 4) plap

Inwentorles sold ¥ wW3E65,34641% R9.525 00 014 &7 627,567,545
Outsles serviges M4 L125ETRLEIq BGEAML1T7T 712,164,921
Contractunl serdiges 426,201 217 312,262,306 258 517,600
De:prasciation ard amaortizauon 11 105 336, 145 05,998,634 72086, 430
Selarics and cmpooyee bereflts 21 30,852 05 4L 814,519 LR e W
Cemmurcations, light and water 24,024 344 A0, 263, ¥03 51,757,404
Repairs and raintenance 5418, 750 14,643,513 E, 216,556
Othea:s 3,295,455 5,875,758 3,731,646
R11,591. 440,968 R10,A93,647 474 BE, 750,995 623
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20, Dparating Ekpansas

This arcount consfses of the Following:

2z
[As restatod -
2023 see Mote 3] 2021
Administrative expenses RS2 190,873 =usQL1447E &67,811,B38
Selling and di;t_‘_ri'!:lutil:-'-n SRPEIELEs 341,610,353 323,447,130 248,272 611
REDZ 511,266 *Bdd 161 208 #711,0B& 451
The details of operating expenses are 35 fallows:
022
{A= restated -
Note 2023 see Nove 4 2021
Salarles and employes beaslits RI16 880371 RITE VOO0 RIE0064 474
Transpeatation, travel and freight
angd handling 284 EF6.6568 202 AS4,08R 207,870,047
Depreclation erd armorl: sl 12 42 402,136 36,972E51% 33,9540 A3
Publications and subgcrlptlons 40,088,981 35,323,375 33571116
Contractual servges 42,187 852 26,600,604 2051537
Taxes and licenses 29,245,992 26,715,345 17.764,541
Professional fees 27,545,075 34,746,562 210, 504,735
Advertising and pramaklons 19,578 LEG 24 540,837 349,852,731
Representation and enterfainrment 15,475,272 A6, 605,468 24 855,154
Renkals 24 10,252,091 82063477 E 526,712
Comrunications, kght and water 8,763,320 =,GE7.4%96 &, 378,622
supphes B, 5458L0 B398, 714 74371148
Kepaks angd maintenance 536,823 2,097 185 4,121,943
Ins urance 4,700 190 £.020437 4,383,234
Prawlzaae fior CCL of wrade and other
recaivakles g 3,535 062 1,70, B35 10,157,719
Packaglng anid oisl ribution 2,354 2546 3,951152 2,217,267
Ban chargas 102 335 2,571,657 d03, 805
{Fherg a6 528 892 45 975,324 29,763,138
FEDI.EL1L 256 REEX 361,808 £#711,084,451

Cither oxpoases include asendistion dues, treining and seminar costs and knspection fecs, ameng
ntlars,
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21, Salarias and Emplayee Berafits

This agcaunt pertains o the follgwing:

N-:I‘tg 2021 2022 01
Salaries and wages 297 1ER 485  RJ254 7313 525 RI1R 104,366
Retlrement beneflts 23 22,12F 544 22 33%6,359 1£,993,091
Cominissians 16,550,520 27,560,525 21,476,608
Other shart-tarmn benedks 16,E72 812 14 386,462 14,865,150
R3I53 734 3FF  RIA LI BLT L259437,204
Salanies and ermployes benefics are allocated as lollows:

NG 2073 a2 231
Cost of popds sold 18 35,854,006 R45,814,31% R33,472,730

Qperating expenscs:
Administrative 211,349,889 176,820,010 166,331,166
Sellimg and diskrthution 105,030 482 101,382,022 64,653,308
316880371 275,704,032 230,464,474
B352,.734 37T  PR324,516E601  R2R9.437,204

21. Other income [Charges}

fher Dparating Incame
Mote _ 2023 2022 21
Rantal incume 24 R5, 255 A& R7 B37 2495 R11,006 404
Miscellaneg us revenues 6,217 895 054,147 -
R11,373 363 BB, 792,042 H11,006 40

Mircellanequs revenygas pertaln to salo ef hitken by-products and gther wastes from produchan.

Lifher Charpes - net

] Mote 2023 2022 4021
Penialtles {F5,290,291)  (F10,69G,315] |F10,000,000}
Net foreign exchange loss (615,490  (28701,551) (5,714,952)
Gain floss) an dlsposal of property,

plant and equipment and
investment praparties 11 323,275 (1U%T 744} {1,060,928)
Cilhwrs _ - {903,842} (15,862,815
{RE,382,506) [W41340,087] [#32,738.155)
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23, Net Retiremant Liabiliby

The Group has a partially fuded, nancantributory defined beneft retirem ent plan covering alt of its
Quallfled employess. The defined Benefit plan 13 belng administered by a trustee bank which is
responsible for the adminstration: of the plan astet. The Group's retirement beneflts are based on
pears of sevvloe and are and one-Fourth marth’s salary for every year of continuous service.

The plan is exposed ta interest rate risks and changes in the life expectancy of qualified employees,
The plan is not exposed to slgnilicant concentrations of risk oo the plan assets,

There are noc wnusual or slignifficant fsks Lo which the retirerment lability exposes the Group.
However, In the eyvenl a benefit claim arses undar the retlrement Naodity, the benefic shall
Immedislely be due and payable from the Srowp.

The following tables summarize the components of retiremen bernelil costs recopnized in the
consclidated statements of comprehensive income based an the report of an independent actuany
a5 at Gecember 31, 2023,

Detads of retirerment expense is a5 follows (Ser Mote 200

2023 a2 a021
Cusrent service oosts F11.519.65584 #£13,805,753 k11,956,045
Meiinterest cost 10,602,846 5,439,536 5,037,045

F22 122,540 22¢.336,358 £16,993,091

The amoonts of net retirement liability recognlzed o the consalidated statements of anancal
persition are determined as follows:

_ 2023 02
Presanl value of DBO 184,617,101 #150, 084 435
Fair value of plan gssets {4,031 457} {3,951,933}

W] 30,585, 55 #147 087 502

While there are no miniruna funglng requiretmenls in the country, any size of underfunding may pose
& ta1sh flow risk in the future when a slgelficant number of employees s expected to retire.

The movenents in the prasent valre gf OBO are a5 follows:

L _ i 2023 2022
Balance at beginning af year Plﬁ-ﬁ:ﬂﬂﬂ,ﬂ&!’r FLE0.27E.417
Current servick £osks 11,519,654 13,826,753
Inperest experse 10,886,338 £ 641,280
Benafits paid (2, 184,831) [9,124, 310
Remeasurement loss [gala] i 13,406,965 (42,702, 705)

Balance at end of year R184,617,101  Fl 50,985,435




The movemants Im the Far valwa oF plan assots are 3 fallawss-

o 2023 2021

Balance al baginning of yedar K3,931,533 F3,976,184
Interest income 283 492 21H 6494
Remeasirremant loss (183,973} [247,945]
Balance at end of vear F3,031,951 3,931,933

The Group's plan assets are camprised af the follpwing:

2023 A2

Cash and cash cquivalents R256.803 RH5E, 947
Equity instrurments B2, 742 543,505
Cebt instruments - government bonds 3257816 2,834,137
Others 14,114 (109,701}
E4,051,451 #3,931,933

Tiere are no expected cantribukions 1o the Group's retlvement plan lo e fallawing year,

The cumulative net remeasuremant gaing [losses) on net retirement Nabillty recopnlied o OC1 35 at
Decembear 31 are as fallows:

ik}
Lumulative
Remezazuremert Gain |Loss) Daferred Tax Met
Balance at beginhing af year BE 274 140 [PL31%,585) F3.955,055 '
Rermngasdrament low [12,550,439} 3,347,614 [1,192,824]
Balance 2t e of year (P8, 315,659 21,078,925 [od, 236, 774)
2022
Cumulative
femeasuramant Gam (Loss| Ceferred Tax Mar
Balance at heginning o year HETR R Rl RY, 245,005 {27, 485,015]
Fem easirgrmant gain 42,454,760 {10,615, B9 31.541,070
Ealznce ak end af year P53, 274,740 (Fl.215 B35 P 586, 055
21
Cumulativg
Remeasurement Less Ceferrec Tax f et
Baiane al beginning uf yuar i#1d, 045,821 B3512,205  |RoO436,516)
Rerutaskiement loss (29,151,254 3,782,800 |17 3EE 320)
Balaree ok gnd of vear (P32, 280,000) PR ie L% 7 HES 005

The princigal assumptions wsed far the purpase of the actuanal Yaluatlon are as fallaws:

2023 2022
Discount rate B.20% 7.21%
Halary imcrease projectlon rate 5.00¢% 5.00%
AVErapS PEmaining service years 22.4 230
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The sensitivity analysis based o *easanable possible changes of assumpticns as at December 31, 2023
and 2022 are prasentad bekow

Effect on Present value of
Retlrerment Llability (in Hidusords)
Salary Increaze

Change in Assumplion Discount Rate  Projection Rate

Decermbar 31, 2023 4100 bps [R13,851) RLE o0y
-100 hps 15,683 {14,122}

December 31, 2022 +«100 bps (10,677 12,355
100 bps 12,215 {10,984]

The axpected future bensfil payments of the Group arg as follows:

2023 2023
Less than one year F26,011,557 F21 611 630
Aetween one and live years L&,00G, 165 42714, 3597
Beyond five years _ 142,345,710 118,035,367

BI)3 853 452 #150,361, 444

The welghted wverage durstion of the presenl wvalue of retirement henefit obligation as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are 8.1 years and 7.6 years, respective by,

24. Slgnlficant Aﬂ:rmmcntsl

Dperating Leacgs - The Group as a Lessor
The Group ontered into cancellable |eases covering certain production plants {ie. dreswing,

rendering and iceg procduction| which have lease terms of arovnd two two three years and are
renewable upoen mutual agreement of the parties.

Totzl kent irfore (roin thece operating leasos amounted to REZ miilipn, R7.E rilhon and
BIL1 mfllgn In 2023, 2032 and 20231, respectively, and are shown as part of “Other Cperating
Incare’ account i the consolidated statements of comprehentsive income {see Mote 22).

The Group as 3 Lessee - Shart-term beases

The Sroup leases certaln wareheuses under aperating lease agrecments far a perad of pne year and
gre rerewable upor mutual agrearment by the parties. Rent expensc arnounted to #10.2 millgn,
#A.3million and #3.5 miflicn In 2023, 3022 and 2021, resoectively (see Mote 20,

Security depatite amounted t #12.9 mallion and F13.2 million a5 at December 31, 2023 and 2023,
respectavely [see Mote 13).

The Group as 3 Lessse = | ong-term Leases

The Group entered into lease apreements of an offlce space in a building and finznce lease
Agreements for ks Lran sportation equipment for 3 pedod of more than a year. The Group recognized
right-gf-use assets ant feasc liabilities on these transactions using the interast rates implicit In the
lzases which are fixed at the contract date. The average effective interest rale approximates 7. 875% to
F.125% per annum in 2023, 20922 and 2021.
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The micosarre 11 i BOU assets are as Tolows:

2023
Transpottation
MNoba Bullding Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year F1Z,.065,91% F123,979,298 F140,935,210
Additiong 8,772,245 40,130,727 49,903,022
Balarce at end of yaar 71,838,157 169,050,075 180,888,232
Accurmulated Amortization
Balance at beginning o7 year 11,341,957 F4, 113 637 B5 455 5049
Araortizatlan _11 2,585 S6d 20,084,350 21,984,814
Batance at end of year 14,237,521 84,213,987 108,430,50%
Carrying Arnound F7 600, 536 R74,837,008 #52.437,724
2022
Transportation
_ Hote Euilding Equipment Total
Cast
Balance at heginning of year R12,065912 Fu4,587 585 F106,553,497
Aededi bagrres - 34,331,713 33,331,71%
Balance at end &f year 12,065,912 128,919, Y58 140,985,218
Arsurnulated Amortization
Balance at heginning of year E.a4&,138 549.2BE 714 a7, 731,BEl
Arngrtizatlon 11 1895819 14,827,013 19,723,752
Balaritwe at end af year 11,341,957 72113, 637 A5.455,594
Carrying Amourt R723,955 R4, BOS, 5L ¥55,529 816
Lease Liabilities
Tha palance and movements in lease Fakilities are as follows:
Hoie 2023 prrs
Balance at beginning af vear B52,2049.853% Fd2.005. 270
Additicns 49,903,022 14,331,713
Acorelion of inlerest 15 7.514 406 4, 265,400
Frayments (26,125,747} 123,303,544]
Balance at end af year B3%.5491 520 52,209 834
Less: current postion 22,442 563 15,413,341
Meneurrant porlicn R61,148 357 E35, 255,995
The emounts recagnized in profit or loss related ta ledses follow:
Note 2023 2022 102E
Amartization of RCR) assets B2}, 934,514 F17.723,732 #17,075,097
Short-tenm leases 20 10,748,081 8,262,477 B.526,711
Inbargtt expense on
lease liakilities 7,514,405 4, 2GE, 400 2,385,774
P40, 708,411 R30,250 609 RZ7091 557
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The gross minimuem lease payments and present valug of fulure rHfimmm lease payments as at
December 31 are a5 follows:

23 2027
Minimum Laase finimum Lease

_ Payrents  Present Yalua Fayments Preseat Yalue
Mot later than ane year R20 168,306 FiZ 441,663 F16,731.4427 @15,413.841

Later Lham one year Byt

nok rgre than
flee wears 60 585,056 61,148,857 A, 168,386 26,355,908
ROE, 703 891 B3, 591,520 #56.8900,378 RBS2,299,839
Agreements with Contract Breeders and Conrract Growers

The Group has entered Into vwarious agreements with breeders and growers For (e breeding and
grawing of [lvestock, These are generally renewed on en annual basis.

Tolling AEreements

The Graup has alse cntered ino various toll Brrangements, mainly for the manufacture of its Feeds,
hatching of egps and dressing of poultry lvesteck whasa services are pevable through fixed amounts
per unit of cutput.

votal payrments for talling arrangoments amounted to 81,1258 millon, BESE.E millian and
Br1LE milllon In 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are recarded as part of "Dertside sersices”
account under “Cost af Gonds Sold” accoum in the consplidated statemcents of comarehensive
income (28 Note 19}

A5, Inome Tax

The Lomvponents of income tax expense aro o fallows:

2022
(45 restated -
) 2z see Note 4| 0l
Reportad In praflt ar 1oss:
Current:
RCIT W21 935240 Ba 1,502,707 #25 793,00
MCIT 155,045 - -
22,130,285 51,302,707 25,753,096
Deferred (28,854 508) 2525475 5371040
15,224,219} #33 32E8,0C86 F31,164,134
Reported In OO
Defarred PE, 000,552 {a3,071,184] [F1,311,206)
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The companants of the Gmup’s net deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

222
(A5 restated -
2023 sod Nate 4}
Cwferred tax assets:
Retirement [Fakllity Ba%, 146,413 FIE, 704,370
Allowance for ECL 32,988,089 40,931,060
MNOLCD 16,211,570 9,387 4440
Allowance far Impalravent loss ar:
Advances to cuntsact breeders and
cankract growars 13,780,665 10,802,974
Inrantorfes 224 175 24,070
Fair valur chianpes of biclogical assets 11,544,895 -
120,315,722 91,119,528
Deferred tax labilities:
Aevaluation surplus an properiy,
plant gngd equlprment {147 318,402} (144,514 ,670)
Curnulative gain o fair value chanpes af
investment properties [3.63E,703) 1,418 a54)
Effects of PERS 16, Loases 124E,147) 1B07.444)
Fair vwalue changes of biolagical assets - (2,734,110
Unrealized gain on forelgn exchanges [12,703) -
[151,81E955| {149 475,078
(R31,501,233]  {B55.355.1449)

A5 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group did nol recopnlze deferred bk assets ralating to tha
following a5 managzraent has assessed that these may not be realized in the future:

.l'-".lJEI-'.l'n'-Elr'lv.‘.E far ECL on:

Advancas to suppliers

2023 2022

Recegivable fram an insuranoe company R17.E6G5, 193 £17 865,193

Irade and other receivables 5,907,753 5,907,753
Allowance kar impairment loss on:

Profect development costs 7.E42,099 7,842 090

3,618,378 E&4,177

Fi6 241,423 F12.490 217

The Group’s NOLDD pertain to operating |osses incurred by BYE, a5 Followes:

Tear Balange &6 at Appllecs Bal: e 4 4
Incureed  valld donl lanyary 1, 2023 Inc2red Expired Desember 21, 2023
202 2026 B- W17 938 rd E- ' B17,939,074
e 20235 35,438,514 - - 6,408,214
2021 202E 10,498 BBE - - 140,998 EEB
Fag, J87 200 Rl 939,074 E- ER4,926, 279




-45-

On september 30, 2020, the Bureau of Intemal Revenue [GIR) issued Bevenue Regulatians Mo,
25-2020) to implemant Saction 4 (bhbb) of Republic Act Mo, 11484 (Bayaniban Act ta Recover as Qne
Ach), allowing the Group's net operating losses for taxable years 2020 and 2022 10 be carned over
for the next five consecutwve taxable years immegiately folkowing the year of such loss.

The reconciliation between the income tax based on statutory income tax rate and provisicn for
|berefit from)] income tas reporwed in the consclidared statements of comprehensive income is as
follows:

2023 2022 1011

Provision for INGome 158 computed 3t the statutary

INCE: P Lan [ALE 25,04 25 0% 25.0%
In¢ume Lax cffects af;

MNandaductikle expenses, charge in papscognized

deferced tax ascats and other ad™sbrments [127.2%} 12. 5% w19

Incame alrsady aubjeated ko [ingl ax 0.0% .05 HAHT)
tffect of CRCATE Law - - 4 9%
Effactive \ncome kax rates [oz.2x} I7.5% 25 8%

Z6. Related Party Transactions

The Growy I ts segular conduct of business, has transactions with its related parties, The followlng
tablex summarize the transactions with the related parties and outstanding balance aricing from
these transartians,

Aruun of Transaclions sl gegling glince
RAglaped Marl éx Mobe Hat.re od Tra sacra h] g2 2023 032
Trade aned athar recevablee 6
f4ligles under ;cmmron
caneral Sales FE2 1M L85  FMIO,L5821F
Calkct ons |EALOR2, 967y (55T 554, 555 FT LAl RIIEAST NS
Trade dnd athit payabine 24
Enzies ander cammcn
HPRILL-| Purciages Fraw Mg, 21 BADS7,315,530
Fal.-mn.m: (TaB 437 001] |1 183,745,452 B3 07,536 F4.103,126
Advances I offloers B Adeareps -re; gl
crlicchons B 19, DG BG 580 LG 23,202, 565 A17H3,51

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group sells ammal feeds, raw materials, feed supplements and dressed chicken ta related
partles, which are due within 80 days and are noninterest-bearing. Outstanding balances of trade
and ather receivables fram related partles are unsecured and to be settled in cash, No allbwsneg far
cCL an trade atd othar receivab!es from related parties was recognlzad as at December 31, 2022
and 2022 {see Note G

Trade gn har Payalblas
The Group buys raw materials angd breeder fiocks frum related parties. These are noninkaresl-
bearing, genesally on 3 90-day credil term, unsecured and 1o he settled in cash [see Note 14].
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Advances ta Officeps

The Group grams unsecured, neninterest-bearing advances to its officers which are mormalby
colfected within ane year through salaey deducticon, The allowance for ECL on advances te offiters as
At Decembar 31, 2023 and 2022 are disclesed in Mate 6.

Compensatinn of Koy hanagement faraon fel

The campensation of key managernent persannel are as follows:

20213 2022 021
Shart-term employee benefirs ' ®54,914,416 W55 ABD,527 F35,561,950
Retlremant benefics 5,238,557 5.0L0,571 5 B72,830
Other employee benefits 19,521,042 17,135 565 10,784, 755

Fl.?EI,FJ'd,[IIJE- W7 824 663 RBL2, 210,505

Transactions with the Retirermant Flan
The Parent Company's retiremant Ffund o5 administered and manaced by @ trustee bank, The falr

value of plan assels, which are primarily composed of gavernment bonds, amauated to 84.0 million
and F3.2 million as a1 December 31, 2023 and 2022, respective by |see Mote 23,

The retirement fortd neilber provides amy guarantee or surety for any oblization of the darent
Company nar are its investmeants covered by any recirictions ar liens.

av

Earnlngs Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings par shere e cormputed as follows:

o
| A% rEsLa G -

Mote 2022 saw [ote 4] 2021
el inoorea R13,304,915 B39 G634 G614 FB%,431,614q
Divided by the welghted average

rumber of putstanding
conman sharas 17 3,054, 334 014 14054 329 014 5,084,334, 014
Basiz and diluted earnings per shars R0 [JaEsFa] AQL2D

Bagic garmings per share is computed by dividing nec lncame for the year atlributable v common
squity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted ave rage number of cammon shares issped and
aurztanding dudng the year.

The Parert Campary dees nat have any dilutive cornman shares outstanding, thus, the basic and
diluted eamnings par shafe a5 at Desember 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 are the same,
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28. Reconclliation of Lakllities Arising from Financing Activities

The tables bolowr dotail the changes in the Croup's liabilltes arisleg fram financing activities, ingluding
both cash and non-gash chanpes:

Finu ncing Cash Flows

Jaridesy 1, M aui-Lash Oacernber 31,

kg 013 Avallrments F'I'I'.I:I:IHFH:'E. ﬁ:ngqs Hix3

Laans payabie 15 RIAXE 133281 R1,740,233.E5F [RLE77,235724) B Ri%H,1249, 285
Lease labillties 24 £2 200035 - (25,125,747 B7d4X7 424 &3 591 530
Irtareskexpense 15 - - |G H,J08,E82) b e -

B10E7 421,100 Bl M402%3 858 (RLEP]E7R,353) B125, 716,310 F3IE1, Ta0) BD5

SinENCing Cash Fhows

Jariuary 1, Muor-cazh Oezember 3],

Mota 031 Arvallmenis PayTenis Chinges ENEES
Lobrs payabile 1E LR L | FEI45 558151 () 813,485,528) - 10351321351
Lease linbillitles o a7, [H33, 270 - 18,304, 544] &, 598,113 L2200 39
Inerest eype s 15 - - {35,735 575] ) _35,;'35,5?5 -

Eéd?,i’!l‘.:ﬁ}-:rﬁﬁ R2,3%43,559,151  |R1,&B4,528, 648) Brd A% 5%% W1,0b8T024,190

29

Contingendies

The Griup, inthe ardinany courst of butiness, has pending legel claims and assessments which ara
in varigus stages of discussions, protests and appeal with relevant third parties. Management, 11
consultatlon wilh its lega’ counsel, believes that the witimate resolution of these legal claims and
asressments would not have 3 mawesial impact on the Group's Fnanclal positlon and resubts of
aperations hased opon an analysis of potential results, Thus, no provision for contingencies was
recophizedinn 2023, 2022 and 2437,

0.

Finaneclal Rlsk Management Objectives and Pollcias

The Graup’s finanoal nscrursents cansists of cash, trade and other recaivables |excluding advances
to officers and emplayees), receivable fram an insurance company, sequrity deposits, trade and
ather paysbles (excluding statutory payables|, loans payable, lease labilities and cash bond
depasits,

it 15 the Group’s palicy that no trading in financlal Instruments shall be undertaken. The main nsks
arising frem the Group*s finangial instrumenls are credit risk, liguidity risk and jnterast rate nck, The
BOD reviews and approves policies for managing thesa risks as sumimarizead below.

Credlt Rizk

The Group's exposure Lo credit risk arises wom the fallure of @ cosnterparty to fulfill its financial
commitrents ta the Group under the gravalling contractual terms. Financlal instrumenes that
potentially subject the Growp ko credit risk consist prisnarily of trade recelvables and other finandal
assets at amortlzed cost. The cAarmying amcunts of these francial assets represent its maxirmum
credit exposure.
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Trade Recgivables. Managemeant has established a eredit policy under which eazh new custarmer is
anaiyzad |ndividualiy for creditwarthiness befare the Growp's standard payment and delwery terms,
and congdltigns are offerad. The Group's gredit policy includes available axternal ratings, financlal
skatements, eredit agency infarmatron, Industry infarmation and, in some cases, bank references.
Credit limits are established for cach customer and reviewed on a regular basis, Any sales on éredit
exrceedding thase linnts require specific approval from upper level of managerment. The Group limits
its axposure to credit sk by transacting mainly with recognized and creditwarthy custormers Hiat
hawve undergene Its credit evaluation and approval process. Historleally, trade receiables are
substantially callected within ane (1) year, Trade recesvailas are closely monitored an aging of the
aceount.

A3 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no significanl eredit concentrations. The Graup also
requires collateral which are generelly land amd real estate from its custamers to minlnlze credit
s

Financie! Assets Other then Trede Keceivaldes, The Group's nther financlal assets ot amortized cost
are masthy composed of cash in banks, crther receivables (excluding advances ta cfficers and
gmployess], recensable from an ingurance company and scourity deposits.

For ¢ash in banks, the Group limits its exposure 1@ oredit rlsk by investing only with hanks thatl have
good crecit standing and repucation In the laeal and irterpationad ba nking industry. Thase
instruments are graded in theo top categary by an acceptable credit raling agency and, therefore, are
considered ko be low credit risk investments,

For receivabla from an Intdranee company, manggament and s legal counsel believe that the
ongofng litigatan of the remaining cfalms will net rezult to additional allowance For ECL
[ae Nole 10/

For the cther financial assats, credlt nsk is low since the Group only transacts with regutable
companies and indivldirals wath respect ta this financial asset.

rt 15 the Groop’s policy to measure BCL an the abowve instrements an & 13-month basls, Howsser,
when thare has heep a significanl increase in credit risk since orlginatlan, the allowance will be
bazed an the lifletime ECL When determlning if these has been a significant increase io cred|t «sk,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is avallable without undue cast or
effart and that is relevant for Lhe particular financial Instrament being assessed such as, byt pot
limited ta, the following factors:

# Aciual or expected external and irternal aoredit mting cowngrade;
»  Exlstimg ar forecasted adverse chanpes in busfnaess, financial ar economwic condltiont; and
» Actual or expected signifleant adves se changes in the aperating results of the borrcweer.

The Group alsa considers financial assets that ase more than 120 days past dug to he the [atesr gaine
at which lifetime ECL should be secognized unless it can demonstrate that this does not represent
significant credit rlsk swch as when non-payinent arlsing Feom administrative aversight rather than
resulting frem financial difficulty of the borrower,
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The tables below shaw the cradit quality by class of financial assets based on the Group's credit
rating syster as at December 31:

PERE S
Ganaral Approach sampliied
Glage 1 Stage 2 Stoge 2 . Rpproach Totel
Cazh 1n banks FA51 601,83 A= - - mi91,601,874
Iraea anol aE - recamghlas 42 53] B31i - d59,411, DeE 973,428,302 1,105 541, 186
Security deprsiss 12,528 E0% - - - 12 94 SR
Re=rr vabue froam an Insurancz
2 pamy - 141 54 583 - — 141,054 GE)
Ly F141 664, 583 W% 431 AIEH FI¥3 428,302 F1.651 736,331
20212
Geparal Approach sirplified
Stape 1 Llagr 2 Yoape 3 Approech Txdal
-agh . bamks RIiGd, h3a A% P—- r— k- R364Q GE4,d53
T=te pod cuner recelvanles 51,0m0,2071 — 105337094 BS7,013% 454 1,015 398,774
Ancurity depeslss 18,224 32q - - - 15.:62%.3724
Recpivab g frenoan Insumarce
mmaany - 47 kb, 534 - - WA 1.E54,4h59
F333,052,003 E1dY A6 083 BN05,32T 009 FBIT.013 4354 1578 ELT.1E%

set cut belew s the infermatian abaut the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables uging
@ provigien matrls as at December 31:

r0z3
Crayc Fapy Oy
Acawrs
Lass than Y-l Gl  91-100 Pl e writh Tuil
Curremn 30 day: days daps 120 clays Takal et iad 1=l
Expected odit lcss SR Damy IR T [Pk T 0.57% EFR A Calrs
Fstltnatad 1ctal pross
LM P Bt AL
defawt [in wdligng] FETACH P25 RQ356 RALAD R3,13 ¥Z7.37 ESO09.I3 EELAD  MTIaE
Expr=;bad credil lass
lir mﬂ%| F.0a [ VR IE] 1,13 Lo K1.02 W1.64 B1.RE M .M gt 18
. 2022
Dayi Fost Due e
Aeiturys
lassshad 30-50 6150 91 120 rderettan wik fall
Current 20 cdwer Akt L7 dows 120 daws Tedal pegalslin Totel
Exaocted credit loss ate QO0%  DomR O30n DEDR 0% SO00R '
Escenmiad eital gross
el unl L
drfaidc{in rilllang) REIG.11 K431 R3SAd R0 FED BZS.LE WEHE.BL FEL.30  RROT.O1
Eapectec cicald base
i I'nilln;n::l [Nk ] 0oy RO 12 Man F1.01 B1.54 H1.73 P, X PoG.a2




Liguidity Fitk
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Liguidity rigk iz the rizk that the Group may not be able to sctlle ks obligatlons as thay fail due,

Tre table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial liabilittes of the Group hased on
remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows as at Docember 31-

I3
Wwirnin LEver than
. o % Mokks B o 12 Wonths 1toh Wears 5 Years Totml
Trade a1d otter pavabies® F2,03%,133, 735 R- - B- 10339122 731%
Loan; payabg EBU, 3BT, 184 12410714 g, B21AXF - H398,119,285
Lease livbiliLiea 14,675,911 19492 495 62,535,596 - 0§ THA gAZ
Cosh berd deantits - 003,951 - - 0, 50,952
Fuarure ince:esd on Jang 12-n
aan: payable 3 MEAN% AE0067 11,236,256 - 17,352,728
B2, 017, 741,E85 ROk 4RT 628 BIOS B33 214 B— F117B52537
l"l’a‘:’l.ﬂl:ll:nmﬂlrﬂ“
2022
Within Later than
d Monis 50012 pAnnths i be 5 Tears L mars Tora.
Tradg and gikar payables* F1,951,465,004 R- - - B S3IARsL0:
Loans aayable 973,067, 7Bl 12,410,514 449,642, 304 - AR5 191,351
Led=ze liabillbigs =, 563,586 TG, 40E do, 1331 3132 - 35,901,327
Cash finnd drpoasits - SE.290 BSC - - e THYEEY
FLtuz# Inteeest or kong term
Widit pangehble 3.5499,a5] 3.460LET2 17,336,571 — 13 747 04
1067, 25 B8 _ MDA F A% F.OLE10, 60 F— P11 53421

“srr it i papai i

The Group mopitors 1t sk te a shorlage of funds through analyzing the matunty of its financlal
lalnlitles and cash flows from operations. The Group monilors [t cash position by a syslan of cash
furecasting, wherzin all expacted collectlons, chack disbursemanls and ather payments are
determined on & tlmely basls 1o arrive at the projected cash position to cover its obllgations.

The Group's abjective is to malntaln & balance between cantinuity of funding and Aexibilive, The
Greup addresses iquidily concerns primarily threwgh cash Aows from operatlons.

Interest Rate Risk

[nterest rate qisk |5 the rlek that future cash flows frem a financial instrument (cash Flew inlenest rate
FIsk] oe its fair valua (fair value interast rate risk) will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s loans payadle to local banks ase subjeet te fivad intarest ates and are expased to fair
value interest rate risk, The re-prleing of thesa instryments is done on regular intervals, The Graup
regulaely ponitars interest mte movemerds and @n the basis of current and prajeceed economic and
monetary data, decides an the best alteenatie o rake, Mo sensitivity aralysis s nesded as
matagement Ras asseswed that fulur intarest rate changes are not expectad to signifizaatly afiect
the Group’s consolidatad net income.
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Financial and Other Risks Belatipg vo livestock

The Group |§ esposed to varfous risks affecting the food ndustey sueh 32 Faod spoilage and
contaim|natian, thos, it is regulated by envlronpental, health and food safety preanizations. The
Group has processes and systems in place Lo muanitar Fopd safety risks in all stages of manufacturing
and processing 1o rmtlgate (hese risks. In addition, the fvestock industey 16 expossd toorisks
assacialed with supply and price volatllty of (15 [nven torias and livestack.

To mitigate thils rlsk, the Group regularly meonltors the supply and price of commodities and enters
iflo supply agreements At a reasonable prica,

Lapital Mandgemont
The Grouy’s capital management ebjectlves are o ensuee the Group's ability #a continue a5 3 golng

tancern and to pravide an adequate return to shargholders by priclng products and sendices
farnmensurate with the level of rigk.

The Graup meonitars cagltal on the basis of the carrylng smaunt of equily as presented in the
consolidated statements of financial positicn, Capltal for the reporting periods is summadzed as
follaws:

2022

[As restated -
2021 see Note 4]
Total hakllitie: R3,321,153,990 R3,347,840,061
Tolal aguity 1,901,342 078 1,872,035 334
Ceht-te-2quity ratio . 1.75 174

31

Fair VYalue Measurement

The following table presents the carrying wrmounts and Fair values of the Group's assets and
liabitities peasured at Fair value and for which fair walues are desclnged, and the correzponding fair
value higrarciy as at ecember 31:

. I3 A0
Carrylng Walues ) Falr walyas CEirang Values Fair values
Firancial Asvels al
Arrstrtioed Cosk
Cach FI90,265, 061 B30E % D61 PA68 15,726 P3RD 16,726
Trade avd ather recelvabios® 920050125 g2E.059, 125 857, 200,591 BS7, 203501
Iectivaloe from an Ingurange Tl.203.810 To20%41p 73203810 Fo.205, 831
Saripany
SECUr Yy tEpdsils 12,5978, 668 12,538 G50 18,209,334 313,239, 522
1,440,355 GHL F1.4040 456 6GE4 H1,315,0%] 431 F:I_.l.E!_E‘S.'JSJ:I.-'I-E.'l
Firidnclal Liabilitles ar
Amoetized Cosk
Trade and athe payadoles*= FELE5,122,735 RI 030,127 135 B1,58 145,050 F1,981.1&5,000
Ladns panvebls H9F,119,2E5 B3N, 115,285 1,05 221,351 1,035,12 . 351
Legee |labllities £3,591.520 83,501 520 G2 198 /4% 52,299,833
Cash bond depasles B0,503.052 60,503,052 SG, 080 65D 56,200,553
E3ME] 337 A592 LEAR-N FEET L F3 125 85,840 #1345 180 A4

‘Exciuning aamanoas ra nEEars ol STt pEsd
PP loding slgiutery mapahlies



-52-

The following methods and asgurnptions ware used b estimating the Faar wlue of the Group's
tinangial azsets and liakilitkas:

Cosk, Trode ot Offer Recedivbizs fesctuding advances to officers ang emptayees), Trode ang Other
Foyables Jexcluding srotutory povehles) apd Cosh Bond Deposits. The carmying amaunts af these
financial assets and llabilige: approximata their Bair values due to the shor-term nature of 1hose
financial instrurments.

Receivabis from an tnsuronce Cornpony, Securily Deposits, Leose Liphilities ond Lovns Popobte
Maragement belfaves thal the differences hetween Falk valuet and carrying amounts are not
significant.

There mave been o transfars between the falr value hlerarchy in 2023 and 2022,

JZ.

Cperatlng Segment [nformation

The Grgup is organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services
provided, with each scgment reprasenting 2 strategic busingss unil that offers different products
and serves differant rarkets

Buslness Segments
The Graup mainly gperatas under the Foods, Feeds and Farms srgments:

2. The Foads segmant is engaged in the growing, production and distributicn of chicken broilers,
either az live ar dressed chlckens, ks preducts are distributed to hotels, restaurants, irstitutional
clients, wit markers and supe rmarkets,

b. The Feeds segmeant caters to the feed requirement of the poultry growers' Indusity, It is engaged
Im the rmarufacturs and distdbution of animal feeds, anlmal kealth and nuotritional products, Bnd
feed supplements sobd to varous distribotars, dealers and end users,

£, The Farms segment #s involead in the producton, sale and distribution of day-old chigks,

The Corporate and Others sepment includes general and corporats Inceme and expense items which
arg not specifically identifiable toa parbculdr sepemeni.

All of the atsats relating to the Growp's aperating segments are Jocated in the Philippines.
Accordingly, reporting operatlng segrnents per pedpraphical business cperation is not required

Segmenl asscets, llabilties and reverue and expenses are measured in accordance with PRRS. The
presantatinn and classificatlon of sepment revenue and expenses are congisteat with the
consolldated statewments of comprebenszive Inceme The presentation and classification of segment
agsets and liabilitias are fonsistant with the consalidated skatements of financial positicn,
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The Following tables present rovenues and expenses infarmation and certzin assets and liabilicies
informztion regarding the differert business segments as a2t and far the years ended

Decemlser 31, 2023 and 2022 {in el lions];

Lecambar 31, 2023

Corpoaata
Fooeds Fearf Ig.rrn:- and CHhers Ellmnat'ant  Carcal#nknd
HE¥ENLEE
Me[ 23l& of goods FE43.4 P5,128.1 miria B B— Rtd, 587
Falr wplje cHanged cr
blalcgical agggis - ] - |47l - - 137.8)
A3 4 2.1zAR.1 4¥dd - - 12,4954
CAISTS ANDOTHER Qe 20 TS
ExPZMSES
Lozt of goads sald, peclugdng
depracatior sd
EL FETECTT G, 3790 dBLL. 3 [ L1 - - 11 4R6.1
Jperabrg akpamers, aerlyding
deprecialon and
AR liEA 1106 AR5 7 1.3 L ER-S - #5l1
Sepaecaricn amd amardirdties 130 ADEE - .1 - 1477
6,502.5 10103 Q455 5G9.% - 11 4852
SEGMLNI LPLAGTING FISFIT —
|L505%] Bin.A o [+Y: ] [mra1] [RSE3.9] - a7
Ciher Income [chargesl - ner !"1‘!
MCORIE BEFQIRE IR O IWIE Th g,
Ban=lL from Incame 1ax 5.7
NET INCOIMAE k|
AEEETS ANC LERlILITIES
Saamaal stz ni,0Had WrT.A HEL BZ,2527 A= BE 2215
EI'F-E'-‘II |i-E||:I||IIiF.'_5 Pl 262.1 F5l4.7 Koo, Ala241 .58 #1312
ATHER INFIRMATION
Ei#ilalt_'.-ul.'l?dilum: MES. 1 Mdsf b [ = 5.5 [ miita
FoCesh mipeases cdhver shan
Aenrprlaieny a4d aprbealeon
RELlIcmEnt xpe15e N- E- — [ | - B:id,
Pruvescn [or especied crodit loss - - - 5.5 - 25
[ pmbe- 17, 1022
Corporabe
Faad: heeds Fanm;s ared Qe Eliminabans  Cansclidabed
AEWIMNIES
Nelsake of gopds NE.202.3 R:,193.3 LALE — — R11,351.5
Fal' vabae changss an
Liuhpecal 4256t - - p ) - - 10.%
£.2ald 4,158 FEE] - - 11868.4
COSTS 290 OTEED QPEMATIRG
EXPEMSES
Cost af goeds sels, exclading
ieprevalsan ard
AW LA S - £,773.7 apg,7 - - [{et= 3y
Uperking FYEBRNSAL, fanldding
cepreclalion and
AMArLLatian 1107 1B5%.5 111 bl - BAG 4
Oepreciabsn ang asdetlcation 32.% T3.7 - EL.H - 133.0
5,7CT.A 5.0%5,7 430 4] 5EZ3 11,7610 .
SEGMENT JOPERATIMNG PROF T
Y L) #AE33.0 Pidl5 LR |#zLE.0; B W1f4.d
Other ireet: JChargesh - nel 1411
INCCIRAE BEEFORE INCORE Tax 1£3.4
Pray Somlar theame ak 5.8

HNET INCCME

BEDLG
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Ocoerbyr 31, 2333

Crompurs e
FRaads Feeos Farms anfd rnharg F imi431inHs: Canmlrjgti
B55 75 AR LIARIZITIES
Gegmend Afdetd B2 LIRS Ll B PR3 4 w2 2120 - #2200
Suﬁmun‘. [abiitima P1,ara.7 65 FE1 Bl G1ES - ¥5 347 H
O u s |NEIHMAGTION
ﬂ_lﬂlﬁlﬂﬂ&ﬂ-ﬂi'l'.- b 3 #1101 [ i ) [ Fib.8 [ [ ]
Mo tas- =sprrnses ccher Evan
degrdclFing and erarazaton
Aasindme nt Faprense — = LB L] - Piz s
Frov.uoo icr ckaociod credim I - - - 1.7 - 17

3,

Busingss Carnbination

&n December 16, 2021, the BOD of the Parent Company appraved the acquisiteon of 100% of the
autstand ing capltal stock of BVC from Luzan Agriventurs, Ing, (L&) far & consideration of R1.00. BYC
I5 8 privake damestic comporation engeped, among others, in poultry production as well a5 In the
pracessing, raiging and breedleg of chickens and similar stocks, The registered piinclpal plate of
businass of the BVC 15 Jocated at Marilag-5an Jose Road, 5ta. fosa |, Marilac, Bulacan.

BYC operated ss the Company's whollp-owned subtidiane starting Janvary 1, 2022, The asscts
acauired and liabllclas astumed frarm the business combination are 42 follawe:

Lash 82, 751.24%
Trade recelvalles 11,897,011
Frepayments 6, 535,805
Froperty and aguipimant _ G,739,71%
Dafarred 1ax asats 2,400,756
Total asuets #20,124,570
Trade and wiher payvakbles £30,2%2,5080
Deapasits 177,040

Total liabilitles ’ F30,4070,530




EOWT AT duls R 100w 0 o 4O “ovem s Fram

.l{E'ﬂfs TacaNpong & Co, ™EEelmn | Wit

FIRM PR ICHLES. wisE S0 T I0RS ! BT T L
Yo 11 B B S TR FLET T

REPCRT OF INDEFENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDWILES FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES: AND EXCHANGE COMBISSION

The Steckbolde s and the Board of Lirecte-s
WitRrich Corporgilo- and Subs diarles
Marilag 5an Jose Road. Ska. Fosal

Warilan, Bulacan

We have audited in acco daaie wits Philippine Standards on Aoditing, tre consalidazed hnanoal stalermants of
Wirarich Corparaticn (tw Parent Cornpany) and Subgidiaries a5 a0 and For the year ended Deecember 31, 2023
Ineluded in this Farm 17-A and have issned oLt repart therecn dated March 21, 3022, Q¢ axdil was made For the
purpese af Form'ng an opinian on the eensolidatod fnancial staterments teken a5 a whole- The accompanying
supplementary scheculas are the responsibillly of the Sroup’s management, These supplemem=ary schedyles
indude the following:

¢ Rerpacilislen of the Farent Company's Retaines Eamings Ava:lable far Dlvidend Declaratian
»  Schedules as sequired Sy Fart 11 of the Revlsed Securities Regulaton Code [SAC] Rule 6B
Conglomerste WMap

sehedule cn Finanslal Soundness Indicowors

The schedule on fInA<Gia’ seundness andicators, induding teir defininons, forrutas, caleulation, ard their
gppropriateness gr wielulness W tha Intended users, are the respensimiity of the Gisap MANAZRmERt. Thess
francial souhdness indcators are not mepsuios of operating perlermange defined oy Philipoine Finaaclsl
Reparting Standards (FFR3) and may not b+ compzrable to similacly titled measures presented by ghher
corrpanies. The companents af these ficanrial soundnass indizators havie bewn trecad to the Group's consalisnted
financial statarments ac ak and for the year erded Becenber 31, 2023 and no materlal excaptlens weare noLed,

The ather sepplementa-y schedules ere prégenled for purposes of compy'ng with 1he Revised Securltles
Fegulatioa Ceade Rult 68 and are mat part wf the consclidated financial stetermens, The irformation in these
sehedyles has been subjected to 1ae auditi=g procedures applied in the audit oF the basic consol.dated §nandal
stutements, and, In our caindar, fairly state, in all matenal respess, Lhe financial daka requaired 1o be $e1 (erth
therein in relatlon to fhe Jasic eensolidatad financlal stalements taken as a whole.

REYES TACANDONS & Co.

il Jeﬁé%’ﬁé‘j

Partner
ChaTeridicate ha, BTEE0
Taw Idamiificaklom Mo 201-882-183-07K)
RO A creginatica Mo, «782; Walid until apri 1z, 2624
Bk accredisstien Fp, 0B-005144-03 2-2729
aled writil Panuary 24, 2026
ETH No. 100324317
aswnd Januany 3, 2329, Makari Civy

March 21, 2(ctg

hakati City, Metrg Manllg
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VITARICH CORPORATICON ANC SUESIDIARIES

FINANCIAL RATIOS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDEC GECEMEER 31, 2023
{With Comparative Flgures for 2022|

Below is 4 schedule shawing the financial spundness indicators in the yaars 2023 and 2022.

2022
Farrmula 145 rastated -
032 see Mote 4]
Current Ratio
Current asses E2 750 031,454 E2,E58.034,1m1
Divided by; Current liabilities 3023, 046,823 3,058 BGE S50
Current Ratic 4,910 {.533
Debt-to-Equ lty Ratio
Total Mahilitles F3,321,153,.590 B3 347.E40 061
Dividad by: Total aquity _ 1,901 342,078 1,373,035 389
Debi-to-Equily Ratio 1,247 1,287
Asset-to-Equity Ratlo
Tatal assats 5, 22X 496,058 P5,220 375,445
Nlwded by Total equity 1,901,342,078 1,273,035,383
Agset-to Equity Ratip 2.747 1787
Splvency Ratio )
MNet income before depreciatian
and amortization PL1E1 45,195 RI2 BIS, FA T
Divided by Total Liabilities 3,331,153, 95 3,247,840,061
Salvercy Ratig O.0d4E 0.066
Intarest Rate
Coverage Ratla
Fretax income before [nterest RE2 ALY G985 ®1E3,164,676
tivlded by Inlerest expense 75,623,288 40,001,876
Interest Rate Cowarage Aatio 1.087 4,534
Profitabllity Ratle
Met inqg e r13 303,516 FE2, 534 514
Divided by: Tatal eguity 1,901,332.078 18730035, 364

Profitability Ratic 0.aor 0,048




2022
Formula [AL restated -
2023 328 Mote 4}
Gross Profit Margin
Gross profi Bo)d 473 18 F1,0EE BUE,205
Divided by: Met sales 12,543,604 175 131,357,515,851
Gross Profit Margin 7.211% E.O3R%
KNet Praflt Margin Met Imcome RI3 3,016 £49,634,614
Nivided by  Met salas 12,543,684.175 11,957 .515,651
Het Profit Margin 2. 106% 0. 750%
Earnings before
Interest, Tax, Net Ineome E13.204 916 F39,631 £14
Depraciation & Add:
Amartization [aterask enpense 75,823 248 40,001,376
(ERITDA) Tases (6,724.219) 53 52E,0RE
Depraciatian Bad amaortization 147, 740,21 142,971,153
EBITD:A ) R230,144,264 P316,435, 470
EEITDG Margin
EBITODA P23, 1494, 264 Ri16 435 520
Divided hy= Bet sales 12,543,604, 175 11957 515,051
EBITDA Marﬁin 1.835% 2.648%
Prlce Earnings Ratio
fvlarket value per share 0.510 Q Bd0
Diided bry: Earnings per share 0.004 0.025
Prige Eamings Ratio 127,500 20,680
Return on Averaga
Equity
Met incanme F13 204916 #E0 634,614
Divided by: Averzge total equlky 1,857,1838,731 1,763,611,307
0. 705% 5.ORA %

Return on Average Equity




2022
(A5 restated -
_ Formula 2023 see Note 4|
Culck Rakla
Ourck ascets Rl.348,.221, 840 1 252 350,249
CHvided by Current lishilities 3,022 095, 823 3 0S8 AOR 556
Qunck Katio 0.446 Q_afs
Dabt-to-EBITDA
Total Hailtios R31,321,153 890 #3,247,340,0€1
Dirdlded bry: ERITDA 230,144,264 316,435,829
Debt-to-ERTDA 14,431 A0, S8
Receivahla Days
Turnover
Ayerage accounts receivable RA52,595,258 05,423 5619
[multiplied by 365 davs and
divided by met saks)
Receivable Days Turmover 15 22
Inventory Days
Turngwer
Average inventary and hvestock F1,018,757,516 RE2T 486,136
[erultiplied by 265 days and
divided by cost of goods sold)
[nvertary Days Turnowvar 32 25
Actounts Payable
Days
AVErZge acCounts payable R1,642.612 8Ea F1,446113 805
{multiplled by 365 days and
dlded By oredin surchases
Accounts Payable Days 22 47
Cash Conversion Cyele
Days inventory autstanding 32 25
Add: Days sales vutstanding &5 F¥)
Less: Days payahla
oukstanding (52} (47}
Cazh Sorwersion Cecle 5 3
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PARENT COMPANY'S RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION

FOR THE REPQRTING PERIOD ENCED DECEMBER 31, 2023

VITARICH CORPORATION

hAarilac - San Jose Boad, 5ta. Raza |

Marilac, Bulagan

. Ameunt
Defict as a1 tae beginalng of repating prelos (€214, 7506,515!)
Add: Category &. Iterns that are directly credited to unapproprlatad

retatned esrnlings

Transfer from sevaluation surplus to retained earnings - net of

deferred ingome bax 16,780,410
Less: Categary B Iverms that are directly debited o ung pprapristed

rélained @arnings = prior perled adjuscmonts . 16,220,445
Delicle, a5 adjustad (214,296,550]
Add: Het incasn e [or the current year 23, k27,005
Less; Catggory C.1: Uareallzed ingurne recorn zed in the proflt or less

during the reparang pefiad  neL of tax [El,BBE,}ﬂ
Ad|usted net aceme [3B.0E, 177}
Addd: Calgpory By Man-actua) losses racognlzed In prafit or less during the
. reparling periog - ne; of tag 3C, 534,654
Dafldt a5 at the end of reporting perfod [#E£16,530,997)
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1
PRIMCIFAL OFFE (%o i B g op ey eme Mrndacr | P
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I{1{alo]; Blujllajeialn
] 1 |
Forr: Type Oepatmant Requeing the Report secondany Uivenie Type, f Applicabls
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? — _COMPANY INFORMATION =l
Comnpany' s Emai Afdness Company's Telephons Mumber/y X
| meedabu-pepito@vitarich.com (02) 8843-3033
Mo of Shockholders Anamual Meeting (Month / Day)
4,103 Last Friday of June
i s CONTALCT PERSON BNFORMATION

The desnatasd comtac) pestaan MUET b dn Officer of the Corperation,

Haang ol Cosvaes Pergon Errad hddias,
Ms. Stephanie Nicole S. Garcla nsgarcia@vitarich.com
[ P CONTACT PERSONS ADDRESS ==

Marilao — San Jose Road, $ta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan

NOTE B: b cone of deoth, reslgration o crssaton of office of the officer denignated o covdioet perion, mmﬂhm '
thoty {30) comndr diops fionn the axcurimse thereaf with Informaion ond compete contact etoits of the Rew contact person

MDTE 2: AN homey st be prognky ool Comgietety filed-us, Fadure t oo 10 shall teise the defoy in wpdioiing the co
s non-receipt af Nooce of Defickenties. Further, Aon-recedn? Mmm1hmwmﬁmm
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Vitarich Corperation [the Company) is responsible far the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein for the years ended 'DEEEJI'I'leI' 31, 2023,
2022 and 2021, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framewoark indicated therein, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enahle the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to contin -
a5 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the goiNg concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 10 Cease operations, or nas no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Birectors s responsible In overseeing the Company’s financial reparting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached therein
and submits the same 10 the stotkholders:

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the financial
staiemenis of the Company in accordance with ‘Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its. repori to the
stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairmess of presentation upon completion of such audit.
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STEPHANIENICOLE 5. GARCIA

Executiye Vicé President & Chief Sustainabllity Officer [CS0)/
Corporate Management Services Director / Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Tha Stockholders and the Board of Directors

Vitarich Corporation
Marilao - San Jote Road, 5ta, Rosa |

Miarllad, Bulacan

Clpinian

we have audited the accompanying separate financial staterents of Vitarich Carporation (the Enmpi:&\;t
which comprice the separate statement of financhal posiion as at December 31, 2023, and the ;E:famh
ame

statement of comprahensive Intome, separate statemant of changes in equity and separate siat
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a summary of material

accodanting policy informaton.

in cor opinion, the separate financial statements present faiely, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and Its cash flows for the year then
ended In accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

fasis for Choinion

We conducted our Bud in accordanca with Philipping Standards on Auditing {PSA). Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Sﬂpumrﬁ- F.rrmm;hi ;
Stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of E'll'li‘:ﬁ-'

for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the -etrﬂ::alrﬂquirznunu tfm are
relevant to the sudit of the separate financial statements in the Philippines, and we have qu:Hled our. ﬁH‘IIf-
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe mltthr.' :l.ld |
pyldencs we have obtained is sufficlent and apprapriate to provide-a basis for our opinion.

Cither-Matter -

The separate financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended H‘Eﬂtﬂiﬁehﬂ' |
2021 wers audited by another auditor whose report dated April 1, 2023 expressed an unmodified
on those-separate financlal statements.

we alsa audited the adiustments described in Note 4 that were applied to amznd th& HF-B .;
statements as at and for the years ended EFEI:EFI'IIJ-E-J' 31, 2022 and 2021, In nur np!nlun, 5{.;.‘:[1 1 ;
are appmpﬁam and have been praperly anpl:eﬂ We were not ﬂ-ngaged 1o auiﬂt. reriiﬂi‘? P
procedure to the i:nmpam.u"s separate ﬂnamal Slatements as at and for ﬂ'.m_; '

express an u-pdniun or any nth&r fnrm I:Ifiﬁ!'ﬂ.ﬂ'in[l!' an th»a mparatn ﬂnnru:iai m!:ﬁmng
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 taken as a whole.
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Rives Tacaxpon & Co.

FURRT PINCTELLY, W SO TR

i

Responsibiities of Manogement and Those Charged with Gavernance for the Separate Financiol Statements

the separate financial statements n

Management |5 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
5 i3 necessary (o enable the

accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determiné At
preparation of separate financial statements that are free fram material misstatement, whether due to frau

OF arrar

In preparing the separate financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’'s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern. basis of accounting unless management either intends to fiquidate the Company of to cease
pperanons, of has no realistic alternative bud to do 5o,

These charged with governance are respansible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilitles for the Audht of the Separate Finoncial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as @ whole
are freé from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to lssue an auditors’ report that
includas our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high Jevel of assurance; but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can-arise from frawd or errorand are considered- material if, individualhy or in the aggrezate, th!.': could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate

financial statemeants

#s part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain pmfm'l-nnﬂ
skeptickm throughout the audit. 'We-also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial -
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures. reﬁp{:l_nshre i
and ohtain- audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud ks hhhertm&n'mg -
ereor, 84 fraud may involve coflusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresent 2 % ik
of internal control.

" Otain an understanding of internal-controd relevant to-the audit in order to design :mﬂtg 2|
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effe
of the Company's internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the ma;pnahm-ﬂ_; ’5
and related disclosures made by managament.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of acco
on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated L] mrﬂi
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a g:ﬂrﬂ CONCRN, ifﬁtﬁ
materal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our iumm‘
:!.Is:imures in the separate financal mtemnnu or,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based gtk -

auditors’ report. Howeyer, future events or condiy
Roing concern




) jivis TacANDONG & Co,

" FHEM FRINCIPLIS, WISE SOLUTHING.
L B

ol & inchudi
« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separat2 ﬁn_:m:h_ah g:tt::ﬂmﬂa.mm.ﬂﬁ A
the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying

everts in a manner that achleves fair presentation,

We comminicate with those charged with governance regarding, '.mung_u?h., r"mﬂﬂ‘f“a'_m' p!annrdnﬁzgie ;:;c:
timing of the audit and significant nu_dll. ﬁn:lit_:g':.;' including any significant deficiencies in Internal contro
we dentify during our audit. :

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

.

'n.ﬂ&m. Pﬁﬁum

Partner
i Certificate No. 97360
Tax dentification No. 201-832-183-000°
BOA Accreditation Mo, 4732 Walid until Aprii 13; 2034
iR AcornditaTan Mo, 08-005L44-G1I-2043

yalid until Janusry Z8; 2006
PTR o LOGT 2412 i

|siied lanuary-2, 2024, Makab Criy

March 21, 2024
Makati City, Metro ManHa i |




VITARICH CORPORATION

DECEMBER 31, 2023
(With Comparative Figures as at December 31, 2022)

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2022
_ [As Restaled =
ASSETS
Courrent Assats
Cash 5 392,412,466 361,660,838
Trade and ather receivables [ 1,041,593,956 952,123,442
inventories 7 918 860,166 858,665,136
Blalegical assets - vestock 8 129,394,759 116,118,755
Advances to suppliers 120,429,865 466,418,711
Dther current assets 3 180,785,580 138,566,046
Total Current Assets 2,793 476,192 2,893,553 928
Moncurrent Assels
Recelyatle from an Insurance company 10 70,203,810 10,203,810
Propecty, plant and squipment: 12
AL revalued anrounts 1,937,800,517 1,833,943,491
At cost 45,535,389 126,493,818
lreestment properties 13 301,346,351 238,473,942
Right-of-use assets 25 B2A437,724 55,529,516
Uther noncurrent gisets - L 23,416,564 32315321
Total Noncurrent Assets: 2,350,740.455 2,356,759,998
#5,254,217,247 lﬁ,!_.‘-ﬂ,&ﬂf,ﬁﬁ-
LEABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Uabilities j
Trade and other payables 15 ¥2,042,463,639 '
Cufrent particn of: L g
Loaris payable 16 ‘B73,297.858
Lease liahilines 25 22,442,663
Cash bond deposits 17 50,306,912
Tota! Current LiabHibes /2,958.511,072 .
Noncurreni Liabilities . -
Loans payable - net of current portion 16 .H,l;j,.lﬁ' _
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 25 61,148,857
Met retirernent (iabifiny 24 180,585,650
Net deferred tax liabilities 26 52,467,716
Tatal Nencurrent Liabilines 319023 660
Tortal Linhilites 534,732
Equity
Capatal stock 18 1_.:1m |
Additicnal paid-in capital 1,470,1
Hetained earnings 3388
Other comprehensive income L O s AL HER i 'ima
Tﬂm EquI['.' LARGL BRI L RS
—

#ee occampanying Notes to Separate Financiol

_llh: |



VITARICH CORPORATION

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
{With Comparative Figures for 2022 and 2021)

¥ears Ended December 31
2022
(s Restated - :
Nota 2023 Mote 4) 2021
REVENUES
st sale of goods 19 #1Z485,249,526 P11,884,005954 #9,649,161,808
Fair value changes on biclogical assets B (47,779,579) 10,336,438 (22,854,221}
12,437 469,947 11,894,942.3092 0.676,307.587
COST OF GOODS SOLD 30 [11,548,466,805) (10,821,832,070) (8,752,485,615)
GROSS PROFIT 889,003,142 1,073,109,422 873,821,962
OPERATING EXPENSES 21 {B63,572.662)  (864,557.511)  (711084,451)
CTHER INCOME [CHARGES)
Interast expense 16 (75,823,288) (40,001,978} (23,051,290}
Net gain on fadr value changes of Investrment - .- 1 i
properties 13 64,113,985 28,167,200 1,268,133 - j
Dther cperating income 23 14,051,581 19,877,100 ll.mﬁ,dﬂﬁ i
tnerest incorme o 1,531,588 2,354,945 1.2-93.,1?«5 "
Cther charges - net 23 (4,789,597) {39,503, 2495} {27,421,732)
{915,731} {29,066,026) {36,815,338]
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 24,514,749 179,445,885
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX i) L
Current 21,935,240 5;,3&;;335;
peferred (21,247,496) 9,722,023
687,744 61,024,806
NET INCOME 23,827,005 118,420,988
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Not to ba reclassified r::rﬁr_aﬁi' or loss;
Revaluation increment on property, plant and _ e
equipmient - net of deferred income tax 12 25,194,607 mﬁﬂzﬂg‘e
Rernegsurement gain [loss) on net retirement L. LI,
liakility - net of deferred income tax g (10,192,829) 31,341,070
15,001,778 129,713 552
e 5 R
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PIBE28,783  ®247,634581
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 28 #0.008 BOLC

See accompan ing Nolted to Separate Financial Statéments,




VITARICH CORPORATION

SEPARATE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, !II'I__!-
(With Comparative Figures for 2022 and 2021)

Years Ended December 31
2022
|5 Restated -
Note 2023 Note 4) 2021
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .
ﬁ:::?:n[- before Income Lax R24,514,749 E179,445 8BS R175922,173
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization 12 140,777,962 128,886,512 1“-@-521
interasT axpense 16 75,823,288 40,001,976 23,051,200
Mt galn on falr value changes of invastment
preperties 13 (64,113,985) (28,167,200 {1,268,133)
Loss fgatn) from faie value changes on
binkogical assers 8 47,779,579 (10,936,438 22,854,221
Refrement EXxpeRse el 22,122,540 21,336,339 16,993,091
Provision for expected credit loss & 3,539,062 1,704,635 10,157,719
Interest Income g [1,531,588) (2,394 945) (1,293,145}
Loss {g=in] on disposal of property, plant and , -
euipment, and Investment properties 23 (412,275} 1,037,734 1,060,988
Operating income before working capital changes 248,499,332 331,914, 508 303,484,825
Decreaze (moredse| o
Trade and other receivables {93,009,575) {91,829,373) (96,056,231] _I
Inventories and biological assets - livastock (121,250,613)  (288,261,386) 119.5.:411.?HI B
Advances b suppliers and other current assets 293,770,312 ﬂEiE.EE;ﬁ,ﬂ_lﬁﬂ {ﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁiﬂ
Cither noncurrent 3ssets redatied to operations 5,300,636 {7.773.611) t!,I, 99,126
Inerease an: ;
Trade and other payables 49,299,384 281,505,074
Cash bond deposits 4,204,294 5,050, 529
Net cash generated from {(used for) operations 386,813,770 {Ii,ﬂi&-:ia?j
Income taxes paid (21,935,240) 1;5;1 am:_a i
Retirement benefits pajd 24 (2,184,831}
Interest recelved 1,531,588
Net cash provided by [used in) operating activities F364,225,287

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment

12 (103,811,238)

Froceeds from sale of property, plant and

efulpment and imvestmeént propertios 3,486,483
Adcitions 1o investment propertes 13 (1,712,204)
Net cash used in investing activities {102,036,364)

{Forward)



VITARICH CORPORATION

= SEPARATE STATEM ENTE_GF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
(With Comparative Figures for 2022 and 2021)
Years Ended December 31
203
{As Restated -
Naote M3 Motz &) 2021
CAPITAL STOCK 18 P1,160,646,925 FL 160645915 W1 160,646,925
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 1,470,859 1.470.853 1,470,853
RETAINED EARNINGS |
t beginning of yoar, 8% peevious
Ealj?;:;zd RS : : 304,556,328 135,015,735 35,835,131
Prior period adjustments i {6,320,445) 32,905,870 32,505,870
falance ol beginning of year, as restated 298,235,883 167,923,605 B8,741,001
wet Income 13,827,005 118,430,289 94..?55.1}3-3
Tranider from revaleation surplus to retained
garnings - netol deferred. Income tax 15 16,780,410 11,893,389 4,822,566
Balance ot and of year 338,843,298 293,235,883 167,921,605
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO55)
CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GAIN (LOS5) ON
NET RETIREMENT LIABILITY — net of
deferred income tax _
Balance at beginning of year 3,956,055 (27,885,015)
Aemeasurement gain {loss) - net of il
deferrad Income tax 24 (10,192 829) 31,841.070
Balince at end of year {6,236,774) 3,056,055
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT — net of
deferred income tax
Batance at beglnning of year; as previously
repored 414,078,148 347, m
Prior period adjustments 4 19,465,862 220,51
Balance at beginning of year, as restated 433,544,010 sﬁmm;_
Aevaluation Increment dn property, plant and
equipment - net of deférred Income Lo 1 4 15,194,607 ﬁ?ggz,ga;
Transfer from revaluation surplus to retatned
earnings - nel of deferred income tax 18 (16,7B0,410) lﬂ.ﬂi’lﬂh
Balance at end of year 441,358,207 HE.HI 010
435 ?11.433

'H‘? 1_.'=_

Bt i A e g
1,936,682,515 & .fJEEE:

See necampanying Nofes to Separate Financial Statements,




Years Ended Decernber 31
2022
(As Restated -
Note 2023 Note 4) 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
payments of Joans 16 (P1,877,235,724) (#1.819,480528) (P315534,041)
fyailments of loans payable 16 1,740,233,658  2,349,559,151 540,681,912
interest pald 16 (68,308,882) (35,735,576) [20.665,516)
payments of loase labilities 25 (26,125,747)  (28,303,544]  {19,226,261)
et cash orovided by (used in) inancing activitles 1231,436,695) 466,030,503 185,196,094
NET INCREASE IN CASH 30,751,628 131,954,434 52,715,350
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 361,660,838 229,696,404 176,981,054
CASH AT END OF YEAR 392,412,466 #361S60838  B229.696404
NONCASH FINANCIAL INFORMATION
hecogninon of ROL! assets and lease Habilities 25 #49,903,022 #34,331,713 #23,208,300.

See gocormponying Notes fo Separate Finencial Satements.




VITARICH CORPORATION

MNOTES TO SEFARATE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
A% AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2023
(With Comparative Infarmation for 2022 and 20211

1

Gangral Infarmnakion

Corporate Infarmation
Yitarich Carperation [tha Comparsy) was ineerparated and registered with the Phllippine Securitdes

and Exckange Ccmmission ‘SEC) an July 31, 1962 tc engage primariby in manufacturing, preparing,
processing, mixing and dealing with feeds, foodstyffs, prains, and commpdities of every descriptian
for poultny, .ivestock and ail kinds of aninnal feeding, The Company's shares of stock were listed with
the PRilippine Stock Excharnge on Félryary B, 1995,

The registared principal place of husiness of the Company is at MMarilago-5ar laoze Road,
Sta Rosa |, Marllag, Buacan, The Company has apasabng ofices in Luzon, Molle and Davao, and
maintains satellite offices in szoutherr. *hilippines.

Approwval of the Separate Financial S{atemenis

The separate firanciol statements as at Decomber 31, 2023 and 2022 and for 1he years ondee
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 were approved and authorized Por issue by the Board gf Directors
(200] nn March 21, 2024, as reviewed and recommended for approval y the Aodis Committes on

March 14, 2024

Summary of Material dccounting Folicy Informetion

Basls of Preparabion

The =eparate financial statemerts have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Firancial
kepnring Standards (PERIL, This tnancial reporting frameswark laclucdes PERS, Fhalppine accaunting
standards (Pa3d) and Philippine 1mespretation feem International Financial Reperting Interpretations
Cammittae [IFRIC) fssued by the Philippine Firsncal and Sustainability Reportng Standgrds Councll
and adopted by the 50C, Including SEC pronauncermsr s,

The separate finandial statements pre presented in Phllippine Paso [Pese), Lhe Company's fuectianal
and presertation currency. All values are raunded to the nearest Peso, unless otharwise indicated,

The separale fnancial statements of the Company have een prepared on a historical cost basis,
excent tor oraperty, plant and equipmeant (excluding tranzportation equipment and onstryckan in-
progress] waizh are carrled at r2waluad areounks, Irvestiment prazerles which are carricd at fair
value, biologizal aziets wh ch are carried At far value less costs ko sell, agricultural produce which are
carred at Falr valuz (253 £o5ts to sellat point of harvest, lease labilities which are cerrled al Lhe presenl
value of future ‘ease paymonts, and retieement iability which is carred at the present value of the
defined benefit oblipatian. Historical cost i= generally hased an the tair value of the conslderation
given in gxchange for an asset or f3ir value of consideraton recerved in exchange farincurrineg habllity,



rair valueis the price that wauld be recgived bo tell an 2522t or pald to transfer 3 babllity in an orderly
trancaction between maket participarss at the measurement date, The fir valve measdremant &
bazed on the presumiption that the transachon tc sel the assat ar tansfer the liability takes place
aither:

& |nthe orincip2| market for the asset or dahilltw; gr
* inthe absente of a princpal markes, in the most advantapeaus market for the assat or Nablity.,

The nrincipal ar the most advantazesus market must be acoess:bic by the Campany.

The Zair walue of an asset or a labilily is measares using the assurmptans thatl market participants
wiuld use whan prichng the asset or laaility, assuming that market participants act in their ceanomic
best interost,

A Rairvalue measaremant of a nonfinancial asset takes into account o market participant's akllty te
Eenerate econgrmic benefits by using the asset in its highest and Dest oe o By sel' gk 1o anather
market partzpant that would use the assaet inits highest and basi use.

When roedsuring the lair value of an asset or a habllity, the Sompany uses market cheervanle data to
the extent possib.e. If the Rir value of an asset ar a liablity 15 not dircethy abservable, ik 15 esdmated
by the Company [workine closely with external qualified valuers) using valuaton techniques that
i dxlrmize the use of relevant observable :hputs and rminimize the use of unobservable inputs (2.p, by
use of che -narket comparable approach that reflecie eeant transaction pricoz Far similar [tems,
discounted cash flow apalysis, or option pricing madels refined t0 reflet the issuer's specific
tircunstances]. mputs used are consistent with the characteristics of the osset or Bability that market
participants wguld take 10 agzount.

Further [vFgination about assumptons made in measuring fair values are included in the Sollowing:

Molz 3 - Significant Judgmens, Aocounting Esbmates and Assumpbions
Moke & - Jiolopical Assets - Llvestock

Mule 12 Property and Equigment

Mote 13 - Invast ment Prape riies

toke 32 - Fair Ya.ue i easuremgnt

Fair values are cateporized inte differset levels ina Fair value higrarchy bazed an the degreg {o which
the inputs to the measurement are cbservable and the slgmficonce of the inputs to the fair value
mEasurement in its entirety:

«  Level 1 i value measurements are those deslved from quoted prices [unadjusted) In acklve
rgrkets for dentical assets orliabilities.

¢ Level 2 fair value reascrerments are hase derpved [ram lepuls other than guoted prices Included
within Leval 1 that are gbservzble for the asszel or liahility, either clrectly {ie. as prices) ar
indirectly (.o, derived from prices!,

s« Leval 3 fair value maasurements 2re those derived from valuation tachnigues that i-clude inputs
Tor the asset ar hablllty that are not Based on observable market daka lwnabserable inputs).

Transfers batwean level; of the tair value higrarchy are regognized by the Company at the end af the
repirting perncd durlng which the hange oocarred,



Adoption of Amendmenis (o BERS

The actounting policles adopted are consistent wth those of the previgus financial year, except for
the adapticn of the fallawing amendments ba PFRS which the Corr pany a Jo pred effective for annual
nereds heginning anar afer lanwary 1, 2023:

« fsmendments tc PAS 1, Presenfstion of Fimonciol  Stoterrents,  and  PFRS Prackice
statemant 2, Mabivg Motenplity Judgrrents - Disclosgre initigtive - Accowniing Folicies —
Tag amendments regaire an entlty to disclose Its materlal acccunt:ng palices, irsead of its
signiticant azcounting po.cies and provide guidance oA Faw an entity applles the concept of
materiality in making decisions shout accountirg policy disclosures. In assessing the materiality
of accounting poloy mformatlor, antitles need to congsider both the size of the trarsactions, other
events or condilions and its patura. The amendments clarify (E) that accounting pofey
infarrnatizn may be materal beragse of its nature, even if the related amounts ara immaterial,
(21 hat accounting pabicy inlformation s material N usars of an &nkley"s fiand lak statements would
n=ed il to understand ather malerial information in the fnancial stataments, and (3) if an entity
discloses immaterlal accounting polley Informatlan, such [Afonmatlon should not obscune raterial
accounting policy inforraation. In additian, PFRS Practice Swatermnent 2 is amended by adding
guidance and examplas toexplain and demonstrate the application of the four-step materiality
process’ 1o accounting oy information,

«  Amendments (o PaS 8 Accounting Paltles, Chohges o Accounting Fstimates ond Frrors -
Definition aof Acesanting Estirrote s — The arnendraerts clarify the distincticn between changes in
afcounting extimates and changes inaccounting paliciss, and the gorrectinn of errars. Under tha
new definltion, accounting =stlmates are "monetary amounts in flnancial statements that are
shbjacr te measurame nt untertainty™, An erbity develaps an accounting estimate if a0 accauniting
palicy requires an itern in the financial statements to 28 measured in 3 way that imaolves
measurament uacertanty, The smendments clanfy that a change In accounting estimabe that
results from navw infammatian or fnew developrments iz nat a casrectian of an enmpr, and that the
erfects of a ¢hangs in an input or & measerement technigque used 1o develop an accounting
estimate are changes it accounting estimates of they do oot nesult frem the correction of prior
period errors, & CTEnge inoar accaunting estimate may affectanly the profit ar loss in the currant
periad, or the probt or Ings gf hath the current and future perinds,

The acopiicn of the amendments ¢ PERS did not materialiy affect the separare financial statements
af the Campany . Addittonal dleclcsuret weara Included in the nowes to separate financial statenenls,
ac applicakle.

Amendments to PFRS Already Issued But Mok Yet EHective

Undear pravailing ciccumstances, Lhe relevant amer.dments to PFRS which zre not yvet =Hactive as at
Decemper 31, 202% and have not been app.ed Inpreparing the separate Anancial statements are noy
expected to hiave ary materia effect on the separate financial statements of the Company. Additonal
disclasures will be [nclyded In the separate dnandial staterrenis, as appllicable.

Floansial Assets and Ligblitas

Lrate of Recogndtion, The Company recopmzes 3 fimancial psset ar a Franclal labillty in the separale
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a finandial
instrement In the case of a regulas way purchase or sele of financial aseels, reccgriticon and
derecoenidon, as applicakle, is done wsing seltlemenl date accounting.



Inftia! Recogrition ang fepfurement, Financial instruments are ecognized initiatly at fair walae,
which is the fair value ol the consideration given [in cise of an assel] or recewved {1 case of ahability).
The initial measuremeant of financial instrumeants, excapt for thosa desipratad at fair value through
profit or [oss sFY2LE Includes t-ansactlan costs.

Classificatian, The Compsny ¢lzssities = financial azsets at inibal recogrition chder the following
categonies: [a) Ainancial assets at FVPL, (G} finarcial assets at smartized cost and [c] financial assers at
falr valuc through other comprahenslve [ncame [FYQCH. Financial liahilitizs, on the other hand, are
classifiac as alther fimanclal abilitie s 2t FYPL e finaroal ipkiites at ametized cost, The classficahon
of a Fnancial instrement lzrgely depends on the Company's business model and iLs conbractual cash
flooww rhararteristics.

Aset December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Cumpany dues nol dave financial assets at FYGICT and financlal
assets and liahilities ar FW2L

Financial Assets ot Amorizea Cost. Financial assels skall be rnegeu-ed ab amorbized costif both of the
following congitions are ret:

#  the financial azset is held within a bushness model whose objective i3 10 hold financial assets n
order to coellect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractuzl terms of the firancial asset ge rise, on specified dates, to cash Aaws chat are
soluly paymemts ol principal and inlerast on the prindipa: amaount cutstanding,

After initial recagnicn, tinancial 2ss=ks at amortized cosk are subzequently measyred at amcrized
cost using the evective interest mnethod, less allowance for incpaimaent, if any. Amortred cost 15
calculated by taking Inte account any discauntar premiunt oh acquisition and fecs that are an integral
part of the effestve interest rate. Gains and [osses ere recagnired in prafit or loss whan the finangial
assets are derecopnzed pr impaired or thrpugh the ameothization process. Finangial aszets at
amorteed cast are ocluded under current assctsaf realizabllity or collectability 15 within 12 months
after the reporting period. Otherwise, these are claseibed a5 noncurrent aseets.

A5 4t Decemnbrer 31, 1023 and 2022, the Company's cash, trade and other receivables
texcluding advarres (7 ofirers and employees), recayable from an Inturance company and seourdty
deposils [prasanted onder "OLher Koncurrent Assels” acoounl) dre classilied under this calegary
fzee Wotes 5. B, 10 and 14).

Fingncit) Liohitifies ot Amorhzed Cost. Financial liabilites are categorized as fnancial liabiflities at
amortized cost when the substance of the contractyal arrangament results Inthe Contpany having an
abligation aither 1 duliver cash or anather livancial asset w the holder, ar 10 seltle L cblipacon
ather than by the exchange of a fixec amaunt of cash or another financial asset for a fixed nurmker of
iLs cwn edulty Instroments,

These Nirannial iabilities are initially recognizzd at tair vaivg less any directly 2ttribukable transaction
casts. After initbal recognilion, these finaacial iabiliGes arc subsequently meadured ol amaitized cosl
using the effective interest method, Amorized cost is caloulated by taking into account any dispnunt
ar gremium on the issue and fecs thot are an integral parl of the effeclive interest rate. Gains and
losses are recopnizedin protit or loss whern the abilities are derecegnized ar through the ameorization
Process.



as at Decarnbar 31, 2023 and 2024, the Company's trade and other pavables [oxcluding statutasy
payab os), loans povable, lease  iabehbies and cash bongd deposits are claesifed under Lhis catepory
156 Moles 15, 16, 17 2nd 25).

Redassificadon

The Company reclassfles ils fiaancial uzsels when, and only when, it changes its business model Tor
rmanaging those finantia assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day of the
firsg reporticg oeriod Zallowing the change in the business model (reclassification datel,

Far a financial asset reclaszsified out of the finanoal assets at axrortized cost category to finanenl
assets at FYPL, any galn or [0sg ansing lrom the difference belweoen the previous amorbzed cost of
the financial asset znd Fair value is racaognized in profit ar loss. Fara fnancial asset reclassified nut of
the financial assets at amartized cost categony to Fnancial assets at FVOCL any gain or loss adsing
from a difference beowesn the previcds armcrised cosl of the financial assel and fair value is
reccgnized in OCI.

Impairment of Finandal Assets at Amartized Cost

The Company records 2n allowan g for expected credit loss (LCLD Based on the differcnce between
the contractual cash flcws due [noaccordonce with Ene contract avd all the caskty Mows that the
Corpdry espects L0 recelye. Thie ditferenee iy then discounted at an agprasimation to the asset's
ariginal effective irterest rate.

For race recervakiles, Lha Company has applied the simphified approach and has calculabed ECL based
ar: the lif=time ECL. The Campanay has established a provislen meacr ihat is based on its hiswrical
credit loss experlence, adiusted for Forward-looking Fuctors specific ta the debtars and the aconamin
enviranment,

Far olher financial a5sals rmeasured 4t amortized ost, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL which
partains to the portian of lifetime ECL that result from defaol cvends an g financhkal Instroment that
are passilde wilthin 12 meonths after the reporiing date. However, when there has baen a significant
increass increcil risk since inibial recagnition, the alowance will be based on the [Ifehme ECL,
When determmining whether the credlt olsk of a financlal acsat has increated signilicamly since initial
recopnlion, Lhe Company compares the risk of a default occurring cn the financial irstrument as at
tha -eporting date with the risk of A default coourring an the Snanclal irstroment as ar the dule of
Initipl recognition gnd conslder reasonable ang sepportable inforrmation, that is available without
urclug vost er e ffurt, Whal is incicative of signiticant increases incredit risk sinee inidal recognitfon,

Derecognldon ef Financlal Assets and Liz hilities

Finanon! ageets, & Anancal assen (or where : pplicable, 8 part ofa fnancial aszet or part af a Company
of similar fnancial assets) is darecognized when;

» the rignt “o receive cash flows frem the asset a5 explred;

* the Compeny retains the right to recelve cash flows From the Ananclal 3sset, but has assumed an
abligation to pay 1hems in full without meterial delay to a third party under a "pass-through®
Arra ngement; er

+ the Cormpany hias transferred ita right to recelye cash flows from the financial asset and either
ral has rransferred substanbally all the riske and rewards of the asset, ar (b] has neither
tranczferred nar retained substantially al| the risks end rewards of the asset, bul has transieimed
cenirgl of the asset.
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Wher the Company has transferred its right to recelve casnilews fram a financial asset or has entered
into a pase-through arrangement, and has nelther srancfeeegd nor eatained substantally all the risks
anc rewards of gwnershin of the tinancial asset nors transferred conbiol of Lhe finzneial asser,
the finansal asset [s recognlzed to tae extent of the Campany's corbnuing involvement in the
Financial zsset. Cortinuing involverrent that takes the form oF 3 guarantee aver the transferred
financial asset is maasured at the lower of the original carrying amounl of the Ananclal assel and the
masimium amount of consideratian that the Company could be requised ta repay.

Firpaciol Dgtiiies, & fnanclal llability is derecopnized when the chllgaticon under the lizkllity is
discharged, cancelled or has expired, Whon an existing linancial Fability i replaced by anolher feorr
the sgme l2nder on substantially ditterant terms, ar the temns of an exisbing liabitity are substantialy
rrodilied, soch an exchange or wmodification |5 trested az a derecognition of the anginal liability and
Lthe recogniticn of a naw liability, and the difference in the respestdee carrying armounts 15 rezogrized
in tae separate stetemeants oF comprehensive inceme,

A moditication is considerad substantial if the present value of the ¢ash ews under the new terms,
inzluding net fees peid ar received end discounted using the ongingl effective nterest rate, s different
by at least LUS: from the disoounted aresentwaiue of reraalning cash flows of the orlginal lab by,

The fair velue of the modified financial liability 5 detarmined based on its expected cesh flows,
distounted using tae inkerest rate at which the Company could rase debt with similar terms and
canditians in the market. Tha differance between the carmying amount of the criginal liahility and fair
vAlug of the mew liebility is recognized in the separate statements o comprehensive income,

Co the other hand, if the diference does nct meet the 10% threzhold, the aqiginal debt is not
extinguizhed but merely madified. In such case, the @roying amount is adjusted by the osts or fees
patd or receivad in the restructuring.

Inyentorjas

Inventeries conslst of feecs, raw mateadle aed feeds supplements, supphes and arimal health
argducts, finished poods and hatching egge. Coss is detemined uging the moving swverage methed,
Invontorles are measured at the lower of cott and not eabzabio value (NRY)

EFods, Feads Include costs of raw matenals and costs of divect labor and manufacturing cverhead,

Row Moterich, Feed Supplerments, Syppies and Aol Health Prodocts. Tor these ireentaries, all
costs directly attrhutable to acquisitien such as the purchase price, innpart dities and ather taxes that
are ol subzequently recoveable From Laxing avthorities are included as part of cosks,

Finizhed Goads, Tinisked goods, which nglede frash and fropen chicken cut-ups, include costs of
dlrect rmatenals, [2bor and overhgad.

Hotohing Cpgs, Hatching eggs ars initially measured at the fair value l2ss estimatad costs to sel, at the
point gt na~vest. Fzir value less estimated casts bo sell at the paint of Parvest is cansidered the cost at
that date when these are recognized as inventaniss,

The NEY of fesds, feed supplements, animal health producks, finished goods ard hatching =ggs 13
based pn tha astimated s&lling price in the ordinary coursa of businecs less the cest of marketing and
distribution, while the NEY of raw materizls and supplies is the current replacement cost,



CT

When inventeries arg sold, the carrving amgunt of Fhosg icyentores is recagnized 25 an expense n
profit o loss.

Biglogical Assets - Livestock

This consisls of biologlcal assets such as day-ald chicke after undergelag che hawhing pracess, cicss
which are grovern os chicken breilers, ard parent stock. These are measured an initdal recognition and
at the end of each reporting period st fair walug f=ss costs to wail. The Dompany’s fair valuaton takes
Into copsideratior [npuss based on the hatckabllity rate of agps, mortality of chicks belng grawn as
chicken brailers and sarenl slock, eslimated future sach Noves to be incoreed i hatching the eggs and
grawing the chicks and parent stock, emang others.

Galn or loss anis g on nlcal recopnilion and sy cfianges in the fair value less coses 10 sell of livestock
are recorded as adiustment to "Met sale of goods” in the separate statements of comprehensive
income.

Aduances bo SUpphiers

Advances to suppliers are amcunts paid inadvance ferthe purchase of poocls ang servloes. These are
carrigd inthe separate stataments of financiai position at face amount and are recogrized as expenze
i proflt or leas ar 1o the correpondimg azset accaunt when the semvioes ar eoods fgr which the
advances were mads are received by and deliverad to the Company with ceference o percentage of
completon, if any,

Advances 10 supgiiers wherein the camrespondlag good ar sorvices are expocted o be delverad or
pecfarnted far fe mare than 12 monche after the financial reporting period are classified a5 cument
ayraly. Otherwiss, these ara classlSed as nancurrent.

Dther Current Aseets
QOLher current assets consist of creditable with hu:lll:ling taxes (OWTs), advances 10 contract growers
and brzeders, orepayments and input valuye-added taxes VaT),

W Ty CWTs repriesent the amownts withheld at scurce by the Compary’s Custoners in relabion to s
intame. These are recognized upor collection énd are utillzed as tax credits againgt Incame lax due
a5 pllowed by the 2R ppine taxation laws and regolations.

Advances 6 Conbracl Growers and Bresders. Advancas o contadt Zrowers ang breeders oerkain o
purchases af ammzp. health products and Eeeds t3al are already paid in advance. These are expecred
ta be recelved by and delivered eo the Company far no mgre than 12 manths after the financlal
reparting pe-lod.

Frepaymenis,  2repayments represent eypenses not ek incurred but already paid in casa.
Propayrnents ase imbally recordad as assets and measurad st the anpunt of cash paid, Subsegquantly,
these are chirged to expense as these are consumed in pperaticns o expire with the passage af time.
PFrepayments tnat asc cxpected o be intusred na mcre than 12 manths aftet the reporting date are
classitied as current assets. Otherwise, these are classified a5 nonourrent pssets,

Inpwr VAT, Beverue, expens=s and assets are reogerized net of the amount of WAT except In cases
where WAT incurred on a perchase of assets or services 15 not recoverable from tha taxadan authanty,
i whlch caso, waT s recoghized 15 part of the ¢ost of acquisiEon of the asset or as part af the exoanse
2tern, as applicable, or receivable and payzbles that arg stated with the amaunt of AT incleded,



Property. Plant and Equlpnnent

Property, flaat and equipment [except for Cransgontztion equipment and construction in-progress)
are skated at ravplued anounts as detemined by an independen: appraiser. Transporiation
EquUipMent anc <onstruction in-pragress are stakbed at cost less accumdlated depreclation and
impaimaent in value, it any.

The immal aost of praperty, plant and cqu.prment cons:sts of the purchase prce, InCluding inpor
duties and ather costs directly attributable Lo bring e ascan 1o il working condilion and .acaon far
[ts [ tended vse. Cost alsa includes the cost of replasing parts af such property, ofant and equipment
whien the recopniton Crrecla are met and the present value of the estimated cost of dlsmanthng and
remnving the asset and restoring the site wherae the assel is lpcated.

Expenditures incurred alter the property, pant and egqulproent have been put 90 cperation, such as
repains, maintenance and averhaul coats, are normalfy charged to operations in the year the costs are
ncurred In slituatioas where [t can be clearly demanstrated thai the expenditures have resulted Inan
increase in the fulure econoric benaefits expected bo e obtained Trom ke $se ol an item of prapery,
plant and equipment beyvond tz originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as sdd:ticna costs of praperty, plant and equlament,

Subsequent to initial recopniEan at cost, praperty, piant and equipment jexcepl for land,
trangperation equipment and constryciian in-progress] are carried at revalyed amaurts less any
subsgquent acoumulated depreciation, amertizaten and any accurmnylated impairment lasses. Land is
carried at revalucd armodnt esg 3scumuates Impalement [osses, IF any, Falr market value 15
datermined by reterence 1o market-bazed swidenge, which is *he smount for which the assats could
ke oxchanged betweean a knowledpeable wllling huyer and 3 knowledgeable willing seller o an arey's
length transaction 45 al the valuation date, any revaluation surplus s credived Lo "Revaluation
surplus™ account presented under “Other camprehensive incoma® sectinn of the seoarate statements
of financlal position Any decrease v 1he revaluabon syrplys of the same asset s charged w0 OCI 1o
tha extent af any credit balance existing in the revaluaticn surplus in respect of that asset and the
retmaining decling, if any, 15 recagnized In the separate statements of comprehansive ncome

Annually, an amnunt frem the “Revaluation surphis” acorunt is trAnsferred to “Retained earnings”
under the "Tyuky” section [v the separate slatements of Anancial positton for the depreciaton
relating to tne -evaluation surpluz, 3et of retated tawes. pan disposal, any revaluatian surplus relating
to the partftular asset sovd is transfzrred o “Retalned sannings”, Revaluaticons are performed evecy
orte Lo bwrd wears o ensary Lhal the carrving mounl does nol difer raterially from that which woald
be dztermined using fair value at the end af the reporting periad.

Daprot ation and amortization are calzulabed ana straght line bagis over the following estimatod
useful lives of the assats:

Asset Tyoe MWuralzr of Years

Plant, machinery angd squipment 100 20 vears

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold ard land impravernents 2 1o & years or lease term, whichever jz shgrer

JFffice furmltare, fixtures and egupment 3 to 10 years
Transpertation equiprment 4 10 Syears



~he astimated wseful livez and depreciation and amordzatden method are reviewed periodically to
ensyre that the perigds and method of depraciatios and amermizadan are consistent with the
crpected parern of econorle benefits from items of property, piart and equipmernt.

Fully-depracated assets are retained in the acoount until they are na lorger [n use and na further
chaege for depreclanon and amartization is made in respeci to thase asFats.

Construction in-propress is stated at cost, This includes cast of construction and othar diest costs,
Coanstruction in-prograss is not depraciated until such Eme that the relevant assats are Complebed and
avaifakle for operadcnal use,

An item of properiy, plant and equipment is derecoeriaetd vpan disposal of when ne fusure econamlc
benefits are expected From [t3 use or dispasal. Any gain or loss arizsing on derssozrition of the asset
fralculatec 22 the diference betwe=en the net disposal proceeds and the camying amaunt ot the assst]
is included in grofit or loss in the year the asset is derecognlzed,

Investment Properties
Imrestment propertes are properties held gicher e earn rantal income or for caoltal appreclation o
bath, but nat for sale inthe ordingry course of business or for administrative purposes.

The Company uses fair value model for the acoounting of its investrnent properlies. Under this
methed, investrment properties arg nitially measyred at cost but are subsequently cemeasured at fair
value a2 each reporting dale, which reflects market condmions at the reporting date Cost camprises
the parchase price and any directy attributable casts In developing and improving the propertias.
Cost also Includes the rost of replacing part of an existing investment property &t the fime that cost
[g incurregd if the recogmibon crigeria are met, The Fair value of [nvestiment progerties s determined
using Sales Commparison appradch by aginde pendent real estate appraiser. Gains or losses grising fram
changesinthe fairvalues af investoient praoperties are included in profit or loss in the periad in which
they arize, ncluding the corresponding tas effect, For the purposes of these separate financial
staterments, in arcer to avaid doukle cauntieg, the fair vaive reported in the separate Bnancial
statements s reduced by the carnying amount af any accrued income resuiting from the spreading of
Icase Incenthves and mundemues. ledse payenents, as applicakle,

Transfers are made to rvestment property 'when, and anly 'when, there is a change v use, evldenced
by the ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease ta anather party or ending
of the cansruction or develapmant. T-ansfers are meda from imvestment property when, end only
whea, tnére is 4 thangs in 08, evicenced by the cammencement of awner cciupation or
commencement of develgpment with a vigw 1o sell,

Irvestment propeties are derecapgnized when elther those have bezn disposed af or when the
inwEstrent property 15 permanen by withd rawn Fromuse and ne future economilc benefit s expected
from its cisposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an irwvestment praperty is
recogrized im the separate statements of comprehensive income in the year of retiremeant or disposal.

Rantal income and operabing expenses from investment praperties are reported as part af “Othar
income” and “Zperating expenses,” respectlvely, In the separate statements of comprehensive
inComeA.
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Other Noncurrant Assats
Other noncurrent assels vonsisl of prajecl develapment costs, secunky d2posits classifled as flnanclal
assats and camputer snftwars.

Project Develdpment Costs. These represent oosts cirectly attributable 1o the development of the
Campany's aqua teecs and aqua culture projects. The capitaiized develaprmont costs pertaln 1o the
ameunt af cash paad orthe fairvalue of the acher considerationg piven 1o acquire am accet ot the tima
af its acquisition & praduetan,

Camoater Safiwere, Computer software is measured at cost of acagisitian less ary actumulated
amortization and impairment [esges, if a9y, Compoter software [ amarized o a stralgnt-lineg basis
aver the acanomric useful life of three years and assessed for impairment whanever thera 15 an
Indlcatien that the computer saftware may be impaired. Amortization period 2nd 2mortfzation
methed for compular soltwate ara revlewad at each reporting date, Any change in the expected
useful life or the expected pakern of consurmpton of future economic benefils embodied n e assey
iz recognized prospacTively.

Irnpaitment of Nonfinaneial Assets

Tha carrying amounts of the Campany's norfinansal assets are roviewed at cach reporting date to
deterrmins whetnarthere is any indication of impeimrmnent. fany such irdication exists, than the assey's
net reeaverab.coameunt 15 estimated.

ANy mpairment loss s recogited 1 the cErrying amount of an asset or its cask-generating unit (LG UL
exceads its not fasoverable amcunt. & CGU is the smallest identifiable asset Company that penerates
cash tlows that ara largely independent from other azzets gf tha Company. Impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss in the period incurred.

Tha net recaverzbkle amaunt af an ascet ic the preater oF its value in use @rits fair wvalue less costs to
soll, Value i wse s the proseat value of fytere sash Aows expected to be derlved from an asset while
tair value less cost to sell s the amount obtainable fror: the sale of an @552 in &0 ano's B2ngth
transachon betwsan knawledgeable and willing parties less costs of disposal. In assessing value in
wse, the estmated future cash Mows are discounted ta 1helr present values uslng a prestas discount
rate thal reflects current market assessoents of the lime valus of money and the risks specific to the
gsnet.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are sssessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss hés decreased or no langer exists. &n Impalement [oss 15 reversed iF there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine Lthe racoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the cerrylng amownt that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amertizatian, if no Impairment loss has been
recognlzed,

Leases

A conbrack is, of contains, a legse when it conveys the right 1o control the wse of an idenbfied asset
tor 3 period ol <ime in exchange fo- consideration. To assess whether a eontract conveys the right ta
catrel the vse of an identified asset Fara period of time, the Compeny pssesses whether, throughout
the period of uze, the custamers has bokh of the follew ng:

= The right to obtaln substantially all of the 2congmic baeefits fram use of the [dentified asset; end
«  The right to direct the use of the [dentified asset.
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If the Campany has the right to control the use of an identfied azset tor only a partion af the term of
the contract, the cantract cantaing a fease for that perton of the tem.

The Cempany alsc sssesses whether a contract containe 3 lease for sach potanttal separate lease
cornpihent.

The Company as Lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-us2 (ROUY azset and leasa liability [0F al) leases, aacepl [or leases
with legse teoms of 12 months or less [short-term leases) and leases far which the undedying assat i
af low valuz, in which zase the sase payrneats associaled with those leases are recopnized 45 an
expense on a stralght-lkne basis.

ROU Aszers. At commencemert data, the Company measures e BOU aztets at cost, The cost
cormprlses

v The amount of the inldal measurement of lease lizhilites,

» Ay |egse p@yinents made at or hefore the commencemsnt date less any lease incentives
recaived;

» Ay initial direcl coslz incorred by the Company; and

« Anestmation af costs ba be incurred oy the Companyin dismantliog ard renoving the underlying
asset, when applicalble.

After the commencermnent date, the ADU assets are sirrned at cost less any accumuldted amortzatich
angd agoumnulated impaimrent losses, and adjusted for any remeasurament of the related leaze
hablitias, The RO assets are ampriized aver the shorer of the lease “erms arthe usaful lives of the
underlying assels eanging as folkawe:

Assel Type Mumber of Years
Burlding 2 o 5 years
Transporiatian eguiprmeaat 5 years

Lease Lighifities. 8t cormmencemant date, the Company measdes lease iabites at the present value
oi future eass payments wsing the interest réte implicit in the lease, if tRet rate can be readily
de teemened, OLhemwse, the Company ases its incre mental bovrowing rate.

Lease payments iwluded in the measurement of leace liabilities comprize the following:

¢ Flxed payments, Including in-substance fixed payments,

* Wariakie lease paymeats Lhat depeag on anindexoor a rabe, initially measuraed uging the index or
rate as at thz commencamarit l'_‘li:lll-_';

#  Amaunts expectad to be payable uncdear a res"dua value guarante; and

#  The exertise price under a purchase apticn that the Company is regsonably certain 16 exersise,
[&ase payments io an aptonal fenewal perles Fthe Compgany 15 reasanable certain te exerelse an
gxtension gption, and penalies for early tarming<ion ot a lease unlass the Company is reasonabhby
gerkaln nok o termnate £arly.
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Lease ilabllities are subsequently measured at anortized cost- nterast on the f2ase iabilities and any
variabie lease pavments not irsluded i the meascremest of lease labikbes are recognlzed in profit
ar Ioss urlass these are capitalized as casts of anather asset. Varialle lease paymeants nat included in
the measuremant of the lease liabilities are recognized in profit or loss when the avant gr condition
thar teigesrs thase payfrienks Docurs,

If therr is a change in the lease term or if there is a change in the assexcmen’ of an option ta purchasa
the underlying assel, the lease iablitdes are rermeasured using a revised discount rate considering the
revised .ease payments on the basis of the revised lease tarms or reflecting the change n amourls
payahle undar the mirchase opticn. The lease liahilities are alsa remeasured using the revised leasa
payrients f there |2 & change in the amounts expected o 1 gayable under a resiéugl value puaranice
or g changy in Muturs beasse payments resulling lrem a change in an index or a rate used to determine
those payments.

The Company as a Lessor

Leases where the Compary retaing substanBally all the nsks and rewards of cwnership of the asset
arg clagsified as cperating leases. Initial dirgct costs Incurred in negohating an aperating lease are
added to the carmng amcunt of the leased asset ond recognlzed over the [ease term on the same
basis as rental intome.

Egulty
Capimgl 3dock, Capital stock s measured at parvalue for all shares isseed.

Additional Paid-ire Copital fAPIC] ARIC is the praceeds andfor fair value of cansideratians received in
excess of par value of the subscribed canital stork. Incremental coses incurred d rectly atnibukakzle 10
the Issuanse of new shares are recopnl2ed as dadud lion Trinm ecaily, met ol @2y Lax, Othenwise, thesa
dru recoEnizec s expense in proft or loss,

fetained Earnings  Retained earndngs rapresenls the curmulative balance al neincwerme or loss, net af
any dividend declaration and any prior pericd adjustrients.

OCL DO comprlses oF ilems of cume and cspeiase that are not recognized in profit or less in
accorcance with, FERS. OC1 of khe Company perains bo revaloatian surplus on property, plant and
equlpment and accumdlated remeasuremeand gains and losses ononel reremnent lability,

Revenue Recognition
The Company iz engazed in the manufacturing and distelbokon of armal feeds animal health and

nutritional prodects, and (eads supplerients. The Company is alsa engaged in the production of
rday-ald ckhicks and in the growing, praduction and dstributon of chicken bronlers, either as llve ar
drassad Chickens,

Revenue frov cantract with customers [s recopnized when the perforrance chllgation in che contract
has been satisfied, eitier at a paoint in Gme or over time. Revanue is recognized over time if oneg of the
fallwwing criteda is met: (2) the custarmer simultaneausly receives and consumes the benefis as the
Companty perfarm s oolipalions; {k) che Company's perfermance creales or enhances 2n asset that
the customer cantrals as the asset is treated ar enhanced; or (g the Company’s perfomance does
hot creata an asset wich am a terr a e Use o Ui Compary e the Company has ar enforceable rigit
to payment for perfammance completad to date. Otherwise, revenys is recognized at a polnt In tme,
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The Cormpany 3% assesses iLE revanye armngements bo delermine if 1T is 3cting as 4 poncipal or as
an agent. The Company has pssessed that it acts as a principal in 2]l of 5 revénue soUmCes,

Favenua frem the Company™s sale of goods 7s recognized at pobnt in time when centrol of the poods
15 fransiereed ta the castomers, which is normally upon delivery,

The following specific recopmition criteria myst also be met befgre cther rdvenue ikems cutside the
scope of PFRS 15 are recoerlied:

Feetal incoree . Henta! ncame on lepsed property is recognized or a straight-ine batle ouer tha lease
term.

Interest Incarme, Kevenye is rerognized as interast accroes, taking into consideration the effeitve
wield an the wsyel.

Qrher eare iherincame is recognized when earned.

Cost and Expense Recognltion

Cost gnd expenses are decreases in ecanomic benefits during the accounting peeiod in the Torm ol
autflows ar depletiors of assets or ingurrenge of liabilites that result in decreases in equity, othar
than thaso re.ating bo distribulions bo cowity pariclpants,

Cust of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold are recopnized 35 expense when the ralated goods aré
dealivered.

Qoerafing Exponses, Dperatng sxpenses constitute cost of administerng the busingss and cost
incurred to zell and market its products, These are expensed a5 incurred,

Interest Expense. These are racagnized Im profAt or 05 using the cffccte Interest method,

Otier Chorges, Other charges are recognized when Incurred.

Employes Benafite

Shert-termn Benefils. The Corpany recopnizes a ‘labilty net of 2reounts already pald 2nd an expense
for services rendered by employees during the accounting period. & liabilivy is also recopniced Tor Lhe
arnount expected to e pald under short-term cash borus ar profit sharing plans if the Company has
3 present legal or constriective oblieation: Lo pay Lhis arecunl as a resuit of past seryice proeided by
the emploves, and the oblipatlon can be estionated reliably.

Shorl-tenm emip'oyes benefit abllites are measurad an an undisconnted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Retirement derefits. The Company 7as o parBally funded, non-contributory defined beneflt plan
vovaring all qualifled smployees, The ratiremant benefits cos; is determined using the projected unit
cred®t method which reflects services rendered by cimployees to the date of valvation and
incorporate s astumobions concening employees’ projected salares.
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The Company recngnizas service costs, comprising af current servlce costs, past semvice cogs and net
inherest BApENFR O NCGITE i Proditorloss. Metinteressis caliulated by applying the dizcount rate to
the ret retiremert lability er asset,

Past servica costs are recopnized In profit o oss on the earller of the date of the plan amendment or
curtalimeant, and the aate that the Company recognizes restructusng-related costs.

Reymeasire ments pertaining to actuarial gains and losses and retusn on plan assets are recognized
immedialaly in OC! in the peddod nowhich they arls2, ARmeasurements are not reclassificd to profil or
loss in subsequent periods.

Flan as5ats are a3sets that are held in trust and managed oy a trustee Bank, Plar assets ate nok
availabla to the crecitors of the Comgany, nor tan they be paid direcily to the Company. The fair value
of the plan zssets is based on the market pace informabon. when no markat price is available, the
falr value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash Mows using a discount rate
that reflects bat: the risk assaclated with the alan asoets aed the matunty er expected disposal date
of tncse assets {ar, it they have na matusity, the expestad perlod unhl the settloment of the related
abllgatiehs], If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present waloe of the redrerment
liabilivy, the maasuremant of the resulting defined boncfit asset is imited 1o theasset ceiling which is
the present value of economic benetits available in tha formoof refunds o the plaa or reduchcns
in futare contelbudaas o Lhe pian,

The net retirement asset (labolity) is the aggregate of the present value of the defined banel
ablipatich ang the fale value of plan asseis against which the pbligations are to be settled directly,
adjusted for aoy eifect of #4261 Callimp, The [aresent value of the retrement obhegation is determined
by discaunting the estimated future cash outflows using inlersst rate an govermmenl bends Lhat have
term; (0 maturity apprx’mating the terms of the relazed retireraent liability.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficienl regolarily so thal the armounts recogaized in the separate
financlal s;atements do nnt differ materially braor the amounts Shat waold be detesmined at the
reporting date,

Incarne Tanes

Cyrrent Tow, Current tax 2ssets ond liahlities are meesured at the amount expected ta be recoversd
frem ar paid to the tax autharity, The tax rales and Lax [aws used to compute the ameunt are those
that have heen enactac or substantively enacted at the reaorting date.

paferred Tow. Ceferrad tax 5 pravided on all temporary differences at the reporting date betwoen
the tax bates of 255205 and [labHInes and their carrying amounts far financial reporting purposes.

Defoercd tax hakitities ae recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferrad Lax assats are
recoenized for z|) deductible ramparary differenaes to the estent that |t s probable that taxable
income will be ava'lakle against which the deductbile vermparary differences can be wtlllzed,

The carnging amovnt of deferred lax sssels is reviewed st each wepornng date and reduced ta the
exlenl tharit |5 ne lenger probable that suffloent taxable income wil be avallable to a.low all or part
af the deferrec tax asset to be utilized. Unrecopniced defarred rax assels ase reagsessec gt eath
reparting dale ard are recogrozed to the adtent that i has hernme probable that future tasable
incane will all2w the devarred tax assets o be recover=c.
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Deferred tax assets and habilltes are measured at the tax rates that ane applizable tahe year when
the azset is realizad ar the liahility 14 settled, based axtas rates and taxs laws that have heen 2nected
ar subistariiely ensdted at the reacrting date.

The measurement of deferrad ax labilities and assets reflectks Lthe tax consequences that would
foliow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of thea reparting penicd, to recaver
ar sele the carrying amount of 1ts assets and liabilites. For purposes of measuring daferred tax
liabllities 2nd deferred Lax asse1s for Investment properties that are measured yshng the f3lr value
mggel, the carrying amaounis of sirch properties are presumed o be recovered erlirely thioogh Lale,
unless the prasumpion s rebutted, that s, whes the investrent property is depreciable and is held
within the business modal whosa chjective is consume substantally all of the economle bepefts
emlxndied In the investment property owver ime, rather than through ale.

Most changes in defer-ed tax assels of deferred Lax labilites are recopnized a5 B cormpanant of taa
expense in prafic ar loss, axcept to the cxtent that it relabes too ilems recognized ine obher
comprehensive incame or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is alsa recognized in other
comprehensive ncome or diractly inedquity, respactively,

Cefemred tax assets anc daterrec tax «abilities are ok=et if a tepally arforesable right axists to offsec
current tox assets agansl current tax liabiflties ang deferred taxas relate to the same taxahle entity
ang tae sam= tax autharity.

Provisicns

Provisions am recocgnized wien the Company has a present legal of constructive obligaticn as a resuk
of 3 pagt svent, it is probakle that an nutflow of resnusces embodying ecanomic benefits will be
regquired i setkle the abligaton and a ieladle estmate can be made of the amcunt of the ohilpation,
Prowisians are mezsured at the estimated aspeaditure required ta settle the presemt obligatior,
hased on the st rehable eviderce aeailable at the end of the reporting peod, includleg risks and
uncertainties assovizted with the present obligation. IF the effect of lhe tioe value of money is
matenal, provisinns are detemmined by discnunting the expectec future cash flows at & pre-tax @te
that raflacts current varket assessments of the time value of troney and, where approprlate, the rlseds
specific lo the labilivy, Whers discounting is used, e incradase inthe provisien doe 1c the passage of
tine is recognized as aninterest expance. Provisions are revieysed at the erd of each reparting pericd
and a:ljusted to refleck the cument hest estinate.

Basic gad O|luted Earnlngs per Share [ERS|

Basic 3 is computed by dviding the et incorme Tur L pericd attributable e common eguity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted awverage number of issued, subscribed and
autstandmg common $1ares dunng the perad, with retraactive adjustrnent far any stock divldends
declared.

Jilyted EPS is computed in the same manner, adjusted far the effects af ary patentially dilutive
conwerabl e securities.

Events After the Reporting Perlod

Events after the reporting pericd thal provide additienal infarmation about tae Company's fidancial
positien at the end of the repomicg pericd (adjusting event) are reflected in the separatz financial
statemants. Zvents afrer the reportng detied that are not adjusting events are disclosed [n the notes
1o separata firancial statements when materal.
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3.

Significant Judgmants, Accaunting Estimates and Assumptions

The prepamatinn of the Company's separate financial statérments requires management (o make
judgments, atoounting estimates and sssumptions that affect tho amounts of dssets, labilities,
incanne and expenses reported in the separate fnaccial statrrments. These are based an
rranagement s cvaluator of relevant facks and circumstances as af the date of the separate financial
statem=nts.

while the Company belioves that the assumptions arg reasonadlz and appropriate, tignificant
ditferenses ia the actual experionce ar 5;gnificant changes [n the assumptions may materially affect
the estimated armounts. st al results could difter from sach estimates.

The accournting eslimates and wnderlying assmptions are reéviewed onan ongoing basls, Changes In
accounting Astirates are recognized in the period in which the estimate izrevised if the change affects
cnly that period cren zhe perlad of the change and future pencds if the revisinn affects both curent
and feture pericds.

Judpments
In the pracass of applying toe Company’s accounting policies, management has made the followng

judgments, apart from thase invaiving estimations, which Feve the most slgnificant effect an the
amaunts recograzed in the separate financlal sizlemerts,

Cinssifping the Prapsriy. Flant ond Equipmant ond Investment Frocerties. The Cormpany detarmines
whethe & property qualifes as an investment property or an iterm of property, plant and equiprnent.
In msaking 115 pedgme s, the Comrpany cansiders whether the property is held primanily to eamrentals
or capital appreciation ar bath, ar us2d for aperaEans and adminiscracive pUrposes by the Company.

The carmying amounts of property, plant and equiprment and snvestmeni propertes as at
December 31, 2043 and 2022 are disclosed in Notes 12 and 13, respectively.

Catermining tha Highest angd Gest Use of [rvestrent Progerdies. The Cormpany delermines e highese
and best wse of its wnwrstment properties when measucing fair value. In making its judgment, the
Cormpany Lakes irnlo accoarl Lhe use of the avestrrent properties that |5 ahyslcally possinle, legally
prroissible and financially feasible.

The carrying amourts of investment properties as &t December 31, 2025 and 2022 are disclozed in
Mote 13,

Datermining the Leose Commitments = The Compory 05 G Lessor. Leases where the Company retains
substantlally all the rlsks end rewards of ownershlp of the gsset are classified as pperating leases,
Initial direct ccsts incurred in negatiating an cperabine lease are added Lo Lhe carrying amuount of the
leased asset and -2oognized over Lhe leasa terrm an the s2me beas as rental income. Contingen’ rents,
if any, are recoenized as revenus ir: the paricd n which Lhese are earrnec.

Fental [ncome esrned n 2023, 2042 and 2021 are discosad in Note 25
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Detarmining the Legse Terre and iacrementgl garrawing Rote, The lease tenm I @ signidicant
CO MEcaent in the measurerrent of both the BOW assets and lease liabilines, Judgmert is exercised in
derermining whether there it reasonable cartainty that an optian 1o extand the lease or purzhate tha
underlyirg asset, if any, will be =xercizad, or an option to terminata the lease will not e exarcised,
when ascertainivg the pengds to be inzluded inthe lease term. in detamining the leass term, 21l facks
anhd chicumsranies that créate an econamical [ncentive £o eeerclse an eatension aptian, or hot 1w
Bxercize @ tarminatian ophicn, are considered at the lezza commencement date. Factors cansidered
riay inchice the importance of the asset to the Compary's aperaticns, comparison of termras and
condtiens wr prevailing markel rates, Incorrence of sipnificant penaldes, esstance of slandfcant
laasehold improvements, 2nd the costs and disruption to replace the asset. The Company reassasses
whetherit is reasonably cartain to exercise 20 exkersinn aptlon, ar not exercise a terminaton option,
If thereis @ signikzant edant ar s[gnifcant cherge in Circunstances

Where tha interast rate implicit in 2 l2ase @nnot be readily determined, ar incremental barrowing
rate iz estimated o ciscouwnt future lease payments to measure the preseat value of the lease
hab: Imies at the case commencement date, such a rake 3 based an what the campany astimates i
would have b1 pay a third party to barraow the Fands necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value o
the ROJ as52ts, with sionjlar te mns, security ard 2conomic errdirgnrent, The Campany uses Its general
borrawlng rate acjusked for the lease terms, securities of an itarm writh the underying naturs of tre
l=a=ed assets and =xpectations of residual value, gmgng okhers.

The carrving amounts of BJU assets and fease liabilites a= at December 31, 2023 and 2022 zre
disclosed in Mate 25.

Asgessing Provivions ond Conlingencies. The Curnpany evaluates legal and administrative proceedings
to whiich it is invawed based on analysis af patential resuirs. Management and 115 legal counsels do
ot Beagve that any corrent proceedings will have materia) adverse effects on its saparate fimancial
prosition arcd resulls ol operatons. 1t is possible, howewvear, that futare results of operatians could he
materially affectad by changas in estimates or in the rffectveness of strategles relating to theze
procesdings,

Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The following are the gey assumptlons corcerning Lhe Future, and other key sources of estimatian
uncerteinty at the &nd of repnrting perind that have A significant risk of cawsing a nmate sl pdjustment
to the carrpng amgunts GF essels and liaklities wikhin the next Gnancial year

Azsgsamg the ECL af Trade Receivehiss. The Company Infmally uses a proavision matrix based on the
Mistorical default ratos for trade receivables, The provisicn metix spetifies pravision rates depending
on the number o°days that a recaivable is past dug, The Company then calibrates the provislon matris
to ad)ust historical crodit loss eaperience with ferward-lasking infarraation an the Basis of cument
obzervable data o reflect the effects of cwrrent ard farecasted econamic conditicns, as apolicakble.

The Company edjusts histerical default rates it ferecasted aconemic conditions such as gross domestic
product ane experted to deterlorate which can lead to Increased numbcr of defaules in the industey.
The Campany regalarly reviews the methodslogy and assumptions used tor estimating ECL 16 reduce
any cifferences hehwean estimates and actual credit 155 experience,

The determingtior of the corralation betweer historical default rates and forecaswed ecchnamic
conditions is 8 sigaificant 25t nate. Accordingly, the orevision for =CL of trade receivables is sarsitive
to changrs in 2ssumptions about forecastrd econom|c condihons,
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The amount of prowvision fer £CL and the carmying amaunt of the Sompany’s trade receivables as at
ang Tgr the vears endec December 31, 2043 and 2532 are disclosed in Mube 5,

Estmetng the ECL of Receivable from an insurance Company. The Campany is currenty involved in
legaiproceedings io pursug the collection of its rema’ning insuransce claims for typhoon damages from
an insurance campany. 1he determination o whether the Insurance clalans recelvablo s st realrakle
recLeres consultatons with legal mounsel and managerment s astimate of the allowanca tor ECL based
an the prababiiity-weighted pstimate of the present value of all cash shorfzlls ower the expacted
settlernent of the clams

klanagement and its =gal rop nse: balieva that the cngong idgabton on the semalnlng claims witk nok
result to ary slgnificant adverse Impact cn the Company’s financial conditior. and results of
operalions Thus, no provision far ECL was recocgnized in 2623, 2022 and 2021,

The carry ng amount of receivable feorm an Imsuran ce company and ke allowancs for ECL recognized
as 8t Oerember 31, 2023 ard 2022 are disclosed in Hote 10

Azsessing the COL an Orhee Snonclal Assets of Amartized Cast [excluding Trode Recefvables and
Racervabila from on Insdrance Comoerty). The Carmpany determines the allawance far ECL based an
the prebabiliby-ersighted asbmate of the precert value of all cash shortfails aver tha expected life of
tinaneial azsets at amartized cost, ECL s provided for credit losses that resolt fram poszible default
events within the 1ext L2 mar ths unless there has Been a sienificant increass in credit risk since fnitial
recognition, it which case SCL ara provided based on lifetinee ECL,

When determbmng If tac+e has been & signifiant increasze in credit risk, the Company conslders
redsonable and supportable icformetion that s evailable withowt undue cost of cMort and that is
relevan: for *he particolar Aaonclal insteumest being astessed such as, but net limited 1o, the
fallowing Factons:

actual or expected external and Intertal credit rating dewngrade;

exisling or torecasted edverse charges in busingss, financial arecanoyc condtans;

attual or expectad significant adverse changess i the oparating res.kts of the borrowes: ar
sigmificne charges in credit spread, ratez or terms such @5 more strirgent covenants and
increased amount of (ollateal or guarantees,

The Cormpany also cansiders financigl assats that are more than 129 days past due bo be the [@test
point at which lifetime fCL should be recogrized unless 1E can dermonstrate that this does nat
raprasenl a signilican risk in credit rick sLch as when non-paymant was an administrative oovorzight
rather thar resulbing from Apangial Fifficulty of the borrower,

The amnunt af prowsicn Bor ECL recaghized in 2023, 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in Mgte 21,

EsHmorng rhe Fair Violpe of Blalggiool Agsels, The Far values of the Company's bialogical assets are
baged or. the miosl reliable sstimate of market prices at the end of the re porting peslod. Tho e walues
of day-nld chicks, growing broders and parent stock wera detarmined osing the income approach
wehich congiders the net vash flows expected to be generated from the sabe of day-old thicks, sale of
Eully-growr: broilers as dressed chlckens and cash ficws expected 10 be genaraled from parent skoch
These are measueed a Leval 3 in tha fair valoe hiararchy.
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The sk flow arojzctiers Include specific eqtimaces of the hatching peried, tRe hatchakility and
martality -etes, ard valume of harvest, In eddwicn, the sgnificant uncbsersable inputs used mso
include the esmmated Futurs szles arice of day-old chicks, dressed chickens and parent stasx, a5 well
ac the estimated costs to Be incued in the hatcking, growing and dressing pracessas, as applicable.
Generally, the estimated fair value would increase (decreass] if the estimeted futere sales price, cash
inflaws, hatchabiliy rates ar voly e of production were hlgher [lower), Mearwhile, the estimated
fairvalog would indrease ddecragsa) iF lhe estivvatsd cogty 2o be incuerred in the halching, growing and
dressing processes or estimated mortality rates weara Iower {higher].

The ganar 65590 Fair value chanpes of biological assets recognized under "Revenues" inthe separate
statements of comprehensive income i0 2023, 2022 and 2021 are presented in Mate 19.

Cstimaling the Revolued Amounls of Propecly, Plan! and Equiprment fexcludicg Tronsporialion
Equigrent and CIP). The Company measures T55 property, plant and equipment [excluging
transportatian equipment atd CIP] at revalued amgants with chenges n B3ir value being recoghized
it D1,

In determining the revalyed amounts of property, plent and equipment fexcluding transportabon
equlpenent and CIP), he Company mrss indepondent Sems of appraisars as at Decernber 31, 2023
and 1022 In ordar to amive at 2 reazonable valyation, the appraisers personally inspected the
praperties, requested information from roputable sources and conslcered the following: (a) ukEley
and market value of the sand; b cast of repradustion of the replaceable property; 'c] current prices
far similar=wse property in the secand- hand market: {d}ape, condition, past mainbenance, and present
and prospectve serviceabiity in companson with new assets of oimliae kind; o] accueiulated
depreciation, (I lease rates; and () recent trénds and davalopment in the industny concerned.

The catrying amcunts of praperty, plant and equipment at revalued amounts as at December 31, 2023
and 2027 are clsclosed in Mate 12

Extimating the Uieful Lives of Property, Piont ond Equinment. The Company revigws annually the
estimated useful Ives of property, plant znd equipmant based on eapected assot's chlhratan, market
demands and future techno.ogical dewelapment. It iz possible that the factprs menticnad may change
in Ehe futwre, which eaule czuse a change in estimated ysefyl lives. & reduction in asomated wseful
Ives couln Cause a significant ancrease in depreciabon and amortizaton of praperty, plant and
B UiRmEnL.

There were no changes in the estimated wseful lwes of praperty, plant and equiperent in 2023, 2022
and 1027 The ca-rying amounts of property. plant and equipment az at Derember 31, 2023 ang 20232
are disclozed in Mote 12,

Extimating the Foir Volwe of favestment Mroperdes. The Company's ineestiment propertdat ane
measurad at dzirvalues. The Company works closely wth extemal gualiflied appraiters who performs
Lne valiabion using appropriate valuatian techniques. The Company estmates expacted fuhire ¢cash
Flows, vields, and discaunt rates.

The valuatian bechnigues and inputs wsed n the fair value measurerrent of ineestenent pre perlics, as
well as the carrying amounts of investment properties as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 gre
disclased in Note 13,
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Assessipy the timyaairment of Naafinonsial Asseds, The Company assesses Imogirment or ngnfinarcial
assels whengyer gvents or changes in Croumstances indicate that the cartylng amount of an assat
may not be recoverable. In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impalrad,
the fompary coasioers the external acd aternal saurces of informnation. External sounces of
Infonmatian inglyde bt are not limited to unexpected significant decline In market value and any
atter sigrifficant changes with an adverse effeact an the Company, whether it had laken placa duiing
parigd arwill take place *n the near furu-a | the market, economicor [2gal environment in which the
antty cperatas or in the market *0 which the acset is dedicaled. Inlérnal tources of Infarmation
incluce evidence of aboaleseence or physical damage on an agset, signiticant changes with an adwerse
effect on the Campany whather it had taken place during the perlod, or ane expected ta take place in
the mear futre, ta 1he extant ta which, orin 2 manner inwhich, an aset 75 uced or |5 ez pected 1o be
usud, and any ather eyldence that Indlzates that the aconomic performance af #n asset is, or will ba,
worse than expeiisd,

Whenever the sarrying amaunt of an asset excecds s recoverable amount, an impairment 1955 is
recopnizer. The recaverzble amount is the highar of a1 assar's falr value lcss cost to 52l and walve in
use, The Farvalye less cost to sell isthe amount cltainable from the sale of an assetin an arm’e length
tranzacHen while value o use 15 the present value of estmated future cash dows expected 1o arise
from the pontinuing use of an asset and from its dispesal at the @nd of ns useful life, The estdmated
cash Agwes ace prajocted using growth rates based on historical experience and business plans 2nd are
discounted using pretax discount rates thal rallect the cuirant atsessment of the tme valye of mcnay
and the rigks specific 10 the ascrt.

Rucoyerali ¢ ammouaks are estimated Tor indwlduel assats o, iF [ is not possible, far fhe cash-
grner=ting unit to which the asset belangs.

MNa prowision ferirmpairment Ioss on nanfinancizl ascels was recopnized in 2023, 2022 and 2021,

The carrving amounts of ronfnanclal assets which consists of advances 1o officers and employees,
ather current a#ssots, property, plant and eguiprenl, dvestmenl piopertes, ROU assets antd other
noncurrent assets (Exn uding security depasits) are disclaosed in Motes 6, 3, 12, 12, 14 and 25,

EsFmahag Retiremontt Uadiity. The dete-mination of the Company's obligation and cest for pension
and ather retirement beretits is dependent on zelectian of certain Sssumptions used by actuanes in
caleulating sach amaars. Thase assurrptions are geswcnbed in Note 24 1o the separate Hnancial
stataments and include among others, discount rate and salary inerease rate, While the Company
belieyes that the assumptions are reascnable and appropriate, sipnificant differences in agtual
experiense or signficant changes in assuTptons makerially affect net meorement lablity.

~ne carrying amaunts ot net rebirement liability as at Decamber 31, 2023 and 2022 are disclased h
Mote 24,

Asseaging e Reclizooity of Oeferved Vox Assets, The Compamy's assessment on the recognitior. af
defarred tax azsets pn deduct’ble temporary diferences and farsyforwans benefts of unused MOLCD
is waced o the arclected taxable imcome in the following percds, Based on the projection, not all
tuture deduchble temparary diffarences el be ‘calized, thereforo, ovly o portdon of deferred Tax
355505 was recagnized.

Be at Decembpear 31, 2023 ard 2022, the carrying amoaonts of recognized deleroed tax assets and the
ameun of unreceprized deferred tax 355ets, which management has assesird may not be realized
in the “uturs, are disclazed ir Mate 26,
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d. Prior Period Adjustments

The separale Anaacial statements as akand for tha year ended December 31, 2022 have bean restated
to reflect the reclossilication o preperty, plant aad equipment of the Lompany's Shvestiment
properties which are being operated by BYC, a5 a resulr af the consolidation of BYC's azcounts to the
Parant Campany effective January £, 2022 (gee Nate 11). Accordingly, the adjustments alse included
reclaszificetions from gein an change in fair valve of ivestioent properties in profit or loss g
revaluaton surplus i 2CL as well as the correspending recognrion of dapreciation charges of
property, plant anc equipment inprafitor loss, and ather restaternents Lo deferred taxesas prasented
In the related notes 1o separats fimancial statenents,

The nel effecls ol the pricr period adustmenls and reclassificalions on the Company's separate
finarcial statemants as at Decermnber 31, 2022 which accounted far less than one percent of total
eguity are as follaws (@ nillions):

Artained
AXSFEES | iahilides ity Earrings LI
hi |:-'E'.r'l.'|L3|'|- sepiile:l E5,27T16G A3 agcn rlAe1T 3.5 F1108.C
Frlor priog adicstrents arc

reg assmcstions 7zt [&0A] 13z {5.3} 193

Al mastated B%, 2505 #3355 Pl 5974 s L P57 3

5. Cash
This aveownt consis1s af;

2023 2022

Cash o and FE&, 434 159 #4,536, 150
Cash im hanks 385,978,307 357,144 6448

R392,412, 466 #3601 660,833

Cash in hanks farn interast at the prevailing Lank deposir rates and are Immedaiely avallable for use
if Currenl ope allans.

Inkerest iAcorme sasned from ¢ash in backs amounted to PO.2 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
Tetal interast infeme regcegnized in the separate statements of comprehensive income arase fron
the fallaw ing:

Mate 2023 2022 2021
Cash in hanks F110.652 £107,032 E140,673
Trade roceivables B 1,420,536 2,287,013 1,152,472

R1 531,588 w2,304,045 F1,283,145




e

. Trate ar:l:I.DH'iar Racalvahlag

This accownt cons sty ol

Mnte 2023 2022

Trade recewalb es from;
Thirs garbes RE31,895,955 PE7I,E18907
Relsred parties 7 283,618,234 218397503
Montrace racelvab’es 223,050,110 186,459 842
Advarnees to off cers and emnployvees 22,856,682 13,003,504
Other recaivahbles 8,905,173 13,250,588
LA181,.320204 1107630554
Allowar.ce tor EC. . [1395,735.248)  {135,507,083)

A1041,522,956  FY52,123 443

Trada rece valles arlsing mainly from ihe sale of ferds, fond and Meestock are penerally collectible
within 30 to 90 cays. These receivables bear interest rarging frorem 10O to 3.0068 in 2023, 2072 and
2021, Interest income earned from averdueg trade receivables ammanted to #1.4 million, B2.3 million
and FLZ tnillfun Tn 2023, 2022 and 2021, resoectvely.

Hantrade receivalrles zomprize mainly of receivables arising rom tne Company's intidental income.
These are unsecuned, neninwees-bedarng and are usually collected within 30 to 90 days.

Advances o officers and emaployees include laans granted to employees which &érgé genermlly
nenlnteres: beariag and ore collectble through salary deductons. These aklso include cash advances
For butiness porpéses which 3 syject 12 HgudgHoe,

Qther receivables maln'y consict ofF shart-term rental deposits and receivables from government
=LY [ L

Movements o the allowance for ECE as at [ecember 31 are shown below:

U HOEs 1D
OHcers and
. . Muta Trade Moatrads  Enployeds Qimore Tedal
Balargs a5 ab January 1, 2023 FiE EX0,517 BAR1%E 200 B3 2G0 BT BRI AEXTIS MISS EOT, K
Prosasar ‘orECL 71 3,543, U2 - - - ALK L e
Reclassiteation [3.409.875) |23.81£333,  {L855.6aq) [13%.432]  [19,314 406}
Pslangg ps ok Occomber 31, 2027 REG, MR 714 BN 541,60 FLA0T,01Y #7 334603 B139,735,248
Advarees Lo
[IFfice-s ard
y ___ Hoe Tradn Henbrade TRl _Mamre.  Tehal
Rzlarde s ab laryary 1, K ML UL S MYR LhE RS A JBGLIE 80 A65TIS K153 A0D anF
Proeismit lorECL 2 1,704,635 - - R %

BaLirig a5 ak Dazerrlar 31, 2033 FLZef52r  egl 1t MEE R DGT TS WL AGSMAS RIS LOT, 050




Inventories

23 -

Im 2023, management raclassified allpwance far ECL of receivabies aggrepating P19.3 million to
allpwance for imparrment losses of advances fa suppliers and atker current assets, as a result of the
reclassiflcatian of the relgtec gross receivables to advances {0 seppllers amounting to €109 milllon
and advances W cantract growers 3 areeders armocnling w BB million (see Hote 9],

This accoust consists of:

2023 4032

Al MAY -
Feods

At cosL:
faw materials ard feed supnlements
supphes and anlmal health products
FInlsnced poaeis

__Hatching epas

Fi1213,652 087 BZB%, 341,476

324,370,311 435, 248,597

126,627,676 Y, HBE, S48
74,855,683 25,514,207
59,353 508 41 816, EB08

F918.86, 166 Fa5S8, 6E5. 136

Inwentories are valued at the lawer of cpst and NRY as at December 37, 2023 and 2022, The ot of
feeds carrigd gt NRY amounted o BIZ4.6 milllen and E266.2 millien a5 at Decembaer 21, 2023 and
2022, respactiely. Invanione: cnarged to cost of gopds sold amounted to B9,323.7 million,
RO AL millign, and #7,62T.6 milhgn in 203, 2024, and Z0Z1, respectively {see Note 200,

Allowanoe for inventory obsolescence emourited to B33 million as at December %1, 2023 and 2021,

Biﬁlngi:al Agspty - Lhwestock

Thiz Company's livestock cor sists of the fallowing:

—_—— 2023 022
Day-oid chicks zrd prowing brailers K29, 607, 344 F110,095,735
Parent stock 39,787,415 £.023.015

F119,334,758  PL1E,118,755

rave ents of the Cumpany’s liveslock are as Follows:

Mnte

2023 a0

Balanr= at beginning of yaar

INCrease Gus o produdlion

Pecrzase dus to sales, harvest and mortality

Gain [Jussh oo lair value changus 19

H116,118,755 253,467,770
£,349,521,10¢  5,183,288.174
{6.288,865,517) [5.130.583.627)

(47,779,579} 10,936,438

Balance at pnd of year

A129,3%4,758  R116,115755
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2. fHhor Cuprent Asseks

This accod b cansists of

o 2023 22
TS W98 857,610 T g L
Mhdvances ta contrack prawens TH9X7121 477 546,414
Frepaygniance 56,550,210 45, 758073
Advances ta cantract breeders 10,054,368 9,987,453
Input WAT 427 4404 3,555,944
242 816,713 122,259 096
silowance for impairmeant Insses (52,031,153) [43,557,080)

F190, 785,550 F13E,556,045

Movaments in the allowance “or [mpaliment logses of advances ta cantract growers and contract
hrecders a5 at Decernber 31, 2023 and 2022 are 25 follpws;

- MNote 2023 2022
Balance 31 aeginning of yea ro RA3657,050 RA3EST.0E0
Reclassitication B 8,374,083 T
Balanee at end of year FEZ031,133 g3 657,050

10, Recalvable fromn an [Psurance Company

The Cormpary bas an eorstanding insurance claie for yphoon damagas from CRarter Ping An
Irsurance Curpocgtian [Charter Fing 4nb. Pursuant ta the nsurance Code, the Company s entillad 1o
interasc or its claim ab a rate twige che ceilng prescribed by the honetary Board beginning
berch 12, 2000, ar 90 days lrom the dake the Compary filec the claim.

On Aupust 17, 2316, the Company received B58.9 million as partial settlement. On bay 31, 2023,
the Regional Tria! Court [RTC) of Bulacan grantrd the claim of the Campeay and erdered Charter Ping
fAn Lo pay the insurance claim, o wilnch Charter Fing Ao Bled a Motice af Appeal wirh the Coart of
Appeals fTAYin Manila by, On lune 14, 2023, the ATC of Rulacan issued an Qridar direchng the foecords
oi the caze (o ke forwarded 1o the Courl of Appeals, Maniia City. The Company will file a Motion for
Execution Pending sppeal betare the CA.

Managzmert ang its legal coungal be lawe that the aageing lidgaticn on the remaining clains I not
resultn aty signlficant adverss impast on the Company's financial condition and results of operations.

The composition of the -eoelvable as ar December 31, 23023 and 2022 are a5 ol lows:

Caost 141,604,533
Allewance tor ECL o {71,480 773}
B 203,B10

The Comnpany conlinues ta legally pursug the remairlng halance of the Insuramce clair az at
Decernler 31, 7023 and 2022 Noa provisicns ror wrike-of of allowar.ce far ECL of the receivable were
recognized in 2023, 2022 and 2021,



11. Investmments in Subsidlarles

st merls i1 subsidigries as gt Cecember 31, 2923 and 2022 that are accournted For wnder 1he ¢ost
rathod are as folinws:

2023 2022
Pareenbage Fercentage

Ownarship Amount Chwrarship — Amount

EVC 100% Pl 100% 1
Gromsx 100% 39,973,544 100% 49,573,504
49,973,545 48,273,545

Allcwanoe fFerimpaimment loss [459,973,545) (10,973,545]
r- P—

Managerent has asagased that the abowe irvestrment in Gromax mav nat be resovered as the
sizbsldlary has alieady dlzcontnued s business ooerations. Meanwhlle, mwestnent in BVC have also
beaan provided with allowance 25 BYC 5 ina doficit position. Accardingly, the investrmente were fully
pravigded with allawange far lnpairment loss 35 a1 December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Arauisition &f BWL

On Cecamber 16, 2021, the Campany’s BOD approved the acquisitian af 100% of the gutstanding
cap:ta stock of 3vC from Luzan agrlveature, Inc. (LAY for a consideration of BLDD, BYC 15 a privace
damestic carporation engaged, among others, in poubry production as well as in the processing,
raizing and hreading of chickens and simllar stocks. 1he registered principal place of business of the
Company i< lazaled at Barilao-San Jose Road, 51a. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan.

Beginning January 1, X125, HVC operated as the Company's wholly-ovwned subzidlany.

11. Propetty and Equipmcnt
At Pevalued Aimounts

Tne compesition and maovements of this account are presented below:

2017
Lenczbedd and  JHze Faunlwie,
Mz, M inmrp Land Fow iy, inge
e — __Lard  and Byulsmene Buldlps  mprovemenls EgEpmem Taukl
EolL
Eatence xteel-alag mhyear &0 ) 50, 050 F5RE,ME D] 1333350 A5 BET, 3 153 HEMAL55  B530F 511653
AcdikEm - HOFSLE: UK [4,m%n,0¢4] Edul, B 507,212
RezhmHCICane - 92141 1CR SV DY 1LE12.37E I B IC5 SRk RIE
Foy el - - - - [H -2 1SR
AcCsd UaTiCh 152‘!‘&.1&0 151!5.515 IE!EI‘IM! |5!H|!-35-] - JEEEB]G
BH Hins 2 Bul a' ween AT, 4%1,1 10 10682 4 A0 EYEN. T TR T b, M T4 10t 45l ae IS8 362 SR
Arrurmiried Depmruhen angd
AmieTiLaUan
Ealnce a1 aezlnaitg of pear - 150, ®4E AR5 AR AN T30 24,057,317k 231 181,55k S 5B LTI
Lz e edun - TETATAIR IH 393,490 n131,mr A aNLTHI L1128 7™
Cisprsls . - - _ . - - (234,001) JEETE )
BHAwEdErlalara - - 52 24 0D aady 1 dRudmsTe ‘wiamiMr  awmAnzOzl

Lamvire dmamnd FNET.ONAA 1D AT 18,309 A313A0L 226 E23. 355,198 FILINEMAZ  *1 937202517
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032 [as dairdtad - sar haps 3
apsebod an Oz Fuembprs,

Flrl, M hireg —are AT aras ard
Mol ward  arc EqupTe: Saldig  ImarsvEmeEms Lmilpnent Tdal

Cont
Baa-ce g heelmalng o vanr g

Firowlmeal repoTel i3y 15 357 F3E3,c12 858 2173111765 P30T 027 Lpr X e e O b I R TE ]
PrOr perins raclysudsgice: 13 ALLTLIE BES EN], 24T 193 1 L80 A L T o a0 ads 2e
Baant m beglnsing = piar =

adpded TIS AL IE A3 X 235 BB, 419 R] B5E 73 A2 M5 JoW] Ath S
sdTenn - 17, L1 HES by b, hed 1IALIEY 12GAD 163,502,053
Heclmekcabnac frar 1L1F - elE 333 B4 AL 1,000,070 - L el
Clep=caabe - AL A - - [LEAL |%,0% 1,270
Adpalmenis - L - - [L30a1,:a0] 11,301.24G0I
FiEvalasech 178 A14.45:] 11.297.U%3 14,9279, 555 1,504 By TRELET 1N HE
Balanace ac md-:-‘EH ST L BGRAG SEXME 00 233N AES 01082453 SGLOT.TD TITEGLLAEL
Szumulated Degracimilar and

Amriietion
Baase 81 Uzl olng = year - IEZE5E51T L3726 15,[@6,3:0 TZ3U,55 FERE- T T
Cap-wdabhongrd amechzakbon - 5. EA%, S0 14 REEATI Lie1 0% 1235:,1:30 101,413, 12E
Radarecdmoa - - - - i ] 1Al
Eirpesot S U, - - RpE|3eeids)
Balinceaberd o e - 350 2R AT Hh, 24 5 MRF AL FAAAL LR &, 654,171
El:;h.[#m:lﬂ w153 05 REITEGE 535 LIk A P I i lﬂ_!_-.lﬂg].;-l lLJi‘.:F.l-':lﬂ HJ'I'E!.".H‘:E"‘IEE. .

Fevaluation increment an property, plant and aguiamanl amodsled o B53.6 milllion, B129.8 il annd
E10.4 million in 2023, S0AR and 2021, vespectively.

Hac tho abdsee sraperty, plant and equipment 2een s red asing the cost model, the catrying amoynts

wilild have been as fo 1ows:

e 2023 2024

Larid F355,331,180 R355,3351,1490
Plart, rachine ry ang egulpment 631,377 568 574318340
Bulldings 308,661,367 255,293,169
Leasehald and land improveme s 22,357 £06 44,521,123
Ortfice furpiture, Axlureg and ¢guipment 10,795,088 16,420,685
F1 348,522 80% R1,255 884812

The Compary's prope oy, plant and equipment [except tor tancportation eguipment anc construction in-

Progress| were dpprdised by an indepasden fin

u i appraisacs s gt Decamber 31, 2023 and 2072

Details of the valuation techalgues used in mersuring fair velues of property, plant and equlpment
classified uncer Levels 2 and 3 of tha falr value hierarchy are as follows;

Llaas af f-opersy walugsign Teghnlgaes

danme
Sipnisicant Inputs 2023 2022

Land Silos compairisen

AFIpTixan]

Plant, machlnery anc equipment  Cepreciabes
reclzceme Tt cnsd
rzthod

ey ted cask fow
[FCF] appraazh

Prits Jerituars vares (s #2005 - R10,500 R1S00 - R60O0

Ve lue adjustinens 5% -3k 3% - 35k
Feplaz=ment cast FA0EA milllion  FIOE.4 milien
FErmaimng arineme | fa 3~ 25 ypears 1. hypars
I2zcon, g rate 11.41% 11.0%
r'er mzthly reqt 14 mlllign w1} millign -

R milfen B 4 milllon
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Rangr

Class vl Jnuceily Walualind Tecl nlques  Sigalficant Inpaes ita3 2022

Eluilt ingst Depreriated Replacement ook F176.7 mlllien  HL4ER.F milllon

1ep Hementces.  Remalning econgr ¢ i ¥- X5 years ¥ -1 years
rizkhad

DLF appraacs Ciscpunt rate 11.01% 11.75%

F=r me Ry rent #1.x mAlion - AQLE ik -

uL.2 milllspn R1 3 Milion

Leaschold aad Cpreciated Replecemant ot F20.3 milleom R & millign

laid inprove-ne e rezlaceent cest  Rerain ag ecanom; Lfe FEERS:E] Y 2 - A years
nethod

L% apzranch Caspeurt rate 11.01% 11.75%

Par manthly rent k0.1 millzon EOLZ A

DFfice Jurniture. Hekursd ane Capreciataed Replacemeant zoar Flz.2 millloan F11.0 millilan

BUIE e reslace-ienn coet  RErmEinag ecoaamc e Z -4 years 2 -4 years
m=Lhad

The descrintion of the valuaticn techniques and inputs used in the fair value maeasurement are as
follaws:

Safes Companison Apmroooh

Sales camparisan agpraach inyclves the compaason of she Compaay’s laad 1o thase that are mnng or
lesy iovalen within Lhe vicinlty of Lhe gporaised properiies and are subpect of recent sales and
offerings. Adjustmeats were made to arrive at the rmarket value by cansidering the location, slze,
shape, uhllty, desabidily and Cine efement,

The inputs to FRir valuation are as fallows:

w  Price per 3967 - estimated value prevailing in the real estate rmarket depending on the location,
area, shape and tme alement,

1 Violwe adiustirents - adjustrnents are made 1o bring the comparative values in approsimansn b
the prooarty taking into azcount the lecation, size and architectural featuras amang othess,

Peprecimted Reptacament Cost Method

Depreciaked replacement cast mcthod 5 wsed to estmabe valuaben of plan, machinery and
equipment, buildings, Jeasehald and laad impravements and atfice furniture, fixtures and acuipment
by compulng for the replacement cost of the assets and applving approprete adjustments foT
physical deterioration and functional and econemic sbtalescence.

Genarally, cianthczrt insreasss (dacraatec) in doprosated replacement cost mosolaton watld result
in 3 significently h:pher (ower] Rirvalue measuremant.



2E

Ofseounted Casir Flow Approaoh

uUnder Lhe DCF approach, a property’s Fair walue is estimated using explicit azsurmptions regarding the
benafits anc liakbilibes of ownership over the assel’s exbirnated wsefal life incluging ae exit ar termngl
value &3 a1 anceptad n-ethnd within the incomne aporeach to valuation, the DCF approach involves
the projechon of a serigs oF cash fiows onoa rez] property interest. An epprapriate market-derived
dizeaunt rate iz apolicd ta projected cash flows series to cstablish the sresent value of the noome
strear asscciated with the investm=ant praperty.

Perlodlic cach fiows of investraent properties arg typically estimated a5 gross income less vacanny anrd
cperaling expenses. The series of periodic nel operabing ncore, alang with an estimate of the
terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, i then discounted.

The fraquency of nflaws and cetllows are contract and market-decyved. The DCF approach azsemes
that cash o atflows oczur 'n the sarme period that expenses are recorded.

generally, § gnlflcat noreases (desreases) i mohohly rengal rale per building, easehold and land
irrap ravarmenty and n4chineny and gguipment in isolation would result inea significanly higher (lower)
fair value measurzmeant. significant inrreases [decreases| 0 discount ratg In isolation would result in
a slealAcantly lower dugherd falr value measurernent.

The recongillaticn af the balaecas of property, plaecand equipment classifed accarding 1o level in the
fail value heerarcky is as follaws:

2023
Slgnaticant Slgalllcanx
Dhsgnabe Inpuls LUnabsarcable
[Lewal Z} Impuns [Level 3} Total
G Brem BE Bedinaind of pagr B4, EEE,DED pE2oTEY A41 B 533 543,451
MeT “syalializn ncrement 2B 192, Z60 A0 549 I 591,44
Me= addingas - 122 {154 {66 182 158 (164
Depraclatiar aad @ rbizatior - net ¥
£13posals - (11,743 440} [111 993 £44]
Balzaceat end of year 3144310 FLA05,152,207  E1937 800,517
2021 A rkctdted - o Pplg d)
Slgnicant siprilfuant
Abgereaale Inguts Unobservakle
1 Ened 2 Impts |Lesval 33 Torel
Balance sk bepinming of yes 2775, 507 35T 15,524 F1, 542 457 551
Meat ravualualic incre rent 128,574 ak3 |3,675,253) 175,133,714
Ner additions .- 127,770,954 177,771,353
Deprecldlics vod o rézel2aticn - {151_-1.25:__229_} (101 AZ3, 229
Balzrce at end of year SOLL, 150, A5 A030.797 491 R1,AS3.543,491

There are na fransteEes between the leveli of Baw value hieranshy in 3533, 202 and 2021,
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Af Cost
The enrposinnn and movernerts of this account are prezented helow:
2023
Transpertation
Equipnnent ap Total
Cosk
Balance at beginning o yesr RA35ED S5l Br122 7136 6458 Br171 317 O3
Addiddons 624 480 30,599,508 31,223,585
Reclassificatiors - (109,661,638}  {109,661,533)
Disposals I3,515,234] - {3,515 234)
Ealance at end ol year 45,690,206 43,674,517 £9,354 723
Accumu lated Depreciation
Ealance a: beginning nf year 44,323 7491 - 44 523,791
Depreciarion 2459277 - 2,459, 77
Dizposal I2,453,734] - (2,453 734)
Balance at end of yaar 4z 5740, 334 — 43,529.333
Carrying amount Bl BGTLEVZ F33,674517 E45, 535 38D
2032
Transprrtation

o Equigment LIF _ Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of wear kA8, 160,960 R332 699,557 FE6,2609L7
Addltars 420,000 I7 A1 BE2 71,871,662
Acjustimenly - 12851524 12,851,524
Reclassifications - (6, 2E66,094) {6.266,4%4}
Balance at end of yaar A8, 5], S60 122,736,649 171,317 609
Accumulated Depreciabion
Balance at beginning of year 40, 879,752 - 40,579,752
Depreclation 3,944,035 - 3,544,030
Balance al end of yedar 44,823,791 - 823,791
Carrying amount B3, 757 164 ¥122,%36,649 126,495 518

L1 represents -ost of raw materl als, general const;uchon works and Instalkzbon caste incuried in che
tonstiittion of the Comoany’s otfices, cabling installation, piping, bagglng systern installation and
ather develaomeants. Cnmpleted construct.on casts amounting to #1097 milllan, 86,3 milhon and
F15.0 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, were reclassiied 1o appraoriate property,
plant and equipmment accounts. As at December 31, 1083 and 202Z, there ane no slgnifeant
contractua. comm:tme ks entesgd into By the Zompany.

I 2023, 2025 and 2021, the Company scld property, plant and equiprmeant and invesime nt prope rbies
lr & vash consideraticn resslting 1o @ eain (B1ss)] an dispesal amaunting to RO rillion, (#1.0 million)
and (B1.1 mil ion], resarrtvely (5ee Mote 23],
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As at December 31, 2023 znd 2022, Eally depreciated praperty, plant and equipment that gee sl
being usod by toe Company amaunted W RIS million and B233.9 milllgn, respectively,

Depreciation and amcrtizaticn expense recpgnized in the separate statements of coraprehenslve

incoma are &5 follows:

2022
|45 rastlazed -

2023 e Note 4] el
Praperty, plart and equ prment:

AL revaluated amounls #111,925,750 k101,423,228 R8O, 327,322
L g1 2455277 3,944,039 o, 822005
RO Assers 22,994 914 13,723,132 12, 079,C84
fomputer sofiwary 3,353,02% E,705,513 3,678,102
#130, 777 562 R128,586,51 # 106,006,621
Chepreciatio s and ame rkratian expenze were charced te the follgwlnp:

023

rag eskared -

2023 siaz Hobe 43 a2l
gt af goads sol M55 G61,312 BUY b13 955 F72,015,730
Dperating axperces:

Selling o dligtr ity Z6, 384,793 21,235,124 17305 EdG
Adminlatrathes crponses 15,431,855 15,040.01% 16,540,045
41,816,650 36,273,145 33,584 Byl

BL140,77 7,962 F123 ABE, 512 K10E, (0, B21

13,

Invastment Prape riies

Thig cenglsts of the Company's parcels of land zrising frem the foreclosure of properties as seltlement
of i tustomers’ 5abilities to the Comgany, and propeties which are hold either ta earn rental income
ar for capital aporeciation or kaoth, but rot for sale in the ordinary caurse of business ar fac

ddralmistrative purpases.

Inwestrren; propertes are modsured ushig the fair value medal. The compasition and movernants in

thit atcount are sammarized Gelow:

2003
Land BuildIng Tatal
Baiance at Begln-lng ol y=ar, sl cosl F178.A07 368 F15,567,585 £193,071 Q53
Additians 1,712,204 - 1,712,200
blspozals (2,853,785 = |2.5953,7R5)
Balance it end of vear, et cosk 177,161, E92 15,557,505 192,729,877
Cumulative gaio [lesst on changes in
fair value 105,431,064 [E1d, 180 10K, 516, EFd
Balasice At end of verr, £t lair vala= FiB6,592 856 K13,753,395 Iiﬂ],!dii,iﬁ_
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2l
Mpea land Bullding “otal

Balarice ol Legiv ning <l year A5

previoL sy repori s, a1 cosl B5AF, 705, EG2 R34, E41,199 RIS57, 047 851
Prior perigd -colassiticatio s 12 1341,171,700) (419275614 (P6QA435314)
Balanex: at beglnsing of wear 28 ad oured 141.334, 162 15,5b67 585 195 bJ1, 747
Disprsal 12,630,694 - (2 530 G5a)
Ealsnce a- end of pear, at coct 174,403 468 15567535 193,5%¥1,053
Currulatye aain [loss] an chingesin

ial: value o a5,1224T4 S ERECE], 44,574,859
Balznce a- erd of vear, at falr value §223,535 542 R14,248,000 R238,473,942

Tha Compary’s investment pooperdas wei e gpgralsed by an independent frm of appramsers as at
Decembear 31. 2023 and 2022. Gzin cn change in fair value amounted to RGA.1 millicn, #28.2 million
and BL3 milllgaie 2032, 2032 ang 2021, respectively.

The Campary recognized revanpe from [eaeng operatans amountng to #14,1 millicn, B19,9 milllan
and FL1.1 millioe fn 2023, 2022 ard 2021, respectively [see Mote 25}

Detaiis of the valvatior techrigues used in measuring feir values of classified vndar Level 2 of the fair
value hierareiy are as follows:

Range
Class of Fropeizy  Weluabon Techriques  Significart inputs o 0zE 2022
Land %3 et compansch approach  Price per scuare materjsqrn) RS - M7 0D &50 - ®14,300
Yelue adjuskmants 5% - M 5% - Hirs

Zalez comgarisan appradach involves the comparesun of ke Cormparny land 1o Ihose hal are reone ar
less locstad within the vicinity of the apprzisee prope—ies snd are subject af recent sales and
eflerings, Adpastments were aade 1o arnwe a1 the racket value by consldering the location, size,
shape, atility. desirabi ity arnd time ¢lement.

The significant inputs fa fair valuatior are as follows:

+  Prigg por sqgm - gstimated value pravailing in the real estate market depending on the location,
ared, shape and ome clement.

= Valps adiostments - adjLsktments are made ta bring the comparative valees inoapproximation (o
the investment orope 1y taking inTe accound the location, sice and archivecliural Fealures armsaong
o-hars.

rAeanwhile, huilding was waleed uzing DCF approach [Level 3] aad otilized discouat mte and monthly
reman rales a5 significant inputs, Under the DCF approach, 4 propary's [air walue is estimated wsing
explicit assumotons regarding the benefts and liahilties af awnership aver the asset's estmated
wsefal e Includirg an st ar erminal value, A3 an accepted methad withdn the income appeoach
valpation, the DCF approzch irvolves the projection of a s=ries of cash dnws on & real propery
irderast. & appradriste, rrarheldeiived dlicoanl rale £ appfled Lo projecied cash fow ceries wo
estanlisn the present walus of the incame stream azsnciated with the investroent property,

Pericdic cash flows of investoent prapertics are typically esBmated as pross income less vacancy and
operating expenses The serles of pediodic net cperating incame, along with an estimete of the
terminal wvalue anticipaked ab the end of the prajection period, is then discouated.
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The frequency of inflcws and cutflows are contract and market-derivas. Tha CCF appraach assumes
that cash cutflyws oorur In the same paricd that #xpenses ars recorded.

Generally, sigmificant increases [decrsasas] in the disoourt rate in izpdation would result ina
significantly lewer [highe!] fair value measurement. Significant ;nereases (decreases) in rental rate
rate in igalation would result in a sipnificantly vigher (lowser) Fair valu2 measurement.

. Gther Moncurrent Assets
Thizg astcwnl angisis al:

Mote 2023 a02d
FE1,368,305 #31,36E.355

Pregect development cosks

Sty deprosls 25 12,918,638 18,2249 324
Camauter scfrware e 10.487,37% 13,885 07
54,185,055 53,482,716

Allowance for impairmeant l0sses (31.35E,345] 131,368 305]
p23Al6,684 P32, 115,321

Project developrmet costs repuesent expenses incumed on the Company's agua feeds and agua
culture projects. These were already fully provided with valuation allewance as at December 31, 2023
and d{r2d zince based on manage ment™s evaluattan, these casts may Ao [anger be recove rable,

Comouter software i3 amprtized gver the econemic ife of three (2] veas, Movements in computer
saftwdre are a5 fallows:

Mate 2023 22
Cost
Balance at beginning ot year R43,345,131 #43,344 543
Additions - 204583
Balance at end of wagr 43,365,131 43,365,141
Acowmulated Amartization
Halanre at bep nning nf year 29479134 23,583 621
AraderLiedtican 12 3,494,021 5,785614
Balance at and of vear 37.B77,155 25,476 134
Carrying Ameount F10,487,976  #12,835047




15. Trede and ther Fayables

The account consists of the foliawing:

MNote 2023 el
Tradr paysbles:
Third parkies #LET72B15,025 £1,630,728,B56
Related pa—ies 27 41,502,024 4,333 416
ALCTUEC EXPENSES:
Selling aad administratve 129,328,480 Y75 537,100
Crutsid= services 25,502,160 16,315,067
Qthers 14,785,453 44,755 144
Nortrade pavaklos 153,219,428 E7 292310
Statutoy pavakles 25,750,692 1E,256,413
CUSIRmErs depasits 14,150,358 45 629 [0

Bz O04214532,529 21903 164 255

Trade pavables consivl of labililies arisiog from purchases of inventeries in the normal course af
Business. These are adqinterest-bearing and are geneally setrled within 36 1o 90 days.

Accrued expenzez meinly partainto selling and admin strabee capenses, aUksic e secvices, salarias and
wapes, freight and handling, outsde services, taxes and licenses, commissions and supplies, amene
others. These are normally settled within ore vear.

Mohlrade payadles are liabilitiey arisirg from parchasss of geeds gther than inventories and various
senicas giving rise to expenses such as trucking fees, utillhes, securty serdees and hspection feas,

anneng atheis, These are aarmally seillad wilhin one pezr.

Statutory pavahlez raagist of labllites e governens agenclés. These are noemally settled within a
rrontl.

Custarecs’ depEasits include amaunts advanced by Sustomers Lo the Cormpany.

14

Loans Payable

The Comuany's uulslunding loans payable ta local banks amounted to BS9930 millan and

F1035.1 millicn as at Cecember 31, 2023 ang 3022, cespectively, The Jompany's shorl-tern and
leng-term [ans are nol selrecl b any debl coverianls,

2023 2022
Shert-Lerm loans RE4EATE, 429 FAGh,E57,066
Curreat portian GF longsterm laans 24,371,429 24,831,429
Curre it parlion &f leans sayable 873,297,358 485,478,405
Mancument pofion of lpans payak|e _ oL MEnA A5 692, ES6

§§D8,119,265 F1,035121,352




Shiorlslenm Luans Payable

in 2023 and 2222, the Campany ochtained unsecared shortern loans Fromn local banks ta finance [ts
working capital requirements, The Company's sRort-term loans mature within 90 days and bear
annual interest rates sangng from 6.00% te &.50%, Autstandlng balance amounted ta RRAE.S millian
anc #9807 million as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Luang-Lerm Leans Fayabls
The fellewing are the Company’s lang-term [oans payakle:

a, REL.A miilion aromissany note
an Ootober 31, 2C1E, the Company entered inte an eight-yeer loan agreement with China Bank
Savwngs, Ing, UM amauatng o #264 milllea, payable in 28 cuarterly installments skarting
lgnuary 31, 2020 and bearing 4an “nberest rate of 2.875% paer annum that s repriced aanually,
Reprlced intarent rake 5 F50% in 2023 and 52.2507% in 2022, Gutstanding kalance amounted o
E24.E milian ard B37.2 miil*vn a5 a1 December 31, 2323 and 2022, respectvely,

b. RE&.S nnl ign promlssory note
On December 5, 2018, the Compdny enterad ine another sighlsyaar [oan agreameant with CB3
armounting ta BSR.9 million, payahle in 28 quantsrly instRElments, starting March 6, 2020 and
beanng an nrerest rate of 3.125% per annum that s -epiced anneally. Keprced interast rate |5
T.790% in 2023 and B.125% in 2022, Qutstanding balance amaunted to #24.3 million and
BIEE milian as g1 Decanmber 31, 3023 and 2022, respectively.

Total availments of loans saysbla amounted tc F1,740.2 million and R2,345.5 milion in 2023 and
2022, resoectively. Total gayments of lpans payvable amgunted o REESY7T.2E milllign and
¥1,819.5 miliian in 30X3 and 2022, respectively {see hate 29],

Interest expense on loans payable amcuntec to #FEE_3 million, #35.7 millien, and F20.7 rmillianin 2023,
2023 and 2021, respectively, Tokzl interest expense recognized in the separaie staternents of
coripeREnsive intame censists of the fallowing:

S LMote L aoEd e .22l
Leans payable PGE,309,882  F35,735576  #20,665,516
Amortization of leaze lisbilities 25 7,514,406 4,266,400 2,385,774

P75,823,288  P4DO01,976 23,051,200

1Y,

Cash Bond Oeposits

Cash sond depasits amounting to PED.3 millian and R56.1 million as at December 31, 2023 ard 2022,

respeetvely, mainly Jertaing to suredy bend depesds fram contract growers, contract breeders, and
s3||smen.

Thesse are generally enewed o an gonual basis and cash bond deposits will b refunded upon
terpination of the cnntrast.
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1B. Equity

Cagital Stock
Ay of Jecermber 31, 2023 ang 2022, the Company has issued and cutstanding common sharaes of
3,054,333,714 camrnan shares at P38 par vz2lue egaivalent ta P12 billion. Details of the authorized,
izsued and outstanding cnmmion shares as 2t Decernoer 31 are a5 Follows:

023 a2
Authorized 3,500 000,000  3,500,000,000
{s5ued ane outilancing 054,324,014 500 334 014
Capital oack R1 160655525  #1,1H0 606925
The details arac Noerecieets oF e caramon snares sbed with PSE follows;
Authorized Hu_af
Date of SEC Appeoval Shares Shares 1s5ued
Qrtober 2, 1572 €, 000,000 € (I, 000
My 2, 1973 10,000,000 10,010, C00
Dosobee 31, 1972 7,000,000 70,008
Dacernbes &, 15377 A8 22000, 00k 45, HIG, 000
Degernber &, 1582 35,200,000 33,0060,C00
AURUSE 11, 193846 200, Q0 D 200.00C.000
February 9, 19849 207,000, UL 2011, 40019040
Coctabeer L, 2013 3 500,000, OO 2, 2E6 4497 803
Decerrlicn 22, 2017 1,500, 000,000 257, B35,112
3,054, 334,014

The Company hasd, 104 and 4,113 stockheldare ac al Drecernber 31, 2023 ard 2022, respectively.

r [0a [ELmd I

he |

The carmporierits @nd movements of other comprehensive incame are aresenied below:

21
Aetusyuinned
Fevhlualion Remgasucedrenk
surglus @akn {Loss) Total
B3lapae a7 zegianirg of yoar B33, 544, R3,D56,055 #3437, 500,065
Hewaluasinn inceemant = ret nf tax 25,194 607 - 13194607
Aemedsure meat loss - Aet o tax - [A0, 149 329) (20,7192, 629|
Transter iof revaus Him surphss realzei taraugh
YEpratiatan to retalnad =arnings - nat of
e (16, 720,4101 - [AG,Fe0410]
Balnnse a= g :u_'__-.rle_a’ [CEEE N PR ) |#E, X34, 734) B435, 723 422
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L2l
Jucurulared
Revaluabor  Rerreasucamert
wiralys 5310 dLask) _aital
Balaace ateplnming of year A=15.054.817 [R2T.BES, 315} 330,179,832
Fevsluadon Increrers - retafuss 37.27L.082 - 37,372,482
FRIMegsurame nk gain - net &1 1ax - P ALL070 31,611,000
Iranstar of -gealiata 5a7plus realied trough
raprosiaban te raRced Aargs - nat of
e 1) ot
Balanca ar end aof year 2433 544,010 B3 95E, 155 Rd3AT EOQ,ORS
19 Rewvenus
This acmount Lonsists nf:
202% 2022 2021
Mot sales from:
Foods FE6, 835,026,308 FG.167.524,514  F4,.234,844,048
Freods 5.128,051,943 5,109, 285,304 4,591,404,304
Farrn= AF2,171.275 5 1e,£95,636 722,851 456
12 485 249526  11,864,005,954 9,649 151 208
Feir value chanzes on
biolegical assets {47.779.579) 10,936,138 [22,854,221)

R12,437,462,947 #11.8594,942,302

9,626,307 537

A0, Cost of Goods Sold

Thit aceount cor sisty of:

Itventorias scld
Ouakslds soryioes
Contrachyal sernoes
Ceprecirdon and amnriz alFon
Salaries and employes benefits
Comniunicabions, light and water
Repaire and mainteaance

Othiers

2021

[A5 rostared -
rote 2023 S0 Mot J) 2021
7 £0,928,. 749,087 0,451 518,229 BT 27507945
1,125 872,634 BLEEID1ATT T1d, 164,931
476,291,217 312,262,806 258,517,601
17 0F,061,312 0Z.613,365 F2416,730
. a5, B54. 006 15814919 B 472730
24 024,344 40,263,703 11,797.4%4
5,418 750 14,693,523 & 212,556
- . 3,285,455 5,835,758 3,431,848

R11,54E 466,30 P10.B21,832,570

pPa 75t A85,625
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Z21. Operating Expenses

Thls aceaunt coagists af.

2022
AL restated -
o . . s seablgted) 2001
Bdminisirative CRpenses F533461,3480 RE4O0OFE021 RIEE 430,342
gelling and markenng 330,111,313 724,508,480 453,654,108
REG3 572 662 RESH 597 511 R711,054,451
The devaile of operabneg exgarset are a3 fellows:
2022
(4% restatad -
Mode 023 seu Note 4] a0dl
Salarics and cmployea benafils 22 P02 SR1 9492 B2 TER 17 B0, 954, 4%4
Transporiabor, travel awd frelght and
handling 241,057,178 291,47 5 BEY 207 875,032
Cepreciadon and @ moshzancn 12 d1 816 550 36,173,147 33 989391
Fublicalivms gl subscriptiang 40,083,081 39,323 378 ik &7 .116
Confractual samices 31,401.421 21,765,540 20,517,627
Taxac and Licenzas 24,432,692 25,266,950 17,764,542
Prafessional teas 25,203 563 34,081,084 29,804,725
Edvertising and prarmalion 19,573 565 24,540,837 30,852 723
Representation andl entemainment 15,144 152 3233011 24,958,164
Rentals 23 1k 249,051 BI03.577F 8,526,711
Cormmuaicstars, lipght and water 8. 10e821 Q.05 %12 A,374, 622
Repairz and maintenance B 336923 &893, 165 4,121,943
Inzurance 4,701,150 4,157,408 4,383,834
Lupzlies 4,985 B5 4, 40E T ER TA3Y11E
Provision far ECL oFf trade and ot ner
roceivables ) 3,539,062 1,704,535 10,157, 7149
Fackaging and distribesion 2,354,250 3552152 2217267
Dthers o 36,393 560 dE41%, 793 30,165,944
e REEZ 572 662 FE&1,E07 311 Br1108% 451

Other expenses include bamk charges, assoriation duss, training and semina: cosks and irspeckion fees,

ameneg athers,

12,

Balarias and Emploves Benefits

This arcoun: prriains to the follgwing:

Moke 2023 022 021

Salaries and wages B232 B, 106 R153.2T0 375 R218 104,366
Rebirement benefis 4 22,122,540 22,335,338 16,953,081
Cornmissions 16,554,520 27,560,595 21A76,208
Qither shar-1enm [enefits 16,872,832 14 7a0,750 12,863,139
E3144 335,994 FI1E.552,993 2163437 204




-3R8 -

Calpries and ermployves henekts is 7 locased as falows:

MHate 2023 022 2021

Cost of poods sold 2d B35,854,006 wa5E14.819 R2B.472730
Dperating expe nses:

Administrativa 205,99E,289 176,820,010 166,331,166

Lelling gnd distr butian 102,585,703 Ot 91%, 169 G4 633,308

308,581,952 272,738,173 230,564 47&
R344,435, 358 #31E 552,593 #9437, 204

23

Other Incpme [Charges)

Othar Operating Incarre

Qther operabing income pertaing ta rental income from lease of dre=ssing, rerdering and e
production plants amaunting 1o 814, Lelilicn 1920235, 19,9 million i 2022 and #11.1 million in 2021
{zee Nate 25).

Other Charpes -ret

Moie 2023 2022 0l
Panalties [R4,586,382) (R10.E95,915) [R10.000.000]
Met forenghn aschaage o5 (6154904 (25,701,531} (5,714,952}
Gain Qussl ocisposa of propenty,
plant and equipment ant
inyeslivert prapetias 12 412275 11,037,744} [1,CED958)
Dthers - 532,945 {10,645,7492;

(R4,785,597) (F39,503,235) (27421712

4.

Ket Retirement Liahility

The Campany hasa pardally farded, noncontributesy cofined beacfit retrerment plan covering all of
Iz qualifed employees. The defined banatit plan is being administersd by a trustee bank which is
respanziaie far the admidrmserato:n af the plan asset. The Company’s cotirement benefits are based cn
vears of service and one and ana-fourth menth’s szlany for every yaar of continyous senvica.

The plan is exposed o interest rale risks and changes in tha life expectancy of quallfied employees,
The plarns not @Xposed 1o significant concantrations of risk on the plan assets.

There are no unusual or significant risks to wnich -he retirerment lahility exposes the Company.
Hawrewer, in the evenl g benelfs glalm arlses under the retirement liability, the Denefit shall
[nenedlately be dus and payable from the Campeny.

The following tebles summmarize the cnmponents of retiremnment benelit costs recognized in the
separate stalerre s ol coanpreher s ve income based on the repart of an independent actuary as at
Decernper 41, 201543



Metails af retirement expense is a5 folkaws:
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2023 pz2 20

Current seride casls B11,510 659 k13,806,753 Bil,956,045
Het intarest tost 10,602,846 3,439,586 o, 057,045
22,123,544 B2123236,330 FE,995,081

The ampunts of net retfiremans liahility recogrized tn the staternents of fnancial posfion are

determined 45 Tollows;

2023 2022

Eresent vilue of DBEO R184,617,101 #160,980,435%
Fanr walue of 13133 assets {4,031 451} [3.931,023)
R1E0585,650  ®147,057,502

YWhile there arc no mirirmom funding reguirenents in the zeontey, any size of uaderfundlag may pose
a cash flowe rlsk 14 the futune waen a sgmificant auinber of erplovees is expectad toratirg,

The movemangs b+ 2he present valoe of BBG are ag follows:

2023 20
Balarice gl begirmrg ol wean E150,939,435 E1B027E.417
Cumrent sarvice rosts 11,519,684 131,826,753
Interest 2xpenge 10,885,138 2,941,280
Benehits pai {2,134,331) [9,124,310)
Remeasurament loss {Zair) 13,406,465 (d2,702,705)
Belarce at end of year R184.617,101 £150,937,435
The movemenls in tae S3ir valus af pizn azeets are zc follows:

o 2023 2022
Balance at eginning of year F3,931,933 E3,97%,184
Interest income 283,492 201,594
REmeasurement loss ~_{183,974] [F37, S
Balance at end of vear F4,0331,451 F3,021,923

Thea Campany's plah as<es are comprised of the lollowing:
2023 02
Cash and cazh equivslerts F256 803 FESE Q02
Eqquity instsurt cals S0 722 248 505
Dabt instrurmsnts - govarnment Boncs 3,257,816 Z834,137
Others 14,110 [108,707]
=4,031,451 ®2.051933

Thers are ng eipected fanslautions 1o the Company's reqirement plan in the following year.
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The cumulative nat rerruasurerment gains [lagses] an net retizement Ciahllity recognized in QCI as at
December 31 are as follows:

203
T lakwe
Remesddrement Galn
[Loas] Deferred Thx Met
Ba'ence at bepinming of yaar B5,274,780 1¥1,318,685) ¥3,956,055
e m pasuremeant lass |13,590,439) 2337610 110,152,829
Ba'ance at cnd of yrear (Rg,315,500) A2 O7E 92E [RE, 235, TT4]
202
Curmuliative
Hemeazurement Gain [Lass] Oeferred Tay Kt
3 ance at hrginning ol year [R37, 180,020 RO, 205 005 {Rz7,885,015]
Remeasa ement ga.n 4Z,454,760 (10,B13,520)  31,841070
Haiance 3t €nd of wear Fo, i 0, /0 [F1.518,505) R34 055
22l
urrlitive
Pomea suramignt Liss Qakerred o M-t
Oalarce at Beounnlng of vear {Wa LA EZ1] B3,512,205 {FL0,536,65E,
Rermaasurer ent loss [21,1211,1u40) 5, TE2.E70 [17,748.353
Halarte at erd cf vaar {F37 18 020) F9,205 005 {F23 885,014

The principa; assormptions ased far the purpase of the actuanal valoabon are a5 folloes:

2023 A2
Hecaunt rawe 6, 10% 7.21%
Ealary increase projacticn rate B0 L
AVErage remaining service years 1.4 23.0

The vensitivity anabvsis based onoeasonable possible changes of assurmplions gs a1 Decanber 31, 2022
and 2027 are prasented below

Effect on Present Value of
Retirermnens Liaklty (i thowsonds;
Salary Insrease

Change in Assumptian Discount Rate Projection Rate

Dacember 31, 2023 +130 bps (R13.861) P15.504
100 bps 15,388 {14,122}

Dacamber 32, 3032 +100] bps RLLGTT] £12.365
-1 bps 12,215 110,544

The axpected futire hen25t paymeants of the Company are a5 follows:

2023 0

Lexs BAar one year #26,011,5357 F31,611,650
Betwean ane and five yvaars 55,08k 165 42,714,347
Reyand five vears 142,845 710 116,035,367
R22%,863,932 £120,361,444
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The weighted average duratior. of the prezent wvalue oF retirement benefit obligation as at
Crepermber 21, 2023 and 2022 are 8.1 yedrs and 7.0 years, respectaely.

25_ Slgnlfl@ant Agreements

Opatating Loases - Tha Comipany a5 8 Lagsor

The Compary gnigred into cancellabe leazes cowesing certain produstion plants {ie., dreszing,
rendering and are aroductton] which have lease terms of arownd pvo To threr vears and 2re renewakle
upon muTes | gpree e af the parlies.

Total rent iccormsc from these opearating leases amounted to RLE.1 million, 1.5 million aad
£11.1 millborin 2024, 2022 ard 2021, respectively, ard are shawn as aark of "Other aperating incame”
acoaunt in the statemenis of comprehansive income {588 Note 230,

The Company as a Lessaee - Shart-term Leases

The Compary [2ases certdin warchouses under operating lease agreements far 4 peried of one gear
and are renewab e wpar mutaal agracment by the partics, Renk expense ameanted t 2102 milhar,
RE.3 millior and k2.5 willion b 2003, 20E2 and 202 1, respectively (see Mate 210,

Securlty deposits amounted to F12.5 million ard B1A.2 relllon ac at Decembar 32, 2023 and 2022,
reg pee Live |y [sue Mo 14,

n L - H
The Compeny entered into lease agraements of an office space m a building and linance lease
gereements torit; trenzportation equi oment for a period of more thar ayear. The Cempany recagnlzed
RO a=sets and lzase liabilities an these transactions using the inte rgst etes implicit in the leases which
are fixed at the contract date. The average effeclive interest rate approximates 7.675% to £.125% per
daririurey i 2023, 2022 and 2021,

RO Acsats
The rmowemens:s in BOW assets are as fallows:

2023
Transportation

HNote Building Equipment Tatal
Cost
Balance st baginning aof y=aar B12,0554012 R128 819 29k R140 9325 210
Additicn: 9,772,245 40,130,077 45 503,022
Balance zt end af yvear 21,838 157 169050075 190 88,233 .
Accumulated Armortization
Bulanue st begisning of vear 11,341,857 74,113 637 85,455,584
Amaortratinn 17 2,595,504 20,099,350 22.’521,914
Balance ai end of vear 14,337,521 94 212 987 108 A 50, 50w

Carrying Amount " #7,600,636 #74 837,088 P22 437,724
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2022
Transporta b@on
Hoca Building Equiprnent Tatal
Cast
Balance at heginmng of year k120654912 #24 587,.585 R 10&,p53,497
Aeldifions — 331,713 34,331,713
kalance &7 end nf year - ,065 982 228,415,258 140,835,210
Accumualated Arortization
Balance % bapinming of year 3,445,138 50,285,724 67.741,.8062
dmortizator 1z 2,895 510 14 327,913 17,733,731
Ralance 37 end of year 21,541,957 V4,113,637 55,455,504
Camrylhg Amount Kii3,9535 #5d,505,661 k55,529,616
Lease Lighilities
The halance and movements in lease abilizies are 3z follnws:
Meote 2023 vl
Balance at beginning of year FaZ AU 430 Ba2,005,2 70
additicng d9,903,022 34,331 713
Accretion of interast 16 T.514, 06 L )
Maymeants 26,125,747] 128,303,544)
Balance at enc af yaar £3,591,520 52,709 330
Less: cul“ent partan o 21,442,663 5412841
Haoncu rent portioe FE1,148,857 F3G, 535,998
The amounts recogrized In proit or 1oss retated to leases Folow:
Mate 2023 2022 2321
Amortization of ROL 3s55ets Re2 994,914 #1r7. 723,732 PRLT,079.047
Short-torn leases 21 14,248,081 B.2p0 477 3,525,711
Incerest expence on lease iabilifies 7,514,406 4. 266400 2,385,774
R0, 738,411 #3I0255.60% B2T.5491.G82

Tha grass minirmurm [2ase payments and present valua of future minimura lease payments 25 at
Dacember 31 are as follows:

2023 228
Minimum Lease kini L |Lease

e e Peymgets Prasent Value  Paymments  Present Yalue
Mat laker thas ane pear FI19.168,306 R22.44: 663 15,731,442  B15,413 841
Later tnar gne yaar but
not mors than
fve vears 69,588,336 61,198,357 40,169,236 36 BB S, FaE
FOR.753, 8492 FIHE.EEI-I,EiEI REGO0], 328 RL2 209 835

Bgrepments with Contract Breeders and Cankrack Growers
The Corpany has earerad [0 varlows agreemengs with breeders ard growers for the breeding and
growing nf livestork. These are generally renswes o an annual basis,
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Tolllng Apreements
The Company has entered into varicus el arrargements, mainly for the manefacture of it fzeds,

hatching gf epe:s ana dressing at pouliry livestock wibze services are payabic through fixed amounis
perun.t of avtpet,

Total payrnenls Tar teliqg arrangements amounted te #1,225.% millien, R358.8 million and
F712.2 millinn i 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, aad are recorded as part of "Cutside Seryices”
acoout urder *Cast of Goods So.0* account Tn the s=parate statements of cemprehen sie Inccre
[50e Nole 200,

S0 Incone Thax

The connpenenss of provision for benefit fram] inccrme tas as reported in the separate statlements of
comprehenziva income are 25 follows:

20he2
[A= restated -
023 see Note 4 2nd1
Ruporved in prodt or loss
Curmrent RZ1 835 240 51,302,873 ®15 793 095
Dreferred _ {21,247,486) 9,722,023 Sead 1,00

FEAT, T4 RE 1,024,296 £31, 154,135

AReported in QL] -
Deferred m5 000,552 (Fd3,071,184] F1,811,206)

The camponents of the Campany's ned deferred tax liabilities ara as Follows:

022
(A5 restated -
2023 Lep Hole 4
neferren Tax assets:
Retrrernant Iab.lty rd5,146,41% mi67E4.376
Allesznce fer ECL 25,026,058 32,969,020
Allawance for impairment Ioss on:
Advaners to contedet arecders and
cantract gromers 13,007,783 “REOZ9M
I mbarles 224 78 i2aLla
Ealr walue rhanges of liolagical fasets il,944 Rag -
. 9%, 393,229 B0 7E0.949
Deferred tax lahilizies:
Aevaluzbicn swplus on property,
plart and eguioment {147,318,402) {144 514, 6700
Cumelative gain or f3ir value changes of invesiment
propertes 3,636,703} [1.2185254]
EFfects nof PERS 16, Lenres (BA% 187} [0S dddq)
Linrea Iz2d gam on forex aechange [12 FO3) -
Fair value charges of biclagizal assats - 12,734,110

[151,81695%) {149,475 078
{R52,367.726)  (RG3. 714629
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&5 at Decembear 31, 2023 ard 2022, t1e Cormpany did ol recognize delemed Lax assets relatiag 1o
the fnllowing as management has assassed that these ray not bo realized in the Fulure;

2023 2022
Allewaace for ECLan:
Racerable rom a3 insaranse cofrpany Fl7.365,193 F17,265,133
Trade and cther receivables 5,907,753 G207 753
Allewace for mparrent loss an:
Project development costs 752,098 7.u42.009
advences 10 supplie~s 2,734,200 111,283

F34,349,251 R31,726,333

The regobclilation hetween e lnconee tax based an statutory income tax rate and provision for
income tax reporbed in the separsie stateme s of comprahensive income 15 as follows:

20 202l 2021

Fravesion far Ingame tax conpeted af 5le

SHINITArY AT T ELn 2% 00 I8 N0%, A3.00%
Incarme bus eflesls of:

MNondtduchizle paperies and obagr

HEjuLtmenly [22-2E%] 3,20 [0 B Eg)
Incorme ai-=ady cLbiacted to
f.nal tas [0.035%] AEH] [0.03%)
Effect of CREATE _aw - - L
Chagrgs ir didaragn ce deleirsd
by nsschs 10,7k - [ 30
Z.21% 39.28% 2589

A7, Related Party Transactions

The Company, in its regular concwct of Susiness, has transactions with its related parties. The
following tables sumna-ze tha tranzact’ ons with the related parties ard outskandirg halanoe arising
fram these fransatdons

Armourd of TransazHans Cutslanding Balance
Rolpred Pardes | hedabacereof Teeesaogian o kR wal ..., e LT
Trade amd CAleri Secolvablas & T
Encides under common
conlic Szkey ATEGONE BTS RAOY, 150,217
Cakclicrs +71H,739, 144 o4 Luk SYd)  FMM E1M,234 NRPA JLT A1
Trade and Criher Poyables 14
tnoTtics ander comman
citra Sachesed 031 ki 08 RLD9T,92F 53K
o taymenls 11,593,148, 1041 (1 183.293.050) Al g Gad 333 410

Acvances 1o Afers Advznces- n=toq
calker oy w3655, 163 NE.58% 456 WEE ASESH 35 0, 50
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The Company Lells animal feeds, row materialy, *wed supplements znd cressed chicken to related
parties, which are due within 80 days and are noninterest-braring. Cutstanding balances of trade and
orher recervanles Fram releted parbes are uasecured and to be settled i cash, Mo allowance for ECL
o tlade and crher rece wables from ralated parties was recopnized as at Cecamber 31, 2023 and 2022
[waw Popbe G

Trade and Ol Payalles
The Cornpany buws raw materials and breader flocks from relalec parties. These are nnninterest-
baaring, genarally on a W-day credit term, unsecued ard to e settled ia <ash (528 Moke 135

&dvances ta CHficars

The Company grants nsecuied, noninkeresl-bearie adeances te its officers which are normatly
el lectvd within one year thraugh salary deducsion. The allowance for ZCL an advances o oflcers as
gt December 31, 2022 ard 2022 are disclosed in Nate 6

Corppensaben of Key Manazenant Parsonnel
The ermpensation of key manapgement personnel are as follows:

2023 4022 2021
Short-termmn proployes e nefits Bo4. 014,416 B55, 480 557 Fi5.5061, 350
Netrament berelits 5. 23B, 557 5,010,571 0,872 530
Drher emaloyee BeneAts 19,521,032 17,133,565 10, 7R4 7a9

K79, 674 005 RT7,524,663 £52,21% 569

Transacions weih the B
Tha Company’s retirement fund s administared and managed by & trustes bank, The falr walue of plan
assets, which are pamarily composed of government bonds, arwoumed to #6.0 million and
3 9 milbonas 2t Jecuimber 31, 2023 and 2022, respactivaly (ses Mobe 240,

The retiremieat fundd raather provides any gogranies or surety for any obligation of the Company nor
ure il iFvestmonts cavered by any restrictions or liens,

28. Eamings Per Share

Sagic and diluted eanmings per shamne weie carmpuied a3 folldes:

A
[Ac resiated -

- . Yol 2023 see Wote 4) M1l
Net ingarT e EI2 827005 P118.420,555 K, 758,006
Jdivided by 11 weighted average

numbEr af outsean g
carnmgn shases 13 4,054,334.014 3,054,334, 014 3,084, 334,014
Sasig arg Ciluted carnings pot share M1.0O08 POOSS EO31

Baslc earmings per share s cumpuled by civid'ng aet incoT.e far the year atriburkakle to comman egquity
bielders of the Carapeny by the weigkted gversge number of covmman shares ioued and cutstanding
during the year,
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The Cormpany doas not Peve any dilotive common shanes outstanding, thos, the basic and ciluted
£arnings per shase a5 at December 31, 2023, 2023 end 2021 are the came.

3.

3.

Reconcillation of Liskilities Ariging from Finaneing Acivitles

The tatlzs helow detail the changes in tie Compary's liabllities arlsing from Aoanc’ng activities,
including bokh cast and non-cash changes:

Fimancing Cash Floeses

lanuary L, Hon-=5h Deoambear 31,

Mo e Avallments | fFaymants Chanes 023

Lomns 3ayak.a 1% F1U35,121,351  PL 70233652 (R 577,236 TH - REGE, 119, 2ES
Lasoamas it 12il 1y 25 5299839 - |26,125,747] STALT 25 83,591,510
Inkarest aypE1se 1o - - |eEA03EE G, 303 482 -

W10E7,d21,190 PI,T-'IIZI..IEH,E.EH fRLY7ISET0, 25| R12E ¥15 310 RARL T10,505

Fingreing Cas- Howe

Anuay 1, Wer-cash  Decenber3l,

Mors A02E Sorzilrrgnkg Ezyments hanmas 2022

Loans payase B F305,051,728 RI3d5.555,151 151.319.153'3,5263 B~ P_135.121.451
Leask llabilities 25 42,005,270 - 128,503,5494) 38,595,113 01,255,539

Interest frprase LR

_ - [25,735,576) 35735576 -
P54/,006,908  B2R4E,555,001  (RLOESI 48] BRI 3STEES RLOET.AML. I

Contingencles

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, has pending legzl G2ims and assessments which are
Im varicus stapes of dlscuysslang, pratosts apd aapeals with relgvant thivd parties. Management,
in consultation with, its lexaf counsel, Belioves 111 the ultirmaie reseution of chese eaal daims anmd
A55ESEMBALE wan i nol nave A material impart an the Company's financial position and resuits of
operations based uper an analysic ol potenal resoflle, Thug, no provisios for contingencles was
recoegniced in 2023, 2022 and 2021,

al

Flnanclal Rlsk Monage ment Objectives and Polides

The Company's finzntai instremerts corsicts of cash, trade and ather receivables (excloding
advances v zfficers and amployess), recelvable from an nsurance company, secunty deposits, trade
and gthar pRyebles |excluding statuiary payables), loans payable, ease liabililies and cezh bond
de pozitls.

ILIs the Corvpany’s policy that 0o rading in Anancia nstruments shall be undertaken, The male risks
asising from the Company's Fnancia instriemants a-a credit risk, lquidity risy and nterest rate risk
The BOD reviews and approves pollzies for ranagiag these rlss as sammarlzed helow.
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Credit Risk

The Company's repcsure b credit risk atises from the Failure of a counterparty to fulfill its finzncial
cotumiliments L the Campany under the prevalling comtracival terms, Financlal instrumants that
potentally subject the Company to credir risk consist primariy of trade recoivables and other Bnancial
assets at amortized cost. The carrying amounzs of these financial assets represent its maximum credit
EXROSUTE.

Troge Aeceivabies, Mansgement has estab.ished a eredit policy under which sach new customear is
analyzed individually “or creditwarthinezs befors the Company’s standard payment angd delivery
terms, and condincns are affered, 1he Comaany's cradit palcy includes available extermal ratings,
financial staterments, cradit agency informateon, industry information and, M same fases, bank
raferences. Credit limils arz established for each cuscomer and reviewed on 2 regular basis. Any zales
an ceedit exreedirg (haose Jvils requoee specths approval from wpper level of management,
The Campany im bt L exposre o credit riss by ransacting rmainly with recogriced and creditworthy
custormers that have undergane its credit evalcation and approval process. distancally, frade
recawables are substantally collected withan ape [1) year Trade recelvables are clocely monibored
on aging of e aciounl,

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were 1o sipnilicant credil concentrations.

Finaacial Assets Qbher frae Trade fecgivebles The Company's other Brancial assets at araorlized
ot are mostly compasec af cask In banks, ctier seceivoables dexclording advanices o officers and
employees], recewable rom ar insursnoe cocmpany and security depasits.

lrorcash inbanks, the Company limits 45 exposune to sredit sk 2y lnvestag onby with banhks chat have
good credlt stanciag and reputaton [n the local and internatianal bankizg industry. These instrurmen;s
zre praded "n the top category by ar acceptable cradit rating agency and, thersfore, are considered
1o be bow credlt risk Ineesemiencs,

For recemable Fom an nsuranoe company, martagernent asd ics legai oourse] believe that the
wrgoing Nligation o the remaining claims will rot oresulc o additional sllowance for ECL
{sae hate 17].

For the other finzrncial assets, crecit risk is Inw since the Company only transacts with reputable
companles angd individwals wth respect tothis Anancial agsed.

It is the Company's pollcy 10 measare T2 aa the abave Instruments on g 12-manth basi=. Howaver,
when there has bazr. a significant increase in credit risk sinre origination, The allowance will ke basad
on the hfetime ECL when determin'ag if there has beer g significant increa<e in credit risk,
the Company cansiders regscnable and suppertable infarmation thas is avadlahle without undue cost
ar effory and toat is elevant for the pacicular firarcial igtiement being dssessed such as, but not
Nimited 1o, the Folowing facters:

s Actual or expected axternal and “nternal credlt ratng covmzrade;
s Exlsting oo forecasted soverss 2nanpes in butiness, firancia. or ecanoriic sonditions; aed
v Artaal o expectad tipnihoant edverse chanzes in the cparating rasuits of the horrower,
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The Campany alse considers finaroal assess thet are mare than 120 days past dua ta be the latest
point at which lifelime ECL showld be recognieed wnlgss it can demonstrate that this does not
reprazent s.Enificart cradic risk sach as when neb-paymeat arksing frem adminlstratve oversight
rether than resulsing frone financial difficulty of the borrowvwer.

The tables balow show the credit coality by Slass af fnansal assets bascd on the Company's credit

rating systerm as at Cecermber 31

plapt |
Gereral fpprugch Simpficd
Bisge 1 Skage 2 Shaga 3 _Ap_prn:l:h Total
Cash in barks AL OTH 107 T = K- RARS, 575,807
Trave sne atie erere ke T2 06, T1h - k715,254 900,517,229 1,181,%19,204
Seturity depetit 12928 603 - - - 12 525, E4F
Eeceiveble fraq an jniLranga
Cormany - 141 564,533 - - 141 /hR4, EHI
CTUWEL9008,711 Rlal A gl RAOFIS S RO20 517229 Rl T3 500 T2
I
General App:oach SimpliFed
e 1 sage 2 Ftage 3 Aporoach Total
Cah In Lanks F35T, 124,653 e b= = EI57 12+ B85
raze ard ofwe- recevs klias Tiga Ak, Ll - =L B el 015 6100 1,107, 4,594
facunty doprsits LR B - - - 18, 709,50+
Kecriuakle frer anonsLranne
camaany - 141 26d 523 - - 141,502,502
R353 &40, 207 Wid1l 564 553 R3d 127 736 FEE2 015600 R1,EZ4, 649 139

" [ TN

Set out helow is the infpnmation abkout the cred.l rlsk expasure on the Company™s trade receivables
Lslng a prowision tnatrix as at December 31

223
Doyt Pne Dran
ol 08 -
L=11 khap a0 E1-30  W-3IC Mare than with Fall
Larrepry A0 days ilays A alagi 130 Tayps Tiztal =R IeR] Tagal
Expecied oreers bss ate L. s ALTE I LhLa% In a1 [ )
Es-imated Lota! gross
carrying drmuuanl 21
dlelablL Cln dulilguks! =2395.0E  Pish 7% FIL13 ML 30 PIE.E4 RARS, G FRE 0.5
F2pemad ooani kst
{In mill:=ne) Bl.DD -E."E]. — BL..D BL.LE Jufuk] BL.72 RLE = d P=b.H
"]
Eays Pusl s
Bcpounts
tpgs thar ER T al el 91 120 Rlgrptrar witn full
Curwent 30 daws dauws daps dies 128 daws Total provisan Talal
Eapucled coadi] Loy ip 11 GO L 0 =¥ 01 S0 DENE: aaok
Eslimglen Lako gigss
Q@rring ameuns al
deflt Hn millzas: NG} ¥1aq a  ¥I00 NZC52 Wl af WIS ET REla 1 LLLAY EHED, G
L pencleal 2 il koss
Jir nclligns] Fag L0 FELCE FLGE =113 F1.5 *1.7 B34, AEE,




Liguidi®y Bisk
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Liquidity risk is the risk tEat toe Cormpany may nol be able to settle [ts ohllgations as they fal: due.

The talle beaow sunmasizes the melurity profile of the Hinanciat liakilities of the Campany bhased an
remalning corgractual undlscounted cash fllows as at Decembear 32:

2073
Witlsir, B R K 15 Later thap §
Iloivths Blopths TAA[S Tearg Ttal
Trade and sber peyables® P2 416702357 p- k- h- R O15703,04%
Loans pays 2le HEMLHET, 14 17.410,714 20,207 427 - o 119,288
Leac= liahilitiaz 194675411 14432 4495 £8, 585,536 - O, ¥R, 042
Zash pord deaosis - 0R,3400,412 - - 60,306,512
kLt interast an Inng trem
lpins payable 34605 3000 MY 11,228,256 - 17,352,728
P2 895,312,907 0290528 F1D5,633,2159 = P§081,276.711
2 Eni kel SOIMIQCE S0P TS
2022
wthar 3 £l link Latgrihan §
wionths rdanthis Yrars Tedrs Totd.
Trads arme atber payables™ F1,27d 59T EdL - F- f-  PFLAT&597.E2
L ans payalila G573 067,751 1z,410,714 449, 5d2 856 - 1035 531,351
g e AT At B EE35.5EE TELRTELE 10, 169,286 - 56,201, 528
Catl bond capasin: 56,10 515 596,208, 618
Future Irtarest oninng Term
_ lpanzpawpbg 3993051  A.4a0.67 15.336.821 - da, T8
2,360 a7 ESD RFAO2L L EG0 E107, 149,715 - F3, 147 470,235
R = ——————rr e = —————

Thie Cormperny mocailoss s risk Lo 2 shiorlazge of Sunds throvgheanalysing the matorily of ils financial
liabiities and rach flows from operatinps. The Company moritors its cash pasition by a svstem of
cash forecasling, wherein gl expeclod wollections, check disbarsements and other payments ara
detarmingd an a Fmreby nasiz to arrive at the projected cazh posibon ie cover s abligatinns.

The Company’s ohjective is to maintzin 2 basnce befween continuity of funding and fexibility.
The Compary addrasses Hguldity conceras prinarlly Zhrough cash flaws from operabions,

Interest Rate Risk

Interast vale risk s Lhe sk chat futore Cash Tigwrs fron a financlai mstrument (cash Tow mTarust rae
risk] arits fair value (fair value interest ratz risk] will Guctkaate because of chanzes in market interast
rates,

The Company's Icans payable t1a locel barks ame subjact ko tixed interast ratas and are exposed 1o fair
value interest rate risk. The re pricing of these instro-nents s cone en regalar inbersa s The Coerpany
regularly romitars inkersst rate mgverrenisand on the basis of current and grojected eccnomic and
monetary dats, cec.des on the best alternazive to -ake. Mo sensitivity analysis i= needed as
managemenl has assessed that fubuie interest rake changes are not expesied to significantly affect
the Company’s separate net income.
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Firancial and Jther Rishs Relaking 1o ivesiozk

The Company is erpased &3 various risks aHesting the foac imdustry suth a5 tasd speisage and
conkarpination, thws, it iz repulated by envivehmertal, healch and feod safety organizations.
The Cercpary has processes amd Systears in place b rmamtor food stfeby asks i afl stages of
manufacturing and orocazsing to mitgate tnesa risks. In addition, the liveztack ndustey is exposed 1o
risks associated witk supp.y and pize vplat |ty of its inventories and livestock.

To mitigate Lhis risk, tha Cormpany regularly menitees e supply 2nd proce of commeslicies and entars
into supply agreemrents at a reasonabfe proe.

Capital WMaragement
The Campany’s capital managemert objectives are 2o ansura the Company's ability to continue as 4

going crncern ard o provde an adeauate return to shameholders by pricing products and services
commensurate witl the level o risk,

The Campany monizars canizal on the hasis of the cerrving mount of equity as presented in the
separate stalemenls of ficandial posilion. Capilal fon he repurlifg periods i5 summarized as fol lowes:

2023 2022
Terlal [aki ities F3,317,534,732 F3,352.431,194
Tatal equity 1,936,5682,515 1,897,853 732
Debt-tn-rouity ratia 1.713 1.756

32,

Fair Valua Meaiuremant

The fallowing able presents Bhe cartying amcunts and B35 wvaloes of the Company's assets and
liabilities measLrad at tar value and for which i~ valees gre disclosed, and the corresponding Fair
value higrarchy 25 at (asembar 31:

2023 EO2%
-E:trrlfing Yalues Fair Values Larming valgs falr‘.ﬂalues
Kinenclal Asaels a1 '
Arriorbred Casl
Casl: 392 4132 464 H3141 413 akh XAl &E0 319 AL, SR, A28
T-ace and athar pacgival acr 1418,237 264 1,01 X720 933,119 930 933,120,920
Meceluasle [ oo an irsoa e
CArLaAny T 203 814 10,213,814 11,203,313 E ER S |
Security deansits 12 92 424 12 023 C20 15,229 31a 18, 3k 354
W1.q94, 2532 » I1H H1404 282 220 Fl39%3,22331D RLIZL P13 90
Fipancaal Liakllizlas a
amortized Cast
1ragg and gthar payaklgg=* W2 AHLE, FO3,U47 3016, 703047 ELAW 00 AL 2,450,597 a2
Laans payahble W93, T1%,285 F01%. 119,285 1,335 171,331 1035121 38
Lease ‘iahilifes 43,591,520 AZ,5%31,520 Sl 2 HE 5z, 299 B30
s~ bord soposits sbS0as1y  EnS038L 56,284,530 _ 56,201 EED
WI.053 15 fhd B3 058 012 EGd W2 113 315 P93 AE 1B A14,R9

*vcluwny useunes P ol s ol sonplupeps

g iy sdurolorye poe ke
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The Tl pwiag metkads and assemptiors were wsed in estimating the fair walue of the Campany's
finarocial asae s and Fabililies:

Casn, Trode and Qther Receivotles [excluding advanecss Lo oficers and ermplavees), Trode ang Qther
Payobies (excluchiag statutary popables! ongd Cosp Dong Depesits. The carmying amaunts of these
tinancial assete ant Cabilities apaccxlmate thelr fale values due o the short-term nature of these
financial instrurments.

Receivable from an lesurance Company, Secunly Deposits, Legse Linhilites, Loons Poyehie,
mManagcment believes that the dfferences between far values and carrying amaunts are negs

zigniticant.

There have been ng travsiers hetweren the feirvalue h erarchy in 2923 and 2022,
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REPORT OF INREPENMDENT ALICHTORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTE FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHAMNGE COMMISSIGN

The Stockkalders and the Board of Directors
Witarich Carporation

hAarilan —San Jose Foad, $ta, Rosa |

Warllaa, Bulacan

We heve audtted the pocompanying separate finarclal skate ments of Vitarich Corporabion (Rhe Cermpany),
a3 at and far the year anded Decernbar 31, 2023, on which we have rendered aur repert dated
March 21, 2024,

In comipliance with 3avised Securldes Reguladion Code Rule €2, wea are stating that the Company has
3,953 stockholders owning 100 or mora shares each.

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

Juchi 3

Fartnher
CPA, Cartficase Moo 37280
Tak IdentifF=3tizor Ho. 2032622831000
EOA Accreditabizr. Ha. 4782 valld v rfil Aprll L3, 2024
EBI® becredilalisze Ho. ©3-H151 34301 20033
Yald unbl “anoany 24, 2026
FTI pia, 30072412
I:5uBd Januery 2, 2024, M ean Tivy

March 21, 2024
kakati Clry, Metra idanlla
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REFOART OF INDEPENDENT ALIDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDNILE OF
RETAIMED EARN|NGS AYAILABLE FOR DIYIDEND DECLARATION

The Stackiholders and the Roard of Direciars
Wrtarich Corposation

rAa a0 — San lose Aoad, Sta. Rasal
Marlao, Bulacan

Wi have audited En accerdance with Philipping Standards on Aurditing, the separate Rnancial statements
at Vitarich Corporation (the Compary) az ot and far the vear ended December 31, 2023 znd have issued
aur repart thoreon dated harch 21, 2024, Gur audits were made for the purpese of Forming an apimon
an the basic separate financial statemants taker. a5 3 whole, The accompaying supglementary Schedule
af Retaiced Earnings Avallable for Dladend Declaration as at December 31, 2023 are the respansi billty of
the Company’s management.

This schedule s presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulabon Code Rule £8
Pare 1l, and are not part of the separate finanglal statements, This infarmation has been subjected to the
auditing procrdures applied in the audlts of the teparate financial statements, including companng such
information direcily Lethe underlying accoontng and atharvecords used Lo prapare he separate financial
statements or to the separate financial statements Lhamielves. In our oplnicen, the information is farly
stated in all marcasial respect in relation to the separate financlal statements taken as a whole.

REYES TACANDONG & €O,

| LLE R. MENJUEA 4 ‘{
Partner

CPA CerbRzarm %G, 9 5235
Tax cerntfication M. A0°-3%2-1 84000
EBOA Accreditaton Mg, 4TEE; Yalld wnt Apsil 13, 20zd
BIR Aurreditat e m N, O5-C05 1490132025
Ya i unt’| Jaauary 24, £326
FIE ke, 0073917
[3gued Jaaud sy 2, 2024, Webati City

hiarca 21, 26624
Rakati City, Metrg htanila
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FARENT CORMPANY'S RECOMCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

CIVIRDEND DECLARATION

FOR THE REPQORTIMG PERIO D ENDED DECENIBER 31, 2723

YITARICH CORPORATION

PzrLEQ - 2an Josa Road, Sta. Foss |

Marnlao, Bulacan

Ak

Deficis an at vk segennming gl reaarting perad T2, 750 515]
Aod Calepery b [Lerns Thal ge directly o edited S unapmoprated

retained carnings

Transter Mrom rovalnation suralus tnoresiasd mara ngs net ol

defurres income tax 16, 7E0, 4.4
Less: Cateeory 30 liems —hat are directly dekited bc unaperopriased

réta.nng carpings — prior perind ad Lstments L&, 30 445]
Leficit, a5 adjested | 14,2895, 550]

Ldd. Met ircoona far tre carrent yea”
Lexs; Catepory C.1; wnreallzed [ncome reccanized in: <he profi; or los:
during tha reporting periac - nst af tex

23,837.00%

2. 894,134]

Adustod gt inge e
Add Satepney B Wopaulugl losses vevegacred iv peolit o [oss during 1he
repertl g poriod  net of tas

|34.069,.21]

35,554,684

Lieflclt as ak tha end of reuurting period

(8216,530,957]
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2023 SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
VITARICH CORPORATION

Contextual Information

Company Details

Name of Organization

Vitarich Corporation (PSE: VITA)

Location of Headquarters

Marilao-San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |, Marilao, Bulacan

Location of Operations

Principal Office: Marilao-San Jose Road, Sta. Rosa |, Bulacan
Other offices:

National Highway, San Fermin, 2™ Floor, Unit 8 AC Petroleum
Gas Station, Cauayan City, Isabela

Zone 4, San Isidro, Magarao, Camarines Sur

Brgy. Mali-ao, Pavia, lloilo

Luzuriaga Ext., Reclamation Area, Brgy. 13, Bacolod City
Warehouse No. 10, Marciano Quizon St., Brgy. Alang Alang,
Mandaue City, Cebu

Km. 14, Panacan, Davao City

Unit A, Warehouse 3, Neo Central Arcade, Cugman, Cagayan De
Oro City

Doors D and E, FMUFASCO Building, National Highway, Brgy.
Sinawal, Gen. Santos City

Feed Mill Plants owned and operated by VITA:

Brgy. Mali-ao, Pavia, lloilo
Km. 14, Panacan, Davao City

VITA has also operations with its Toll Mill Partner in 105 Barrio
Bagbaguin, Sta. Maria, Bulacan

Report Boundary: Legal entities
(e.g. subsidiaries) included in this
report*

The report covers only VITA and the feed mill plants it operates,
except as otherwise stated in the report. This report also
excludes the operations in VITA’s dressing plants in Marilao,
Bulacan and Tugbok, Davao City, except as otherwise stated
and/or reported. The exclusion is due to the fact that they are
being operated by third parties or by VITA’s business partners.
The report also excludes data on the operations of VITA’s
subsidiary, Barbatos Ventures Corporation, unless otherwise
stated or reported. Some disclosures were made in general




terms so as to avoid disclosing proprietary or confidential
information, business strategies, or even trade secrets.

Business Model, including Primary | Please see Annex “A”
Activities, Brands, Products, and

Services Eropreey FORGEN LINILMECO. NRURIBING LIVIS
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Reporting Period January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023
Highest Ranking Person Atty. Mary Christine C. Dabu-Pepito (Assistant Corporate
responsible for this report Secretary/Compliance Officer/Corporate Information Officer)

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only
or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your report
boundary.

Materiality Process

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying your
material topics.!

The data and information necessary for the report were collated from the different departments of VITA.
Some of the information came from reports that are also submitted to government agencies like the
BIR, DOLE and DENR-EMB. Some were based on the results of engagement with different stakeholders
such as the employees, business partners, dealers, and customers. Based on these existing data, the
material topics for the report were analyzed using the Materiality Matrix. Per assessment, the following
are the topics material to Vitarich:

(a) Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed

(b) Climate Related Risks and Opportunities

(c) Proportion of Spending on Local Suppliers

(d) Resource Management except Ecosystems and Biodiversity as the Corporation does not operate
within or adjacent to protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected
areas

(e) Environmental Impact Management

(f) Environmental Compliance

(g) Employee Management

! See GRI 102-46 (2016) for more guidance.


https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1037/gri-102-general-disclosures-2016.pdf#page=34

(h) Occupational Health and Safety
(i) Relationship with Community, except those pertaining to IPs
(j) Customer Management, except Customer Privacy

The topics that are not material were left in blank/unanswered.

However, while the same were assessed to be material, some disclosure topics have limited available
data. This Sustainability Dashboard contains the 3 UN Sustainable Development Goals (“UN SDGs")
material to VITA and VITA’s sustainability practices and goals.

Economic Performance

Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed

community (e.g.
donations, CSR)

Disclosure Amount Amount Amount Units
(2023) (Restated 2022) (2022)
Direct economic value 12,509,448,015.00 11,978,605,046.00 12,014,706,705.00 | PhP
generated (revenue)
Direct economic value
distributed:
a. Operating costs 11,555,586962.00 10,853,828,605.00 10,862,756,465.00 | PhP
b. Employee wages 352,734,377.00 324,516,851.00 296,956,326.00 PhP
and benefits
c. Paymentsto 544,145,841.00 576,235,796.00 575,076,446.00 Php
suppliers, other
operating costs
d. Dividends given Interest payments Interest payments Interest payments | PhP
to stockholders only — only — only —
and interest 75,823,288.00 40,001,976.00 40,001,976.00
payments to loan
providers
e. Taxes given to 242,259,018.00 244,056,997.00 182,767,626.00 PhP
government
f. Investments to 0.00 0.00 0.00 PhP

What is the impact and where does it
occur? What is the organization’s
involvement in the impact?

stakeholders are

Which

affected?

Management Approach




The disclosures above show some

Government

VITA’s Lifetime Profitable Partnership

>
restatements on the disclosures made in the| > Employees (“LPP”) principle continues to create a
2022 Sustainability Report in line with the| > Creditors long-term growth for VITA and its
restatements made on VITA’s Audited| > Suppliers stakeholders.
Financial Statements (“AFS”). As may be|l » Community
noted in the 2023 AFS, the restatements were| » Shareholders [The monthly results of operations as
due to prior period adjustments (investment| > Investors well as the business outlook for the
property to plant, property, equipment) and succeeding months are reported to the
classification of Bio Asset and Miscellaneous Board of Directors. The management
Income (AHC). continuously evaluates its strategies and
modifies them as may be necessary to
Be that as it may, VITA’s generated total adapt to the changing landscapes,
consolidated revenue for 2023 amounted to provide solutions to challenges
Php12,509,448,015.00 as a result of its encountered, and pioneer innovations.
business operations, strategies and other It faithfully complies with its contractual
operating and passive income. This was obligations to its stakeholders. VITA’s
higher than the total consolidated revenue in cashflow, including collections and
2022 due to volume growth in the chicken disbursements, are closely monitored
segment and feeds price increase. and managed. There are also internal
control systems and processes in place
VITA’s revenue allowed it to fund its to manage business operations and
operating costs and pay its suppliers, finances.
employees, creditors and the government
(taxes and licenses). Operating costs for 2023
were higher than that in 2022 primarily due
to higher labor costs. Despite the higher
operating costs, VITA still earned a
consolidated net income of]
Php13,304,916.00 in 2023.
What are the Risk/s Identified? Which Management Approach

stakeholders are

affected?
Financial, liquidity, and operational risks| » Suppliers VITA closely monitored its cash flow and
brought about by: (a) animal diseases like| » Employees |disbursements, continuously improved
African Swine Flu (ASF) or Avian Influenza| > Business its inventory levels, innovated strategies
(Al); (b) high operating costs brought about partners to manage costs and cash flow, and
by increasing prices of raw materials; (c)| » Customers |constantly communicated and
increasing foreign exchange rates in relation| > Creditors negotiated with suppliers and with

to imported raw materials; (d) rising costs of
fuel; (e) increasing interest rates; and (f) low
selling price of chicken due to market
oversupply.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

creditors as regards debts and interest
rates.

Management Approach




D3

channels for

Y/
0'0

also continue

VITA’s products.

» The availability of multiple sales
VITA’s
continue to present an opportunity,
to continuously innovate.

The innovations and strategies done
in 2023 to lower raw material costs
to
opportunity to manage production
costs without affecting the quality of]

products

present an

In addition to the foregoing
management approaches, VITA commits
to continue improving its operations and
business strategies to allow expansion
of its businesses.

Climate-related risks and opportunities?

Disclose the | Disclose the actual and | Disclose how  the | Disclose the metrics
organization’s potential impacts® of | organization identifies, | and targets used to
governance around | climate-related risks | assesses, and manages | assess and manage
climate-related risks and | and opportunities on | climate-related risks relevant climate-
opportunities the organization’s related risks and
businesses,  strategy, opportunities where
and financial planning such information s
where such information material
is material
Recommended Disclosures
a) Describe the board’s | a) Describe the | a) Describe the | a) Disclose the
oversight of climate- climate-related risks organization’s metrics used by
related risks and and opportunities processes for the organization
opportunities the organization has identifying and to assess climate-
identified over the assessing climate- related risks and
short, medium and related risks opportunities in
long term line  with its
strategy and risk
management
process
The President and/or | VITA is exposed to the | VITA identifies and | VITA’s metrics in
department heads | following risks due to | assesses climate- | assessing its climate-
report to the Board of | climate change: related risks through | related risk
Directors how floods or any or all of the | management and
extreme weather | i. Physical Risk. Being an | following methods: (a) | strategy are: (a) cost
conditions  affect or | agribusiness, it is | continuous analysis of | efficiency  of its
impact VITA’s business | exposed to physical | its business processes | strategy; (b) quality of

2 Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The TCFD Recommendations apply to non-
financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including banks, insurance companies, asset managers and asset owners.
3 For this disclosure, impact refers to the impact of climate-related issues on the company.



as well as the measures
undertaken/to be
undertaken to minimize
the impacts.

risks of drought and
extreme rains/extreme
weather condition and
flooding.

ii. Operational Risk.
Climate change poses
the risk of disrupting
VITA’s operations.

iii. Credit and Liquidity
Risks. Climate change
could affect VITA’s
financial performance
and access to capital.

On climate-related
opportunities,  VITA’s
lloilo Feed Mill plant
continued the use of
solar energy in its 2023
operations. It has also
started using perimeter
solar lights in its Davao
feed mill plant. The use
of solar energy in the
Davao feed mill plant is
currently undergoing a
feasibility study. As
discussed under the
topic Materials Used by
the Organization, VITA
had started to comply
with RA 11898 or the
Extended Producer
Responsibility Act (“EPR

Act”).  Still  another
opportunity is  the
Green Sanctuary
Program, which the

employees continued as
they take home and/or

share among
themselves their
harvests from
fruit/vegetable bearing
plants that they
planted. These plants
help absorb carbon

emissions.

and finding the factors
that could affect its
processes and targeted
goals; (b) reviewing past
negative experiences or
negative results and
finding out the root
cause; and/or  (c)
continuous research
and benchmarking with
other companies in the
same industry.

feeds, animal health,
dressed chicken and
value-added

products; (c) ability to
meet customers’
demands; and (d)
customer satisfaction.




b) Describe b) Describe the impact | b) Describe the | b) Describe the
management’s role of climate-related organization’s targets used by
in assessing and risks and processes for the organization
managing climate- opportunities on managing climate- to manage
related risks and the organization’s related risks climate-related
opportunities businesses, strategy risks and

and financial opportunities and
planning. performance
against targets

The management | Drought and extreme | To manage the climate- | VITA’s  target in

regularly assesses | rains/extreme weather | related risks, VITA re- | managing its climate-

impacts of predictable
climate-related risks,
such as extreme rains,
extreme humidity, or
even flooding, to its
operations and makes
the appropriate
adjustments in its
strategies. The
unpredictable climate-
related risks like
earthquake as well as
measures undertaken/to
be undertaken to
minimize the adverse
impacts are discussed by
the management and
reported to the Board as
it happens.

condition and flooding
cause disruptions in
crop production and
also affects the quality
of raw materials. In

addition, all the
identified risks have the
following

impacts/potential
impacts on its business
operations:

a. Higher costs due to
insufficiency of raw
materials or because of
disruptions in the crop
production.

b. Decrease in demand
for feeds from animal
raisers/growers  since
drought and extreme
rains and flooding
adversely affect the
growth efficiency of
farm animals, especially
poultry.

c. Disruption in the
breeding cycles of
poultry breeding stocks,
thus, disrupting the
supply chain
considering that limited
breeding stocks resultin
scarcity of day old
chicks.

formulates its feeds as
may be necessary to
adapt to maintain the
same quality while
adapting to the
environment. VITA also

benchmarks and
conducts  continuous
consultations and
research and
development to
maintain the quality of
feeds despite using
alternative raw
materials. Likewise,

VITA’s locally sourced
materials are supported
by importations and
frame  contract to
manage and mitigate
impacts of climate-
related risks. VITA also
conducts regular
trainings on biosecurity
measures to help its
business partners in
terms of productivity.

VITA’s lloilo Feed MIill
plant continued the use
of solar energy. On the
other hand, VITA
started to use perimeter
solar lights in its Davao
feed mill plant.

related risk
management and
strategy is to continue
to deliver on time the

agreed volume or
agreed reduced
volume of feeds and
chicken to its
customers  without
sacrificing quality,

and without incurring
too much costs.




d. Disruptions in poultry
growing.

e. Delays in delivery
brought about by delays
in payment to suppliers.

On the other hand, the
use of solar energy in
the lloilo feed mill plant
resulted in reducing
VITA’s GHG emissions
as disclosed under the
topics on Energy

VITA allowed the
employees to continue
the Green Sanctuary
Program, which helps
absorbs carbon
emissions.

Apart from this, VITA
also regularly maintains
and upgrades its
equipment to comply
with DENR standards as
well as to maintain and

Consumption within the | improve operational
Organization and | efficiencies.
Reduction of Energy

Consumption. This

could also help in

mitigating the impacts

of other risks leading to

less exposure to

operating loss.

The Green Sanctuary

Program helps absorb

carbon emissions,

which, in turn, helps in

managing VITA’s

environmental impacts.

c) Describe the | ¢c) Describe how
resilience of the processes for
organization’s identifying,
strategy, taking into assessing, and
consideration managing climate-
different  climate- related risks are
related  scenarios integrated into the

including a 2°C or
lower scenario

organization’s
overall
management

risk

VITA’s climate-related
risk management
continues to prove to be
resilient as evidenced
by its continued
existence and its

As can be seen above,
changes and
modifications are made
in  VITA’s  business
processes and feed
formulation to mitigate
impacts of climate-




continued
stability.

financial

about

related risks and adapt
to constraints brought

related risks and events.

by climate-

Procurement Practices

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Disclosure

Quantity Units

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations

of operations that is spent on local suppliers

Nationwide: 92.07% %

Luzon —48.26%
Visayas — 12.29%
Mindanao — 31.52%

What is the impact and where does it
occur? What is the organization’s
involvement in the impact?

Which stakeholders

are affected?

Management Approach

For the year 2023, 92.07% of VITA's
procurement budget was spent on local
suppliers. These suppliers include only
suppliers of raw and other trade materials
and exclude service providers such as
consultants and contractors. In 2023,
VITA had lower importation of major raw
materials compared to that in 2022.

» Suppliers

» Domestic
companies
especially
MSMEs,
farmers.

the
and

VITA allots more of its procurement
budget on local suppliers. Its
procurement policies and strategies
were crafted, reviewed, revised and
implemented in a manner consistent
with the company’s vision of being the
backbone of every Filipino farmer’s
success and mission of building
partnerships with its suppliers, among
others. Its procurement policies and
strategies are periodically reviewed in
order to continuously improve the
company’s buying plans, strategies and
timings.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders

are affected?

Management Approach

% Operational risks due to supply
constraints, poor quality of
supplies, inconsistent quality of the
raw materials, animal diseases such
as ASF and Al and delays in
deliveries on account of calamities

In

or extreme weather conditions.

Customers
Creditors
Shareholders
Investors

VVVYVYVY

addition to the
foregoing:

In addition to the foregoing, VITA
accredits additional suppliers, or it re-
formulates feeds as may be necessary|
without sacrificing the quality of feeds.

VITA also conducts regular trainings on

biosecurity measures to help its




¢+ Financial risks due to sudden or
significant increase in prices of
goods and services.

% Legal, operational, financial and
reputational risks due to delayed or|
non-payment of suppliers.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

< The availability of long-term
contracts with suppliers will allow
better terms with local raw
materials suppliers.

% The availability of reliable local
suppliers can ensure operational
efficiencies despite  weather,
conditions.

% The availability of raw materials
and other input goods and
services all year round can
minimize increase in costs
despite sudden or significant
increase in prices of goods and
services.

business partner — farmers in terms of|
productivity.

VITA makes payment allocations to
suppliers, especially major raw materials
suppliers in order to ensure timely|
deliveries of major raw materials absent
calamities or extreme  weather
conditions and to ensure better raw
materials cost and the continuity of|
operations.

As disclosed above, VITA closely|
monitors and manages its cash flow and
disbursements to ensure liquidity.

In line with UN SDG 2 (Zero Hunger),
VITA has created a Zero Hunger Task
Force in 2022 to continuously increase
the availability of reliable local suppliers,
help in the livelihood of the community
in the areas where it operates, and
strengthen its support to local
agriculture.

Anti-corruption

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures

Disclosure

Quantity Units

Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s anti-
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to

%

communicated to

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s
anti-corruption policies and procedures have been

%

anti-corruption training

Percentage of directors and management that have received

%

training

Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption

%

does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

What is the impact and where | Which stakeholders are

Management Approach
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What are the Risk/s Identified? | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
affected?
What are the Opportunity/ies | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
Identified? affected?
Incidents of Corruption
Disclosure Quantity Units
Number of incidents in which directors were removed or #
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or #
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents when contracts with business partners #
were terminated due to incidents of corruption

What is the impact and where | Which stakeholders are Management Approach

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

What are the Risk/s Identified? | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
affected?

What are the Opportunity/ies | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
Identified? affected?

ENVIRONMENT

Resource Management
Energy consumption within the organization:

Disclosure Quantity Units
Energy consumption Visayas — 195,626 Kwh
(renewable sources)
Energy consumption (SFO?%) Visayas — 4,464.97 GJ

4 Special fuel oil

11



Energy consumption Luzon —44,041.90 Liters
(gasoline) Visayas —2,410.17
Mindanao — 9,907.69
Energy consumption (LPG) Visayas — 180 KG
Energy consumption (diesel) | Luzon—96,167.72 Liters
Visayas —44,889.01
Mindanao — 88,718.74
Energy consumption Luzon — 1,287 (Marilao office only); 3,973,922 kWh
(electricity) Luzon Warehouse — 156,555
Visayas — 1,304,800 (lloilo); 11,598 (Bacolod Satellite
Warehouse); 1,285 (Cebu Satellite Warehouse)
Mindanao - 3,787,487.85 (Davao); 6,836 (CDO Satellite
Warehouse)
Reduction of energy consumption
Disclosure Quantity Units
Energy consumption (renewable sources) Visayas — 1,947 GJ
Energy reduction (SFO) GJ
Energy reduction (gasoline) GJ
Energy reduction (LPG) Visayas — 20 GJ
Energy reduction (diesel) Visayas — 2.22 GJ
Mindanao — 2,130.94
Energy reduction (electricity) Visayas -327,800 | kWh
(loilo); 1,994
(Bacolod  Satellite);
4,175 (Cebu Satellite
Warehouse)
What is the impact and where | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The data above was primarily based| > Suppliers VITA complies with laws relating to

from VITA’s lloilo and Davao feed
mill plants as well as the electricity
consumption in the principal office
(Marilao, Bulacan) and satellite
warehouses in Bacolod, Cebu, and
CDO. The electricity consumption
disclosed for the lloilo feed mill
plant is separate and distinct from
the renewable source consumption
from the said plant. The data on
gasoline came from consumption

» Communities where
VITA operates.

environment, energy consumption and
efficiency.

VITA continued using solar energy in its
feed mill plant. VITA started using solar
perimeter lights in its Davao feed mill
plant in 2023 after it completed the
installation of said lights in the same year.
VITA is, at present, conducting a feasibility
study on the use of solar energy in its

Davao feed mill plant. In addition, it

12



on VITA’s fleet. The reductions on
renewable sources and diesel
consumptions in Visayas and
Mindanao were primarily due to the
decrease in production volume in
addition to the proper equipment
maintenance. The electricity|
consumption in Cebu Satellite
warehouse decreased due to the
closure of said warehouse end of]
March 2023.

The impact is on the environment as
the use of renewable sources off
energy decreases GHG emissions
while the use of non-renewable
sources results in emissions that
could be harmful to the
environment. There is also an
impact on the supply chain because
the use of non-renewable sources
could deplete these sources.

The use of solar energy in the lloilo
feed mill plant resulted in reduction
of VITA’s GHG emissions in 2023 by:
(a) 346,337.31 kg in terms of COj
emissions; (b) 185.77 kg. in terms of
NOx emissions; and (c) 3.89 kg. in
terms of SO, emissions. These
reductions were higher than those
avoided in 2022. It should be,
however, noted that VITA’s solar|
capacity is only around 15% to 20%
of the plant’s electrical power|
requirement. Thus, the electricity
consumption from ILECO was still
higher than that from solar energy.
The electricity supplied by ILECO
helps run the machineries and
utilities in the plant.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

% Climate change brought
about by increase in air

emissions and pollutions due

conducts regular preventive maintenance
of all its equipment.

In line with UN SDG 12 (Responsible
Production and  Consumption), it
continuously improves its processes to
ensure operational efficiencies, which, in
turn, helps in the efficient energy
consumption.

13



to the use of non-renewable
sources of energy.

+» Depletion or shortage of non-
renewable sources of energy.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

+* The continued use of solar|
energy in the lloilo feed mill
plant gives the opportunity to
further increase efficient
consumption of energy.

< The positive impact on the
environment of the use of solar|
energy in the lloilo feed mill
plant presents an opportunity
to further lower VITA’s GHG
emissions in the Davao feed

mill plant.

Water consumption within the organization

Disclosure Quantity Units
Water withdrawal Visayas — 4,317 (lloilo) Cubic
Mindanao — 5,842 (Davao) meters
Water consumption Luzon warehouse — 138.69 Cubic
meters
Visayas — 4,317 (lloilo); 120 (Bacolod Satellite Warehouse); 32
(Cebu Satellite Warehouse)
Mindanao — 5,842 (Davao); 129 (CDO Satellite Warehouse)
Water recycled and Visayas—0 Cubic
reused Mindanao -0 meters

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The data above were based on the
water consumption and withdrawal
in VITA’s lloilo feed mill plant and
office, as well as in the satellite

» Communities where
VITA operates
» Government

VITA complies with all laws and
regulations pertaining to water and it
continuously improves the operational
efficiencies in order to maintain efficient

14




warehouses in Bacolod, Cebu and
CDO, and Davao feed mill plant and
office. The data were based on the
consumption reflected in VITA's
water billings.

In Visayas, water consumption and
withdrawal in 2023 decreased by
1,346 cubic meters. The proper|
maintenance of the water pipelines
and boiler system, in addition to the
decline in production volume
contributed to the decrease in
water consumption and water
withdrawal. The decrease resulted
in savings of about P166K, more or]
less.

In Mindanao, the decrease in water
consumption and withdrawal in
2023 by 464 cubic meters was due
to the decrease in the production
volume.

In both the lloilo and Davao feed
mill plants, the water is used only
for steam generation.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Climate change
Depletion or shortage of
water

@,
0’0
@,
0’0

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

@,

% VITA could explore rainwater
harvesting in the feed mill
plants in order to further
reduce its water withdrawals.

water consumption. It also conducts
regular preventive maintenance of its
equipment and replaces the same with
more efficient and more technologically

advanced equipment
necessary.

may

be

Materials used by the organization

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

Materials used by weight or volume

e Renewable

Luzon — 105,856,129
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Visayas — 41,498,250
Mindanao —
75,358,100

e non-renewable

Luzon —2,050,221
Visayas — 104,890.14
Mindanao — 526,895

Kg

Plastic Packaging
(Unaudited data) -
661,529.40 (Feeds);
169,485.86 (Foods)

Percentage of recycled input materials used to manufacture the
organization’s primary products and services

0 %

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

packaging materials are disclosed
separately. Note, however, that the
data disclosed under plastic
packaging  materials is  still
unaudited and will still undergo an
independent third-party audit in
compliance with the EPR Act.

The impact is on the environment as
VITA, although on a minimal level
only, continues to contribute to
waste generation and pollution as a
necessary consequence of its
operations.

The decrease in the materials
consumed in 2023 was due to the
decrease in production volume.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The renewable materials disclosed| » Suppliers VITA complies with laws relative to
above are the raw materials used or] » Communities wherelmaterials consumption and conservation.
consumed by VITA for 2023. The VITA operates It also shifted from the use of laminated
non-renewable materials are the| » Government sack to a reusable woven sack for its feeds.
energy consumed. The plasticc » Customers Re-using the woven sacks helps reduce

waste and pollution. It continuously
improves its inventory management to
have higher recovery/conversion of]
materials to finished products.

VITA has also taken steps to address waste
and pollution generated and contributed.
In compliance with the EPR Act, VITA
sought accreditation with an organization
that can help it develop, implement and
monitor its compliance with the EPR Act
and it had engaged an accredited waste
diverter in Mindanao.

In line with UN SDG 12 [Responsible
Production and Consumption], VITA
continuously improves its processes to
ensure operational efficiencies, which, in
turn, helps in the efficient resource
management.
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The continuous demand for non-
renewable materials increases
VITA’s contribution to pollution and
waste and it increases the
possibility of shortage of non-
renewable materials.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Reduction in waste and pollution
contribution through the use of
renewable, reusable and recyclable
materials in the production of|
feeds.

Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine)

Disclosure Quantity Units

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, (identify all sites)
protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside
protected areas

Habitats protected or restored Ha

IUCN® Red List species and national conservation list species with | (list)
habitats in areas affected by operations

What is the impact and where | Which stakeholders are Management Approach

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

What are the Risk/s Identified? | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
affected?

What are the Opportunity/ies | Which stakeholders are Management Approach
Identified? affected?

5 International Union for Conservation of Nature



Environmental impact management

Air Emissions
GHG

Disclosure

Quantity Units

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions

lloilo Feedmill — 204
Davao Feedmill (CO emission only)
Boiler 1A—129.0

Boiler 1B—121.0
Boiler 2A —109.2

mg/Nm3

Boiler 2B —89.3
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions 0 Tonnes CO,e
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS) | 0 Tonnes

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are

affected?

Management Approach

The data above were based on the|
emission testing conducted by a
DENR-EMB accredited third party
company on VITA’s Davao and lloilo

feed mill plants.

Y/
0.0
®
0.0

The increase in the emissions in
lloilo feed mill plant despite the
decrease in production volume was
due to the age of the boilers in said
feed mill plant.

While VITA has neither indirect GHG
emissions nor ozone depleting
substances emissions, its feed mill
operations in lloilo and Davao
contribute to GHG emissions as a
necessary consequence of its
operations, albeit in a low level
only.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Communities where
VITA operates
Government

Public in general

VITA complies with all laws relative to the
environment, including the Clean Air Act.
It also regularly conducts preventive
maintenance on its equipment, regular|
repair of its facilities, including pollution
control facilities, to ensure not only good
operating conditions but also compliance
with the environmental laws and
regulations. VITA also ensures that its
operations are efficient in order to keep its|
emissions low against the DENR-EMB
standards.

VITA has a rehabilitation plan on its boiler
equipment in lloilo feed mill plant, which,
when implemented, would increase
efficiency of the equipment, and further|
reduce VITA’s emissions in said plant.

VITA continued its use of solar energy in its
lloilo feed mill plant. It has also completed
the installation of and started using
perimeter solar lights in its Davao feed mill
plant. It is currently conducting a
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72
0‘0

Y/
0'0

Operational risks due to
climate change brought about

by the emissions and
continuous contribution to air|
pollution.

Health risks on the

communities where VITA
operates as well as the public
in general due to the
continuous GHG emissions.

What are the Opportunity/ies

Identified?

Y/
0'0

The continuous operation and
use of as well as the possibility]
of increase in capacity of the
solar energy in the lloilo feed
mill plant will mitigate and
reduce VITA’s GHG emissions.
The use of solar energy in the
Davao feed mill plant is an
opportunity that VITA can
explore to reduce its GHG
emissions.

The continuation of the Green
Sanctuary Program can also
benefit the environment as
plants can help reduce GHG
emissions.

VITA could further reduce
emissions through the
planned rehabilitation of the

boilers in lloilo feed mill plant.

feasibility study on the use of solar energy
in the Davao feed mill plant.

In addition, by allowing the employees to
plant within its plant premises (Green
Sanctuary Program), VITA helps mitigate
its GHG emissions as plants help reduce
these emissions.

VITA has Pollution Control Officers
(“PCO”) who monitor and ensure
compliance with laws and regulations|
relating to the environment and its
conservation.

Air pollutants

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

NOx

lloilo Feedmill — 86.774

Davao Feedmill
Boiler 1-A—33.2
Boiler 1-B - 44.6
Boiler 2-A—-21.3
Boiler 2-B—24.5
Genset —343.3

ave. concentration in mg/Nm?3
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SOx

lloilo Feedmill — 1
Davao Feedmill
Boiler 1-A—-8.3
Boiler 1-B — 25.5
Boiler2-A—-32.4

ave. concentration in mg/Nm?3

Boiler 2-B—-5.6
Persistent organic pollutants (POPs) 0 Kg
Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) 0 Kg
Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) 0 Kg

Particulate matter (PM)

lloilo Feedmill — 53
Davao Feedmill
Boiler 1-A—11.9
Boiler 1-B—18.7
Boiler 2-A—29.8
Boiler 2-B-21.9

ave. concentration in mg/Nm?3

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The data were based on the
emission testing conducted by a
DENR-EMB accredited third party
company on VITA’s lloilo and Davao
feed mill plants.

The decrease in the SOy in the lloilo
feed mill plant in 2023 was due to
the use of SFO in its equipment.

The decrease in particulate matter
emission in 2023 was due to the
proper and regular maintenance of
the equipment.

While these pollutants/emissions
are low as against DENR thresholds,

they still contribute to GHG
emissions and air  pollution
generation.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

R/
0‘0

Operational risks due to
climate change brought about|

» Communities where
VITA operates

» Government

» Publicin general

VITA complies with all laws relative to the
environment, including the Clean Air Act.
It  regularly conducts preventive
maintenance on its equipment, and
regular repair of its facilities, including
pollution control facilities, to ensure not
only good operating conditions but also
compliance with the environmental laws|
and regulations. VITA also ensures that its
operations are efficient in order to keep its|
emissions low against the DENR-EMB,
standards.

VITA’s continued use of solar energy in
2023 in its lloilo feed mill plant, which
helped avoided these emissions: (a)
346,337.31 kg CO,; (b) 185.77 NOy; and (c)
3.89 SO,. Moreover, by allowing the
employees to plant within its plant
premises (Green Sanctuary Program),
VITA helps mitigate its air pollutant
emissions as plants help reduce these
emissions.
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by contribution to air With the completion of the installation of

pollution. the perimeter solar lights in the Davao
+* Health risks on the feed mill plant, VITA started using
communities where VITA perimeter solar lights in its Davao feed mill
operates as well as the public plant in 2023.
in general due to the
continuous  air  pollution VITA has PCOs who monitor and ensure
contribution. compliance with laws and regulations|
relating to the environment and its
What are the Opportunity/ies conservation.
Identified?

% The continuous operation and
use of as well as the possibility]
of increase in capacity of the
solar energy in the lloilo feed
mill plant will mitigate and
reduce VITA’s air pollutant
emissions.

+* The use of solar energy in the
Davao feed mill plant is an
opportunity that VITA can
explore to reduce its air
pollutant emissions.

+* The continuation of the Green
Sanctuary Program can also
benefit the environment as
plants can help reduce GHG
emissions.

Solid and Hazardous Wastes
Solid Waste

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total solid waste generated Visayas - | Kg
1,600/month
Mindanao -
2,300/month
Reusable Visayas — 200/month | Kg
Mindanao -
450/month
Recyclable Visayas — 250/month | Kg
Mindanao -
300/month
Composted Visayas — 200/month | Kg
Mindanao -
600/month
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Incinerated Visayas—0 Kg
Mindanao -0

Residuals/Landfilled Visayas — 950/month | Kg
Mindanao -
1000/month

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

VITA’s PCOs to the government.

Total solid waste generated in
Visayas decreased by 150 kg/month
due to the decrease in the
production volume.

While VITA has recyclable and
reusable solid wastes, about 50% of]
the estimated monthly solid wastes
generated still go into the landfills.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

R/

% Increase in pollution due to
increase in residual solid
wastes.

% Health risks on the employees
and communities where VITA
operates and the public in
general due to the increase in
solid waste pollution.

% Regulatory and legal risks due

to non-compliance with the

EPR Act.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?
% The government’s completion
of the IRR of the EPR Act

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The data above were based on the] » Employees VITA has a properly labelled Materials
monthly estimated solid wastel » Communities where|Recovery Facility in its lloilo and Davao
collected by third party solid waste VITA operates feed mill plants for the proper
collectors from the lloilo and Davao| » Public in general segregation, storage, and disposal of these
feed mill plants as reported by| » Government wastes. It also hired a third-party solid

waste collector to properly dispose its
solid wastes.

VITA has PCOs who monitor compliance
with laws and regulations relating to the
environment and its conservation,
including waste segregation and proper
waste disposal. It also continuously
reiterated and strengthened its campaign
and practice for waste segregation and
proper waste disposal.

It collects sweepings (assorted wastes
collected through the process of
sweeping) to be reprocessed/included in
the formulation of feeds, reuses and
recycles all that may be reused or
recycled, as the case may be, and keeps its
residual solid wastes within the allowed
threshold. It regularly evaluates
sweepings to make sure that it would not
cause infections. VITA also provides the
employees with PPEs and biosecurity,
measures in  place are strictly
implemented.

In compliance with the EPR Act, VITA
engaged an accredited waste diverter in
Mindanao. In Marilao, VITA’s wastes go to
the LGU’s MRF. It is continuously
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presents an opportunity for|
VITA to comply and even go
beyond compliance with the
EPR Act by not only re-using
and recycling its solid wastes
but also in recovering its solid
wastes, thus, reducing its
residual solid wastes, which,
in turn would reduce the solid

wastes going into the landfills.

developing its program for the recovery of
its plastic wastes.

Hazardous Waste

Disclosure Quantity Units

Total weight of hazardous waste generated Visayas:
Used oil — 250/year liters
Busted lamps -
45/year kg
Mindanao:
Used oil — 0/year liters
Busted lamps -
20/year

Total weight of hazardous waste transported Visayas: 0
Mindanao: 0 liters

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

generated for both plants are low or|
minimal only. Thus, there was no
need to transport the same.

The decrease of 50 liters in the used
oil generated in the lloilo feed mill
plant in 2023 was due to the new

generator set purchased and used

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?
The data above were based on the] > Employees VITA has a designated and properly
report that VITA’s PCOs in the lloilo] » Communities where|labelled Materials Recovery Facility to
and Davao feed mill plants VITA operates properly store used oil and busted lamps.
submitted to the DENR-EMB. The| » Publicin general It has PCOs in its lloilo and Davao feed mill
hazardous wastes that VITAl » Government plants to ensure that the proper waste

disposals prescribed under existing laws
and regulations are strictly followed.

It continuously improves its preventive
maintenance program/schedule in order|
to minimize used oil. VITA had also shifted
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since 2022, which required less oil
change. The decrease in busted
lamps generated in both the lloilo
and Davao feed mill plants in 2023
was due to the proper maintenance
of electric lamps/bulbs and the
switch to LED lights.

For Davao feed mill plant, there was
no recorded used oil in 2023. There|
was no used oil transported in 2023
because there was no collected
used oil to be transported.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Improper disposal may lead to
environmental risks as well as
health risks on the employees, the
communities where VITA operates
and the public in general. It may|
also lead into fire and pollution.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

< The regular preventive
maintenance conducted on
VITA’s equipment to ensure
operational efficiencies also
helps in reducing hazardous
wastes, thereby reducing
environmental and health
risks. It also has the potential
to avoid fire and decrease in
contribution to pollution.

% Avoidance of fire and
decrease in contribution to

to the use of compact bulbs, which used
LED, instead of fluorescent bulbs.

In addition to the foregoing, VITA
monitors the consumption of oils and
lamps so that the waste is kept within
threshold and that these hazardous
wastes are segregated from the non-
hazardous wastes. It also strictly,
implements its “No Smoking” policy and
provides employees with PPEs, which they
are also required to wear within the
premises.

pollution.
Effluents
Disclosure Quantity Units
Total volume of water discharges Visayas — 60/month Cubic
meters
Mindanao -0
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Percent of wastewater recycled

Visayas—0 %

Mindanao -0

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The data were based on the water
discharges and waste water
recycled in the lloilo and Davao feed
mill plants as reported to the DENR.
The decrease in production volume
in 2023 contributed to the decrease
in water discharges therein. There
was no water discharge in the
Davao feed mill plant since the
waste water goes into a separate
container, which eventually dries up|
or evaporates. Thus, the same are
not discharged in the public
drainages. VITA’s water discharges
are minimal or very low as against
DENR standards. However, it still
impacts the environment,
particularly the water bodies.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Increase in  water
contribution due to
waste water.

pollution
increase in

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

R/

% Presence of technologies that
can help improve waste water|
treatment in the feed mills.

% The proper disposal of waste
water as well as waste water

treatment present an
opportunity to mitigate and
decrease water pollution

contribution.

» Communities where
VITA operates
» Government

VITA monitors the final discharge of waste
water to ensure that its operations are
within the Clean Water Act and other
regulatory standards. It complies with the
proper waste water disposal prescribed
under the law and regulations. VITA has
waste water treatment facilities in its
dressing plants although it is not the one
operating the same. VITA has a PCO that
monitors and ensures compliance with
laws and regulations relative to water use,
water discharge and proper waste water
disposal.
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Environmental compliance

Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with 0 PhP
environmental laws and/or regulations
No. of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with None #
environmental laws and/or regulations
No. of cases resolved through dispute resolution mechanism None #

What is the impact and where

Which stakeholders are

Management Approach

operations at a minimal level —
within DENR thresholds.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Legal, financial, operational and
environmental risks due to non-
compliance  with laws and
regulations protecting the
environment.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Business continuity and minimal

pollution contribution due to
compliance  with laws and
regulations protecting the

environment.

does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

VITA was neither penalized norl » Government VITA strictly monitors compliance with

complained for violation or non-{ » Communities wherelenvironmental laws and regulations,

compliance with environmental VITA operates including securing all permits and licenses

laws and regulations in 2023. » Business partners |needed for the continued operation of its
» Customers business. It continuously upgrades and

Having complied with| > Employees regularly maintains its facilities to ensure

environmental laws and| > Investors efficiencies and maintain  pollution

regulations, VITA maintained its| » Shareholders contribution to a minimum.

contribution to pollution as al » Directors

necessary consequence of its] » Officers VITA incorporates in its contracts with

suppliers and partners the obligation to
comply with all existing laws and
regulations. This includes the duty to
comply with said laws and regulations and
there are sanctions for breach of this
obligation.
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Employee Management
Employee Hiring and Benefits
Employee data

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total number of employees® 672

a. Number of female employees 262 #

b. Number of male employees 410 #
Attrition rate’ 0.62% Rate
Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage None Ratio

Employee benefits
List of Benefits Y/N | % of female employees % of male employees
who availed for the who availed for the
year year
SSS Y 11.45% 6.10%
PhilHealth Y 3.05% 4.15%
Pag-ibig Y 21.37% 19.51%
Parental leaves Y 6.49% 2.44%
Vacation leaves Y 73.28% 65.85%
Sick leaves Y 53.44% 38.78%
Medical benefits (aside from Y 16.41% 16.10%
PhilHealth))
Housing assistance (aside from Pag- N 0 0
ibig)
Retirement fund (aside from SSS) Y 0 0.24%
Further education support N 0 0
Company stock options N 0 0
Telecommuting Y 37.40% 8.29%
Flexible-working Hours Y 17.56% 25.61%
(Others) Y 0 0

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

and Mindanao, it contributes

labor

The data above includes only the regular and organic
employees of VITA. With operations in Luzon, Visayas

and

VITA provides benefits on top of the government-

mandated benefits,

medical benefits in addition to PhilHealth benefits,

such as providing them

8 Employees are individuals who are in an employment rel ationship with the organization, according to national law or its application (GRI

Standards 2016 Glossary)

7 Attrition are = (no. of new hires — no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of previous year and total no. of employees of current

year)

27


https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf

employment. It also helps promote local employment
in Bulacan, lloilo, Davao and all other provinces where
it holds its operations. The number of regular
employees increased by 53 in 2023 mainly due to the
expansion of VITA’s business as it entered new
markets and launched new products/services that
necessitated the hiring of new employees to support
the growth. The attrition rate decreased by 0.52% in
2023. The company’s thrust to having a healthy work-
life balance, flexible and hybrid work arrangement,
and better workload management contributed to the
decrease in the attrition rate. It also contributes to its
employees’ welfare and quality of life by providing
benefits other than and on top of the government-
mandated benefits.

providing their qualified dependents medical
benefits, PPEs, uniform, rice subsidy, seniority pay,
transportation and meal allowances when
applicable, mortuary benefits, hazard pay to
qualified employees. It also engaged the services
of a physician who can conduct physical
examinations and check-ups to employees and
who goes to the office and plants so that his/her
services will be more accessible to the employees.
VITA likewise allowed telecommuting and flexible
working hours to its employees. It has a Crisis
Management Team who ensures that safety,
measures are not only in place but are also
consistently and strictly implemented to prevent
accidents and illnesses from happening or
spreading.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

VITA continuously engaged with its employees

VITA recognizes that poor over-all well-being of the
employees, unsecured workplace, low morale on the
employees’ part, or uncompetitive compensation and
benefits package may result in higher turn-over rate of|
the employees, thereby increasing its attrition rate. An
increase in attrition rate may, in turn, affect VITA’s
productivity outputs.

through webinars on wellness and health, physical
activities like Zumba and sports-related activities,
safety seminars and trainings, emergency
preparedness, and ensuring that the workplace is
safe.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

There is still an opportunity for sustained engagement
with the employees to increase their involvement,
morale, and over-all well-being, and maintain a
harmonious working environment, thereby increasing
employee retention and decreasing attrition rate.

Availability of skilled workforce in the areas of
operation and continuous provision of competitive
compensation and benefits package to the employees
continue to present an opportunity for VITA to sustain
its employees’ jobs and continuously provide more
employment and livelihood to the residents in the
areas of operation.

In addition to the foregoing, VITA regularly checks
the laws and regulations on the minimum wage
and benefits set by the government as well as
industry standards and it benchmarks on similar
companies within the industry to evaluate the
need to update and increase its compensation and
benefit package to ensure that the same is
competitive, if not better, than the companies
within the industry.

Employee Training and Development

Disclosure

Quantity Units

Total training hours provided to employees
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a. Female employees 6,922.67 Hours
b. Male employees 5,965.63 Hours
Average training hours provided to employees
a. Female employees 9.60 hours/employee
b. Male employees 6.50 hours/employee

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

VITA’s training and development programs for its
employees, whether internal or external, contribute to
the employees’ personal and professional growth and
efficiency in the performance of their tasks.

In 2023, there was an increase of 4,125.70 training
hours provided to the employees versus 2022 due to
the increase in onsite and hybrid (virtual and onsite)
trainings provided to the employees and the holding of|
compliance trainings to keep the ISO FSMS
certification, in addition to the regular and compliance
trainings being provided to the PCOs, Safety Officers,
and Occupational Health Nurses. The feeds sales
training conducted in 2023 also contributed to the
increase in the training hours provided to the
employees. There were also trainings on personal and
leadership development from middle management
and up, skills upgrade on food sales and leadership,
technical know-how relevant to the employees’ duties
and functions, compliance trainings for its various
certifications. Trainings on the company rules and
regulations were also conducted for the new hires.
Some of these trainings were conducted in-house and
some were conducted by third-parties.

VITA maintains a training schedule. Unless the
relevant department requests differently, the
trainings take place once a month. The majority of
the trainings are focused and specifically tailored
to the needs and demands of the departments and
personnel. Based on the manner in which the

training was delivered, VITA conducts a
comprehensive post-training evaluation and
feedback. In addition, it regularly assesses

employees’ work to gauge their development and
progress.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Trainings that are irrelevant or ineffective have little to
no impact on productivity.

In addition to the above, VITA has a database of|
trainings already provided and trainings that may
still be provided to the employees to ensure that

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

the trainings remain to be relevant and effective.
It also ensures that trainings attended by,

Employee access to outside training providers can
support VITA’s ongoing efforts to develop new leaders,
strengthen the management team, and improve
organizational productivity and efficiency.

supervisors and up are cascaded to their teams
within three months from the end of the training
to ensure that all trainings benefit everyone in the
team.
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Labor-Management Relations

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

% of employees covered with Collective Bargaining
Agreements

%

Number of consultations conducted with employees
concerning employee-related policies

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

% of female workers in the workforce

%

% of male workers in the workforce

%

vulnerable sector*

Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or

#

*Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants,
internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the

base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E).

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights

Occupational Health and Safety

Disclosure

Quantity

Units

Safe Man-Hours

Luzon — 845,100
Visayas — 340,544

Man-hours
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Mindanao —
432,879

Total: 1,618,523

No. of work-related injuries 0 #
No. of work-related fatalities 0 #
No. of work related ill-health 0 #
No. of safety drills Luzon -2 #
Visayas - 2
Mindanao — 3

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Based on the data recorded by VITA’s Safety Officer,
there was a total of 1,618,523 safe man-hours on its
plants. The increase of 165,375 hours in the safe man-
hours was primarily due to the absence of work-
related injuries, ill health, and fatalities in 2023 in
addition to the expansion of business for said year.

In addition, at least 1 fire drill and 1 earthquake drill
were conducted in 2023 in VITA’s Luzon and Visayas
operations. In Mindanao, 2 fire drills and 1 earthquake
drill were conducted in 2023.

VITA has an existing Safety Policy, the
implementation of which is being monitored by a
Safety Officer in all of its plants and offices. It
promotes health and safety awareness to
employees through its Safety Officer. It strictly
implements all sanitary and biosecurity measures
in place. In addition, VITA provides safety-related
trainings and PPEs to its employees detailed in the
plants.

The Safety Officers also regularly sent the
employees safety reminders by e-mails, especially

What are the Risk/s Identified?

during long weekends.

Work-related hazards that may cause work-related
injuries, fatalities or ill-health include ergonomic
hazards (lifting and prolonged sitting), dust and
chemical exposure, computer radiation, moving
machines, and equipment inside the plant.

VITA’s medical doctors and nurses are hands-on in
monitoring health concerns of employees. In place
are health/medical, hospitalization, and insurance
benefits for employees and legal dependents,
subject to applicable policies and procedures. VITA
has also an emergency response team, first aiders,

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

and fire brigade team in addition to the safety
officers.

The identified risks present an opportunity to
continuously train and educate the employees
regarding the importance of compliance with all safety,
procedures, policies and measures being implemented
by VITA.

The consistency of e-mail and visual reminders,
enhancement of health and safety protocols, and

VITA also conducts regular hazard identification
and risk assessment and appropriate mitigations
are implemented to address any identified hazard
and risk.

continuous and regular fire and earthquake drills can
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help sustain the absence of work-related injuries, ill-
health and fatalities.

Labor Laws and Human Rights

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving forced #
or child labor

Do you have policies that explicitly disallows violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment,
bullying) in the workplace?

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the company policy

Forced labor
Child labor
Human Rights

What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach

Supply Chain Management

Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy:

Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers?

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy
Environmental performance
Forced labor
Child labor
Human rights
Bribery and corruption

What is the impact and where does it occur? What Management Approach
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?
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What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Relationship with Community

Significant Impacts on Local Communities

Operations Location Vulnerable Does the | Collective or | Mitigating

with significant groups (if | particular individual measures (if

(positive or applicable)* operation rights that | negative) or

negative) have have been | enhancement

impacts on local impacts on | identified that | measures (if

communities indigenous | or particular | positive)

(exclude  CSR people concern for the

projects; this (Y/N)? community

has to be

business

operations)

Feed mill | lloilo N As  discussed | As mentioned

operations above, VITA | above, VITA

Davao N contributes to | regularly

local conducts
employment preventive
and job | maintenance of
creation. its equipment to
However, inthe | minimize its
pursuit of its | emissions. It
operations, it is | also ensures
unfortunate that all wastes
that it also | are properly
contributes to | segregated.
pollution VITA also
through its | complies with all
GHG emissions, | environmental
air pollutants, | laws and
solid, water | regulations.
and hazardous
wastes.

Research and Nueva Ecija N While VITA’s R | VITA ensures

Development Bulacan N & D farm | that all wastes

Farm operations are properly

Operations contribute to | segregated.
local VITA also

employment

and job

complies with all
environmental
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creation, it also
contributes to

solid, water
and hazardous
wastes.

laws and
regulations,

pollution including safety
through its air | measures in
pollutants, place.

*Vulnerable sector includes children and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women,
refugees, migrants, internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents,
and the poor or the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E)

For operations that are affecting IPs, indicate the total number of Free and Prior Informed Consent (FPIC)
undergoing consultations and Certification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and provide

a copy or link to the certificates if available:

Certificates

Quantity

Units

FPIC process is still undergoing

CP secured

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Customer Ma nagement
Customer Satisfaction

Disclosure

Score

Did a third party conduct
the customer satisfaction

study (Y/N)?

Customer satisfaction

July 2023 (Feeds
only):

Overall rating
(nationwide) — 4/5

Product (color, size,
texture, odor, weight,
price) —4/5.0

Performance of feeds
- 4/5
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For
the

is 3.

Sales
4.30/5

Marketing services -
4.10/5

satisfaction
conducted in Central
Luzon, overall rating

services

Foods: Based on
customer
survey

73/5.0.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Based on the customer satisfaction survey for feeds
conducted last July 2023, the over-all rating of VITA's
feeds for farms and dealership was 4/5, which was
higher than the over-all ratings for feeds in 2022.

For foods, the survey conducted in Central Luzon
resulted in 3.73/5.0. This survey measured the overall
product services such as supply reliability, quality of]
products, and timeliness on customers’ concern.

Quality products and excellent customer service
translate to customer satisfaction, which in turn,
contributes to VITA’s revenues. They create higher
demand for VITA’s products and services, thus,
necessitating additional manpower. It also contributes
to the growth of its business partners.

VITA regularly engages with its customers, the
manner and frequency of which depend on the
type of product and customer needs and
expectations. For feeds, VITA conducts annual or
bi-annual customer satisfaction surveys to assess
how VITA can improve its products, services, and
processes. For distributors, feedbacks are usually
given during the annual trade partners’ night and
quarterly business reviews. For key customers,
VITA conducts bi-annual business reviews with
them, where they also give feedback to VITA.

For end-users or consumers of VITA’s chicken
products under the Cook’s brand, feedbacks may
be given through VITA’s website, mobile and
landline numbers, e-mail, and social media sites.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Poor customer satisfaction can lead to loss of]
customers and harm to reputation, particularly, if
dissatisfied customers express their grievances on
VITA’s social media platforms.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

There is still an opportunity for sustained and
continuous customer satisfaction surveys for both
feeds and foods to gauge and further improve VITA's

brand offering based on its customer needs and
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expectations. In addition, there is still an opportunity
to streamline the feedback mechanism for both feeds
and foods products of VITA.

Health and Safety

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on product or service 0 #
health and safety*
No. of complaints addressed 0 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from

customers that went through the organization’s

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and

acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

For 2023, there was no substantiated complaint
against the health and safety of VITA’s products. Thus,
it was not exposed to legal, operational, and financial
risks related to product health and safety.

VITA takes into consideration the health and safety
of its feeds for consumption of poultry and
livestock. It also requires its growers and breeders
to follow the best practices in growing and raising

What are the Risk/s Identified?

poultry.

Failure to maintain the health and safety of its
products exposes VITA to legal, operational,
reputational and financial risks.

VITA has Quality Assurance team that ensures the
health and safety of the products processed at
accredited processing plants and delivered to
customers.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Keeping and ensuring the products’ health and safety,
to avoid legal, operational, reputational and financial
risks.

VITA’s dressing plant operated by third parties and
VITA’s toll partners are NMIS/FDA accredited.
Good Manufacturing Practices and Food Safety
Systems are being implemented and safely and
strictly followed.

Some of VITA’s plants are certified by Hazard
Analysis Critical Control Points (HACCP), which is a
testament that VITA’s production process and
food safety program are at par with internally
recognized standards. Moreover, VITA’s lloilo and
Davao feed mill plants are FSMS 1SO 22000:2018
certified, meaning that the food safety
management systems in place in these plants
passed internationally recognized standards.
VITA’s dressed chicken and value-added products
under the Cook’s brand are likewise Halal certified,

meaning that the products were processed
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following Islamic law. Likewise, established
environmental monitoring and product testing are
being done to ensure and verify the safety of the
product. VITA continuously holds trainings related
to food safety to comply and maintain with
regulatory, statutory, and customer specifications
and requirements.

Marketing and labelling

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on marketing and 1 #
labelling*
No. of complaints addressed 1 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from

customers that went through the organization’s

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and

acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

For 2023, there was one complaint in VITA’s
megadealer in Davao regarding the packaging
materials for commercial layer and hogs — particularly,
on faded label prints and loose weaving and quality of
woven sacks for feeds. VITA had taken steps to
improve the design and minimize errors on label prints
as well as on the quality of the sacks for feeds.

To address the complaints on the packaging, VITA
updated its label design as well as improving the
print quality and specification of its woven sacks.
These will be implemented within 2024. In
addition, VITA has Quality Assurance personnel to
ensure not only the health and safety of its
products but also the proper packaging and
labeling of each item. Further, prior to launching
and using a particular packaging for a product,
internal surveys among the employees are
conducted to test run the intended packaging.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

These surveys are signed-off by the marketing,
sales, quality assurance and R&D departments.

Faded label prints gave an impression that VITA’s
products are old/expired. The loose weaving of the
sacks exposes the feeds to infestation. Both the
foregoing may negatively impact VITA’s branding and
sales.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

The complaints received in 2023 provide an
opportunity to further improve its branding and
labeling and the quality of its packaging materials,

particularly, woven sacks.
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Customer privacy

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* #

No. of complaints addressed #

No. of customers, users and account holders whose H
information is used for secondary purposes

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from

customers that went through the organization’s

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and

acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Data Security

Disclosure

Quantity Units

of data

No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts and losses

0

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

For 2023, VITA did not experience data breach, leak,
theft or even loss. All data regarding its business
operations, trade secrets, employees, suppliers, and
customers are intact and secured. Since it was able to
keep its data secured, its business operations and
supply chain remained undisturbed and its business
operations and supply chain were not exposed to legal,
financial and operational risks.

VITA has an IT department in charge of|
maintaining the integrity and security of data
stored electronically as well as the maintenance
and security of all computers used by the
employees. It has also developed a safe-keeping
system of all its contracts, records, and important
documents to protect the data in the said
contracts, records or documents. Only those that
have a “need” to access these documents may be

What are the Risk/s Identified?

allowed access to the said records, contracts, or|
documents and the information contained in

Breach of data security exposes VITA, its directors,
officers, and employees to legal, operational, financial
and reputational risks.

those records, contracts or documents must be
used only for a legitimate purpose. In 2023, the IT
department completed an active directory in

Luzon, which limits the non-business activities that
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

The development and implementation of the active
directory in Visayas and Mindanao operations will give

the same protection as the data in Luzon.

can be done using VITA’s computers, internet, and
mobile phones within and outside company
premises and ensure that those who access VITA’s
data are those who have a need-to- know. VITA
also renewed existing endpoints, firewall, and SSL
to protect and secure data.

LN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs

Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development.

Key Products and
Services

Societal Value /
Contribution to UN SDGs

Potential Negative
Impact of Contribution

Management Approach
to Negative Impact

Animal Feeds

Animal Health Care

Chicken  (Dressed
and Value-Added
Products under the
flagship brand
“Cook’s”)

SDG Goal 2: Zero Hunger

1. Continuous provision of
healthy and safe feeds for
animals and foods for
people.

2. Lifetime
Partnerships  with its
business partners,
suppliers, customers and
employees.

3. Higher allocation of
VITA's procurement
budget to local suppliers.
4. Increased and
strengthened support to
local agriculture.

4. Continuation of the
Green Sanctuary Program.

Profitable

SDG Goal 8: Decent Work
and Economic Growth

1. Continued economic

growth of VITA and
contribution to its
stakeholders’” economic
growth.

2. Job creation,

competitive compensation

1. Shortage of natural
resources.

2. Waste generation.

3. Pollution
contribution.

4. Contribution to
Climate Change.

As disclosed in the
previous topics, VITA
continuously evaluates
its strategies and
modifies them as may be
necessary to adapt to
the changing
landscapes, provide
solutions to challenges
encountered, and
pioneer innovations.
VITA operates within the
parameters of law,
regulations, its ECC and
it shall continue to look
for solutions to further
mitigate, manage, and
reduce its contributions
to pollution and climate
change as well as to

further reduce the
wastes it
generates/produces

from its operations. It
shall continue to
regularly maintain and
upgrade its equipment
and facilities.
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packages, and career
growth opportunities.

3. Full, productive,
efficient, healthy and safe
workplace.

4. Continuation of the
Green Sanctuary program.
5. Higher allocation of
VITA’s procurement
budget to local suppliers.

SDG Goal 12: Responsible
Production and
Consumption

1. Efficient use and
management of natural
and non-natural
resources.

2. Compliance with
environmental laws and
regulations, including
compliance with EPR Act.
3. Completion of Solar
Energy Project in lloilo
feed mill.

4. About 92.07% of
procurement budget was
spent on local suppliers.

5. Healthy and safe feeds
and food.

VITA is continuously
improving and
innovating its operations
and processes to
manage its negative
impacts to the economy,
environment, and
society as well as to have
continuous LPPs with its
stakeholders.

* None/Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companies, the services and products of
its subsidiaries may be disclosed.
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